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Plaintiff, the People of the State of California, ex rel. Meredith Williams, Director, 

Department of Toxic Substances Control (“Department” or “DTSC”), alleges the following: 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE  

1. Defendants General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba 

PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC (“GEM”); Stericycle Environmental 

Solutions, Inc. (“Stericycle Environmental”) and Stericycle, Inc. (collectively “Stericycle”); and 

DOES 1 through 10 (collectively, “Defendants”), at all times relevant to this Complaint, owned, 

operated, and managed the hazardous waste treatment and storage facility located at 11855 White 

Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, California (referred to as the “Facility”). 

2.  Enforcement History: Defendants have a long and troubled history of violating 

the Hazardous Waste Control Law, chapter 6.5 of division 20 of the California Health and Safety 

Code and its implementing regulations set forth in the California Code of Regulations, title 22, 

division 4.5, section 66260.1 et seq. (“HWCL”) in connection with their operations of the 

Facility. As set forth below in detail, the Department found violations of the HWCL at 

Defendants’ Facility in 2009, 2011, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018. Pursuant to a 

consent order with the Department entered on October 12, 2010, Defendant GEM admitted to the 

2009 violations, agreed to a schedule of compliance, and paid $574,000 in penalties to the 

Department (“2010 Consent Order”).  The Department and Defendants settled the 2011-2017 

violations in a Final Judgment on Consent and Permanent Injunction entered by this Court on 

October 19, 2018 (“2018 Final Judgment”) pursuant to which Defendants paid the Department 

$1,412,000 in civil penalties and agreed to be bound by the injunctive terms in the 2018 Final 

Judgment.  People of the State of California v. GEM and Stericycle, Sacramento Superior Court, 

Case No. 34-2017-00221348.  As part of the 2018 Final Judgment, Defendants stipulated that the 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint (“2017 Complaint”) against Defendants for violations 

identified by the Department between 2011-2017 are deemed proven and may be considered as a 

basis for, inter alia, enhanced penalties in any future HWCL enforcement or the Department’s 

determination in a permitting proceeding, decision, and/or process (2018 Final Judgment at ¶13).   

/ / /  
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A copy of the 2010 Consent Order, 2017 Complaint, and 2018 Final Judgment are 

attached as Exhibits A, B, and C, respectively, to this Complaint. 

3.  The Current Action:  

 The Department  inspectors  conducted an inspection at the Facility on June 25-

26, 2018  (“2018 Inspection”), reviewed the  Facility’s documents  and identified,  once again, that 

Defendants  violated the  HWCL by mismanaging hazardous  waste, including many serious and 

repeat  violations  as described below.  

  

    

  

  

 

 

   

    

   

  

  

  

  

 

    

    

 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

4.  The Department hereby seeks injunctive relief and civil penalties against the 

Defendants for the violations identified in this Complaint pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

sections 25181, 25184, 25188, 25189, and 25189.2, and enhanced civil penalties against the 

Defendants for repeat and continued violations of the HWCL. 

PLAINTIFF 

5. The Department is a state agency organized and existing pursuant to section 

58000 et seq. of the California Health and Safety Code. The Department is the state agency 

responsible for administering and enforcing the HWCL. 

6. Meredith Williams is the Director of the Department. 

7. Health and Safety Code sections 25181, subdivision (a), and 25182 authorize 

the Attorney General of the State of California, at the request of the Department, to commence an 

action in the name of the People of the State of California for civil penalties and injunctive relief 

under the HWCL.  The Department has requested the Attorney General to apply to this Court for 

injunctive relief and civil penalties pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 25181, 25184, 

25188, 25189, and 25189.2 for violations of the HWCL by Defendants.  

DEFENDANTS  

8. Based on information and belief, Defendant GEM has owned and operated the 

Facility from at least 2009 to at least the date of the 2018 Inspection and did and does business 

under the name PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC. 

/ / /  

/ / /  
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9. Based on information and belief, Defendant Stericycle Environmental or 

Defendant Stericycle, Inc., or both, owned and/or operated the Facility from on or about 2014 to 

at least the date of the 2018 Inspection.  

10. When reference is made in this Complaint to any act of Defendants, such 

allegation shall mean that the officers, directors, employees, agents, or representatives of 

Defendants did, or authorized, such acts or intentionally and/or negligently failed to adequately or 

properly supervise, control, or direct their employees and/or agents while engaged in the 

management, direction, operation, or control of the affairs of the Facility. 

11. Defendants are each “persons” as that term is defined by Health and Safety 

Code section 25118.   

12. The names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, or otherwise, of 

defendants named herein as Does 1 through 10, inclusive, are unknown at this time to the 

Department.  The Department therefore sues said defendants by such fictitious names.  The 

Department will seek leave to amend this Complaint to show their true names and capacities 

when the names have been ascertained.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis 

alleges, that each defendant designated as a DOE defendant is responsible, along with the named 

Defendants, for the hazardous waste violations alleged in this Complaint. 

13. Each reference in this Complaint to “Defendants” refers not only to the named 

Defendants, but also all DOE defendants sued under fictitious names. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

14. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to California Constitution Article VI, 

section 10 and Health and Safety Code section 25181.  

15. This Complaint has been filed within five  (5) years of the Plaintiff discovering 

the HWCL violations alleged herein. 

16. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25183 

in that the violations at issue occurred at the Facility, which is in Sacramento County. 

/ / /  
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17. This action is an unlimited civil case because the amount of penalties requested 

exceeds twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000)  and because none of the Plaintiff’s causes of 

action meets the criteria for limited civil cases in the Code of Civil Procedure. 

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND  

18. The State of California has enacted a comprehensive statutory and regulatory 

framework for the generation, handling, treatment, transport, and disposal of hazardous wastes. 

The framework contained in the HWCL mandates a “cradle to grave” registration, tracking, 

storage, treatment, and disposal system for the protection of the public from the risks posed by 

hazardous wastes and for the protection of the environment—i.e., soil, air, surface water, 

groundwater—from contamination by hazardous wastes and their constituents. All terms defined 

in the Complaint shall be interpreted as provided in, and consistent with, the HWCL. 

19.  Pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 25101, subdivision (d) and 25159-

25159.9, California administers the HWCL in lieu of federal administration of the federal  

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), which is codified at  42 United States Code  

section 6901 et seq.  Federal law prohibits California from imposing any requirements less  

stringent than those authorized under RCRA. (42 U.S.C. § 6929.)  Certain provisions in the  

HWCL are stricter than the analogous provisions in RCRA.  

20. The HWCL provides that the Department shall adopt, and revise when 

appropriate, standards and regulations for the management of hazardous waste to protect, inter 

alia, the public health and environment.  (Health & Saf. Code § 25150.)  Accordingly, the 

Department has promulgated regulations setting forth numerous and extensive environmental and 

health protective requirements for the day-to-day operation of hazardous waste generators, 

transporters,  and owners   and operators of hazardous waste facilities.  (See Cal. Code. Regs. tit. 

22, § 66260.1 et seq.) 

21. The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 25201, subdivision (a), provides 

that an owner or operator of a hazardous waste facility may not “accept, treat, store, or dispose of 

a hazardous waste at the facility, area, or site, unless the owner or operator holds a hazardous 

waste facilities permit or other grant of authorization from the Department to use and operate the 
5 
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facility, area, or site…” 

22. The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 25200, subdivision (a), 

authorizes the Department to issue operating permits, called hazardous waste facilities permits, to 

the owners and operators of facilities managing hazardous wastes. 

23. The HWCL requires that the owner and operator of a hazardous waste facility 

comply with the provisions of the facility’s hazardous waste permit. 

a. Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) requires the owner or 

operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit to “comply 

with the conditions of [that] permit.” 

b. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section subdivision (a)    66270.30 

requires that the “permittee comply with the conditions of the permit” and specifies that any 

“noncompliance . . . constitutes a violation of the [HWCL] and is grounds for” enforcement. 

ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY UNDER THE HWCL 

24. The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose civil penalties under two distinct 

and alternative statutory provisions.  Section 25189 of the Health and Safety Code creates liability 

for any negligent or intentional violation of the HWCL.  Section 25189.2 is a strict liability 

provision, which creates liability for any violation of the HWCL.  A person may not be held liable 

for a civil penalty under both section 25189 and section 25189.2 for the same act. (Health & Saf. 

Code, § 25189.2, subd. (f).) 

25. Effective January 1, 2018, the HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a civil 

penalty of up to seventy  thousand dollars ($70,000) per day for each violation of a separate 

provision of the HWCL.  For continuing violations, the HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a 

penalty of up to seventy  thousand dollars ($70,000) for each day that a violation continues. (see, 

e.g., Health & Saf. Code, §§ 25189, subd. (b) and 25189.2, subd. (b).) 

26. In addition, Health and Safety Code section 25188 provides that a person 

subject to an order under Health and Safety Code section 25187 who does not comply with that 

order shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than seventy thousand dollars ($70,000) for 

each day of noncompliance. 
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27. Defendants are subject under Health and Safety Code section 25187 to comply 

with the Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination and Enforcement Order that was 

issued by the Department in 2013 (“2013 ISE Order”) after two fires and an explosion occurred at 

the Facility resulting from the mismanagement of hazardous waste by Defendant GEM as more 

fully described in Paragraphs 37-42. 

28. Health and Safety Code sections 25181 and 25184, authorizes and directs the 

Court to enjoin any ongoing or potential violation of the HWCL. 

29.  Section 25181 of the Health and Safety Code provides: 

 “when the Department determines that any person has engaged in, is engaged in, or is  
about to engage in any acts or practices  which  constitute or will constitute a violation of any  
provision of the HWCL  or any rule, regulation, covenant, standard,  requirement  or order 
issued, pr omulgated or executed thereunder, and when requested by the  [D]epartment,  . . .  
the Attorney General may  apply to the superior court for an order enjoining such acts or  
practices, or for  an order  directing compliance, and upon a showing by the  [D]epartment  
that the person has engaged in or is about to engage in any such acts or practices, a  
permanent or temporary injunction, restraining order, or other order may be  granted.”  

30.  Health and Safety Code section 25184 provides that in civil actions brought 

pursuant to the HWCL in which an injunction or temporary restraining order is sought: 

It shall not be necessary to allege or prove at any stage of the proceeding that 
irreparable damage will  occur should the temporary restraining order, preliminary 
injunction, or permanent  injunction not be issued; or that the remedy at law  is 
inadequate, and the temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, or permanent 
injunction shall issue without such allegations and without such proof.  

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS  

The Facility:  

31. The Facility is situated on a 4.5-acre parcel adjacent to White Rock Road and is 

identified by Sacramento County Assessor Parcel Number 072-0530-001.  The Facility includes, 

but is not limited to, an administrative building, a lab, truck parking, a loading and unloading 

area, five hazardous waste management units known as Areas A, B, C, and D, and a drum crusher 

unit.  The drum crusher unit is currently undergoing regulatory closure as required by California 

Code of Regulations, title 22, division 4.5, chapter 14, article 7 (Closure and Post-Closure). 

/ / /  
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32. At the times relevant to this Complaint, one or more of the Defendants owned 

and/or operated the Facility and continue to own and operate the Facility. 

33. Defendants have operated and continue to operate the Facility as an active 

permitted hazardous waste management facility. The Facility has a permitted capacity of 

approximately 82,320 gallons of hazardous waste.  The Facility’s current hazardous waste permit, 

(“Permit”), which also incorporates by reference the Part A and Part B permit application 

(“Permit Part A” and “Permit Part B”), was issued by the Department on April 25, 2007 and was 

subsequently modified.  The Permit expired on April 25, 2017.  

34. Defendants continue to operate the Facility pending the Department’s review of 

a permit renewal application submitted to the Department in October 2016. 

35. Under the Permit, Defendants are authorized by the Department to engage in 

the following hazardous waste management activities at the Facility: (1) sampling, (2) storage, (3) 

packaging and re-packaging, (4) bulking and consolidation of containers, and (5)  container 

crushing and equipment flushing, in accordance with the conditions set forth in the Permit.  

Defendants’ History of HWCL Violations at the Facility Between 2009 – 2017 

Including Fires and an Explosion Due to Mixing of Incompatible Hazardous Waste and 

Intentional Conduct 

36. Pursuant to the terms of the 2010 Consent Order, Defendant GEM admitted to 

HWCL violations, including the storage of incompatibles, and  paid five hundred seventy-four 

thousand dollars ($574,000) in penalties.   Defendants have repeatedly stored incompatible  

hazardous waste at the Facility in violation of the HWCL. The Department identified violations 

for the storage of incompatible hazardous waste in 2009, 2011, 2013, 2015, 2016, and most 

recently during the 2018 inspection of the Facility.  

37. Since 2011, one  (1) explosion and three  (3) fires have occurred at the Facility 

due to the mixing of incompatible hazardous waste and/or intentional conduct by Defendants 

while managing hazardous waste.  The explosion occurred on March 8, 2011, when Defendant 

GEM mixed incompatible hazardous waste by bulking soluble organics with  twenty-two  (22)  

gallons of nitric  acid into a drum, resulting in a violent and uncontrolled reaction.  The reaction 
8 
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caused an explosion that ruptured the drum and launched it approximately fifteen (15)  feet in the 

air, spraying hot, concentrated acid throughout most of the Facility’s repackaging area.  The 

explosion also released vapors and hazardous waste to the surrounding environment.  

38. The first fire at the Facility occurred on August 2, 2011, when Defendant GEM 

mixed incompatible hazardous waste by consolidating oxidizing pool chemicals, including acids 

and oxidizers, into a 55-gallon drum, and then closed the drum’s lid.  Shortly thereafter, the drum 

began to emit a yellowish-green gas.  The drum pressurized sufficiently to blow the lid off the 

drum, and the drum caught fire.  The fire spread to consume a total of four  (4) plastic drums of 

hazardous waste.  The local fire department subsequently arrived and extinguished the fire, but 

their response efforts resulted in two firefighters being sent to the local hospital for observation.      

39. The second fire at the Facility occurred in March 2013.  Beginning on February 

28, 2013, Defendant GEM mixed incompatible waste by consolidating hazardous waste solids 

and trash into a roll-off bin. On March 3, 2013, the bin that Defendant GEM mixed hazardous 

waste in began to smolder.  A passerby observed flames coming from the Facility and called the 

fire department who arrived and extinguished the fire.  The fire, which burned for five hours and 

released smoke and potentially toxic constituents into the environment, was caused by an 

exothermic reaction that occurred from mixing incompatible wastes.  

40. In response to the 2011 explosion and 2011 and 2013 fires, the Department 

issued the 2013 ISE Order to Defendant GEM, ordering Defendant GEM to immediately cease 

the bulking and consolidation of all hazardous waste operations at the Facility until the 

Department authorized Defendant GEM to resume operations because of the “… continuing 

inability of Respondent [Defendant GEM] to take precautions sufficient to prevent fires, 

explosions, or other violent or non-violent reactions that could potentially release hazardous 

wastes to the environment …” (2013 ISE Order at  p. 5.)  A copy of the 2013 ISE Order is 

attached as Exhibit D to this Complaint. The 2013 ISE Order applies to Defendant GEM, “and its 

officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, trustees, successors, and 

assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, and subsidiary and parent 

corporations.” (2013 ISE Order at p.10.).  
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41. Defendant GEM was authorized to resume bulking and consolidation operations 

at the Facility on October 21, 2013 after it agreed to revise its existing Standard Operating 

Procedures (“SOP”) and modify the Permit to institute a safety protocol to prevent the 

reoccurrence of fires and explosions due to incompatibles being mixed together. Permit Part B, 

section V, Attachment V8-A, “Container Process Form-Permit Specific” (“Permit Process Form”) 

was part of the revised SOP and embodies the safety protocol that was developed in response to 

the 2013 ISE Order to prevent the reoccurrence of fires and explosions. The Permit Process Form 

is attached as Exhibit E to this Complaint. 

42. The safety protocol required Defendants to conduct screening and/or testing for 

incompatible wastes prior to bulking or consolidating wastes together, to record the screening 

and/or testing results on the Permit Process Form, and to have a chemist or facility management 

personnel review the screening and/or test results to determine whether bulking or consolidation 

can occur.  Review and approval by the chemist or facility management would be evidenced by 

their respective signature on the Permit Process Form. 

43. The third fire at the Facility occurred on August 7, 2017.  The fire occurred 

when two  (2)  employees intentionally poured liquid naphthalene (flammable) onto paper and lit 

the paper on fire with a lighter where other employees were also consolidating hazardous waste 

and where other ignitable hazardous waste was located.       

44. The Department also inspected the Facility in 2014, 2015, 2016, and 2017.  The 

Department found that Defendants violated the HWCL during each of these inspections.  The 

Department filed the 2017 Complaint, which included the violations at the Facility identified by 

the Department between 2011 and 2017.  As noted above, the violations alleged in the 2017 

Complaint were resolved pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment. 

Current Action for Violations of the HWCL in 2018 by Defendants 

45.  The Department’s 2018 inspection of the Facility again found multiple 

instances of serious and/or repeat HWCL violations by Defendants, including, 

a. Fifty  (50) instances of stored and/or failed to properly segregate 

incompatible hazardous waste from one another, 
10 
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b. One hundred forty-two  (142) instances of failing to use the safety 

protocol to prevent incompatibles from being mixed together during bulking activities as required 

by the Permit and 2013 ISE order, 

c. Forty-seven  (47)  instances of storing hazardous waste beyond the 

Facility’s 10-day storage limit, 

d. At least  twenty (20) instances of failing to mark when hazardous 

waste containers became empty, 

e. Incorrectly labeling hazardous waste during storage, 

f. Failing to remove spills, leaks, and/or liquids from secondary 

containment systems, 

g. Storing hazardous waste in containers that were not in good 

condition (e.g., some of the containers had structural defects) during storage, and 

h. Forty-two (42) instances of failing to use the required air pollution 

control device (i.e., an organic air scrubber) designed to vent organic vapors, e.g., flammable 

vapors when bulking organic hazardous waste. 

FIRST  CAUSE OF ACTION  
REPEAT VIOLATION 

(Management of  Incompatible Wastes in Violation of Health & Saf. Code 
§ 25202, subd. (a), Cal. Code Regs., title 22, §§ 

66264.177, subds. (a) and (c) and 66270.30, subd. (a)) 

46.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

47. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section defines    66260.10 

“incompatible waste” as “a hazardous waste which is unsuitable for (a) placement in a particular 

device or facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g., 

containment inner liners or tank walls); or (b) commingling with another waste or material under 

uncontrolled conditions because the commingling might produce heat or pressure, fire or 

explosion, violent reaction, toxic dusts, mists, fumes, or gases or flammable fumes or gases.” 

/ / /  
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48. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.177 subdivision (c) 

provides that, a “container holding a hazardous waste that is incompatible with any waste or other 

materials transferred or stored nearby in other containers, piles, open tanks, or surface 

impoundments shall be separated from the other materials or protected from them by means of a 

dike, berm, wall, or other device.” 

49. Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) provides that the owner and/or operator of 

a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply 

with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 

50. Sections VIII(D)(1)(d)(1) and VIII(E)(1) (b) of the Permit Part B requires the 

separation of containers of incompatible hazardous waste in Area A. 

51. Sections VI(E)(8) and VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B prohibit containers of 

incompatible wastes from being placed within the same cell in Area B. In addition, section 

VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B requires that containers of incompatible waste stored in 

different cells in Area B, be segregated in accordance with California Code of Regulations, title 

22, section  66264.177, subdivision (c).  

52. Sections VI(G)(1) and (4) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of 

incompatible material within Area C. Section VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B states that Area 

C will follow the requirements [segregation requirements] specified in Section V, Paragraph 

(G)(3)(a) of the permit. 

53. Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.177, subdivisions (a) and (c), and 

66270.30, subdivision (a) and the Permit by failing to appropriately separate incompatible 

hazardous waste by means of a dike, berm, wall, or other device as follows: 

a. On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants failed in at least  nine  (9) instances to 

properly separate containers of incompatible wastes such as oxidizers and flammable liquids, by a 

dike, berm, wall or other device in Areas B and C.  (Health & Saf. § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. 

Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, subd. (a) and 66264.177, subd. (c).) 
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b. On June 25, 2018, the Department requested the Facility’s daily inspection logs 

(“daily logs”) from January 2018 through June 2018. After reviewing the daily logs provided by 

the Defendants, the Department also determined that Defendants failed to separate containers of 

incompatible hazardous waste at least an additional  forty-one  (41) times in Areas A, B, and C 

between January 2018 and June 2018.  (Health & Saf. §  25202, subd. (a)  and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 

22, §§ 66270.30, subd. (a) and 66264.177, subd. (c).)    

c. This is the seventh inspection of the Facility in which the Department found 

that Defendant(s) improperly stored and/or failed to properly segregate incompatible hazardous 

waste.  Defendant(s) previously stored incompatible hazardous waste together in violation of the 

HWCL and the Permit Part B at the Facility in 2009, 2011, 2013, 2015, 2016, and 2017, which at 

times resulted in fires and explosions at the Facility.  

54. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202 subdivision (a), 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.177, subdivisions (a) and (c), and 

66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which 

each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety 

Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 

25189.2, subdivision (b). 

55. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

56. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

/ / /  

/ / /  

/ / /  

/ / /  

/ / /  
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SECOND CAUS E OF ACTION  
REPEAT VIOLATION 

(Failure to Follow Safety Protocol Encapsulated in Permit Process Form for the Management of 
Ignitable, Reactive, or Incompatible Hazardous Wastes and Improper Bulking in Violation of 

Health & Saf. Code, §§ 25202, subd. (a), 25188 and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, subd. 
(a), 66264.17, subds. (a)  and (b), and 2013 ISE  Order)  

57.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

58. Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) provides that the owner and/or operator of 

a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required 

to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 

59. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (a) 

requires that an owner and/or operator of a facility take precautions to prevent accidental ignition 

or reaction of ignitable or reactive waste. 

60. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (b) 

requires that an owner and/or operator of a facility prevent reactions which generate extreme heat 

or pressure, fire or explosions, or violent reactions. 

61. The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.2.1 of the 2013 ISE Order issued 

pursuant to Section 25187 required Defendants to revise its Permit and SOP to implement a safety 

protocol to prevent fires and explosions or other violent or non-violent reactions that could 

potentially release hazardous waste to the environment by ensuring incompatible wastes are not 

bulked or consolidated together.  

62. The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.3 of the 2013 ISE Order issued pursuant 

to Section 25187 provides that after  the Department approves the safety protocol, Defendants will   
 
implement the  plans.  

63. Permit Part B sections V(C)(10), V(D)(1), V(G)(1), and the Permit Process 

Form are part of the safety protocol instituted and required to be followed to ensure “safe and 

appropriate methods of handling of wastes within the facility” and ensure proper oversight for 

bulking and consolidation of hazardous waste. 

/ / /  
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64. The Permit Process Form encapsulates the safety protocol Defendants are 

required to follow, including documenting the physical state of the hazardous waste, performing a 

radioactivity screen, conducting commingled hazardous waste compatibility testing before 

bulking hazardous waste and obtaining the signature of a chemist or facility manager who has 

reviewed and approved the Permit Process Form to ensure that the safety protocol has been 

followed, no evidence of an incompatible reaction was observed, and that bulking or 

consolidation is appropriate. The commingled hazardous waste compatibility test involves 

pouring small amounts of liquid from each source container to be bulked, into a separate, small 

container, where the liquids are stirred, and the mixture must sit for a set period time. If any 

incompatible reactions (e.g., signs of heat or bubbling) are observed, those reactions are noted on 

the Permit Process Form as potential incompatible reactions, and the waste intended to be bulked 

will not be bulked. 

65. Between January 1, 2018 and June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and 

Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 

66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66264.17, subdivisions (a) and (b), and the 2013 ISE Order by 

failing to perform and/or document compliance with the safety protocol, including the comingled 

compatibility testing and/or failing to obtain written approval by the chemist or facility 

management prior to bulking wastes on at least one hundred and forty-two  (142)  occasions. 

66. Only six (6) months earlier, on July 28, 2017, Defendants represented to the 

Department that it had “reinstalled” the Permit Process Form in response to a similar violation 

where Defendants had failed to obtain the approval of the facility chemist prior to bulking 

hazardous waste. In a letter to DTSC on July 28, 2017, Defendants informed the Department they 

had “reinstalled the permit sample form that includes signatures as a gesture of cooperation.  

GEM is planning to re-work the associated approval methods and documentation to preclude 

future misunderstandings.” (“7/28/17 Letter” at p.  3).  A copy of the 7/28/17 Letter is attached as 

Exhibit F to the Complaint. 

/ / /  

/ / /  
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67. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a), 66264.17, 

subdivision (a) and (b), subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each 

violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2 

subdivision (b). 

68. Failure to comply with the terms of the 2013 ISE Order subjects Defendants to 

costs and penalties for any costs incurred by the Department resulting from Defendants failure to 

comply. 

69. Health and Safety Code section 25188 provides that any person subject to a 

Schedule of Compliance issued pursuant to Section 25187 who does not comply with that 

schedule shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than seventy  thousand dollars  ($70,000)  

for each day of noncompliance. 

70. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

71. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

THIRD CAUS E OF ACTION  
(Failure to Use  Air Pollution Control Device  in Violation  of Health & Saf.  

Code § 25202, subd. (a), and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a))  

72.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

73. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous 

waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 

(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a).)  

74. Section VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B requires that Defendants use the 

appropriate scrubber, an air pollution control device, during bulking operations.  This requirement 
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helps  to vent  or capture  vapors from the hazardous waste  management operations  before vapors  

can  build up in the room,  be released outside of the Facility, or be harmful to employees.   

75. Between January 2018 and June 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety 

Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 

66270.30, subdivision (a) by failing to use the organic scrubber at the Facility as required by the 

Permit at least 42 times while bulking organic hazardous waste, e.g., flammable waste inside 

Area C.  

76. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to 

a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to 

proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 25189, subdivisions (a) and (b) or in 

the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivisions (a) and (b). 

77. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

78. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

FOURTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
REPEAT VIOLATION  

(Improper Storage of Hazardous Waste in Area A in V iolation of Health & Saf. Code, 
§ 25202, subd. (a), Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd (a))  

79.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

80. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous 

waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 

(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd (a).)     

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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81. Permit Part IV, Unit Area A and sections VI(D) and VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit 

Part B specifies that Area A is a temporary staging area for receiving, inspecting, repackaging, 

and preparation of containerized waste for shipping. Hazardous waste containers can only be 

stored in Area A for no longer than ten (10) days. 

82. Between January 2018 and June 2018, Defendants violated the Health and 

Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 

66270.30, subdivision (a), and the Permit by storing hazardous waste containers in Area A for 

longer than ten  (10)  days on at least forty-seven  (47)  separate days. 

83. This is the fourth inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that 

Defendant(s) improperly stored hazardous waste for longer than the ten (10)-day limit in Area A. 

Defendant(s) previously stored hazardous waste containers for longer than the allowed ten (10)  

days in Area A in violation of the HWCL, Permit, and Permit Part B in 2014, 2016, and 2017. 

84. Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to 

a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to 

proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the 

alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

85. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

86. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

FIFTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
REPEAT VIOLATION 

(Failure to  Properly Mark Containers  in Violation of Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. 
(a), and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, subd. (a), 66266.80, subd. (a))  

87.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
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88. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds 

a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous 

waste permit. (Health & Saf. Code, § 25202, subd. (a) Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. 

(a).) 

89. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66266.80,  subdivision (a)  

requires spent lead-acid storage batteries or their components be managed as hazardous waste 

(unless specifically exempted in California Code of Regulations, title 22, Chapter 16, Article 7). 

90. Section VIII(D)(1)(f)(2) of the Permit Part B specifies that containers must be 

labeled with the Department of Transportation (DOT) hazard class and proper shipping 

description. 

91.  On, a nd prior to, J une 25 and 26, 2018, Defendants  violated Health and Safety  

Code section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections  66270.30, 

subdivision (a), 66266.80, subdivision (a), and the  Permit Part B  by:  (1) improperly affixing a  

universal waste label to  two fifty–five gallon drums containing “Automotive Type” spent lead  

batteries  instead of identifying the  batteries  as  hazardous waste; and (2) mislabeling  

formaldehyde solution as  a DOT  Class 6 and Class 8 DOT hazardous material instead of a Class 3  

DOT flammable material.  

92. This is the third inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that 

Defendant(s) improperly labeled hazardous waste, including waste Automotive Type spent lead  

acid batteries.  In addition to the 2018 violations, Defendant(s) previously improperly labeled 

hazardous waste containers in violation of the HWCL and the Permit Part B in 2014 and 2016. 

93. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30 subdivision (a) and 66266.80 

subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each 

violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, 

subdivision (b). 

/ / /  
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94. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

95. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

SIXTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
REPEAT VIOLATION 

(Failure to Properly Mark Empty Containers in Violation of Health &  
Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, 

subd. (a) and 66261.7, subd. (f))  

96.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

97. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous 

waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 

(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section  

66270.30, subd. (a).)  

98. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section subdivision (f)  

provides that a container larger than five  (5) gallons in capacity shall be marked with the date it 

has been emptied. 

  66261.7, 

99. Section VIII(E)(2) of the Permit Part B requires that empty containers at a 

hazardous waste facility must be marked to identify them as empty.   

100. On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code 

section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, 

subdivision (a), and Permit Part B by failing to mark approximately twenty to forty (20-40)  empty 

containers larger than five (5) gallons in capacity that once held hazardous waste with the dates 

the containers were emptied. 

101. This is the fifth inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that 

Defendant(s) failed to mark containers to identify them as empty. Defendant(s) previously failed 

to mark containers to identify them as empty in violation of the HWCL and Permit Part B in 
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2011, 2015, 2016, and 2017. 

102. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66261.7, 

subdivision (f) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each violation 

occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 

25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2,  

subdivision (b). 

103. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

104. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

SEVENTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
REPEAT VIOLATION 

(Failure to Properly Manage Containers in Violation of  Health and Safety Code § 
25202 subd. (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, §§ 66264.171,66264.173 

subd. (b), and 66270.30 subd. (a))  

105.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

106. California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171 and 66264.173 

subdivision (b) provide that containers holding hazardous waste must be in good condition and 

cannot be stored in a manner that may cause the containers to leak and if containers holding 

hazardous waste begin to leak, the owner and/or operator shall transfer the hazardous waste to a 

container in good condition. 

107. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous 

waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 

(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 

66270.30, subd. (a).)  

/ / /  
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108. Section VIII(H)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B requires that if a container holding 

waste is found to be damaged during receiving or any phase of storage or processing, the operator 

will overpack, transfer, or re-package the container. 

109. On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171 and 66264.173, subdivision (b) by storing hazardous 

waste in Areas B and C in seven  (7) separate containers with structural defects. Containers were 

torn, dented, or damaged. 

110. This is the second inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that 

Defendant(s) used containers that were not in good condition.  In addition to the 2018 violations, 

Defendant(s) previously stored hazardous waste in containers that were not in good condition in 

violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171  in 2016. 

111. Each violation of  California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171 

and 66264.173 subdivision (b) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during 

which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and 

Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code 25189.2, 

subdivision (b). 

112. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

113. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to and prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

EIGHTH CAUSE  OF ACTION  
(Failure to Properly Close Containers in Violation of  Cal. Code 

Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.173, subd. (a)) 

114.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

115. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section subdivision (a)  

provides that containers holding hazardous waste shall always be closed during transfer and 

storage, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste. 

  66264.173 
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116. On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, section 66264.173, subdivision (a) by failing to ensure that at least five (5) 

containers of hazardous waste in Area C were closed. 

117. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.173 

subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each 

violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code

subdivision  (b).  

  25189.2, 

118. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

119. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

NINTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Remove Spilled or Leaked Hazardous Waste in a Timely Manner as Necessary in 

Violation of Cal. Code Regs., title 22, § 66264.175, subd. (b)(5))  

120.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

121. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section subdivision (b)(5)  

provide that the containment system shall be operated to drain and remove liquids resulting from 

leaks, spills, or precipitation and that spilled or leaked waste and accumulated precipitation shall 

be removed from the sump or collection area in as timely a manner is necessary. 

  66264.175, 

122. From at least January 2018 through June 2018, Defendants violated California 

Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.175, subdivision (b)(5) by failing to operate the 

containment system(s) in Area C to remove spilled or leaked waste or accumulated precipitation 

in a timely manner. 

123. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22 sections 66264.175, 

subdivision (b)(5) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each 
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violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, 

subdivision (b). 

124. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

125. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

TENTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to  Properly Stack and Palletize Containers  in Violation of  
Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, 

§ 66270.30 subd. (a))  

126.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

127. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous 

waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 

(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a).) 

128. Sections VI(E)(7) and VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B require that 

Defendants store containers on pallets and only allows for double stacking of containers in Area 

B. 

129. On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code 

section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, 

subdivision (a) by triple stacking containers in Area B, Cell 5.  

130. On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants also violated Health and Safety Code 

section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, 

subdivision (a) by stacking five-gallon buckets on top of other containers instead of placing them 

on pallets. In addition, Defendants’ daily logs note three (3) of containers stacked improperly or 

on broken pallets. 

/ / /  
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131. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to 

a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to 

proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivisions (a) and (b) or in the 

alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivisions (a) and (b). 

132. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

133. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

ELEVENTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Storage of Containers in Unauthorized Areas in Violation of 

Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, 
§ 66270.30 subd. (a))  

134.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

135. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous 

waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 

(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code of Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a).)  

136. Section V(G)(3)(a) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of DOT class 6 

poisonous liquid hazardous waste in Area B, Cell 5. Area B, Cell 5 is intended for Flammable 

Solids, including Water Reactives. 

137. Section V(G)(3)(a) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of DOT Class 3 

flammable hazardous waste in Area B, Cell 4. Area B, Cell 4 is intended for corrosives (alkaline) 

oxidizers and organic peroxides. At the time of the inspection, Area B, Cell 4 contained both 

corrosives (alkaline) and oxidizers. 

138. On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code 

section 25202, California Code of Regulations, title 22, section  66270.30, subdivision (a), and 

Permit Part B by  storing  DOT Class 6  poisonous  liquid hazardous waste  (barium sulfate and  
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insulin) with flammable solids and water reactives in Area B, Cell 5 and by storing DOT Class 3 

flammable hazardous waste with oxidizers in Area B, Cell 4. 

139. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section  66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendants  to 

a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to 

proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the 

alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

140. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks 

enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 

violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future 

enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13).  

141. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future 

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF  

142.  The Department requests that the Court grant the relief that follows: 

a. Enter judgment that Defendants have violated the HWCL as set forth in the 

First through Eleventh Causes of Action; 

b. Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for civil penalties 

for the violations set forth in the First through Eleventh Causes of Action as authorized by Health 

and Safety Code section 25189 or, in the alternative, by Health and Safety Code section

in an amount according to proof;  

  25189.2, 

c. Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for enhanced civil 

penalties for the violations set forth in the First through Eleventh Causes of Action. In the 2018 

Final Judgment, Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 

Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for 

enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment ¶ 13);  
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d. Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for costs and 

penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25188 and pursuant to section 5.15 of the 2013 

ISE Order;   

e. Enter permanent injunctions and other orders enjoining Defendants from 

violating the HWCL, the Permit, and the 2013 ISE Order and requiring Defendants to otherwise 

comply with the HWCL, the Permit, and the 2013 ISE Order; 

f. Grant the Department its costs of suit herein; and 

g. Grant such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper. 
 
Dated: February 14, 2020 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
XAVIER BECERRA 
Attorney General of California 
MARGARITA PADILLA 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
 
 
 
ORIGINAL SIGNED BY ROSE FUA 
 
ROSE B. FUA 
Deputy Attorney General 
Attorneys for Plaintiff People of the State 
of California, ex rel. Department of Toxic 
Substances Control 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY  

DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL  

 

 

 

  

 
 

In the Matter of:  
 
General Environmental Management of   
Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba PSC 
Environmental Services of Rancho 
Cordova, LLC 
 
11855 White Rock Road 
Rancho Cordova, CA 95742 

EPA ID: CAD980884183 

Respondent. 

Docket HWCA 20091998 
Consent Order 

Health and Safety Code 
Section 25187 

1. INTRODUCTION  

1.1. Parties. The California Department of Toxic Substances Control 

(Department) and General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba 

PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC (Respondent) enter into this 

Consent Order (Order) and agree as follows: 

1.2. Site. Respondent generates, handles, treats, stores, and/or disposes of 

hazardous waste at the following site: 11855 White Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, CA 

95742 (Site). 

1.3. Inspection. The Department inspected the Site on March 11, 19, and 23, 

2009. 

1.4. Authorization Status. The Department authorized Respondent to manage 

hazardous waste by a Hazardous Waste Facility Permit (HWFP) issued on March 21, 

2007. 
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1.5. Jurisdiction Health and Safety Code, section 25187, authorizes the 

Department to order action necessary to correct violations and to assess a penalty 

when the Department determines that any person has violated specified provisions of 

the Health and Safety Code or any permit, rule, regulation, standard, or requirement 

issued or adopted pursuant thereto. 

1.6. Full Settlement. By their respective signatures below, the Parties, and each 

 

of them, agree that this Order, and all of the terms contained herein, are fair, 

reasonable, and in the public interest. This Order shall constitute full settlement of the 

violations alleged below. By agreeing to this Order, the Department does not waive any

right to take further enforcement actions within its jurisdiction and involving either the 

Respondent(s) or the Site, except to the extent provided in this Order.   

1.7. Hearing. Respondent waives any and all rights to a hearing in this matter. 

1.8. Admissions. Respondent admits the violations described below. 

2. VIOLATIONS ALLEGED  

2. The Department alleges the following violations: 

2.1. Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), 

and section 25200.19, subdivision (c)(3); California Code of Regulations section 

66270.30, subdivision (a); and, HWFP, Part V, subsection II, in that on numerous 

occasions Respondent exceeded the permitted facility limit of 82,302 gallons of waste in 

containers (other than roll-off bins). Respondent also stored hazardous waste on 

transport vehicles which, if unloaded, would exceed the permitted capacity of the 

originating unit at the hazardous waste facility. 



  −3−  
  

2.2. Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a); 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a); and, HWFP 

Operations Plan Section VI (C), in that on multiple occasions Respondent stored 

hazardous waste in the Loading and Unloading Areas overnight. Respondent’s 

Operation Plan specifies that waste will not be left in the Loading and Unloading Area, 

outside of a truck, overnight. 

2.3. Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25201, subdivision (a); 

section 25202, subdivision (a); and, California Code of Regulations, title 22, 66270.30, 

subdivision (a); and, HWFP Operation Plan Section VIII(F)(1), in that on multiple 

occasions Respondent stored hazardous waste in loaded trailers outside the boundary 

of the permitted facility. Respondent also moved loaded transport vehicles out of the 

Loading and Unloading Areas before the generator or transporter signed the manifests. 

2.4. Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25200.19, subdivision 

(c)(1), in that on numerous occasions hazardous waste moved into the Loading and 

Unloading Area was not moved directly between trucks and the authorized units and 

was left in the Loading and Unloading Area for more than that incidental period of time 

that is necessary to safely and effectively move the waste between the transport vehicle 

and the authorized unit. The area was used for more than just the loading and 

unloading of trucks. Containers in the Loading and Unloading Area were generally 

sampled, fingerprinted, marked and labeled, and then placed into the appropriate 

hazardous waste management unit for storage. 

2.5. Respondent violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 

66264.177, subdivision (c), in that a drum labeled as “oxidizer” was stored on a wooden 
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pallet without secondary containment in Unit C while Respondent staff were 

consolidating flammable hazardous waste nearby. 

3. SCHEDULE FOR COMPLIANCE  

3. Respondent shall comply with the following: 

3.1.1. Respondent has returned to compliance in regard to violations alleged. 

3.1.2. Respondent shall maintain records documenting the volumes of 

hazardous waste within the facility and shall maintain the ability to provide 

documentation of the volume of hazardous waste at the facility from the effective date of 

the Order to present day of operation as part of the facility’s operating record pursuant 

to California Code of Regulations, title 22, 66264.73 until closure of the facility.  The 

hazardous waste volume may be substantiated either by maintaining daily hard copy 

reports or by maintaining the ability to generate and print a report from the electronic 

operating record for any date. The report shall list the volume of waste in each 

individual permitted unit, the loading and unloading area, inbound trailers, outbound 

trailers, and the total facility, each separately.  The report shall assume all containers 

are full for the purpose of calculating compliance with permitted unit and total facility 

capacity. The total volume of waste at the facility shall include waste loaded on inbound 

or outbound trailers that are at the facility, and listed on a Hazardous Waste Manifest 

specifying the facility as the Generator or Designated Facility.  Respondent shall, within 

sixty days of the effective date of this Order, submit a permit modification request to  
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: 

 

include the above as part of the operating record requirement of its hazardous waste 

facility permit. 

3.1.3. Respondent shall, at all times, comply with its Operation Plan, Sections 

VIII.E.1.b and VI.D.6.b, which state that incoming waste will be moved into Area A for 

processing and outgoing waste will be moved into Area A for staging.  These hazardous 

waste handling processes shall not take place in the Loading and Unloading Area. 

Respondent shall conduct hazardous waste unloading and loading operations in 

accordance with Section VI-4 of the Operations Plan and California Health & Safety 

Code Section 25200.19. 

3.1.4. Respondent shall make all payments at the time(s) and in accord with any 

other conditions set forth in Section 5 (Penalty) below. 

All submittals from Respondent pursuant to this Order shall be 

sent to

3.2. Submittals. 

Paul S. Kewin  
Supervising Hazardous Substances Scientist I  
Department of Toxic Substances Control  
8800 Cal Center Drive  
Sacramento, California 95826-3200  

3.3. Communications. All approvals and decisions of the Department made 

regarding such submittals and notifications shall be communicated to Respondent in 

writing by the appropriate Branch Chief, or his/her designee.  No informal advice, 

guidance, suggestions, or comments by the Department shall relieve Respondent of its 

obligation to obtain required formal approvals. 
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3.4. Department Review and Approval. If the Department determines that any 

report, plan, schedule, or other document submitted for approval pursuant to this Order 

fails to comply with this Order or fails to protect public health or safety or the 

environment, the Department may: 

(a) Modify the document and approve the document as modified, or  

(b) Return the document to Respondent with recommended changes and a date 

by which Respondent must submit to the Department a revised document 

incorporating the recommended changes. 

3.5. Compliance with Applicable Laws. Respondent shall carry out this Order in 

compliance with all local, State, and federal requirements, including but not limited to 

requirements to obtain permits and to assure worker safety. 

3.6. Endangerment during Implementation. In the event that the Department 

determines that any circumstance or activity (whether or not pursued in compliance with 

 

 

this Order) is creating an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare

of people on the Site, in the surrounding area, or to the environment, the Department 

may order Respondent to stop further implementation of this Order for such period of 

time as is needed to abate the endangerment. Any deadline in this Order directly 

affected by a Stop Work Order under this section shall be extended by the term of such

Stop Work Order. 

3.7. Liability. Nothing in this Order shall constitute or be construed as a 

satisfaction or release from liability for any conditions or claims arising as a result of 

Respondent’s operations, except as provided in this Order.  Notwithstanding 
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compliance with the terms of this Order, Respondent may be required to take such 

further actions as are necessary to protect public health or welfare, or the environment. 

3.8. Site Access. Access to the Site shall be provided at all reasonable times to 

employees, contractors, and consultants of the Department, and any other agency 

having jurisdiction. The Department and its authorized representatives shall have the 

authority to enter and move freely about all property at the Site at all reasonable times 

for purposes including but not limited to: inspecting records, operating logs, and 

contracts relating to the Site; reviewing the progress of Respondent in carrying out the 

terms of this Order; and conducting such tests as the Department may deem necessary. 

 Nothing in this Order is intended to limit in any way the right of entry or inspection that 

any agency may otherwise have by operation of any law. 

3.9. Sampling, Data, and Document Availability. 

3.9.1. Respondent shall permit the Department and/or its authorized 

representatives to inspect and copy all sampling, testing, monitoring, and/or other data 

(including, without limitation, the results of any such sampling, testing and monitoring) 

generated by Respondent, or on Respondent's behalf, in any way pertaining to work 

undertaken pursuant to this Order. 

3.9.2. Respondent shall allow the Department and/or its authorized 

representatives to take duplicates or splits of any samples collected by Respondent 

pursuant to this Order. Respondent shall maintain a central depository of the data, 

reports, and other documents prepared pursuant to this Order.  All such data, reports, 
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and other documents shall be preserved by Respondent for a minimum of six years 

after the conclusion of all activities under this Order. 

3.9.3. If the Department requests that some or all of these documents be 

preserved for a longer period of time, Respondent shall either: 

(a) comply with that request, 

(b) deliver the documents to the Department, or 

(c) notify the Department in writing at least six months prior to destroying any 

documents prepared pursuant to this Order and permit the Department to copy 

the documents prior to destruction. 

3.10. Government Liabilities. Neither the State of California nor the Department 

shall be liable for injuries or damages to persons or property resulting from acts or 

omissions by Respondent, or related parties, in carrying out activities pursuant to this 

Order. Neither the State of California nor the Department shall be held as a party to any 

contract entered into by Respondent or its agents in carrying out activities pursuant to 

the Order. 

All plans, schedules, and reports that 

were submitted by Respondent pursuant to the violations set forth above, and/or this 

schedule for compliance, and were approved by the Department are hereby 

incorporated into this Order. 

If Respondent is unable to perform any activity or 

submit any document within the time required under this Order, the Respondent may, 

prior to expiration of the time, request an extension of time in writing.  The extension 

request shall include a justification for the delay. 

3.11. Incorporation of Plans and Reports. 

3.12. Extension Requests. 
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3.13. Extension Approvals. If the Department determines that good cause exists 

for an extension, it will grant the request and specify in writing a new compliance 

schedule. 

4. OTHER PROVISIONS  

4.1. Penalties for Noncompliance. Failure to comply with the terms of this Order 

may subject Respondent to costs, penalties and/or damages, as provided by Health and 

Safety Code, section 25188, and other applicable provisions of law. 

4.2. Parties Bound. This Order shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent 

and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, 

trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, 

and subsidiary and parent corporations, and upon the Department and any successor 

agency that may have responsibility for and jurisdiction over the subject matter of this 

Order. 

4.3. Privileges. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require any 

party to waive any privilege. However, the assertion of any privilege shall not relieve 

any party of its obligations under this Order. 

4.4. Time Periods. “Days” for the purpose of this Order means calendar days. 

4.5. Captions and Headings. Captions and headings used herein are for 

convenience only and shall not be used in construing this Order. 

4.6. Severability. If any provision of this Order is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, unlawful, void or unenforceable, then such provision 

shall be enforced to the extent that it is not illegal, invalid, unlawful, void, or 

unenforceable, and the remainder of this Order shall continue in full force and effect.   



  
  

 

4.7. Entire Agreement. This Order contains the entire and only understanding 

between the Parties regarding the subject matter contained herein and shall supercede 

any and all prior and/or contemporaneous oral or written negotiations, agreements, 

representations and understandings and may not be amended, supplemented, or 

modified, except as provided in this Order.  The Parties understand and agree that in 

entering into this Order, the Parties are not relying on any representations not expressly 

contained in this Order. 

4.8. Counterparts. This Order may be executed and delivered in any number of 

counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an 

original, but such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same document. 

4.9. Non-Waiver. The failure by one party to require performance of any 

provision shall not affect that party's right to require performance at any time thereafter, 

nor shall a waiver of any breach or default of this Contract constitute a waiver of any 

subsequent breach or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 

5. PENALTY  

5.1. Respondent shall pay the Department the total sum of $600,000 which 

includes $26,000 as reimbursement of the Department's costs incurred in connection 

with this matter. 

5.2. Payment is due as follows: 

a. $200,000, of which $174,000 is penalty and $26,000 is reimbursement, 

is due and payable within 30 days from the effective date of this order. 

b. $200,000 is due and payable on December 31, 2010. 

c. $200,000 is due and payable on April 8, 2011. 

−10−  
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5.3. Respondent's check(s) shall be made payable to Department of Toxic 

Substances Control, shall identify the Respondent and Docket Number, as shown in the 

caption of this case, and shall be delivered together with the attached Payment Voucher 

to: 

Department of Toxic Substances Control  
Accounting Office  
1001 I Street, 21st Floor  
P. O. Box 806  
Sacramento, California 95812-0806  

: A photocopy of the check(s) shall be sent to

Paul S. Kewin  
Unit Chief  
Enforcement & Emergency Response Program  
Department of Toxic Substances Control  
8800 Cal Center Drive  
Sacramento, California 95826-3200  

and 

Joseph F. Smith  
Senior Staff Counsel  
Office of Legal Counsel  
Department of Toxic Substances Control  
1001 I Street, MS 23A  
P.O. Box 806  
Sacramento, California 95812-0806  

5.4. If Respondent fails to make payment as provided above, Respondent 

agrees to pay interest at the rate established pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

section 25360.1 and to pay all costs incurred by the Department in pursuing collection 

including attorney's fees. 



6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

6. This Order shall be subject to a public comment period for not less than 30 

days after execution by the parties. DTSC may modify or withdraw its consent to the 

Order if comments received disclose facts or considerations that indicate that the Order 

is inappropriate, improper, or inadequate. 

7. EFFECTIVE DATE 

7. The Effective Date of the Order shall be the last day of the public comment 

period set forth in Section 6 above, unless the Department notifies the Respondent 

within five days of the end of the public comment period of its intent to modify or· 

withdraw its consent to the Order. 

Dated: September 29, 2010 . t Original signed by Deborah S. Huston
S1gna ure: _____________ 

Print: Deborah S. Huston, General Counsel and Secretary 

General Environmental Management of 
Rancho Cordova, LLC 

Respondent 

Dated: October 12, 2010 Original signed by Gale Filter 

Gale Filter 
Deputy Director 
Enforcement and Emergency Response 

Program 
Department of Toxic Substances Control 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, EX REL. BARBARA A. LEE, 
DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC 
SUBSTANCES CONTROL, 

, 

v. 

GENERAL ENVIRONMENT AL 
MANAGEMENT OF RANCHO 
CORDOVA LLC OBA PSC 
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Plaintiff, the People of the State of California, ex rel. Barbara A. Lee, Director, Department 

of Toxic Substances Control (“Department”), alleges the following: 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE  

1. Defendants General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba PSC 

Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC; Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc.; 

Stericycle, Inc.; and DOES 1 through 10 (collectively, “Defendants”), at all times relevant to this 

Complaint, owned, operated, and managed the hazardous waste treatment and storage facility 

located at 11855 White Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, California (referred to as the “Facility”). 

2. On and prior to March 8, 2011, and continuing through the present, Defendants have 

violated the Hazardous Waste Control Law, chapter 6.5 of division 20 of the Health and Safety 

Code (“HWCL”), and its implementing regulations by managing hazardous waste without 

complying with the applicable laws and regulations. 

3. The Department hereby seeks injunctive relief against and civil penalties from 

Defendants for violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations. 

PLAINTIFF 

4. The Department is a state agency organized and existing pursuant to sections 58000 

et seq. of the California Health and Safety Code. The Department is the state agency responsible 

for administering and enforcing the HWCL and its implementing regulations set forth in the 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, division 4.5, section 66260.1 et seq. (“Title 22”). 

5. Barbara A. Lee is the Director of the Department. 

6. Health and Safety Code sections 25181, subdivision (a), and 25182 authorize the 

Attorney General of the State of California, at the request of the Department, to commence an 

action in the name of the People of the State of California for civil penalties and injunctive relief 

under the HWCL.  The Department has requested the Attorney General to apply to this Court for 

injunctive relief and civil penalties pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 25181, 25184, 

25189, and 25189.2 for violations of the HWCL by  Defendants. 
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DEFENDANTS  

7. Based on information and belief, Defendant General Environmental Management of 

Rancho Cordova, LLC (“GEM”) owned and operated the Facility from at least 2011 and did 

business under the name PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC. 

8. Based on information and belief, Defendant Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. 

(“Stericycle Environmental”) or Defendant Stericycle, Inc. (“Stericycle, Inc.”), or both, owned 

and/or operated the Facility from 2014 to at least the date of the filing of the Complaint.  

Stericycle Environmental and Stericycle, Inc. will be collectively referred to as “Stericycle.”  

9. GEM and Stericycle will collectively be referred to as “Defendants”.  Because the 

Department does not know when the ownership/operational control of the Facility may have 

changed from GEM to Stericycle because neither GEM or Stericycle followed the requirements 

for a change in ownership/operational control, the Department is alleging for certain violations 

that “Defendants” are responsible. 

10. When reference is made in this Complaint to any act of Defendants, such allegation 

shall mean that the officers, directors, employees, agents, or representatives of Defendants did, or 

authorized, such acts or intentionally and/or negligently failed to adequately or properly 

supervise, control, or direct their employees and/or agents while engaged in the management, 

direction, operation, or control of the affairs of the Facility. 

11. Defendants are “persons” as that term is defined by Health and Safety Code section 

25118. 

12. The names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, or otherwise, of defendants 

named herein as Does 1 through 10, inclusive, are unknown at this time to the Department.  The 

Department therefore sues said defendants by such fictitious names.  The Department will seek 

leave to amend this Complaint to show their true names and capacities when the names have been 

ascertained.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that each defendant 

designated as a DOE defendant is responsible, along with the named Defendants, for the 

hazardous waste violations alleged in this Complaint. 
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13. Each reference in this Complaint to “Defendants” refers not only to the named 

Defendants, but also all DOE defendants sued under fictitious names. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

14. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to California Constitution Article VI, section 10 

and Health and Safety Code section 25181. 

15. Defendants and the Department have agreed to five tolling agreements with respect to 

any applicable statute of limitations.  Accordingly, none of the violations alleged herein are time-

barred.  This Complaint has been timely filed with respect to all violations alleged. 

16. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25183 in 

that the violations at issue occurred at the Facility, which is in Sacramento County. 

17. This action is an unlimited civil case because the amount of penalties requested 

exceeds $25,000 and because none of the Plaintiff’s causes of action meets the criteria for limited 

civil cases in the Code of Civil Procedure. 

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND 

18. The State of California has enacted a comprehensive statutory and regulatory 

framework for the generation, handling, treatment, transport, and disposal of hazardous wastes. 

The framework contained in the HWCL, and its implementing regulations, mandate a “cradle to 

grave” registration, tracking, storage, treatment, and disposal system for the protection of the 

public from the risks posed by hazardous wastes and for the protection of the environment—i.e., 

soil, air, surface water, groundwater—from contamination by hazardous wastes and their 

constituents. Except where otherwise expressly defined in this Complaint, all terms shall be 

interpreted consistent with the HWCL and Title 22. 

19. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 25101, subdivision (d) and 25159-

25159.9, California administers the HWCL in lieu of federal administration of the federal 

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), which is codified at 42 United States Code 

sections 6901 et seq.  Federal law prohibits California from imposing any requirements less 

stringent than those authorized under RCRA. (42 U.S.C. § 6929.)  Certain provisions in the 

HWCL are stricter than the analogous provisions in RCRA. 
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20. The HWCL charges the Department with the responsibility to adopt standards and

regulations for the management of hazardous waste to protect the public health and environment.  

(Health & Saf. Code § 25150.)  Accordingly, the Department has promulgated regulations setting 

forth numerous and extensive environmental and health protective requirements for the day-to-

day operation of hazardous waste generators, transporters, owners, and operators of hazardous 

waste facilities.  (See Cal. Code. Regs. tit. 22, § 66262.1 et seq.) 

21. The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 25201, subdivision (a), provides that

an owner or operator of a hazardous waste management facility may not “accept, treat, store, or 

dispose of a hazardous waste at the facility, area, or site, unless the owner or operator holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit or other grant of authorization from the Department to use and 

operate the facility, area, or site . . ..” 

22. The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 25200, subdivision (a), authorizes the

Department to issue operating permits, called hazardous waste facilities permits, to the owners 

and operators of facilities managing hazardous wastes. 

23. The HWCL and its implementing regulations each require that the owner and

operator of a hazardous waste facility comply with the provisions of the facility’s hazardous 

waste management permit. 

a. Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) requires the owner or

operator of a hazardous  waste facility who holds  a hazardous waste facilities

permit to “comply with the conditions of [that] permit.”

b. Title 22, section 66270.30 subdivision (a) requires that the “permittee comply

with the conditions of the permit” and specifies that any ‘noncompliance . . .

constitutes a violation of the [HWCL] and is grounds for” enforcement.

c. Reference made in this Complaint to any section or part of the Permit shall

mean the section(s) or part(s) of the Permit that existed at the time the

violation(s) occurred as alleged in this Complaint.
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ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY UNDER THE HWCL 

24. The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose civil penalties under two distinct and 

alternative statutory provisions.  Section 25189 of the Health and Safety Code creates liability for 

any negligent or intentional violation of the HWCL.  Section 25189.2 is a strict liability 

provision, which creates liability for any violation of the HWCL.  A person may not be held liable 

for a civil penalty under both section 25189 and section 25189.2 for the same act. (Health & Saf. 

Code, § 25189.2, subd. (f).) 

25. The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a civil penalty of up to twenty-five 

thousand dollars ($25,000) for each violation of a  separate provision of the  HWCL  and/or  

implementing regulations.  For continuing violations, the HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a 

penalty of up to twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) for each day that a violation continues. 

(Health & Saf. Code, §§ 25189, subd. (b) and 25189.2, subd. (b).)    

26. The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code sections 25181 and 25184, authorizes and 

directs the Court to enjoin any ongoing or potential violation of the HWCL. 

27. Section 25181 of the Health and Safety Code provides that when the Department 

determines that any person has engaged in, is engaged in, or is about to engage in any acts or 

practices that constitute or will constitute a violation of any provision of the HWCL or any rule or 

requirement issued or promulgated thereunder, and when requested by the Department, the 

Attorney General may make application to the superior court for an order enjoining such acts or 

practices, or for an order directing compliance, and upon a showing by the Department that such 

person has engaged in or is about to engage in any such acts or practices, a permanent or 

temporary injunction, restraining order, or other order may be granted. 

28. Health and Safety Code section 25184 provides that in civil actions brought pursuant 

to the HWCL in which an injunction or temporary restraining order is sought: 

It shall not be necessary to allege or prove at any stage of the proceeding that
irreparable damage will occur should the temporary restraining order, preliminary
injunction, or permanent injunction not be issued; or that the remedy at law is
inadequate, and the temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, or permanent
injunction shall issue without such allegations and without such proof. 
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS  

29. The Facility is situated on a 4.5-acre parcel adjacent to White Rock Road and is 

identified by Sacramento County Assessor Parcel Number 072-0530-001.  The Facility includes, 

but is not limited to, an administrative building, a lab, truck parking, five hazardous waste 

management units known as areas A, B, C, D, and a drum crusher unit.  The drum crusher 

hazardous waste unit is currently undergoing closure. 

30. At the times relevant to this Complaint, one or more of the Defendants owned and/or 

operated the Facility. 

31. Defendants have operated and continue to operate the Facility as an active permitted 

hazardous waste storage and treatment facility.  The Facility has a permitted capacity of 

approximately 82,320 gallons of hazardous waste.  The Facility’s current hazardous waste permit, 

(“Permit”), which also incorporates by reference the Part A and Part B permit application 

(“Permit Part A” and “Permit Part B”), was issued by the Department on April 25, 2007 and was 

subsequently modified.  The Permit expired on April 25, 2017.   

32. Defendants continue to operate the Facility pending the Department’s review of a 

permit renewal application submitted to the Department in October 2016. 

33. The Facility is authorized by the Department to engage in sampling, storage, 

packaging, re-packaging, and bulking and consolidation in containers of RCRA, non-RCRA, and 

Toxic Substance Control Act waste, as well as container crushing and equipment flushing.  After 

storage, bulk liquid and containerized hazardous waste are transferred off-site to an end user 

(recycler) or to an off-site permitted disposal facility. 

34. On October 12, 2010, the Department and Defendant GEM entered into a Consent 

Order (“2010 Consent Order”), pursuant to which Defendant GEM admitted to HWCL violations 

identified by the Department during the Department’s March 2009 inspection of the Facility.  

Defendants have since violated the 2010 Consent Order.  

35. Since 2011, one explosion and three fires have occurred at the Facility due to the 

mismanagement of hazardous waste by Defendants.  The explosion occurred on March 8, 2011, 

when Defendant GEM consolidated soluble organics with 22 gallons of nitric acid into a drum, 
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resulting in a violent and uncontrolled reaction.  The reaction caused an explosion that ruptured 

the drum and launched it approximately 15 feet in the air, spraying hot, concentrated acid 

throughout most of the  Facility’s repackaging area.  The explosion also released vapors and 

hazardous waste to the surrounding e nvironment.  The Department commenced an inspection of  

the Facility that same day, arriving while the fire  trucks were still at the Facility responding to the  

explosion.  Department staff returned on March 9, 2011, to complete the inspection.  The  

Department determined that Defendant(s) violated the HWCL and issued a Summary of  

Violations that was signed on March 9, 2011 and an Inspection Report that was signed on May  

10, 2011. 

36. The first fire at the Facility occurred on August 2, 2011, when Defendant GEM 

consolidated oxidizing pool chemicals, including trichloroisocyanuric acid and hypochlorites, into 

a 55-gallon drum, and then closed the drum’s lid.  Shortly thereafter, the drum began to emit a 

yellowish green gas.  The drum pressurized sufficiently to blow the lid off the drum, and the drum 

caught fire.  The fire spread to consume a total of four plastic drums of hazardous waste.  The 

local fire department subsequently arrived and extinguished the fire, but their response efforts 

resulted in two firefighters being sent to the local hospital for observation. In response to this 

fire, the Department conducted an inspection of the Facility on August 4, 2011.  The Department 

determined that Defendant GEM violated the HWCL and issued a Summary of Violations that 

was signed on August 4, 2011 and an Inspection Report that was signed on November 9, 2011.    

37. The second fire at the Facility occurred in March 2013.  Beginning on February 28, 

2013, Defendant GEM consolidated hazardous waste solids and trash into a roll-off bin. On 

March 3, 2013, the bin began to smolder.  A passerby observed flames coming from the Facility 

and called the fire department who arrived and extinguished the fire.  The fire, which burned for 

five hours and released smoke and potentially toxic constituents into the environment, was caused 

by an exothermic reaction that occurred from mixing incompatible wastes. In response to this 

fire, the Department conducted an inspection at the Facility on March 25, 26, and April 9, of 

2013. The Department determined that Defendant GEM violated the HWCL and issued a 
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Summary of Violations that was signed on April  11, 2013 and an Inspection Report that was  

signed on May 6, 2013.    

38. In response to the 2011 explosion and 2011 and 2013 fires, the Department issued an 

Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination and Enforcement Order (“2013 ISE 

Order”) to Defendant GEM, ordering Defendant GEM to immediately cease all hazardous waste 

consolidation operations at the Facility until the Department authorized Defendant GEM to 

resume operations.  Defendant GEM was authorized to resume consolidation operations in Area 

C and Area D of the Facility on October 21, 2013.  Defendants have since violated the 2013 ISE 

Order. 

39. The third fire at the Facility occurred on August 7, 2017.  The fire occurred when two 

employees deliberately poured liquid naphthalene onto paper and lit the paper on fire with a 

lighter.  In response, on October 6, 2017, the Department sent an Information Request letter to 

Defendants requesting additional information related to the fire at the Facility (“2017 Information 

Request”).  The Department determined that Defendant(s) violated the HWCL and issued a 

Summary of Violations on October 25, 2017.     

40. In addition to the inspections that the Department conducted and the information it 

requested in response to the 2011 explosion and the 2011, 2013, and 2017 fires, the Department 

also inspected the Facility in 2014, 2015, 2016, and 2017.  The Department determined that 

Defendants violated the HWCL during each of these inspections and issued a Summary of 

Violations that were signed on March 19, 2014, May 12, 2015, May 11, 2016, and June 27, 2017 

and Inspection Reports that were signed on May 6, 2014, July 19, 2015, July 19, 2016, and 

August 2, 2017.  

FIRST CAUSE OF  ACTION  
(Failure to Maintain and Operate in a Manner that Minimizes the Possibility  of  a Fire, Explosion 

or Any Unplanned Release of Hazardous Waste in Violation of Cal. Code Regs., title 22, §§ 
66264.31, 66264.175, subd. (b)(5)  and (6), 66264.177, subd. (a), and 66264.17, subds. (a) and (b), 

Health & Saf. Code §§ 25189.5, subd. (a) and 25201, subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

41. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
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42. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.31 provides that facilities must 

be maintained and operated to minimize the possibility of a fire, explosion, or an unplanned 

sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents to air, soil, or 

surface water which could threaten human health or the environment.  

43. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.177, subdivision (a) provides 

that, incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials, shall not be placed in the same 

container, unless California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (b) is 

complied with.   

44. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (a) provides 

that the owner or operator of hazardous waste facility shall take precautions to prevent accidental 

ignition or reaction of ignitable or reactive waste. 

45. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (b) provides 

that “the transfer, treatment, storage, or disposal of ignitable or reactive waste, and the mixture or 

commingling of incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials, shall be conducted so 

that it does not: (1) generate extreme heat or pressure, fire or explosion, or violent reaction; (2)  

produce uncontrolled toxic mists, fumes, dusts, or gases, in sufficient quantities to threaten human 

health and the environment; (3) produce uncontrolled flammable fumes or gases in sufficient 

quantities to pose a risk of fire or explosions; (4) damage the structural integrity of the device or 

facility containing the waste; or (5) through other like means threaten human health or the 

environment.” 

46. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66260.10 defines “incompatible 

waste” as “a hazardous waste which is unsuitable for (a) placement in a particular device or 

facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g. containment inner 

liners or walls); or (b) commingling with another waste or material under uncontrolled conditions 

because the commingling might produce heat or pressure, fire or explosion, violent reaction, toxic 

dusts, mists, fumes, or gases or flammable fumes or gases.” 

47. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.175, subdivisions (b)(5) and 

(6) provide that the containment system shall be operated to drain and remove liquids resulting 
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from leaks, spills, or precipitation and that spilled or leaked waste and accumulated precipitation 

shall be removed from the sump or collection area in as timely a manner is necessary. 

48. Health and Safety Code section 25189.5, subdivision (a) provides that disposal or the 

causing of disposal, of any hazardous waste at a facility which does not have a permit is 

prohibited. 

49. Health and Safety Code section 25201, subdivision (a) provides that the owner or 

operator of a hazardous waste management facility may not accept, treat, store, or dispose of a 

hazardous waste at the facility, area, or site, unless the owner or operator holds a hazardous waste 

facility permit or other grant of authorization from the Department to use and operate the facility, 

area, or site. 

50. Defendants have violated the HWCL and its regulations as follows:  

Defendant GEM:  

a.	 On March 8, 2011, GEM improperly combined soluble organics with 

approximately 22 gallons of nitric acid, which are incompatible hazardous 

wastes in a drum.  This caused a violent and uncontrolled reaction that caused 

an explosion that launched the drum 15 feet into the air in Area C at the 

Facility, which sprayed hot concentrated acid throughout most of the 

repackaging area and released vapors and hazardous waste to the surrounding 

environment.  (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66264.17, subd. (b), 66264.31, and 

66264.177, subd. (a).) 

b.	 On August 2, 2011, GEM improperly consolidated oxidizing pool chemicals 

into a 55-gallon drum while conducting a consolidation operation in Area C. 

This caused the drum to catch fire, and emit a “yellowish green gas/smoke.” 

(Cal.  Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66264.17, subd. (b), 66264.31, and 66264.177, 

subd. (a).) 

c.	 On March 3, 2013, a fire occurred at the Facility due to the consolidation of 

incompatible wastes and/or material in a roll off bin.  (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, 

§§ 66264.31 and 66264.177, subd. (a).) 
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Defendants:  

d. On May 10, 2016, Defendants released a dust cloud of hazardous waste near a 

roll off bin in Area D and outside the permitted area. (Health & Saf. Code §§ 

25201 and 25189.5, subd. (a), and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.31.) 

e. On May 10, 2016, Defendants failed to operate the containment systems in 

Area B to remove spilled or leaked waste or accumulated precipitation in a 

timely manner. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66264.31 and 66264.175, subds. 

(b)(5) and (6).) 

f. On May 10, 2016, Defendants spilled hazardous waste in Area D that was being 

tracked throughout the Facility by equipment. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 

66264.31.) 

g. On August 7, 2017, Defendants intentionally poured an ignitable hazardous 

waste onto paper and lit the paper on fire with a lighter in Area C where other 

employees were also consolidating hazardous waste and where other ignitable 

hazardous waste was located.  (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66264.17, subd. (a) 

and 66264.31.) 

51. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.31, 

66264.177, subdivision (a), 66264.17, subdivisions (a) and (b), 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 

Health and Safety Code sections 25189.5, subdivision (a), 25201, subdivision (a), and 25202, 

subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant 

to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety 

Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

52. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 
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SECOND CAUSE OF  ACTION  
(Management of  Incompatible Wastes in Violation  of Health & Saf. Code  
§ 25202(a), Cal. Code Regs., title 22, §§ 66264.17, subd. (b), 66264.177, 

subds. (a) and (c), and 66270.30, subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

53. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

54. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (b) provides 

that “the transfer, treatment, storage, or disposal of ignitable or reactive waste, and the mixture or 

commingling of incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials, shall be conducted so 

that it does not: (1) generate extreme heat or pressure, fire or explosion, or violent reaction; (2)  

produce uncontrolled toxic mists, fumes, dusts, or gases, in sufficient quantities to threaten human 

health and the environment; (3) produce uncontrolled flammable fumes or gases in sufficient 

quantities to pose a risk of fire or explosions; (4) damage the structural integrity of the device or 

facility containing the waste; or (5) through other like means threaten human health or the 

environment.” 

55. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66260.10 defines “incompatible 

waste” as “a hazardous waste which is unsuitable for (a) placement in a particular device or 

facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g. containment inner 

liners or walls); or (b) commingling with another waste or material under uncontrolled conditions 

because the commingling might produce heat or pressure, fire or explosion, violent reaction, toxic 

dusts, mists, fumes, or gases or flammable fumes or gases.”  

56. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.177 subdivision (a) provides 

that incompatible wastes or incompatible wastes and materials shall not be placed in the same 

container unless section 66264.17 subdivision (b) is complied with. 

57. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.177 subdivision (c) provides 

that, a container holding a hazardous waste that is incompatible with any waste or other materials 

transferred or stored nearby in other containers, piles, open tanks, or surface impoundments shall 

be separated from the other materials or protected from them by means of a dike, berm, w all, or 

other device.  
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58. Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) provides that the owner and/or operator of 

a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required 

to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.  

59. Section VI(G)(1) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of incompatible material 

within Area C. 

60. Sections VI(E)(8) and VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B prohibit containers of 

incompatible wastes from being placed within the same cell in Area B. 

61. Sections VIII(D)(1)(d)(1) and VIII(E)(1)(a) and (b) of the Permit Part B requires the 

separation of containers of incompatible hazardous waste in the Loading and Unloading Area and 

in Area A. 

62. Section VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B requires that containers located in areas 

designated as one-year storage areas be segregated in accordance with California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, section 66264.177, subdivision (c). 

63.	 Areas B and C are designated as one-year storage areas in the Permit. 

64. Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.17, subdivision (b), 66264.177, 

subdivisions (a) and (c), and 66270.30, subdivision (a) in that they failed to take precautions to 

appropriately separate incompatible hazardous waste by means of a dike, berm, wall, or other 

device as follows: 

Defendant GEM:  

a.	 On March 8, 2011, GEM improperly  combined soluble organics with 

approximately 22 gallons of nitric acid in a drum, which are incompatible 

wastes.  This caused  a violent and uncontrolled reaction that caused an 

explosion that launched the drum 15 feet into the air in Area C at the Facility, 

which sprayed hot  concentrated acid throughout most of the repackaging area 

and released vapors and  hazardous waste to the surrounding environment.  (Cal. 

14 

Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
 

  

 

 

 

   

 

Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66264.17, subd. (b), 66264.31, and 66264.177, subd. 

(a).)  

b.	 On and prior to August 4, 2011, GEM stored incompatible waste in at least six 

separate incidents.  These wastes include oxidizers and flammables, cyanides, 

acids, and spontaneously combustible material and corrosives, next to each 

other, in Area C.  (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a), Cal. Code Regs., tit. 

22, §§ 66264.177, subd. (c) and 66270.30, subd. (a).) 

c.	 On March 25, 2013, GEM failed to take adequate precautions to prevent 

incompatible hazardous waste from being bulked from loose packs or lab packs 

into 55-gallon drums in Area C. For instance, it failed to follow its best safety 

practice, to utilize the commingled compatibility test procedure. (Cal. Code 

Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.17, subd. (a).) 

Defendants: 

d.	 On May 6, 2015, Defendants failed in at least five instances to properly 

separate containers of incompatible wastes such as organic peroxides and 

oxidizers from corrosives and also to separate inorganic acids from organic 

acids by  a dike, berm, wall or other device in Area B.  (Health & Saf. § 25202, 

subd. (a) and Cal. Code  Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, subd. (a), 66262.17, subd. 

(b), and 66264.177, subd. (c).) 

e.	 On May 10, 2016, Defendants failed to separate multiple containers of 

incompatible hazardous waste in at least three instances in the Loading  and 

Unloading Area and in Area A, including placing m any incompatibles in a 

truck without proper separation. (Health & Saf. § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. 

Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, subd. (a) and 66264.177, subd. (c).) 

65. Each violation of Health & Safety Code section 25202 subdivision (a), California 

Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.17, subdivision (b), 66265.177, subdivisions (a) and 

(c), and 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to 
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proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the  

alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

66. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Use Clean Containers for the Storage of Hazardous Waste in Violation 

of Cal. Code Regs., title  22, § 66264.177, subd. (b) Against Defendant GEM) 

67. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

68. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.177, subdivision (b) provides 

that, hazardous waste shall not be placed in an unwashed container that previously held an 

incompatible waste or material. 

69. On August 4, 2011 and March 26, 2013, Defendant GEM violated California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, section 66264.177, subdivision (b) in that it failed to utilize clean containers 

for the storage of hazardous waste.  

70. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.177, 

subdivision (b), subjects Defendant GEM to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, 

pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health 

and Safety Code 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

71. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

FOURTH CAUSE OF  ACTION  
(Management of Ignitable, Reactive, or Incompatible Hazardous Wastes And Improper Bulking 
in Violation of Health &  Saf. Code, §§ 25202, subd. (a), 25188 and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 

66270.30, subd. (a), 66264.17, subds. (a) and (b), and 2013 ISE  Order Against Defendants)  

72. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

73. Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) provides that the owner and/or operator of 
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a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required 

to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.  

74. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (a) requires 

that an owner and/or operator of a facility take precautions to prevent accidental ignition or 

reaction of ignitable or reactive waste. 

75. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (b) requires 

that an owner and/or operator of a facility prevent reactions which generate extreme heat or 

pressure, fire or explosions, or violent reactions. 

76. Section V(C)(10) of the Permit Part B requires written authorization from facility 

management or facility chemist before bulking waste in Area C. 

77. Sections V(D)(1) and V(G)(1) and Attachment V-5 of the Permit Part B require 

compatibility testing be performed and written approval by the facility chemist prior to bulking 

wastes. 

78. Section VI(D)(6)(d) of the Permit Part B and Part IV of the Permit provides that no 

bulking of hazardous waste is allowed in Area A. 

79. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25187, subdivision (a) the Department 

issued the 2013 ISE Order including a Schedule of Compliance to Defendant GEM on April 3, 

2013. 

80. Section 5.16 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that “[t]his Order shall apply to and be 

binding upon Respondent, and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, 

receivers, trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, 

and subsidiary and parent corporations.” 

81. The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.2.1 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that 

Defendant GEM must submit a modification to its Permit Part B to revise its existing Standard 

Operating Procedures to implement additional precautions to prevent fires and explosions or other 

violent or non-violent reactions that could potentially release hazardous waste to the environment 

during consolidation operations at the Facility, including oversight procedures at the Facility to 

ensure incompatible wastes are not mixed together.  Defendant GEM revised its Standard 
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Operating Procedures to require facility chemist approval prior to conducting any activity 

involving consolidation or bulking and submitted a permit modification to the Department to 

incorporate this change.  The permit modification became effective on October 21, 2013.  

82. Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a), California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivisions (a) and (b) as follows: 

Defendant GEM:  

a.	 On and prior to March 8, 2011, Defendant GEM failed to have compatibility 

testing performed in the laboratory and failed to obtain written approval by the 

facility  chemist prior to bulking wastes in Area C.  (Health & Saf. Code § 

25202, subd. (a), Cal. Code of Regs. §§ 66264.17, subd. (b) and 66270.30, 

subd. (a)) 

b.	 On and prior to March 25, 2013, Defendant GEM failed to take adequate 

precautions to prevent incompatible hazardous waste from being bulked in Area 

C by failing to follow the Standard Operating Procedure for Area C.  For 

instance, GEM failed to follow the commingled compatibility test procedure 

that it adopted as a “best safety practice” to ensure incompatible hazardous 

waste was not being bulked from loose packs or lab packs into 55-gallon drums 

in Area C.  (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.17, subd. (a).) 

Defendants: 

c.	 On and prior to May 6, 2015, and May 12, 2015, Defendants improperly bulked 

approximately 14 containers of used oil and 14 containers of antifreeze in Area 

A, where no bulking of hazardous waste is allowed. 

d.	 On and prior to June 27, 2017, Defendants bulked waste in Area C without 

written authorization by the facility chemist.  (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, 

subd. (a), Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a), and 2013 ISE  Order, § 

4.2.1.) 
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83. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a), California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (a) and (b), subjects Defendants to a separate 

penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, 

subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2 subdivision (b). 

84. Failure to comply with the terms of the 2013 ISE Order in 2017 subjects each 

Defendant to costs, penalties, and/or damages, pursuant to section 5.15 of the 2013 ISE Order.  

85. Health and Safety Code section 25188 provides that any person subject to a Schedule 

of Compliance issued pursuant to Section 25187 who does not comply with that schedule shall be 

subject to a civil penalty of not more than twenty-five thousand dollars for each day of 

noncompliance. 

86. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a).  

FIFTH CAUSE OF  ACTION  
(Failure to Maintain Adequate Aisle Space in Violation of Cal. 

Code Regs., title 22, § 66264.35 Against Defendant GEM)  

87. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

88. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.35 provides an owner and/or 

operator of a facility must maintain aisle space adequate to allow the unobstructed movement of 

personnel, fire protection equipment, spill control equipment, and decontamination equipment. 

89. On and prior to August 4, 2011, Defendant GEM did not maintain aisle space 

adequate to allow the unobstructed movement of personnel, fire protection equipment, spill 

control equipment, and decontamination equipment in that several drums were stored in front of 

the eyewash and safety shower obstructing access to its use.   

90. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.35 subjects 

Defendant GEM to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety 
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Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code 25189.2, 

subdivision (b). 

91. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(False Statements and/or Representations in Waste Labels in Violation of 

Health & Saf. Code §§ 25189, subd. (a), 25189.2, subd. (a), 25202, subd. (a), 
and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

92. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

93. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facility permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a)  and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. 

(a).)  

94. Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (a) and Health and Safety Code 

section 25189.2, subdivision (a), provide in relevant part that any person who intentionally or 

negligently makes any false statement or representation in any label shall be liable for a penalty. 

95. Section VIII(D)(1)(g) of the Permit Part B requires the Defendants to mark or verify 

that each container is marked with the following information to ensure efficient tracking and 

management within 24 hours of being unloaded at the Facility: 1) uniform hazardous waste 

manifest document number and line item number; and 2) acceptance date into the Facility. 

96. On May 6, 2015, Defendants made false representations on their hazardous waste 

labels by affixing outbound labels over waste receipt check-in labels, which consequently 

misstated the accumulation start date(s). 

97. Each violation of Health and Safety Code sections 25189, subdivision (a), 25189.2, 

subdivision (a), 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 

66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at 

trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 25189, subdivisions (a) and (b) or in the 

alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivisions (a) and (b). 
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98. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Provide and Document Employee Training in 

Violation of Cal. Code Regs., title 22, § 66264.16, Health & Saf. 
Code § 25188, and 2013 ISE Order Against Defendants)  

99. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

100. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.16, subdivision (a), provides 

the owner or operator of a hazardous waste facility shall ensure that all facility personnel 

successfully complete a program of classroom instruction or on-the-job training that teaches them 

to perform their duties in a way that ensures the facility’s compliance with the requirements of 

HWCL and its implementing regulations. 

101. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.16, subdivision (b) provides 

all facility personnel shall successfully complete the program required in subdivision (a) within 

six months after the date of their employment or assignment to a facility, or to a new position at a 

facility. 

102. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.16, subdivision (c) provides 

all facility personnel shall take part in an annual review of the initial training required in 

subsection (a) of this section.   

103. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.16, subdivision (d) provides 

the owner or operator of a facility shall maintain training documents and records at the facility.  

104. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25187, subdivision (a), the Department 

issued the 2013 ISE Order to Defendant GEM on April 3, 2013 with a Schedule of Compliance.  

105. Section 5.16 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that “[t]his Order shall apply to and be 

binding upon Respondent [GEM], and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, 

consultants, receivers, trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, 

partners, and subsidiary and parent corporations.” 
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106. The Schedule of Compliance, Section 4.2.2 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that 

Defendants must submit a detailed training plan describing (1) the level of training for each 

person that holds a position that is responsible for hazardous waste management, (2) how often 

the training will be given, (3) who will provide each level of training, (4) each position for which 

the training is required, (5) records (e.g. a certificate of completion) for each person that he or she 

has successfully completed the training and has demonstrated the necessary understanding and 

skills required to be competent in the course areas covered by the training, and (6) the proposed 

schedule for implementing the training plan.  

107. The Schedule of Compliance, Section 4.2.3 of the 2013 ISE Order provides 

Defendants will provide the name of the responsible corporate officer at the Site who shall ensure 

the work plan is implemented and that persons/positions detailed in the training plan have been 

properly trained. 

108. The Schedule of Compliance, Section 4.3 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that after 

the Department approves the training plan, Defendants will implement the plans pursuant to the 

schedules therein.   

109. Health and Safety Code section 25188 provides that any person subject to a Schedule 

of Compliance issued pursuant to Section 25187 who does not comply with that schedule shall be 

subject to a civil penalty of not more than twenty-five thousand dollars for each day of 

noncompliance. 

110. On and prior to March 25, 2013 and March 26, 2013, Defendant GEM failed to 

properly train facility personnel and maintain training documents and records pursuant to 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.16. 

111. On and prior to March 18, 2014 and March 19, 2014, Defendant GEM failed to 

properly train facility personnel and maintain training documents and records pursuant to 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.16 and the 2013 ISE Order, section 4.2.2 

and 4.3. 
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112. On and prior to May 6, 2015 and May 10, 2016, Defendants failed to properly train 

facility personnel and or maintain training documents and records pursuant to California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, section 66264.16 and the 2013 ISE Order, section 4.2.2 and 4.3.   

113. On and prior to August 7, 2017, Defendants failed to properly train facility personnel 

and or maintain training documents and records pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 

22, section 66264.16 and the 2013 ISE Order, section 4.2.2 and 4.3.   

114. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.16 subjects 

each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety 

section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, 

subdivision (b). 

115. Failure to comply with the terms of the 2013 ISE Order in 2014, 2015, 2016, and 

2017 subjects each Defendant to costs, penalties, and/or damages, pursuant to section 5.15 of the 

2013 ISE Order. 

116. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a).  

EIGHTH CAUSE OF  ACTION  
(Failure to Notify the Department of a New Release Within 24  

Hours in Violation of Health & Saf. Code, § 25202, subd. (a) and 
Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

117. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

118. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subdivision (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, 

subd. (a).)  

119. Section VI of the Permit requires Defendants to notify the Department within 24 

hours of the discovery of new releases from the Facility.  

120. Defendant GEM violated Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) by failing to notify the 
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Department within 24 hours of discovery of new releases from the fire at the Facility that 

occurred on August 2, 2011.   

121. Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) by failing to notify the 

Department within 24 hours of discovery of new releases from the fire at the Facility that 

occurred on August 7, 2017. 

122. Each violation of Health & Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California 

Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a 

separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, 

subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

123. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Properly Maintain Resin Coating in Violation of Health & 

Saf. Code, § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 
66270.30, subd. (a) and 66264.175, subd. (b)(1) Against Defendants)  

124. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

125. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health  & Saf. Code § 25202 subd. (a)  and Cal. Code Regs, tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a).)  

126. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.175, subdivision (b)(1) 

provides that a base for containers should be free of cracks or gaps and sufficiently impervious to 

contain leaks, spills, or precipitation. 

127. Section VI(D)(1) of the Permit Part B requires Defendants to maintain the concrete 

floor and containment berm in Area A of the Facility with a properly coated layer of chemical-

resistant phenolic resin.  
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128. Section VIII(I)(2) of the Permit Part B requires Defendants to inspect the concrete 

base in the Loading and Unloading Areas and in Areas A, B, C, and D for damage, cracks and 

erosion. 

129. On and prior to March 9, 2011, GEM violated Health and Safety Code, section 

25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, 

subdivision (a) by failing to properly seal the resin coating on the surface of the ramp into Area A 

of the Facility. 

130. On and prior to May 10, 2016, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code, section 

25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.175, 

subdivision (b)(1) and 66270.30, subdivision (a) by not fixing the cracks in the Loading and 

Unloading Area and in Area D despite having noted the cracks in its inspection log. 

131. Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66264.175, 

subdivision (b)(1) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, 

pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health 

and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

132. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Construct and Give Notice of Temporary Storage Cells in 

Violation of Health & Saf. Code § 25202 subd. (a) and Cal. Code  
Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a) Against Defendant GEM)  

133. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

134. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code, § 25202 subd. (a)  and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd 

(a).)  
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135. Section VI(E)(1) of the Permit Part B requires Defendant GEM to construct 

temporary storage cells using visqueen and sandbags and to provide notification to the 

Department before relocating containers and performing maintenance on the storage cells in Area 

B. 

136. On and prior to March 25, 26, and April 9, 2013, Defendant GEM violated Health 

and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, 

section 66270.30, subdivision (a) by not providing visqueen under containers and sandbags 

around containers containing ignitable, corrosive, and toxic waste and by failing to notify the 

Department of the maintenance being performed on the storage cells in Area B of the Facility. 

137. Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendant 

GEM to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 

25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

138. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Improper Storage of Hazardous Waste in Area A and Loading and Unloading Area in 

Violation of Health & Saf. Code, §§ 25188, 25202, subd. (a), 25200.19, subd. (c)(1), Cal. 
Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd (a), and 2010 Consent Order Against Defendants)  

139. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

140. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a)  and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd 

(a).)  

141. Health and Safety Code section 25200.19, subdivision (c)(1) provides that “[a]s part 

of a loading or unloading operation conducted within the boundary of a hazardous waste facility, 

the hazardous waste shall not be held longer than 10 days outside of an authorized unit at the 

facility.” 
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142. On October 12, 2010, the Department and Defendant GEM entered into the 2010 

Consent Order to address Defendant GEM’s violations of the HWCL that were identified by the 

Department in March 2009.   

143. Section 4.2 of the 2010 Consent Order provides that “[t]his Order shall apply to and 

be binding upon Respondent and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, 

consultants, receivers, trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, 

partners, and subsidiary and parent corporations…” 

144. Section 3.1.3 of the 2010 Consent Order provides that Defendant GEM shall conduct 

unloading and loading operations in accordance with Health and Safety Code section 25200.19 

and comply with section VIII(E)(1)(a) of the Permit Part B (Operation Plan). 

145. Section VIII(E)(1)(a) of the Permit Part B specifies that hazardous waste cannot be 

stored for more than 10 days in the Loading and Unloading Area.   

146. Section V(I)(D) of the Permit Part B specifies that Area A is a temporary staging area 

for receiving, inspecting, repackaging, and preparation of containerized waste for shipping, and 

hazardous waste containers can only be stored in said area for 10 days. 

147.	 Defendants violated the HWCL and its regulations and the 2010 Consent Order as 

follows: 

Defendant GEM:  

a.	 On and prior to March 18-19, 2014, GEM stored eleven hazardous waste 

containers in Area A  for  longer than 10 days. (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, 

subd. (a), Cal. Code Regs. tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a).) 

Defendants:  

b.	 On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants stored hazardous waste 

containers, including automobile lead acid batteries in Area A for longer than 

10 days.  (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a), Cal. Code Regs. tit. 22, § 

66270.30, subd. (a).) 

c.	 On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants stored hazardous waste 

containers in the Loading and Unloading Area for longer than 10 days. (Health 
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& Saf. Code §§ 25202, subd. (a), 25200.19, subd. (c)(1), 25187, subd. (a), Cal. 

Code Regs. tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a), 2010 Consent Order.)      

d.	 On and prior to June 27, 2017, Defendants stored hazardous waste containers 

with corrosive waste in Area  A for longer than 10 days. (Health & Saf. Code § 

25202, subd. (a), Cal. Code Regs. tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a).) 

148. Each violation of Health and Safety Code, sections 25200.19, subdivision (c)(1), 

25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision 

(a) subjects  each  Defendant to a separate penalty,  according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health 

and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the  alternative, Health and Safety Code 

section 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

149. Failure to comply with the terms of the 2010 Consent Order subjects each Defendant 

to costs, penalties, and/or damages, pursuant to section 4.1 of the 2010 Consent Order. 

150. Health and Safety Code section 25188 provides that any person subject to a Schedule 

of Compliance issued pursuant to Section 25187 who does not comply with that schedule shall be 

subject to a civil penalty of not more than twenty-five thousand dollars for each day of 

noncompliance. 

151. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Improper Storage of Universal Waste in Violation of Health & Saf. Code, § 25202 

subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd (a) Against Defendant GEM)  

152.	 Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

153. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code, § 25202 subd. (a)  and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd 

(a).)  
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154. Part IV, Unit A of the Permit and section VI(D) of the Permit Part B specifies that 

universal waste can only be stored in Area A of the Facility. 

155. On and prior to March 18, 2014 and March 19, 2014, Defendant GEM violated 

Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title  

22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) by improperly  storing seven boxes of universal waste in 

Area C.     

156. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendant 

GEM to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 

25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision 

(b). 

157. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Failure to Inspect Containers for Proper  Labeling and Marking in Violation of Health &  

Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a), and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, subd. (a), 
66262.31, 66262.32 subd. (b)(2), and 66266.81, subd. (a)(1)(6)(D) Against Defendants)  

158. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

159. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code, § 25202, subd. (a) Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a).) 

160. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.31 requires facility personnel 

to label hazardous waste containers in accordance with Title 49 CFR Part 172 before they are 

transported off-site. 

161. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.32, subdivision (b)(2) requires 

that a generator mark each container of 110 gallons or less of hazardous waste offered for offsite 

transportation in accordance with the requirements of 49 Code of Federal Regulations section 

172.304. 
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162. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66266.81, subdivision (a)(1)(6)(D), 

requires that the owner or operator of a hazardous waste facility to store spent lead-acid storage 

batteries in accordance with the packaging requirements of Title 49 CFR section 173.260 and to 

label the packaged batteries with the date they were received. 

163. Section VIII(I) (2)(b)(7) of the Permit Part B specifies that Defendants must inspect 

and properly label all containers contained within the Facility.  

164. On and prior to March 18, 2014, and March 19, 2014, Defendant GEM violated 

Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 

22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) by improperly affixing a universal waste label to a used oil 

drum.  Used oil is a hazardous waste not a universal waste. 

165. On and prior to May 10, 2016, and May 11, 2016, Defendants violated Health and 

Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 

66270.30, subdivision (a), 66262.31, and 66262.32, subdivision (b)(2) by failing to properly label 

two pallets of automobile lead acid type batteries, and 66266.81, subdivision (a)(1)(6)(D) by 

failing to label two drums of automobile lead acid type batteries. 

166. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30 subdivision (a), 66262.31, 66262.32 

subdivision (b)(2), and 66266.81, subdivision (a)(1)(6)(D) subjects each Defendant to a separate 

penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, 

subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

167. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

FOURTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Mark Containers with Accumulation Start Dates in Violation of Health & Saf. Code, § 

25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

168. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
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169. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health  & Saf. Code § 25202 subd. (a)  and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. 

(a).)  

170. Section VIII (E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B requires that containers with hazardous 

waste be marked and labeled. 

171. On and prior to June 27, 2017, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 

25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, 

subdivision (a) because six containers of hazardous waste in Area B did not have accumulation 

start dates. 

172. Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30 subjects each Defendant to a separate 

penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, 

subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

173. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

FIFTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Properly Mark Empty Containers Larger Than Five Gallons in 
Violation of Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., 
tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, subd. (a) and 66261.7, subd. (f) Against Defendants) 

174. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

175. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a)  and California Code of Regulations, title 22, § 

66270.30, subd. (a).)  

176. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66261.7, subdivision (f) provides 

that a container larger than five gallons in capacity shall be marked with the date it has been 

emptied. 
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177. Section VIII(E)(2) of the Permit Part B requires that empty containers at a hazardous 

waste facility must be marked to identify them as empty. 

178. Defendants failed to mark empty containers to identify them as empty in violation of 

Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 

22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66261.7, subdivision (f) on and prior to four 

inspections: March 8-9, 2011; May 6 and 12, 2015; May 10-11, 2016; and June 27, 2017.  

179. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202(a) and California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66261.7, subdivision (f) subjects 

each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety 

Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 

25189.2, subdivision (b). 

180. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

SIXTEENTH CAUSE  OF ACTION  
(Failure to Properly and Accurately Complete the Facility Closure Plan in Violation 

of Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.112 subd. (b)(3) Against Defendants) 

181. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

182. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.112, subdivision (b)(3) 

requires that the owner or operator of a hazardous waste facility shall have a Closure Plan that 

includes an estimate of the maximum inventory of hazardous wastes ever on-site over the active 

life of the facility and a detailed description of the methods to be used during partial closures and 

final closure, including, but not limited to, methods for removing, transporting, treating, storing, 

or disposing of all hazardous wastes, and identification of the type(s) of the off-site hazardous 

waste management units to be used, if applicable. 

183. On and prior to May 6, 2015, and May 12, 2015 Defendants failed to provide in the 

Closure Plan an accurate estimate of the total inventory of hazardous waste ever onsite over the 

active life of the Facility and failed to fully and accurately detail the methods to be used during 
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partial and final closure of the Facility, in violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, 

section 66264.112, subdivision (b)(3). 

184. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.112, 

subdivision (b)(3) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, 

pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health 

and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b) of the Health and Safety Code. 

185. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

SEVENTEENTH CAUSE OF  ACTION  
(Failure to Properly Manage Containers in Violation of California Code of 

Regulations, title 22, §§ 66264.171 and 66264.173 subd. (b) Against Defendants) 

186. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

187. California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171 and 66264.173 

subdivision (b) provide that containers holding hazardous waste cannot be stored in a manner that 

may rupture or that causes it to leak and if containers holding hazardous waste begin to leak, the 

owner and/or operator shall transfer the hazardous waste to a container in good condition.   

188. On and prior to May 11, 2016, the Department discovered that Defendants stored 

hazardous waste in three significantly dented or deformed 5-gallon plastic containers in Area B 

and the Loading and Unloading Area. 

189. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171 and 

66264.173 subdivision (b) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at  

trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, 

Health and Safety Code  25189.2, subdivision (b). 

190. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to and prevent future violations 

of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 

25181, subdivision (a). 

33 

Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

   

EIGHTEENTH CAUSE OF  ACTION  
(Failure to Properly Close Containers in Violation of Cal. Code 

Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.173 subd. (a) Against Defendants) 

191. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

192. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.173 subdivision (a) provides 

that containers holding hazardous waste shall always be closed during transfer and storage, except 

when it is necessary to add or remove waste. 

193. On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants failed to ensure that roll-off bins and 

containers of hazardous waste in Area D were closed. 

194. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.173 

subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant 

to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety 

Code 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

195. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

NINETEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Provide Acceptance Dates on Containers of Hazardous 
Waste in Violation of Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and 

Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30 subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

196. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

197. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a)  and Cal. Code of Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. 

(a).)  

198. Section VI(B)(6) and VIII(D(1)(d)(1)(g) of the Permit Part B requires Defendants to 

provide a tracking label with a date of acceptance within 24 hours of receiving the hazardous 

waste. 
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199. On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants failed to provide a tracking label with a 

date of acceptance within 24 hours of receipt for approximately twenty drums in Area A and Area 

C.   

200. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects each 

Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, 

subdivision (b). 

201. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

TWENTIETH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Accepting Hazardous Waste Destined for Other Facilities in Violation 
of Health & Saf. Code §§ 25200.19, subd. (a) and 25202, subd. (a) and 

Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30 subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

202. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

203. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a)  and Cal. Code of Regs., title 22, § 66270.30, 

subd. (a).)  

204. Health and Safety Code section 25200.19, subdivision (a) provides in relevant part 

that a facility is subject to conditions and limitations in the permit concerning the receipt and 

unloading of hazardous wastes from offsite locations. 

205. Section VI(C) and/or VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B only allows storage of 

containers at the Facility if they are destined for the Facility or being prepared for outgoing 

shipment.   

206. On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants accepted and stored drums at the 

Facility that were destined for other facilities. 

35 

Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
 

  

   

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

207. Each violation of Health and Safety Code sections 25200.19, subdivision (a) and 

25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision 

(a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health 

and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code 

section 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

208. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

TWENTY-FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Use Protective Equipment in Violation of Health & Saf. Code § 25202, 
subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30 subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

209. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

210. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a)  and Cal. Code of Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. 

(a).)  

211. Section VIII(B)(1) of the Permit Part B provides that employees handling hazardous 

waste must wear personal protective equipment.  

212. On and prior to June 27, 2017, Defendants’ employees failed to wear personal 

protective equipment (hard hats).  

213. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects each 

Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, 

subdivision (b). 

214. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 
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TWENTY-SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Provide Training on Management of Universal Waste in 

Violation of Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66273.36 Against Defendant GEM) 

215. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

216. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66273.36 requires that all personnel 

who manage or who supervise those who manage universal waste be provided initial training and 

annual training and that a written record be maintained.   

217. On and prior to March 25, 2013, Defendant GEM failed to provide and document 

adequate universal waste training to its employees. 

218. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66273.36 subjects 

Defendant GEM to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety 

Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 

25189.2, subdivision (b). 

219. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

TWENTY-THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Label or Mark Containers of Universal Waste in Violation of 
Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 

66270.30, subd. (a) and 66273.34, subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

220. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

221. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facility permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a)  and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. 

(a))  

222. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66273.34, subdivision (a) requires 

universal waste handlers to label or mark universal waste to identify the type of universal waste 

and to use the appropriate identifiers. 
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223. Section VIII(I)(2)(b)(7) of Permit Part B requires Defendants to inspect containers of 

universal waste to ensure they are properly labeled. 

224. On or before May 6, 2015, Defendants failed to inspect containers to ensure they 

were properly labeled. 

225. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision(a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66273.34, 

subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant 

to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivisions (a) and (b) or in the alternative, Health and 

Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivisions (a) and (b). 

226. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

TWENTY-FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Provide for the Management of Recovered Fire Materials in 

Violation of Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.56, subd. (g) Against Defendants)  

227. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

228. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.56, subdivision (g), requires 

the emergency coordinator of a hazardous waste facility to provide for treating, storing, or 

disposing of recovered waste or any other material that results from a fire at the facility. 

229. On August 7, 2017, the emergency coordinator of the Facility did not provide for the 

treating, storing, or disposing of any material caused by the fire.  Defendants could not account 

for the disposition of the materials caused by the fire. 

230. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.56 

subdivision (g) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant 

to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety 

Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b).  
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231. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to and prevent future violations 

of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 

25181, subdivision (a). 

TWENTY-FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Make Hazardous Waste Determination in Violation of 

Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66262.11, subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

232. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

233. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.11, subdivision (a), requires 

the generator of a waste to determine if that waste is hazardous. 

234. On August 7, 2017, a fire occurred at the facility when hazardous waste, identified on 

the hazardous waste manifest as naphthalene, was poured onto paper and the paper and hazardous 

waste was deliberately ignited by the Defendants.  The fire was controlled, in part, by use of an 

absorbent.  Defendants failed to make a hazardous waste determination for the materials set on 

fire or those used in the cleanup in the fire. 

235. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66272.11 

subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant 

to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety 

Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b).  

236. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

TWENTY-SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Follow Permit Contingency Plan in Violation of Health & Saf. Code § 25202, 

subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a) Against Defendants)  

237. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

238. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a 

hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 

permit. (Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a)  and Cal. Code of Regs., tit. 22, §66270.30, subd. 

(a).)  
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239. Section X(I)(3)(a)(3), (4), and (8) and Attachment X-2 of the Permit Part B 

(Emergency Action and Contingency Plan) requires the Facility to take the following actions in 

the event of a fire: (1) evacuation, (2)  employee notification to his or her supervisor, (3)  

notification to the Emergency Coordinator and General Manager by the supervisor(s), (4)  

placement of the debris and materials used in the clean-up of the fire, which are presumed to be 

hazardous waste, in proper containers, labeled, and managed, appropriately, and (5) verbal 

notification to the Department within 24 hours. 

240. On and after August 7, 2017, Defendants violated sections X(I)(3)(a)(3), (4), and (8) 

and Attachment X-2 of the Permit Part B by only performing some of its requirements. 

241. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and 

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66272.30, subdivision (a) subjects each 

Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, 

subdivision (b).  

242. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

TWENTY-SEVENTH CAUSE  OF ACTION  
(Failure to Keep Contingency Plan Up to Date in Violation of Cal. 

Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.52, subd. (d)  Against Defendants)  

243. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

244. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.52, subdivision (d) requires 

that the list of names, addresses, and phone numbers of all persons qualified to act as emergency 

coordinator be kept up to date. 

245. On an prior to August 7, 2017, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, 

title 22, section 66264.52, subdivision (d) by failing to keep its Contingency Plan up to date.  

Steven Patrick is identified in the Facility’s Contingency Plan as the Facility Manager and the 

primary Emergency Coordinator.  Greg Harris is identified in the Facility’s Contingency Plan as 
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the Area General Manager and an Emergency Coordinate alternate.   Neither were employed at 

the Facility on the date of the August 7, 2017 fire. 

246. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, 66264.52, subdivision (d) 

subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and 

Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 

25189.2, subdivision (b).  

247. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

TWENTY-EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Amend Contingency Plan in Violation of Cal. Code 

Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.54, subd. (d) Against Defendants)  

248. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

249. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.54, subdivision (d), requires 

the contingency plan be immediately amended, if necessary, whenever the list of emergency 

coordinators change.  

250. On and prior to August 7, 2017, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, 

title 22, section 66264.54, subdivision (d) by failing to amend its Contingency Plan.  Steven 

Patrick is identified in the Facility’s Contingency Plan as the Facility Manager and the primary 

Emergency Coordinator.  Greg Harris is identified in the Facility’s Contingency Plan as the Area 

General Manager and an Emergency Coordinate alternate.  Neither were employed at the Facility 

on the date of the August 7, 2017 fire, and no amendment to the Contingency Plan Emergency 

Coordinator list had been made reflecting the departures of Steven Patrick and Greg Harris. 

251. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.54, 

subdivision (d) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant 

to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety 

Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b).  
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252. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 

TWENTY-NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
(Failure to Follow Permit Transfer and Ownership Change 

Requirements in Violation of Cal. Code Regs. tit. 22, §§ 66270.40, 
subds. (a) and (b)(2) and 66270.42.5 subd. (c)(1)  Against Defendants)  

253. Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

254. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.40, subdivision (a) provides 

that a permit may be transferred to a new owner or operator only if the permit has been modified 

or revoked and reissued. 

255. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.42.5, subdivision (c)(1), 

requires the Department’s prior written approval and compliance with Class 1* permit 

modification procedures before a change in ownership or operational control of a hazardous waste 

facility can occur. 

256. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.40, subdivision (b)(2) requires 

the new owner or operator of a permitted hazardous waste facility to submit a revised permit 

application no later than 90 days prior to the change.  It also requires a written agreement between 

the current and new permittees with a specific date for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage, 

and liability between the current and new permittees, to be submitted to the Department. It 

further requires that there be no gap in the financial requirements of article 8 of chapter 14 of 

division 4.5 of the California Code of Regulations during the transition between the old and new 

permittee. 

257. Based on information and belief, Defendants Stericycle acquired ownership and/ or 

operational control of the Facility from Defendant GEM in or around April 2014.  

258. Defendants Stericycle acquired ownership and/or operational control of the facility 

from Defendant GEM without complying with the procedures of a Class 1* permit modification 

and without prior written approval from the Department. 
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259. The Department received no revised permit application and no written agreement was 

entered into and submitted to the Department containing a specific date for transfer of permit 

responsibility, coverage, and liability between Defendant GEM and Defendants Stericycle. 

Defendants did not demonstrate compliance with the financial requirements during and after the 

ownership and/or operational change. 

260. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.40, 

subdivisions (a) and (b)(2) and 66270.42.5, subdivision (c)(1) subjects each Defendant to a 

separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, 

subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b). 

261. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of 

the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, 

subdivision (a). 
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REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

The Department requests that the Court grant the relief that follows: 

I. U Enter judgment that Defendants have violated the HWCL and its implementing 

regulations as set forth in the First through Twenty Ninth Causes of Action; 

2. Enter judgment that Defendants are liable for civil penalties for the violations set U 

forth in the First through Twenty Ninth Causes of Action as authorized by Health and Safety 

Code sections 25189 and 25189.2, in an amount according to proof; 

3. U Enter permanent injunctions, or other orders enjoining Defendants from illegally 

managing hazardous waste in California and requiring Defendants to otherwise comply with the 

HWCL and the regulations adopted thereunder; 

4. Grant the Department its costs of sui\ herein; and 

5. Grant such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper. 

Dtited: October 26, 2017 

OK2014512982 
90865254.docx 

Respectfully Submitted, 

XAVIER BECERRA 
Attorney General of California 
SUSAN FJERING 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

Original signed by Rose B. Fua 
I 

ROSE B. FUA 
Deputy Attorney General 
Attorneys/or Plaintiff People of/he State 
ofCalifornia, ex rel. Department o_fToxic 
Substances Control 
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aff~~d·1J.po1fPro.~aa.4:Emw·iud.~ent ion,Conser1r::tfF'm11fJud~ent'Qi, wtuiii ~1~~-ifQ.ifn. . 
~cbe4/to·-t1's &tiipul:flllP"n..t.ijs'.Exhibi'.t;-L Th~Parties:aie:'.eaobtteptes·ented.~t c,p~~l:., ~: 

S#p.uliiti~ and tlic:;,Fw·ai.Judgment\w.ete:t1e~tiiiteii..inr.sood.:tiiith{ahd atilriiif-t~~J,'y:!h~~ 

Jla,rffes·to 'ayoid:ex..~~ensive;anil·P,totr11ctrxfliti,g:atioi1~$.f1tdin.~fthe\i1ie~ec1 v1~~~~?i(of:fA~ BWG+f. 

Blld}Fitle-:2z ,Eic¢ph1s:set::forthin1P.·tu'a~ph?fi be1'bwi tbe/Partii:s. agr.eettii~Wp16t~P:t,w,tl!is~
+ .._ • • ' . II J 

Stipulation and F.ina1Jti4'gment:consfitutes1ab.ad.Ju'dicatihn"tift:antfa'c~ 0,~d~i:.,6fll\v ~d qEM,__. .. 

and sten'cyde do=not a'diriit:any:facti..I°iaai1ity) :or'viblatlon'.of'ihelaw,. 
• •I ,II' 

Hxce~te,wh;ete.•offi·er.wfsc,'cx..ptts~itffefidtd in t~..~~p~l!J.MJY~J 'l:f111~1~}ij.l :b.~(bJt~rpre(~.4.
• 

·iis:sefforth,~(and: c'dnsistent:\vit~{ffic HWGLr~fl;i~.!,~,2.~ ·"ffi.~fpllo~~i{efms-:;wt~J.Q,\tii!s 

 Stipulatfon..~d fu~F.inhl°fwlgm~q~~l...l!~y~'JJ\~!g~ijing(~)l~~~:fgqp,p~~O,Wt 
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3.J "BULiqr,.IG,~' "BULK/' ~i:J.d'".BLJLKED'·'·.shall h~:ve,th.e,,ame definition.as provided 

for in $,e'_PERM'.IT Part B.,. s~ctiori·V.(dj(l), Wast~.A;n~ly$is Plan., 

­

3:2 °C0NS0LJDATIN,O," C<GQ~S.QLIP41:E,'!and ·~CON~OLIDATION11 'sh11U hav.e ,the'. 

san,e de,~u,i.ti\:m as pro'viped':for in,the.fER:fyll'.f'P.arl."a~ ~ectfon.¥(G)(i); Was:ti:tAnnlysis Plan;. 
·' ,I- • 

3:3 "El;'FEt::;Trv$·1fATE'' ~~,,the dafe the·Pinal Juclgmentintliis matter.is entered by the 

Cptitf.· 

3..4 '$ACIL1TY'; 
' • 0 - ' '• ' q' 

as-:used·heteinrefers 
'< '~ ~ I ~ • •' • o '>• ,.•I.' '• • < ; .• '• 

to.theHAZA:ROOUS'WASTE·TREATMEN1' 
• ' " 0 - • •, < ' '• < 

and 

STORAGE FACILifYJ6cated at .11:855,Whl,te R~.c~·toai:l,'~npho;Cprdov~ Cp.liforoia. The 

,FA9,LITYi~-a '.'H:At~qµs·w,~'.ftfAt~qt:'.' as dt:fin%1'.:i:~(H~alth_f3,Ud'.Sa.(~ty Code 

I 

J..s -"FACIT.:;rrY ~AO~~{'.i~J~~ -p~9ftj}at w~;mtaj Jpperfonn.and .. perfonns the: 

J .'ob: n:;q. ... uirements ... . .. .. esseotial'filrictibns: . , .. ,, ........ , ...... , @.l_ .,., d . rind. 
' 

.P.-. ,, .. P. fil·activfties _.... . . ..., ofthe·IPA'CILITTMANAGER''.. . ., . . . . . . 

,rutd/or' 
,,,,,I 

''LOCATION 
•,. •I·•',.,,,.,••,,•/ 

MANAGER" 
I,·..•~•·•")~""'.,'••,••!•• 

:at the:FACII'.JTY 
.. ,,.•• ,f.,..,-.~·••'"'"~"'''''''• as. described-:i1dhe '~•, PER.MIT ':ea.rt .B :J• sectiott

1 

IX. , TrainiI>" ' ..... 8 .. ·Plait". 

3:~; "P~.~.'~1J~RI¢¥.Q:.kE_Efyift'!.:?~.s:~ maans·b9tp: ~er:µian~nf-:and·temporary·: 

en{ ki ~es··:who ,eno. HAZAIIDO.US·WASTE'MANAGEMENT c· · · 'e , ··: · ·. · F : .. ·. . ,·· . .. .JL)'. ....:- ,.,... P...Jffi· ...... \ ........... , .., ............... , .................... , .... -,a (iV,Jti,s ~t.the. .ACILTIW 


;4.i;c~µ,dY.1&1~PJ'g.~t;,lipµJ¥ Jq,: fueJ)~.Q@Y ~~GJ.!R, s.mntRV;JSQRILEADM:AN;' ilnd • 

'LEAD • •••. CHEMIST/CliaMIST..,.. . '... . • ., •• , .. l 

 · ).J ~.·qE,NE.,~:.MANi.\Q~~1 1:i,1}ie;:ppi:s~tdhatw.a,s·,hired)o:;pertC:1nn-•arufperl"ormsJhe 

.. 
,' ' 

followwg.~~:ti;riii.~.,qf:$.~-'-~.GE~E~ ~l\:OERr ijt th~. F.;ACILW:as:desctilled,.fu ihe­

::'P.E,~ P~:B,,S!:l~ti9n..:~ ~i:nergen~y,)\~O{J: ana:tontin~e~c{Pfan: (~). places·:f"nd;imsw:erli 

phone;Cfll.ls. an~ cl_)mmuni(lf.ltiC?ns!t9_~(fron:i, .th~,.~·-:deparlment~:Pofite departmetlt; contdictor 
. . . 

:pe~onnel,.an~ corpoql,t~..n,anagemep.,·i t2fi
'S ' 

s.respow;1bl.e for .health and.safety,.aspetts of 
' ; I ~ 

:-~~genpy;'fflart,!lgem~.t;,
'• \•" • 

:m¢l~digg.-(~~m.nriing 
• ' • ~• 

.appntJJriirte 
11 4 •' 

p.otso:niit::,r.o.tecti-ve 
••' ' 

equipment 
• ,, • •• 

Cf.P.:E);· 
, 

. imonito~ng; ..and decontanilitation ·r~wrem~~·, re~pon'dfujfttHhe pres~.. and Jl)J... s.respons'rbiefor . . . .. ~. . 

·and 
' "'' 

p.ubl.ic;ln'gUfrles:as·weII:n.s 
. • .~ • 

wrlling,:an·dior 
• 

d~tiv.iffin'.g,press:telt,Btes1teg:atc:lilig..anj,ongollig: 
~ ' • ' ~ • .1" " I 

·, iincideaf•. 



.. ' 


'3,8· .. "HANDLE;; UHANDLING "and ..HANDLED" means ,, ' , .. . ' . ' "' . ' ' . . •!fy!ANA.GE"'asdefinecl.in.· .. 

·Paragraph liW'. 

1 

2 

3 J .9 •11AZ/'!-ItR.OlJ~ WAS'f.W'-~ball.have Jhe .definition as pro~ided tot in Healti.l'aiid 

 Safety Code sectjon 25.1.17 :and;th~ ,same.m~\lning._as\ .the_tenn ,is used in Californla Code of 
. . ' • . . . . - .. ; ·1 . 

'Regulations, ti,tle'.22, se~ti~>n 6.~~61, .3. and ~e~tions 66261.2.0 through .66261.24". 

3_.f9 '·"llAZilRD~U~ WASTE'.M:ANAGpMEN)'.," hMA:NAGEi~··and'.ilMANAGEME:l' - • 
: 

·shalthave 
. 

~e 'denfil
.. . ' 

;ii:m. 
• 

~~:11et.Jo.rth 
• ' 

tr;1H~aJth 
• ,,. i_ 

.,and$~f Co'de. 
' 

section 
•' • • 

ety 251 l:-7 .-2. 

4 .
. 

·s . 

6 

:J 

 '.3..l l' ·0 INC<?~AT~L~ W:{\·SJ'E·" as. defin~dJnCaliforrua,Code ofReg:ulations; title·22; 
~ ' . ' ' . ~ 

particula(tl~9e 9:~ fat?ili_ty. b~4:)~Ji~~:itmf:!Y ,C\lll;SC ·c_o~~~o~ .o,:;g~ay ofcontairunent rriatef.fa~. 

(e,g:,.cori~~~-~~~e~:~r,t~.~"".J~s); ~),(1:l) coroinglin~·with another WAStE·or..tnatriri~ · 

·undef'.un_cgn:~Wrd:'.~P.Pi~pp~:H:#fo~~,~~.~n:ungiiqg. . . - . 

~ght 
-

prqd~Q~-(U
' 

heatot .. pressure, 
. 

:f.<~) jre.­

-or·ex,pkiijti~,:(~1:y1~~~~,~~Jcti,6~.fl):J&~i~ ~r,s_ts, ~~ts, fwnes; or.. ~est or-(~fflemmable ·~es; 

- ~t :gaji~(' ~pp~djx:y ,9:f.iQi:apt'~~ l'tf,:~~l~. i-9 pf:T#Ie.'72; . prov,jd,es<ex~ples.of;P,oteiltiaJlf.. 

~~0,M~~T@WW:AS..~, '?[i.$:f~iqqmp,Pn~~,,~d-.~aferials. 


- '3: l :z: :'~D~~~JfflM'JST/.QijJ.lfyflSr?-Js_:$.e,;_~~l;l)l~~bN.D$,hir~bmpeffonn, tlie;j~R·
. { 

-r.~~~i'~i;iietii~fr ~~~¢9tj?,1 (\\~eti9.Q~,;an91pripcipal acti-itties:oflhej.tEAD .CHEMIST" ~cJ!f4..i . .. ,., .
"Qij~~r··:atthi-~ic~tnra~:ges~b~d ~n~.th~'~ERMIT Part'-li°,ili'ectfott~.TI1',~g flan;

3 1 "l _ -1.,,':I ~EtH,'K-JT-!.'·, ..• ,-l;"Ml,¥.~; ~~-aa ·used:l1er~lri .......... ...... .~feQ;,.to-the··eurrent::liAZARbOUS'',W:ASTE"FACILIT.Y·: ' ' ~ •,,,~, .. ~,~"i','· 

i 

. '._;E5JlMJT,,¥/hich 'ip,ajipot,i;t¢s_.by:r~f~~C!:lJhe f!.art:A. anff;'P,art 'B:.(iertilit,applicati(m,:is'~~ ~y. .. ... 

.P.'.ro9Jo)l':i¢.:F·/\:qH;.ft¥..en .A.~rj.l~-5> 2.007 ·ond, allisubse,qµenf modlM~ations'th~t'.~~ye)~~-jfip~d¢, 

'OP may'p~·\suli,.5.eq~enJ~y.1~~J.,lr9Ved ··by,.,tYTIS'.C:.· 

;3.14 ·"STQRAGE~1r~~sroREt·-tS1orum/' 
• t • •• • • ' 

and-''.STORING'.' .meanirth~·:
' 

holding.of
• • • 

:..~pqs'W,A;S'.tE.of.ora ~empo.r.q ~Qdi:  . ... .. .... nt-.the·wid··ofwhich th"e:HA:Z~OUS W:~S:TE .. •, . 

:.i.~:]J.IBf;.)'Efl,.~~·s?ose~;ofior ST.QREifelsewliete' 8S\Se't''fortl'i in. eaHfomii.(?e~e o.r Rem,lations. 

. )it,etz,..s~tti.o.n. Q6i~o..'.i(t. 

. "o:1'"'.L-f., 
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j:,:ft·tl.ll.Uraqy,suc~SQ~~(.. ..'i ·-· ........•' ,-,..,•. ,",· ' 
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4·. 
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.~ ;. • ' 

'20 ', ' 
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"l'i; ,.,..,;,• 

127 

.:is:. 

:3.1'6 ··''TRE,:\T~Efff," "Tlµ;:'!\'t" imd,"TREArmO".me;m.s·anymethod;.technique,,pr·· 

proce·ss .v.:hi~!;i chaqges '9r'is ·design·e~ 1~·cp.ange tJ:te.:,phys}~l, .che01i.c.al? ~r biolp~cah.:haractei'qi 

,coriipo~itio'J:i: pf ijny HAZARDOUS ,WASTE.qr.any mat~rial cont,ainea.therein, br removes•dt 

t~4pi;:es·i~fh~~I pr9pf#i~s oq:ijaia£letjstj~ fqr-a.py purp,_ost; incluping, but not ,Hniited to; 

enetgy·refo\.iery', fuatei:fal)'ecoveiy ori~~d\\Ctio.n ~ v6l'pme.as'5et for.ili:in California·:C·ode of· 

'.l:.:t'.q~·gu1:.:· ·=at=· i;:,6':zn.s:z.·i..:(i:.:::tJ;;.~;:;;2.:;;;2,~:.i::,1:::.e";;;.:cb.;..:.6::.:'Q:..:6:.:6;.;:Z.:.60.;;.:··:;;..1o;;;.::-·-------------;--------r
'3'.l?, '•°WJ\STE.'' ·n,pg· "WA,S'J'.p~t~liaH h~v.~Jti~.:d~finrnor;t ~ sit:f6rthinHealth ancLSiif~ty

code:sectfon:251;2~:. 

-~., :J.URISD10fIQN 
.. .. --: ,, ~· •' " , 

AND 
•• ' ' 

VENUE­
< ' ~ .. 

Tffe PartieS'f!,$1'~e~n.pd 'ti,~i~b.Y·.~~P\lWl~ititatt JO,~PWP.Q,~~;,:ft~s~~tipumqon!,this ,Cotirt,bwi 
. - ! 

' 

suolect 'inattetJuri~di¢tio1:H>v.e,r tp"e matter¥· at~~g~a m~e:<;;:gmpI.aint,ai:ift
,., •u( 

·persMal.:jµrisructfon 
'J 

ovet'GENit~anWS~p~~J~.~d. 1h-.~t y.¢t,ii}~{t;i...W~;.~9J!rf:{i~..pr~p~r ,i,i~ijer:l{13aitli 
"" ~-

~d S'nfet{Cbde
... 

1;:1¥\sis#i#.g ap~ ¢ii~~g~inf§;Uaj, ~µp~lati,~~1t.1$M\1;11'41$t~~t~rwwveilie!i1ri&ht1b 11:, . 

·:h~W1g;AA~·:4~1pa_l~9If~ftpa,~t~~. i!lt\i~:µi~~~~~,on:i~Iai,it;w:iiJr~V~1h~ rf~ttoN~t;!pea1 . 

.6.t. .AJW~~QA,JJQN OJf(II.IS~~JIPPL~tIQN..ANi>·'ltHt.FINAL ,.rfibGME&. 

 : 
• 

-~~ -~~.ul(tiqfj,):µ4. Waif$~.}~1~fnep,(:'sfujJI "-PBbdo:AAli:.1*'6i.udliro-~oni·?.i\:irr~O·;ijp.Q~ ",;I,, ' • • I• • ", 

: ,AND STER:ICYCLE:r;;MP,I:OYEES 
, 

' ......... 
, < 

,..... ,: ·""' ..~. . . '.',. , .... ,'" }8 g_
,.. 

ents• . • ' C· tr (!IL ac.or,;.,tepresenta l . . '. u···· ves

,- "' 

:1 s 

1~~ 

n 

 

---(
· . 

i 
I 

l 
., 
a 

,...

 .. 
 

· 7 .J :PM~PJ a§A>Jh~i~.~provi{lecLm this:. S:{iputaHon,Jhi's'.Stfpufation/arid·1
!.. .. ;;, ,.,. 

WeJ;iRal'
; I H 

J~4im.;i..tij~l.?.1'~:!-1™1l1t~~J~~dit)g; .. t~~Q.l~(i'.P.rr. and:settlepi~ntof:the:HW'CL,liri:d~iij~s~~1\fi.gJ~tt-~rt§~ ·

:~pe~.iP~-~~Iy:!llleg¢4.,py;,DT.S.'i:1' GEM, . .,. 
agaiilsi. ana 'sforlc~fe:fu~flieilomplaibt·..·
"'. 

rtift.ij~f~#.
,d SC ib d-li:h.,th it•~•. ll.Jt. ' .. ~previous;senienc .. ,..... ... . ... e;.are; . ' ,"!'Qjyere<fMliittS~'i . . ,An .Y. ·:.:~iiuhi ,.•vi'oiatio,Y-io'r''c;aiise·of.,,...•._.......... f'. ·""'·'., ; 

·~C,t\"Qfl~JhaJ;is 1-10.~ a•.Gq:v.e:recf.:taatt~riis;.n{~jteser.v.cil: Claim:" 'iD..
1F~1¢·tes:~-~11s ,itµtl}grj,fy lQi•PU,f$UCr: . 

.Resm.:ed:Cla1ms•as·sef..forth1n'P.iiti!-p~P.h ·.l-2.HeteUl·. 
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7.2 Nothing in thisStipul atio·n or tµe, Fiµal.'J.~ctw~~t ~,h,al.1 IA-nit th~ rights :o(DTSC 

against-.QEM/Stericycle under the Coriiprehe~ive ~f.lY~b.om,ent~l, Respoll;S~I Cpm~ensatior1~ and . 
Liability Act,( 42 U.s.c;~ § 9601 et s·eq;),.:the C!l,lifqmi!! Haz~ol.lS Subst~ce Account. Act 

Health.-& Sat Code, ,;:2S300 efseq:)i. o~ s~rrecP:ve·.e;cµ,9.1). u1.1~er J{~a1.than~· S.a(efy Cod·e section' 
. • ! • ' 

2s1 s1. sul:i,l (b) corit:eming-e. release 9fl{AZARPQUS. WASTE .or a HAZARDOUS constituent 

into the,envifunment/ot for violations oftl:i~ HWClJioJ i~.cJ.uded und~ Cqv:e~d 'Matters in: 

Paragraph ,~1,.1 •. 

7;3 DTSC furth~r reserves ,an -:rightft~ ~wC?r~~.t:tr~ 'inj'i;mcl_i:ve terms ofthis 'stipulation~ 
i 

·s. :.GENERAL II~JUN.L.'TlVE P:ROVISIONS­
!' f 1, I ' 

c•OBM.and Steiicycie~aU·be; anci aie~-~~~tlY-#ruomed;AAf.ql.19..w_s;.. 
" l 

.Pursuantto·the.P,ro-Yisions o.fHekltli end S~f~fyC9,qe's¢.ctjoq~··2s1sJ and'2S.·J 84', GEM .and 

Stcricy,cie·sttaU:eo!iip~X,wiili.tlie .ifWCL:aad·rm~:27/~t~ ~d :m cq~~¢tjpn ·V>':i:U:i, lhe.:aperatllins•.of' 

•:"the.FAC.ILltY. in1ati°ditltiii,'GEMoiid.Steric~c!t~ll 
'- ·- -;, 

~pJy.W,t)l.JP~'P,ER!vi:IT, Uu'.s·:s~ulatlon.,.... 
.and the:fimif.Jud~ent.. :I:O-the·exteri~i~i;·,~~1u:~1.~µ.oij;~µir~ ·tl.J.@;~19f:.GEM aod,Stencycfo·tban 

·the ffiYOL,and/or.,the·PERM11).GBlv:t~~~'.:SJJm¢Y.9.J~ 
. 

l\m'.~.e t~,,.@Qtply,whhi~S 
• 1· 

~tipulatioli
~ 

:and 

_tiie.F.fuai'.Ju~en,·.,•GEMianEI ~-·~~~q~-aj,scnt1t~:.:~p9~.AA§.¢.~~~·.P~~~,-~,fl:de.fense~ 
. . ,. l ' 

a g ·afnst-.. an Y ;,..vl°olatio:niof,ih.faSti' . "p ·uiati61Umii'thii'F.irui1 ., ...........,,..., ..,, ,.·, ...... Jud ..,.. W ...e Ptor ... vioiiltion .. . . . of.the ·l:f\VCL.. 'GBM . ., :
 :.

and Sten·<:~i~also~agre~l,n'oflo;~~~~t)~:~W9~;~;~;·P.~~,~·~~~~f;ant"'.jolatfon·.of·tliis-
StipulatlonY. . . ati:~iihe:.Finat;J:µdzfQ.~~-t_.: . . . .. ·n:r~n. ;;t~r.-I . ~ijf~itlli.s,:~e,p,\llaiion,. . .. . imcLFuuilJudgment.. as . , 

 statecfin:'P.tm+w.aph:I2,,:4.l~lµ~.n.g::*°'YJnjµp~V:,fr,¢U.!i?tJ~~\~)'.'rm.~/;l.D~.a.~~ozeii:.wd~i4aw~-
· incluahf  $i. or 

" 

~but not:liniltetlJ'ti:su" '• ,,,. -: ,,SJl ·:'~iisipn .. ..,.. ,.,.... rev,· ......09:··atfon::of,fne .... ...... , , .... P;ER$1IT "' ..... er:seekfu: ~: -oontem . p. ·1-.0£·;.. 

23 

:M 

25 ·

..~J, 
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;

''': '.\}: 

1.0.· 
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. s· 
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:9.l .H:AZAR®·ous WASTE'.'I>etenni'nation. 
• I 

}JijM_;µld/Stc#ic..ycle-sbnllmoke.'a 
' ... ~• • 

HA:ZARD~U& W~$T& de!eqaj~~Ho~,f~r all'WA$XE ~e~e.m~ed 
·, 

.at-ilie· FA.CILITT~as;.r¢'q9.itv.4.. . . 

:?:2 .Bg:.. to~bafe:"1?iner&!?nc¥; Coorafoator.Contnct1.infonnati.on< ;
I , • • • ,( , • > ' <., 

QEMran1d; 
.\ • 

s:~er:i'~i.1;*:}~B,11.. 
, •• I 

keep,tlwli~( pfname~1 add~sses~ ·_and phone· numbers· of J~erseri~rquiillfied: .... Alt . . ttfiict -. !;'S'.the
. 

.. 
6 

  

·I 

I 


I 

' .,I 
! 
j 

l 

:1 
I 
I 
I 


t o 



·

 

;

·

• 

·

,

3, 

4· 

5 

8' 


6· 

9· 

1.0, 


lJ 

12 

·	.JP- ·

l4· 

-2 


1 F ACitlTY!s emergency. ca.ordinator. ·up fo d.~te as,required by CaHf~mia Code· of.Regu1atjons~ 


title 22, sec;:tion6626~;.s2) subdi:visiPnN). 
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••• • ••• {• 
for 
• ' ' •• 

E11~ry 
. 

e.tQ:rder 
• ••• 

\lllif'Efu!II 
• •• ', 

Judgmen! 
•• t • 

on',l.:!oiJsent 
•... , 

C:.iSE 
"' 

N0: 
• 
'34.-2017-002213!1

I• 

Q.:3 · PERMIT Modification-When List 
• 

ofEtttergencx 
• 	

Cooraioatot Ghan·ges,. 
> 

OEM 
• 

tmd
' ••• 

Stericycl~:shalJ.i~~di#tely amend .fhe 
J 	

FACILITY)s Contingency 
•• 

Pian arid sybµiffn 
• 

PERlvfTT 
• 

m~dificaWon·to'D,'fSC:whenever.the list .of-emergency coordinators changes as r¢qui~e~ by

(!alifQrilj!] tbde ofRe 1a'ti ns :titfo .i:i' 'Section -662M:54 su6t1ivfofo'n ··a 


9.,A: M,inimizd~.eleases..GEM and. 'stericycle slian: tnaintafo:and'.~perate q:te_FACil:,I1'¥. 

to minii:nize the.ppss(bifity o[;rfire, .explQsion~ Ur unplanned Telease\Of. . · ~ 	
sudden l:>roon~sudden ·; l ' "; j .. • •

·HM:A,:Rl?,.QUS'WAST,E.:or:~o:µs WASTlfcp"Iis'Htuents to air, 
... , 
s'oil,of'sfufoc.e·wa;teta,s . .. .. •: ..... 


;eq~~.t;,.y CaUfoaja C.Qde Qf:Ite,~l~ti.oAS, ~tle ·i2,;~~i::fion 66264.31, ihcI~ain&{~~F~?t l~~t~.~ 
, ; I 	 ' 

to: .separ~,t,~g'.JNCQ~ATIBLE'W~STE~.not 
. . 	

r~fonsihg,HAZARbous· WASTE"iit'br outside ...,, .... , 
\b

' 
.e-.

FAQI~:tJ.Y:~-'i,1.,1q:re¢Q:viP8. )iqµids;Jmd.i.P.illsd'rom. s.ecom:iiu:tcontaifutieii.t 'ahci ... :-
)pill~cl.. ~ 	 " . 

' . 
~oµ.s·w~t~-ati}11eii\¢JiJtt~tas:,soon as.the)i~uicts{Qnd'spfils we·-o~sm~d·.by. p~~

ST.QJ(iNGi ,or:4i&P9Sing,9j,.r.ecoy~d\v'ASi$,
•'M •.,: , 	

Or: any-other material' tliat'·testilbi
• '• • 

:·:ffuaj'
• < ( 

,a
•.,_ 

'rel¢.(S.~,
•• ~ • 

ur:~.-;9,r,:~p,fQS.~on:'i;Jt,l.h~J?-A.¢lCttY 1
: ' 

'Ctilifomi·~
' . 

asi.reqµired 
_. .. ; 

bt
•;,,I 	

Cti'd6·ofiRegµlaij,Q$.~ 
~ ~ .. "' •• 

jJ~.e'
' .... 

l4,. 
• 

sec.ti9n_li.62o~.5~;:.$ti~diy{mort{gj. 


· ...f.\l'.fQ S,TE,~tY.G.:bJJ:.E.M?.toi:'E:ES.. 1 

916· :Use 
• « 

ana,MANA'GEMENT:olGontamer§. 
•' I • • •• 

:@EM ·ar1a,Sta:i~Y.¢re::s~IJJ~se1imo 

I I• ~ •'• • , 

MANAG~H.Az:A:RbdlliS,vi.ASJJE,tontafaers;asYr~uir&fby'Cjj~fifQnu~:c.ode':1:t.fRe"'·1
o, • • '"' • '• O • O 	 • --:,... ' a .. j •, ,i ' .. I • .:-'lr., • ·~ '• > O,~ ations 

T • • .•• I.,, 

title i'ir ·sei;tions.66~fo~. (vJ. ilirq~.wds·13,2 6·it;J49. 

[a. ·Prohi~ifion on· Using 
f ,, 

Damaaed 
1 ~ 

Coritai'ners. 
•• l ' 

·:GEM and 
,, 

Sferft.ycle.s.hwtnoNffQRE
• I I '• '' • -:'• • I .o ' • • 

H~OUSWA:S.JE\m:corttailieritthat:are nofittg&dd condition· .. . . . . 
~~·r~ui(~.<! 
-, ., py C~_liforni.a... · .. 

Co'de of:R!'~laHon~;
•. 

..iiili2:~, secti'omt:·6626·4.ln. ... , 

~b,·. :d(i1slhlt·1C~nt~nii . ·' -·. ,:c§ENh:nd'.Stmc '.•, ,.";/,..,, ···chrsHh'.11 ...... cr·t ... 9.}} ·ooni~i· ," .. ,",!!ii,µ,,., ·e~s .. boldin ....... s 
. 
' 

mnove· WNHJi af~e_q·uh:~40¥:C~.Jifor.,aja:G\'.>.d.~.~f.~f;gul,~ti.oqs, ~itle)2, section:.66264:1':7\ 
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'22.. 

)3· 

'24'. 

'2'5'' 

26~ 
27 

-28· 

~bdiv~sio~ (~). A cpqtjJn~·holdiqg HAZARDOUS WASTE shall..not;be P:pertecl) °i:IANDLED,_. 

tfaosfelJ'!ili;l.~lf:.S.TQR~D~ih. wrn~er '?'hi~h may rµµ,~ure. th~ container- Qr cause".it"to 'ieak as 

required by·Ca,lif:tjrrua_:C;ode,:ofRegql_ations1 title..22,.~~ctton 66264J.13,,subd.i-vi'si"on Q>)~ 

y. ~eQatation oH'NCOMPATIBLE V[AS!fE: ·GEM and Steri~ycie shaii separate 1.a 

container .hQldlllg;a HAZARDOUS ~ASTE that,is incompatiole Mili ·anr WASTE :oirother 

~ateii~,::#~s(errep 9.tSTQR.ED n~_l;\q> i~. otµer cont~ers b m~aus Qf s dike .ht· · ·,wall ot 

·· o~h~fdey.!ce _,.s·r~~ite4._tjy :~-~Ji{o~f~.;Cq9-e J>f.R~Ew.1ati.ctruh titl~·2if_;seption.662~4A 77· 


·~\lbdivis~0n (c). 

. ~1~ • .. · ~- ;!ttQbibjtionti>u;Placibg- IN€OMJ>tf IBLE W:AStE ip Same .Contat-nm;,. O
'. • • ~ \ 

EM:li:n:d· 

'.Steq.cy~le:~~11 n'tlt,pl~c~ ~G.O~{PA•;qiji,~ ~fi.~T,:.Qr..J;NGO~ATIBLE ·Vb\:SIES 'ruid',other· 
l • 

. :wa~~a~s  in.~~ ~ajri~ ~nJ~~r e~cepff~r:~e purpos~. 9f;conductmg ~9mmingl¢d.eorqpatihilify 
: ; - . .. 

·~~tj~'g.~i:,µeJ~rib,e~'ip.tp..eJ~.~ -~~~,:J.j~ 
. .- , 

:s~t,qi;u;;i:;V'(~~~e:.Arial~i:si-flan},
, • ·r • ... 

..Atfaclmient:v:;2: 

'(·-s..,.-:...ax;a:d.-.~_:_.e···m·'tin. ,8, F.t.":ifoe_,. ·,, ..d .... _.:i 
,i?Jo(." 

.ute ..As:·· ··e;· 0 ~--. -~ 0 ,,.··a;_·_o..__
 ., , ~~,, J .. ~-.,. 

;;sfand
••.,•., · )$µ~ .¥,Y,",:'~l\~g_, -Procedw:. , . ,.... ~ ·.. :Area·D.·\ , I ,,,, ...... 

EM.. ·....

 _L:a~r~tor}':~!a:nd~~;;Qpe(~tjµg ?,~tjc.~~s); ! 

l· 

l. 

:g 

·Stipulalfoti"'fcir Eiitiy ofOrder~ f'mauuqgmerit,•ci ll; ConsenftA$,E\NO..J4~1011;:oo221''.l4:8~ 
I ' '" - - •' ' '• •! • ' "• ~ ... ) •-" • • • '• • ,-, 0 ' • • • 

·:• 

.-i~ 1Unv.iasbe'il'Go'n'~ihers. :G~ty! .EJD.~i$.t~ty.#fo:shlillinotpIM.e·~aus WAS:fE·<' 
i • . ~ 

' , :m ...,.!ft ·· unwashettcontainet-tb!fc ..,,...,........... ,.. , ................ ,. .... P ·revi.o.usl . .... , ..... ,,..?': ·h ... ~ l,1i. "'i ~ .!FeOM~ATIBLlfVi.ASffi·:o:r.. . .. .. .... . . . "mnterlaF a 
·s
. .... . . - .· .:. ; , . I .. .. . . ..•.. , .. ..... . . ... ,

1 '.r~t*·ec;l'qy.•Cfili.fom~i\J':!.@..;, 

• 
of:~~gulAtip~:;~ t~t.fe,7·2~ 

! I 

~~.ction,66264::Ia1~-:stibdiv-isioi1.(b).

• I• ,'' 

.·f:. :companbUity,arHAZ~Rnd.tlsWAsta,with Contafuets.,. 
.,; . j ': ,, ',>. 

a:EM:sna.;stencycl'~)"1na'll
. '• ,.4 < 

-P.:~~-a#i#t!ii,q~Lml!:4_i}..<if,r-)~u;~ 
·' . 

w.itliiuat~ids:whichwill..not(-react..w.i'th,::an&arei6tli~ise·
_. ' ... ... • .. 

.®µip·~tiP!~ _wj·Ub··Qi~(~z~o:Qs,WA~~t.o.:ibe:.ttansfell'.cif:or;'sf..oRtn!~so.that~'.~gigy p"f. 

$be cptj~er.1~ .co,nta.irr~~-f{AZA@otis:-~:&sm is;not:im_pfiired,.:as;.re~ufred.~r~~_ifoifiia: 
.~e,~f~e~\at~~ns; tm(?;i~,:~~on ~~2~'A..l72,'. 

-~ Markin~ Confainers. .GE;M, and ·stencycle);hall ·mark:ca~h cont~~~- o.f: 

tiA~;()QS wA..~tE.cr{;a,dr ·w:H:h thctd·nte ofHC'st?pt'ance· wiililn /24Jiours ·of,~~~~vitig-:_tg~ 

W.AS;rE,;rui·:reguireaby PERMITi:Part';B,, section.VI(B).{6). 
• < '"•, I•, ~,, ' ,., 

~h, . Markm .ff. Emut£.,Qontafn~. .. . . OEM'lllitf.S1eti'~. cl~~s1iaff.m~J~n~11mfuk:emi1. ·'·:·f .... ,, ........... ...,........ ,,J;'.t:Y. 


containers,as}'empty,.1·with:the.:i.:l'nte tfie:oontaiher.s: wei'e;.enipt_iM1 as·'r.~~.if¢.d·1~y.:qW!f.QmiaiCodl,';,.. ,., ' . '- . . . 

of Regulations, title:2·2,:s-ectio11 t56'.26L7, subdivi'si9p_ (f): 
• .. ,. I I ... 
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-16: . · 

·20 ~•••. · ·, : .. 

9:7 Btecaiition's, GE~ and Slwi¢ycle ~haU ia¥-e_precautions to·prevent accidental ignitiQ

OT readio{i ofignitaqle or"r~ctive W:A'~JE-, RS'f,equi.{~9 by Califorrtia Code ofRegulatiohs, 
. 

title . . ... 

22:, sectioi;t. ,6µ264..J'.7; ~l!bdi:vis.ion (~1-. 

9.:8. Identifyfug'INEOMPATIBLiE WASTE. 0Irr~,1 and S.tericycle sh!i.lLiiieiiti.fy
- . 

tNCOMPATIBLE'WAST~apd shalluse_Cali.fomiaCode of Regulations, title22, ~hapter 14, .. ' . 

e'Jc:ampl~s_ofpolet:itiaJ)}'lN!SQfyl,PA:1:;..fJ:'!I;i~)VA.S'.IE'.;~d-is not.fateadecf.to pe exhausw.ve. 

9.9' Ewhibitioi#Reg_a.rding 1NCoMPritrnl.£>W.AST~~ GEM and.Sterlc1cre sbal~ 1:m_t 

·st0RI(:MANAGE. 'fRE.AT, ~lJI;,~\i,tQQNSPLJi?A-;t.E :IN¢PMPATIBLE\VASTEfo -ittea 
. . . c 

.,, 

orAfeij'.D·Qr·witltin)b;ij_)¥.1].¢·S:-PO~~-J;:'c.ell;~J\~;.q~,,~s:r~f!~:tbyPERMIT:Part-:.B1 _se9tio~. 
. . . i .. i" .. . .. ' . 

Vl(E)(~)i,'Vl(G)(7), Vl(I).f2); a·nd '4.lW:D.(t}~)., 

·9..1'0 'BJIDK;INB;Wid CONSOLIDATION'.: ~<i:itNit mid .$ten~.?,1Ckshall .n~tBU.LK: 

'.ffAZARD~Q',S:'Wt\~;rFJff[tj'~~f~ :~.a- :ij·, (f~~ Qp.g ~t-m~ycl.e;shalt.comply:with :the DTSCM 
I • , " I I 

approveq· 1?-E~'P:iµt);~-Stan~BJft'.Qp~~~ P.l'.P~flclgres,~ey~!Qp,ed, for A:rerui d .iuid:D.:to:,~~~~-

INQO~;t\1'fflLE1¥,i?~iSJE/.~~-~-o.(ij~·.~r·.GP:Iir$.Ptrti~'FEDifrom'h:iose-patk!i.-]ab-piiclqi; 
" '• • j ' ' 

"or ~m:~f'cgj;i:,!iiti.~ ~h.!9,g~~:P1\o.t\l~t!l~9tj~t;~;;;fu,
~ 

·:.&e.~ C·wilV~r.1'~it.:off..oinrtbt~ther. 
. ' . ' 

P.E• • RMIT.1......... •': Bail!B····section .c_ •••• , ,, •.. ,.,..,~.,•.. , .• V.: ; .t,.l ·,A~bm?DfV~s.·-('q·• .. ~i, uallfieattons·· . ' · . ITl~H;..\... . • •.. . / -":". _. •• ·\ · · .'0 f:ih:s"ith . t·C O e l pJ.·--~:.:.:---..g1.·1.Q~1~~&~:~.'-iJ'.~6J 
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 • \,.•',•• " /'"'•' ,• • ''•I,,
RAZ:ARD:OUS'W~TE-'an•LsMJ.tmaintaitFim;:,doctiro:eats·rel'atedJo 

•• I t•' " I •, '' I " • • f, •.,•, ', o• •", l,~ •: 
tne. 

• •

·l3ll~<19f;:H~~QQ$.'W.A$f~ ~piih Qf<the 
, 

F:&c1Ut¥is·operatiii3-~ord, f.or:a .. , . ,.. .. 

S~itahf:i~l.-~d~geJnw~tO.etermfoation ana:Ei:iforoeru~t·:Of~er 
t 

isstiea to 
• 

,GE,N.t~Yt1T~e·pn 
.... •· •• • • ,. 

AP .11'1-3.., 1'2.· :op.... ~. 

:~J 
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:.!24 

.2:5 

26 
2;1. ~
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·Stijfula.lion for .Eri~Y: ororaefr ~d E Qoosent:cASE NO,: 
• I .... •, ••• , 

inal
1 

!Ndgment 
••••• ' 

on 
I • • 

3.'f•MH.-fl0221 
• , •• 

J4

\_ 

9,1,2 ~P.rolub'itfoM ReW!J:dirij keacitve WASTE.. :dEM; ~~~--~\te~~~~~ '.~~t\ti: ntj! SJO~~ 

AJ}6~ 
•.,, 

JREAiI\ 
• 

·B:tJtK 
-ej 

or to:Ns@LlbATE ,reatti:ve 
• 

w~s~, 
• '• • ,,·., 

as d~flniw. 
•• 

i~. 
•• • 

dal{(Ql'Ill:n, 
• 

Cod
• 

Regula.Hans; iitte:M; section ·66261.:Z}i ar.the F~©ILIT.Y, 
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9._l:~:: embibition R,e.gardf~ Dimosal 12fHA;ZAB,DOD_S ~e., GEM and _Stericy9le 

shalL.n~t.'ojsp.9se o:uv;z~QU~ WA.StE except'at·an authorize{point as required.by He~~. 

and.SafeW Cod~secti9.9.~ 2S.20l, 2520\ and 25189.5:,:subdivision_(a)·; 

9A:'4, ·AisJe'.Sg.aec; pEM !:llld St~cycle shall maintain aislt, spa€e adequate· to tUqw .t~e 
' . ' 

µnobstrn.ci~a 
' i 

mo,vement\ofeersQI.U1el, .fire ;protection e~uipme'nt, spill control eq'Uippient~ aµd 

de~<;>iit~i@j~Qrt. u~. t.n~~l:~ ·If;;~u:f;ld·:b;t::C.4Hfota;:.:'1::·a:.:.:iJ~"·o~d:.::.e.::,d.:...fR:,:'C~::;,:;.;;;:.;.:;..a.;.;;;~li:t:.,i,~~:u.....---i~.......4­

 
: 

. 

96~~1~·,~.· ,QE,fyl sti:!~'.S!mcycle ~half ep$Uf.~thattht;;1abels on each container: areif~cipg Jlfe 

. w~ay·of'Oie.aisle-and al'~easily visit:J~e {Qr inspection by DTSC and.OEM AND . - I . . 

~TI;~I~Y:GtE ..EMf,W,:Y);jES:. ~alkµig ciew.q·the aisles. 

· ~;l5. NotiW;i&JPTS(Z;ofMaintenance_, '
• . . I , • ' ' •

b\\i~~t:i~{l\.9'U.~·t,~fote·:emermj'.ng.mai11tAAante'in.~i*er AreaAor.Area B, which:r¢4µ#e~·Q~
' . . 

~~ ·S\~~:~yc#)d ·g:ins~~--t~p~~G'/~JOR;J\QE .ciUs.'llsing polyethyiene.plastic'.s"J:i.~tµig 
• J : ; ' • • • • ' ' • • 

suclf 
•• ••• • 

· a~'.~g!·~e~:;~(l ~d~.~~ajt)µµ~ ~~n~i.Q~rs pontajriihg'ig¢.table~~·®rrosive,.oi' to~c W:A~T~:in 
• • • ~ { • •.• o ' I • 

~e ·~~~itjg"lgla l]tjl~;gfogAre,a;, 

.GEM:. ~Qd I::tericya·e.sh:all notify,DTSC at re~.(48

~:9 ;'.(~ ,Mitint!\ninenmEi:R;epainn~·Crack~, 
; 

.OEM\and; ten~Y,de:si:u,ifantiliititjn~~~t~~.. 

 ·qa,~ks J)l~9P.9:~t~rfl~11.~rs.~~p~\l.afY.!;C9n~aitunetit~str.uctutes·&Ulie'
. -

FAC-1Lfr¥.)iifr~tij,f.ed :by 
. ~ : . . . ~- . 

G,lij).fozjµ_~ tfoa¥~(R~guJa.)i.QDS,, titlei2-2, 06i'6,4;,i}1S~,:SUbdivision-(b)fl°)j; . . ' 
,sec~bD!1 .. - ~ '

s

Htf7: ;,~arid'P.~IT'Pari' i3, ~ef)tifrem~!§. 
. 

·GEM.fuld:,Steri~y~~~-~~~:.~mply.,wiUi· ·. 

: the,~gri~tiQt;1.S.,(tti:thf
' ' ' -

P.,~R&litas-,req~irect;bf;Heiittb~nnd.safety:C6tli:i
' ' • .,., •• d 

·se~tjon, 
~ • 

2520?J 
• • .. 

~tip9'JV;i;s'ion
• ' • ,, 

1 (~);an4. (;,~UJ.-;,~d~oct,.;1Q.f·:&~&°1ation5; :tltle22,.;seetfoni66210:3~! srtb4i~~ipn ,<~)~ ..@.#. 

:.S1i'p~t11ti0,n, 
,,,: 

apd th.~ Flo.al ludgment~'mcfodingbutnotlim.ited to: .. . '• ',, 

:·a;. 'Majqtafu'ing,
~. 

ih~ resin co·afings:·appli1d_ to. surfaces iii AJeas. A.. ·a~, a~il. C··~requir«\·
'I ' ' ' ~· • . • . ••"' • 

by·
I. ,, 

:Iir:IUvut':eini:a> sectio.ns,V~(P)(l 
• 

); 
, 

Y.,I(E)(:1)/aiid/\ii(@:).(l),.ruid 
.. '• r '•' O 

·mst~l:JiiJ.g. an41m_aiQ~fufugm 
J' I • 0 I • I • o• • ~ , 

- resin· ~at'.fug 
, 

kre;a b iis requi:red,'J,Y,this:Stipiilatigu:.. ~_ppli:e(tA·:rne!s~rfucesln 
. . . ., ' .. .. ...... 

:b,: \STORIN<lHAzA:R.ri~liJ'S::W·l\STE:fot.'no"m.··9·;.,;-,-man
r '• ,+ f ........ 

.....
• ,.,. 

fe'il1'·J:o)-da_·: 
•• \ I. • ••

··· in·'A.r.Y.:S O .~~. 

ea.A·
• •' 

.. 
•
 ,Q ··f.-.•,.e: :LJ.I. ; 

.FAtltIJ¥Ardtn th¢ dayiit .. nrstaffiv&::f.aHhe FAOlLIT.f;
' 

·~s:r~~~ . .. ~y fAe. 
" 

PE.~Mti\ 
~ . ~m\.·IV, 

:t\ndP.EitMf.f'e'att :B, section-V,10)). A is ii'tempor~y-STQMG~ .for. p,geivin·g~ 
.... 1 

Area 
,• • • .. ~· •• •• p • ' ' T • OT.. 

are.a 
" T 

:in~ecting: tc11acka#~1¥ an4 prep~atip):i ofc?~i~i.~eri:z~: WA,ST~:. fo~ shiEping. 
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c, Moving iiAtt..RDOUS ·WASTE directly_ between the fuiiisjiort vehicle)ri the 

.LQl;l,din.g,B!lf)Jnloading Area and Areas A, B, C,.and.D ("authorii:ed unlts'1 iis}i;quir~d by H!!alt/i, 

and _Saf.ety (::<;>de section 15200:19(c)(l) and.PERMIT Part B, sei:tioii'VI(c:).: Gphl ·and Stericycle 

. sliall ,nol)tqld J{~Q(JS 
. 

WAS'fE•for any 
' 

tiine.off the transp'or\:f~hic,le anil .Q\ltside qfl(le. . . ' ' ' .
,aµ,ibQrized units, except for ihat. incidentai period .oftime that is necessary to safely !l,lld 

effectiyel _:mov~-the:WAS'.fE from.thetnllis · · it vehicl~,to the,iiuth· ' .. ·· · 

. !\Uthqrizei\•;U(iiis to }he transport vehle)e: The ·~incideritill period (if tirile" sball tiitj/.j:t~ pajod qf 

ti_n,11;',th\l,t:sJ,t!\ll not exc.eed_ 12 ho\lI'S .. 

•iln 'K~¢p,\ilgiri!10W1~ an~ imt~_otmd HAZARDOUS WAST:E 11\ati~:b~,ili.g re:c;tjv~ ~r ­

,s)lipp~,by '1;ie F.A¢I~l,T'(•in;, J:!"WJ),Qtt v.~h/cle.in:thel.oilfillig•and'Uriload i,ctg .Af.~~Jor l!O,ID,O~: 

_ilian·_teµ-(fl)) 411yfes rii<1,1:1ir~d b~ ·Health .and:Safety·Code:sectioa.2S20il.:J 9(c)(!,), .!!A~ PERMIT· 

Pa,fl,3, ~e,.i(QI!- Vi(G), 

-~' . · .N11f.a~_epting. !!(ll!/,Or·S'.tQRl&d:afihe
. ' FACil.ITY'·any.;~0:US·;WASTE'..... ... . '. . . ' . ,.,, .•' ~ 

' 
di<swii;c;l,fcli, o!)lt;I:,fai::illties_ othediian.o.utbo]!nd'WASTE[gerierilte&b'y:GEMiMi:d:'.~t\lficyi;l~ as 


~\llmi:i?y'.1/-EIWit'Pwt'~, sectfonvi;(9), · 


· :r; ..- :R~\iirin~ OJlM'ANPiStEIUC'fCLE£MPLDYEES:ID4fflL.ll':IQ ~Mt(QQ'S, 

WA~TE to W!lar.perso_pal;~iective,eqtil~melil;,,includfog; b,ut(iloJii¢it¢. t9i:1iilr4:b!!-1S as: 
~q\iire'd,J,rl'~t:'i!arfa-; . . 

sectlon-*ifi!@5Ci~1.. ·····~ 

tQ, me&:imd expfosionsinvolvin~_iHAzi.\RJ)@UStW.A&_TE:wi!J\ili_t)le·-F.AC.r.PITY·asJ:i;qµli:eii,hy 

:::r,ElUYltJ\~.AAti.onV.t 

:ihch1d1~g;.hut noi:Iiiriiied,to evacuating.the FA€µJTY; -q_otif'}ingt¥\lil~sors, the (lllle'.gency 

coof!lilllifor;.aod ihe'GBNEillMANA.GER;:~q·p)~c4tg c}ep#sJ1,1,4.,niaHiij~ls:-:U9~.ci: fo ihe,cieanc. 

 ,up, ofathe firet~hich ate. presumed to.lie HAZ~OUS WA~IE,: in proper:~oJihiiners, l_abelec!. 

.art!i'. MANAGEQi :~ppn'.l~t'i:litely,a.1,, ri:quk~~ by_PEJ.(M\'.).' ,Piut:B\set:_lfon X:(1)(3f~a) Qnd 

,Attachme11t1k;2. 
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9,.JB Change in Titles, GEM. 3/14 St¢ricy.clemusi notlf'y'DTSCA8 hdilrs·p\-fot to ch~ngi/'l,g. . " 

the tiJle ..o,fthc: f ACJLIT.Y ~epr~sen,tllctivEl,~~onsilile for:Complionce with trahwig':,l,delitifh:d ,ifi. . . . ... ' 


ParagraP.h 9.i1 Qr,thl\ .iiqENER,AL;MANAGER;" LEAD CHEMIST/CHEMIST;'.' or 


"Sl,[PI#{VISPRILEA'.Q¥,,\N" f!ll. tho~.e,:tenns atedefined ·in .P-aragpiph 3 of thisJ,~~p,iilijtjori. 


9:19' 'change in bwrtershin or OJl.eratjonaJ..Gontro) .... .GEM.and Stelicyde shall . . obtain
. . •, 

p~fiii~ :ii•cl).lWg«: inoqlyqer~!)ijl oq>Jl~onal.;qoritrQl:'Qt'.ibe FACILI'rY. occurs· as-teqyi~e4 _by' 

C~lifii!"J:ll.a Codll qf Rc:~lations, ·ti_t\c:·i.2, s.ec!ipns Ii6270)IO,_subdivisions (a? artti -QllPl a,n~ 
9627,_I).4;2,5., ~qbd,i0.s\op,(c)(\ ). ~Q tiib 'il:i/llli!10,dii.p, ,prior 'to'the'chrui'~~ ofowli'eralii_p.or 

·9p,eta~o,t;iijl cqntrgl'o,fthe l;AG.U..J'fY.:;!lf~ ~'$'t~c7c1e.sliai1,subuiitto DTS€,JI: ~vise~. 

P.EIY!lU: -~jljilic11!ti>P.,,a\1d,IJ,.f.:C?P.Y•Qfj:J;ie written
' 
.agreement·betw.een.. .the.current"and prospecti. , .v~ 

nQ~ P~l:rmH~~ tli~t iiwhiQCI! a.sp.~c;(fi~:$1#e:f.or.,t;rani,fer~f,PERM'iT res!lOhsib'ility; ~yetlig~. -ajj~; 

1,ii!,liilify'~~~~~i\ tl)~·ciur~til!ll!l,·\'l:P.-~Gfi.V:'l'~ElW·:P.!ll'll1ltte~s.. 

9i~.!>· Closure,Ejan. :qEii/l; AA~(S!et1!.'Y,Cle,sii.ai1.bave:a.'.. 1
. 'Giosure,P.1mi'''lim'!i'iived;bi-OTSC':' ,' , .. , . .' 

...... actiYe]ffe-of'lhe.FAGIDITY'and;a,di , ...... ,, .........., .......... , .. e~led ...... ilescri' ; . .;f! ti®ofthe,meilioifs .•. to'be,used'iliii'iil .......... g,P..BJ\i.· · · · · ·.. al·. 

·--clQsµ,i:esJ.a!itl/fi11,al,cJosw:e,;i~~!u(ling,~bJit· ,:. notlinuted\to,,metlio\is. ' fdt,rem'ovirlg,J~ll\lsw.rtiriil,..... . 

·' iJlEAt~.Gi ··" '" .. ' s:roRJNG,:1,'.!r •• ' ' ........ di~osii:ig,ol-:iilI:HAZkRDdtJs ,. ~ . wls:rns; •... ~d:ili¢il:tifi¢ati<ii1 • . ' ............, .... .r·' bfti\.e ...... , 
 '

~- ('t 'f'" ff,' ,w.~:o ;si..,.~:··,.tu•,.,;,,,-;-,,....O···"'·· '••s·-\;;;,;.s·m" .. · ,,.~ · , ., , .. it.·r.fw,;. ,, • ..,,.,.,,. Gi'E ·. ..~·..s.;;,, "'ts.lob ..........;,, "•'"' "!' ."I"
 ,;i,.e ~,;Q. ..· .,,.,,.,,.,um . · ·· !r'~~U~'!!PP. \c,au. ~,:ll$,; 

;i:.e~~jr~~:;l/1tl.'!lifcmli~ Coll.e,ofite~Utions/fiile:iii1s~loti.66264'1T2,,9.11ll,~j"{j'sj~i,i:'(b)(~). 

'~.~.1 ,RinandatAasuranc~.. '.OEM,!ll'ld.sieti~olo"o§baii'liiiil1ttiilii\"~~~~e]i,"ijim.~~ 
. !15~1!.r!UJ<;~ (or P!<i FAPl'i.li'Y:,'as:i:eqµir¢dcb{Cilii'fhrnia.eode:ef: R¢gula\i!)qs;fitle:2i,, sectjons

'• • • ' •• • • ,.,.., •••' • ' "I 

'6(i264;.j40.et· seq: 

:9..~2' :Palty;;iruw.ealiol'!f9£the::FAaititf.1, GEMianifst~c}'Ql~·-~1:~b.ft~~i%~.al1y 
·jnsp~ciiQI1s-.ofaliareas·ofthe.'iiA0fi.l:'rY·wb:ere;HAZA!ID0(;!s;.WA;STEis,~¢i,:iiµ]µlateil,... . ' . ... . 
 TREAT:Eq~ol\ St6RED; !ind tecotdtliC:Th&'Pettfon:fu~i_'.iigs !!:ri.~Jii,Y (estJ:t?l!~es;~,y-,9EM;111:ui: 

iStencychdn }vri~en·ln:s.recti:onlq~it :~~·,µi:sp~ctrqi;i;l9~}1i,~)I)l/fi!.l~lP!ai~e~!l!i!~'l':F.ACitiJY 

and riiaoo· avallable upon request· to.OT,SCrand tjiirS;i1.ctaiiiento. CQµl)ty Environmental  
' ~ < " ! ~" 'H > 't> f ; ' • • 
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•Stipuliition for Eritiy ofOfger a.ri4 Ei9,1 !udzm.eni 9.g ,CoQSeot Cl\.SE NO.:: 3~2011.:0.0121348 · 
' .. . ...... ' ' 	 ' ' 

..' 


t 

2 

3 

4 

s. 

6 

? 

8 

9 

•.H> 

11 

1'2 

· .· l'3 

14 

I'5 

1.·o 

I] 

H! 

19'. 

;	2.Q 

'21 

·22. 

· 

· 

.:7} ..

:231-' 

JS· 
i€i 

~7 

·2s· 

Manngeriic,,~i Departme[lt. The i!)sp¢tion.log~ shal'Lbe re.vie:,ved·and signedbythe.FACitITY 

MANAGER or designee d)!ily and sfh, Vfi.11 be respon.sible for ens~ng that any denciericies_ 

not.ed 'cl_uririg a da_ily.inspe_ctio11 have been•corrected as ,required by the HWCL,Oie PERMIT,this'. 

Stipulation, aildlor- ~e Fill.~! Judgm.ent., Within t;w9 calendar days o(the compfotiori of the 

correction pf'any defii;iei'icies no\~d du,ri!)g a daily in~ection, (he resolution or remedy for those 

d~ti¢ie1foi~s sball l?e npted)n .the lo_g, 

~, · Tl1e daily i~pe9.tiqri~s!i1iJ!.~qsur~ thatHAZAR);)OU:S WA'STE at .the F-ACIL{IY is 

MAN.AGED jri accotdance·wi.ttHlie H.W.c1, irich1ding, but not limited lo, California Cciiie· ~f 

Regu)atiofui, tiiie·22i·se.6t1\>"ns 6(5{6,l.1',, fj§26.4"I7, lj(j264.3 l, 66264:3..'!i 66264.7~\:66264il.7-1-; 

66264.J72; 6§2~4J.n,'§!i;2(:i4:174, 61l2/i4.17.S, 662tj4J,76, 662(i4,l:77,,6626!>:8l; 66270.30, 
. ' . . ! . . . . ' 

6627'.1-31-39; anii•cji.aptei' 14, ~!'Ii.cl~ !,~,.Appendix V-and Health end Si,tfety Code section: . ' 

25200.19.. 

· '!~, · ~ev,1e'l'{bfWA-STE 'fyp:ii:;; J')J.e..4aHy)~ection sha)Unc"lude a,~e.view,of WASTE. 

· ty,pes SJ9B.@.•a.t,the·FA9JpJJ'Y/toc<le\enii,i!le.if !NCOM!'ATIBLE WAST-ifisuril.awfully 

·SJ"@.~P·tggetlief. ·1r :i;N;G9!'4!IAfWLEW;/i:S.1'E'is;.f6undto :Oil urilrtWfulli:Storulb,together,

··the .................. wnfteii 'ms ,, p eotion:t,.i' ..... g... .Shall desciib.e ..,.......... how the..HAZ.A:R.bO'U'S ' ·' .. . . . .. W;,i;:s'tE ' ' was se .gr · e_&!l .. ·too ·.., ii'i... 


. f)tli<if.wiii!r !Mm)LEJ:? to pf¢yc:;n(jn~gmp.a~b{li!J.. 


 

 

! 
J: 

! 
1 

I 

· 

.c. ll~vi~~ 9f&pill~.@<!f-0r~!lle~.es. 'lf)'.i~.OU:SIW:ASi'E spills•mdii:ir.refe?#!,ei:

,#fl&iJi;liyigli!l,'~(~ifA9Wn.'Y; QJ:!,Mt@ll~ Sillll.crol'e shall.reSP,iiD'd.lil?JlrDp/ihte~ l!;l.l'~· 

coi.il;N(~i;li'. witJi;\!)e:;lf:1¥QI;;,,a)id ~,:i,~nu¢ hlfi;tli!l PER&ih\ this,Stiiiiiialiidil;,a~g :!fi;e:Fm.~· 

. 'Jud ,., gi:t), · ent....... 

.~-2~; .'Daily Inspections of:the,L-Oadin&; and'.Unl011ding Aren, ·oBM aiid'.S!~~ycl~ ~.liii!l 

 conaµ~t4,aiJy inspei;Jio~.of,tbe. Loadin~ and 'Onload1~_itAreaJor cracks arid' SllO,R,4~~.Pf" 

. INCQMJi'.AtIBDE' . ............... '.. W:AS1'.E.' .•. 


,?:24 Locations ut'\ildeo:cameras:-. Williin)O· cays ofilie- erttfy 
' 

of.th~ llin}i)J@griient;. .. ... ' 


·9EM,11Jld, St~rlcy.cle,shallprovlile b'rSC ~iii aFAC!tlTY map:tdenticyjnii.ilieJ~9.iitlqns,if:

I 	 ' ' • " ., 

video i:.~ei,as in Areas 'A1~. c, and J:i'Md the'Load:lirg• and lJiiloli~f~g At#. &.)q);,9 G.™11er;i 

FACI11TY.Map}. ri:',oENfand'Steticycle i:i:rnke any?cliitli~es fo th~·lggiiion,.?f:an¥ ".i.deo .camera 



.. ' 


l 

2 

~ 

4,. 

·S 

in.Areas A,Bi C, or D.or ihe Loading and Unloading ~ea, GEliil ajifSt~_cycjemust submit a 

revised V.ideo Camera FACILITY Map Within. severi{7) days_ afiera change ha~ pj:eri,made. 

9:25 13,etention ofAudio and Video Footage: OEM and S_tetj~yi:le sb!l}.bnaintain all audio. 

and videoJootage used by the FACILITY t6 moriitorAreal! .,1>,, . ; . ' 
B, C,. and:D . .and the Loading imd .. " . . 

Unloa:dirig·Area foi".a minimum of on:e··(t) y~lit 'and :shall m~e·the•al!dio_and viaeo '.footage 

availabie·to DTSC, upon request. 6 

EMPLOYEES who started their empfoyrt_ient'at thfF/tCILIT.Y. before the, ~FFE0TIVE _DATE to 

 ''S1'.<)RE,MANAGE, tREAt~ Btn.:&,'.6rco1\lSOL,1DA1'E ~.QV1P.Y@TE;..untillie/~hc 
:9 ·

·

·

I;b. 


fi" 

'Z 

l:l 

i4 
l5; 

l.!i! 

i#' 
ra, 
1:9, 

20, 

21 
:Z.2, 

23 
,2i:I 

25 
26 

 7/7 

:?8 

'

t

.
:

.
·
·

.

.completes.ali. the .training;attached,as:txiiiliit,·2 tifthis ~!.ipulii~on, 1*t:¢1>t !cir ,!)).e·!i've tnµ.iupgs and 
. . . : I . 

'te,i;ting.,'iilent.Fii.ed 'in Paragraph 9;26(1?,)'of Stipulatjolj, GE~(.Af{D:S~JPGYCLE. . . 
tliis 

. . . . '

EMP,LO:YEES wl!i,Mve 3G,days fromtlJe,il~te ofenaji.of~ fi'aj/tfii4gni~9f \il:co!I!plete·the

.fi:te traitiings,ana testin(ilLPar~ph'9:26~). GEM \W,tl Sti:tj~y¢Je ~p~,iit~t:i\ll~.IY,.GEM AND.

. ' 

·· 
! 

STERICYCLE EMi'tOYEES.who!comniei:ibe t;lieir ~ploy,men.t .aft):i.e .FA¢.WttY on or after. ihe.' ' ' . . 

 ··'miF.Edii.l:VifbAJ'Eto'~TORE,;MA:NA6E;TREA,T; BUL~,1of:qpt4'SQD!Q~'IB 

. IWiMu:iolJ'.s ·WASTE·,until.,he/sb:e fol:li'.,i>X~t~:~µ af.tii~~~as: ~Xlitl:i.it~Jo)his 
'. 1 

W:e•tr!f@))S;

.StiP.uiiit!hn·anii the'testiilg}denti'iied fu'fllf!ft,\'#~ ~,2(iQ>)(3)«#;~e.pt, f(!r:,\!l~ lra4l!nf3:. idbntified fu 

:sectfon:,~.26(1>).(i~tfuniia.corlipli~~:scho:CJ~,· G1.!!Vf,!@:\;$.;t~CYCLEE"MPLbYiiilis 

wiif'hitiie up.to ·six.mbiitlis:from:·t_be-:date 6f;~/llp;l~.c~eot· tjf!Ji,eir ~ploY.fili;inifo t1oo;iplete the, 

'Calf.fomia.eompliai:ice Schqql t:rlli~g:. 

­

 

a,. Program' of.Classroom IiuilrUctioii, 0.l'lM,;ilq,d·Stajcy.el~ §\:1~);.@sw.~.iliofo.U GEM 
·AND•STERICYOLE EMPI:.0YEE~ s~~fiiUy_qoii}plete,a-pro~o(:classroom.inslniction. . - . . . 

duit:teilches them to perfoitri their: '-· duties '"' . at the .. .. _.,., FACILITY, 
,' ., ... . in conn~on .•..... withfue

MANAGEMENT·i:ifHAZ,A!P;J(i);li~'Wfi;ST,E.::,in,;~ 
. - ~Y 

' 
that en~es:compliiln:t:e,v'i.tk,the. ' 

.. 

recji:iirernefit's'of th~ PER:10.IT, the'HWCJ,; Gali.f!>mi~ OS\de of·~egµlatlons; tll:ie: 2:c,:sectioris 

6§2<\4,l~ an~ 6~~!3,}~. alfdthe)a~dition~l resll.ir~m.~l!ts in !i.iis;Stip11iaitio1t lliid die Final 

.}udgriiMt; ''.B,µsjif.ogrji,m)lfclasS(OG))l'.~\r.l!c\:ion ~haiH.ie. s~p,emisc&hyapersbi'i tiJ!Ui~.m 

f!AZ.i.\!R.P.O[JS WASTE'M.AMA.GEME1':tt' procedures, ,inclliiling, .buf.notlimited;to :tilettV/GD, 
1:4 




Stlpul~tioo.for En'(/y or Clnlcf;'imiJ, F.iruit'lwlgmei1~6n 'Coriseul CASE. N\{,; 34:!20:J7-0Q22q~s. •, •, ,,. ,.. . . 

I 
• I • 

. '2 

3 

4, 

5 

~ 

7 

8. 

• 9 ·. 

.10 

:i.1 

.12· 

13 

'i4.. 

1$ 

,1;6 

'17 

is 
l.9 
20 · 

,2I: 

,22 

·23 

;24. 

:25, 

.:29 
'; 1,'} 

:2s 

and ;shall.Jnciude instruction that teaclies :OEM.,'\li/0 STERfCYC:LE.EMPLOYEt:s. 

HAZARD0US WASTE·MANAGEMENTpfo,cedtires,.tlJal lll'e.relev1111t to the poslti(;)lls in which 

they,are,emplo1ed at the.FACILITY.. 

b; GEM and Steii~ycre ·slfait wit],µ~ 3.0'i:layi;'of~ntcy of ille'fmal Judgmep.t provide ihe, 

following·five traiitl11gs and testing identified.i'Ji. lli.is section.and,provi~e documentation that the 

ttiifuiilg:.was conducted iriii1 timely rriaiiri'aj'\yiJ:)p(!..45,<:lilys of$l~try.oflJ\e FjriaUild nt: 

Modules i through 5·frorri tht1 Caiifo'ri'tla C:ompli\l,llcti Scbq6,l for ii!! i;,EM AND SJ:E.RICYCLE 

· EMPLOYEES Who HANDLE HAzAirnOUS'W}\STE)~ tbe.J::AffPITY.. Empfoy.~es who are 

hired after the California Gornpi'iance:Sclioottcyiiriip.g)fjhitjalJY. imt44¥ IP\ist t~.Uill 
' 

'California Compliance sbbaoi trailtlng;bl:forfi'.iliey.S.TORE, ~J\Cll;l, TR.EAT,.BJ]LK or 

CONS'oLIDATE HAiAfubtis WASTE,al·.t1i~ f~C;J:1JITY;-0t wi·!liin. s\~ #1.~ntqs of):lire'.. 

whichever occurs,;first 

2, BHow;s·offucominitlbilityl:talmiig, ~~Nf'.llnd $t~tjqy,~I.e.!ib,~.tp.ro:0dE;flt lea!;)' eight· 

(~).houts,of.ttaiiiinge\l:e'io/six:niorit!is'to Q~'.:N.'!PJi'l'P.l,!;/GY@E...l~IV,!RL<i:iW:i;;s;on,, 

identify,tng, ..•. . "" 
STORlN'G,;

. '. 
in\.dsepariit'ii!.gJW,GQM!:'/?®LI'/ 

. .•'. . . ' . . WAS'.Ill, .iw,i;l ,e:x,plaiitlqgthe.'<langera.of' .. , . . . : .

str.6RIN:G ilicon_tpatib{\is·tag~tlier,. A(a, iajnil;liiim;·w~ ti'aµ\iqg;sli\i!l·w.clu1~,the following
... ; ! . ,••, 

.elements: 

·-.,.'-1.1'.>.,.· \'V bas.le cl:ie"''sfm.'_alid.·:fde"tifi~'li'tioii of,JN.nq.:;n:r..:,rro·,r,:n'.W·' S.""'ic'h. ",c_;,.,,·. ·"1 ,..,__.. ·,_ _"M...~.....,; , _... -,; ~......... ~ ..... ,· ......... i~, ..(~y~·.,,,M ~;Li~ ..I)- ,.1.µ,. . ~ lW> me uu.u1~: 


'thil,w.:.e's) "J.f' '\: .. ,····iif.:cbetiilciil:t/f'Bti'··.. •,.,,,,. , ... ,~ ... ,9~~~-'''.:···s0iiiafed·Witli'Il>l'€0">fl1/ATJBL""'....,... ,....,...,,,. ..........,·, ...,~:rM.:..............i~.( WASt!ilcliemlca!s:,, ''. ~·. •


·, (1!}: Depiirtmeiitof'I'taiisi!ott.ii.~,;'iri.'('P,01'):±~qtii!:errietits:inobi~ing
, .......... .. ..........., ...~ ,, • ,'

si\e'sp~cifiC!.proeei:iures.
'
) : ,,.-.,.. ..... ,- .... ,, ,,,,. < • 

·. :for foadln ·,arid.illi'kiiidln"'truck:s.' g ., " ,'' """ ..... 

(iii} (?iilif.oit)i}f(i,hd~ ofl~eg\ll~\Ji;iiis; !'E~j~R,!,lii:i;meni~,.and.site,spl:lCificipfoceduriiS;. 
1 

· i;i~tiif.:fyr'.l:TAM)I;I:NQajidJ~!~AG'lliP i:NeoN:r:tm:11;: W.ASTE(iµ Aw~,A, B'~,~i d;:iinchhe' 

· · I::9a'd,iiig.a#a.J1~oii~fii!Af.~;;~cJ\(di!JgJi,:smig:pr!')~edu!!ls;,to'identi!y'potential 
.,. 

'INCOMPATIBLBW:AST.Eiin . ... ,_,., .. ... .-,,,.. ,.......... •""" Area€ ...... ,.. 
. 

:(iy.) {l:~M.'a,11,ct:steP!,JY,Cl~ sbai\'PtQ:vi~Mrainl~&in: utilizing the.United States .,. ,. ' .... 

.'.Ehviip~menfal Pr<itection A~en~'f (D'SEPA> CheruitliCCompatibililfChart (EPA ~0912,so-m~. 
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April.i9SO;ot ·any subse.quent-'.revisicins).; California .Gode of-Regulati,jn, title 2-2, ~llapter 14,
•, . 

article"J~i Appendix. V1 Eiutmples ofl'otentially INCOMPATIBLE WASTE t~ble; apd :C_q.de .\>f 

Federal Re,gulati(jns,:ritle 49,piitt L77: subparts A.(Carnage by Pupl_ic 1-Jighwuy) including, but. 
' 

not limited to, section t'i':t&ii8,Le.,.DOT·Segregatilin !ifHazariloµ,;(Materialft~l'ile. The QS,EPA 

Chemical Compatibility Chart; California Code ofRegul~tiohs, 'title 22, chapte.r 14, A,ppendix Y,. . ' 

Materiais•talile:snail be.posted iii Afeas,A,.B; C, ·and°;D so tliat OEM AND .ST~RIGYC,LE 
: . ' . . . 

EMPLOYEES wori&ig:irt .tht:se1·P.ER¥ITfED areas of the FA€ILITY can refer to ffi\m} y,h~p. 

HA'NDLfN.o:HAZARDous:wAstE, i 

Cf) the. itls'fory.ofviolaiiorui~cident~ at·FACILITY iliv~iviii~ )NCQMPA}JIILE. 


WAS:TE. 


fv.l~ ,. ' 
:al'lpiiciible)pottions of tlie EmetgencyGontingency:Plmi/liiiil sitr.spi:tjtic.s~efy


prciceilums•ihdut1Ji1g peisonai:protectivei.eq~ipinent,fuid; otliet.:safety. eqitlpliie/it µtilizeji :in tlie 
' .. 

 eventof im,iNCOMP.ktmtE'WASTE inddenn1t.thc'FACILITY:. 

testing·e.fler 
·, ' . 

ihe.SJiuuts:oflticompati~iH.fy . ' . 
Ttaimrig.is,P)'cmil:ed \Q .. .. } ·4!lP)o'nstrate'.thiift:ra\iiingc

' . . 

partlofp1U1ts;are,abie•to·~AGE;INC()MPATIBLEcWAS~~:co)\si~)~)it wi(h"lh~;r,aquir~f!IC!].fs 

·of:the-HWCL, , . ,A;dEMra11il:stericycliiEm ....,-P._.Y. fo' ee·wno ... ,·, '"··· t¢ce'i.ves::asc:orcfof9Q ,·"'"'''"·'··"·· ... P......•... ci:cerit:,o _"!/,,aiesbiilt •....•.•,•.. 
' 

. iinve passed tl'ie fest ,Ai,GEMand.S!etfcy~ie:Empl!)Y,e~>vno.re.ceiyes a S!-'.Ofe b~fy,een 'to :and:~O' 

percencmust:retake tli'cttest ·urttfi,a,fui:nim.iliii sc;gre, of 9D_peh*~qs ~bfiifued. A,QEM·Ste,tjcyoJe 

Eihplfi.y.oo Yiho'tetiik-es asilote,!,leio'w'70 p!Ji:ci/\lt,'mµ:sr~tl!ke.1';i.~;ftiiiri,irtii iind,tl!e te,c;t the 

testing results wiifiJe. pro"liiilerfa,0'.DTSQ after each' trilifiing, 

,4. 4Hour.s'Ulu>'l\r.ilit·WAS1'E'Triiioing, GEM: ;liid_ Steij,;;ycl~,shil!.\ prgyjd1;,n,tleast .four 

(4)·hout!f!'.i(ttaii:ii:fig:~efy. -s~ m&,\~s,i\rr.thi::l%N'PWNG.aitf?vl)X.1'.'!AGEMEJ;(f-ol1Jni,versar--· . , . . . ' '' . '. . . ' ' .. 

·W~:l'E.1~·Q~/\:1 ~ND :~1;~iq:qy<_::t,Ifili!l'J;.PWl:\~, 

,~: .:A'reii'Q: aiid,·AieaD'Sfahdard ·Qil:eratiijiProoedures.(SbP1·Training;· GEM and'. 

§tefjcyi:l5!,shaU p~9fi~¢.Af.ea. Q iµi~.Ar~a·:rtS()p Training, spei:ifigally,compatib.ilifytraining.for- . . . ' . . . ..... . ' . 

BW.,TQN:Q llild CQJ\ISOI,,IDATIQN o.f.l!!b packs, foos.e.packs,,and:solid WASTE.ii:i.roll-offliiris. 
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Thereafter, GEM and Stericycle will provide the Arca C and ·Area D SOP Training every six 

monihsafterentry oeihe F.'.inaUudgment. That train.ingshall include1!>utnot.be linfited to, the 

foilowing according_ to.each SOP: 

(i) 	 ilie \<icop~ and,applicniion of the procedure.

(ii) si~ficnnce ofthe procedure. 

iii the a atus :Used. 

(iv) reagents and materials. 


· . (v) . sample'collection, preservation nnd HANDLING procedut'e. 


'(vi) BULKil'{~ and CONSOUDATIQN pi:occilures, including chci:kii:i'g ;th~jjH;. 

~~qioaciiivi_cy a.nd'physjca.l characteris.t,1qs.Pffue material as,reqlli,ed byTabfe'V:,2 qf the
. '. , 	 .... 

Was!.e:Aii.alysis P.lan. 

(ijj) ,Qµ,ality, Qgnt~pl l,'ro~!,lres :ibe_physi'clil atttl\\utes ofi.lieWASmE.ai:id ·the prtic,¢1!!'~ 

r, 

 

i 
j 
l 
l 

'j 
' 

J~en-i'or C.QNSQLWA'.rlON, and t~t confainer usage.. 

-~- HAZARD:0.US ·WASTE()perations,and,Emetgency:Respofuie:(HA:ZWOPER) 84iou
. 	 ' 

 f1u1a~Hion·fo,Ihe PERMf.r·rtqlilfed ttafoirt,ki #hicn·t~ffe.j'es Gl':M and 
. ·- ­

:slljlervisor J'rnjnin:g.
Stericy~t~ focprovi!ie a[foas~\ ei~t',(B);hours.or-.°HAtwOPER•sup~s6r tr~i~hig tp

•, .• ., . ,,. ' ,, I 	 ., . ' , • 

SUPERVISORJLF!AD.MAN who.hove Hmit~d HANDLING of~l')¥,lfWASJJl, G~tvr· 

an&St'ency.cle:sheii:proWde atfoasnii~t(S)lwuts of.HAZW{))~~· iaj.p,,ffi,;j~(iri~g arµtl!ally

;(every:11fi.s.days).forSt1PMv.ts:otu:t.EJUl~who:dltett11'.'~~"'~QUS: 
, ... ,• . t. 

WKS'.!iE; irtdudin!I butnodimited tii':HANDLING that ~i:i:r,s ajJ~,~9~)1of4!vol.Y,,e'. 

CbNSOLIDATION'andl6t BUL.KiNG ofHAZ'A:RlilOU~ W1¥STE~.. 
C. 	 :Su0S!%9Uellt'Reiti~fons:to'Trliiiiing.Ma\ei:fals.. OEM·~pd 'Steticycl'e,sb1ill pr9yj'de

- ' . '. , . 

DTSC with'all PERM!il' ilrid.StipuiatioJ1 and Fihai Jti~gi'iienfreiilte~ tpi.u\ji:ig,Jii11tetfa)s; inclµd1ng 

nnf subseciuenttevlsioru'fto' lr1ilriin,it niali:rials_, _6S da)i,:,. pgor;t_o, ilfriµg_ ~. J;)',l}i~Ji:nay i;eyjew, 

and>conirrient on the adetjuacy.ofahe traihi~g ri\'lirecials: IfDT~:9. ieyj_eWs \9!e li;J,irµng materials
' .. . . .,. ' . - ' 

and deterriiines'them to:b'e'fhiid,~c'juateJD:r~~ififid~!;!Pfy th9·~eµ9jeii:c.i~ ~d:r!!\11!.11!itli'iadiBM 

.a11d Steri<;Y~!e r.eYi~.e Qi.e ~ilg hlat\li:i.hl~, Q.J:;¥. aji4 ~.t<::iilly,:~\e.. ~.m 'Feqi,ti~, re.spons.iiile for tlfe 

e.d¢qua~y _o(lbe trainii;ig ;i!l<!.sh~H npf be _r,e!jeycd .c:>/Uie req11i~~rnent,s;ofihe. ~iipulation and Final 
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Slipuliilioii for•En!iy ofQiderarid·Flilel·Judginent on Coiisiini ¢AS~ :i"Q)l;4:;20 i7.opiz P4l!' 

Judgment: DTSG's action or'itiaction:\vH\1 r~gard i!l l:Ji¢ .training.f1)llteri.als shall neiiher impair 

nor waiveJ'.JTSC's ·aµtlfority to enfor.~e ti):~ rERMJT, HWCL qdhe..Stjp\Jlation :ancl ihe'Final 

Ju<!groeht; 

9.27 ~ FACILITY RepresentiiHve'Respbns\lile for Comllliance·wii:b Training Within five 

(5) dltys ofelitry of the Fili.~l J~dgm~nJ,.GE!y! !l(lc\ S!ericycle-.s)laJl.PrOYitle the name. and position
' i • 

itle · .. ·· ILiicit a.s.Jb'l'IWi.bnt.ti.ti,~u!:.(dLJr~wlllcr£es::i.cJlliatill.e.:i>.t:mi

and,Sterii;jcie arid who ~liall l;!e.~~p911si1>l~ tof.eij.s.lJ!:!i!& ~II!Pli~we. i,vith theJrp.ining 

requirements i.mder..the HWCL, tli,e Pl;RMIT:, )\II~ ·\)lifStipuWi<lJl l!!)<;Uhe FinaJ)ud.gment. 

.9,28 Verification' ofJrainirig; 

,a. Initial Vtmifoatien: 
••. ••• 

,
l 

.documentation to DTSC;~lliiiof\.s,tr(\\i.~t.·th~f~WG™ 'AJill;>' 'S'.l'J:!\q¢:'i'qLE. l);Nj}>.i.,Q:YEES 

O) ·GEM and Stedcyc!e sJi~\1:·:~itJiiJ· ~P l;l~is 9f(hi: ·~lllrYpf.)h~ Finauud~ent~ provid

 ·empjoyed st'ilfe'FAGILITY<in ,:,t.)i~ofi: tli\:!~f.f.'.~OJ'~'·.Q,,;;I'E .wlio STORE, 'MA.i\fAGE
1 

TR£A.T,l3ULK, . t;o~$()~!p,'.ti,'!Jj;,p(9.\Ji~i'Wi'stqqi/)e,iu.t<H.:.qnt~9J,w,i.!h. . . . . ..Bi\Z~RPPUSJ¥ASTE

,trliini' _µgs ··. :set'forth.... iri'the,,afiaclieil -· ·.- .....Exhibit':ito,. ... ·1 'this ..... Sti Pulation.exc ........ ep tfcmtheffive:trainih .... ... . .. g sian&

t/lstipg.i~</ijtifj~9 ifi sec~~n.~;?(i(ll);,<;if:!\ii.~ i>~JiliJ~(i.'3n, For th.e}J::Z~ti?ttrainµigs .nn'iiJestm:~ 

QJlM.· :llhd'Steric,"'le:slialt.. ,.· ,. . ,~ ....... ,.P.,rovide:dbcufueritli.tiort,tliat... . .,........... ,. .. .trai.. iµpg_..., .;l!Jd. t.~.i"nwas.com. ""'9 . . )?'ittedwitiifu
' 45 aa· ofetrt· 1ofthe'F.iiiiilJUd"· ·e.o1. :,·... ~ . . .ry . .. , '• ...... , ...... ..w .. , . 

fl.): .. . ·"'... FOF all .. ~rnm .· .......... Ji:N.Tj)'STERIQYCt;I!':Btv@I;(j'.'{EfiS:lifred;after ... . .... ................. .. .. .. . .. .. ... . .... . .. .. •the.EF.ffiG T!V,E 
' . .·

DAT.E;)iiifo.r~ all~W,iag G.~ :an~,S.Xe@CY.Q!)li\-;l~r:vuitOYE~S'''to::~gage\1nlliiA-Jfu6us.. .... .. '. ., . .... 
)Yt,:S1] ~A'µ):l~'.I';-G~M·-~d.:'Swo~ycJ'e.·mu~ proville,dqc~rneniatlonto' otsc that all 

. .. .

fu,¢.ifra,irjiiJg#;~i:t {or11, iii ~i@liif4t9 ~J, $iipt1laliop;nav.e•been:colY!Rl'etecL :dEM,.lii'id Stencyci~ 

sl)all;pfo.vide doc\l,!ll~I)ti\ti'\'.ir,fthat Q~f.i{ol:l)).a'Co,mpliJ1U1<e $ciho~I·1raii<ilng·was :~mpleiecJ:nci.foter,
" " ''. " . " . .. :, " . .... . ' 

tj\ilii.6 jriqn~ aqd '15 .ail}'.lf\Bfter, !he:P~PJl was;irutiaiJy,bire<.i:.. . 

en; 1Jie,p~r~9.1Ji tt.<ld:'.!ti:~l!!11grapit;§;21,wili1certi
. 

'cif:Pef.1\ity .. .. - . ., .. ite!!tl ty,ilililetpenaity ·utiij.e'i'JJie.

I.aws q(U\e;~tnte of'/Ja;iif9.rnia:u.i~trthe,ii-oc\Ullentafionprovi'ilea:10.rit:Sc regarding: t!ie injJial:.. ' ,• ,. . ..... ' ,,....... 

verifi.catiorn.is trm;-and· c.orrect. 

, 
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.b, Subsequent v erificati¢m: Every six fuoi\t~s. fr9.ii\' c;nuy•cif:the final)udgin~nt, and 

cootinuin.g for five (5) years; .GEM,and ·S.teri~ycle spaq .sJlbni.it tgJ)T§.C a traiqii)g ,table. thru 

lnciudes·tne:ilames.ofall·GEM ANP STERICYGL!j EMPLOYEES that sup~J:'.'.i&e, .STORE, 

MANAGE, 'l'RBAT,_ BULK or CQlfSOLIDATE BA.~CJUS.W~SJE, incjuqi.ng, butnot, 

lirnite<l"to' SUPERVIS0RILEAD!>1AN a!id those,w~o.. act as a SWE.R:VISOR/LEADMAN. ·The 

to.th.is $tlpuliiliort. Tue'tabie,shaiI 'inclu,:ie ~e qElvi A;l\11;) STEKJGYGLE,EMPLOYEES' ciate ot

hir.e.anddatet,ffemiiil;ititm,ifap11licable. T;h~,tl!blt; ~hajl also i_,:i~fude the_y~.A:Nb 

STERlCYC-LE -EMPLOYEES' iriitial:ti:ai/iirtfi-an~ e;c~ ~ll~s~11e!lt. !ll!ll).iaJ,'re~<:r trainin~ !'Qr. 

the pteviousthree·.Yeats, With each ·submj~iil :to'PTSG,.GEM :iin~.,~.tericY.cle Afi,.i)1,•pro:vi~e. '.ih~ ,

roilawing:.


(n •supportiijjf'documeritlitioii;itjcl\idiiigiiewncates:a.ricJl'?r II'aip.irjg ~i!m•lJ:,P:,~hee,ts. 


-·-·.-. (~) •. tl\e;sylfabus usetl'for-the.ei(pil {8)hol)l:S'Qfinc,omp~ti1)'1!W TIJl)WI!g, 


(3) cburse·outliries thM'd~~~be (a) RE:IY',.·~.P~~:Wl\§T,F:"CJen!,Jllfor:Trainih~

(~)1Foui'((4}Hours:ot:Univershl V,.,:;t\~'fE,Tf!!i~ (c)·!3D:i!#g~n~yJ~{!!ijiqns~- rro~t)@.ures ancf 

Conllii eric'-'Piari.'fr•i\il....·(d".,-~ERMJT·Tfo" ....... --,"~•!2)' .Area Cend·Ar.ea-D Sb" Traim··n..:'.

9.29 'Gertificalioii TI!afAll'.GEM·'AND STERICYC-LEEMPLOYEES Have,-Recefyed, 

 .·~Tniliili'iil,  ----~· ·Eye· ""!·'()fili~'F.inal:'Jiidl/;!l,ieflt ,the . .l'Y ,six,m ... ... ,R'dtlis ..-...........after e _9~-.,: ... ,., ........... , ·--···"·' ---~·-· erson·identifi~:fo'Para""'_...... - -· p;-~p :_•· h·

. ' ..· . - i ' ., •.• , . • ' . . ' 

~ . .,....,,g; .,.... /ll/.1!8, '!'"'1. ~ "" " . "" .-': g . . , ,. . . . ........ . -- . R', 


9;~~·WW,:c~rpfy}ip~#i'le,J:®fy 9.f:pe,rjiµy:ajjc't~t\M:l~'Y'.P.fthe,Stat5l,oftiiii(o.!l:iia,'9:btsG tb:11tiil

-Q~;~·s:r.~e;y~E·l>M?1P¥A~~;w)i.d,'.&J:QR?,.~~<JE•. ~~Ai\.a1ILK,on 
C0NSPLJ;DA'.f]; ~0'1J;S-WA~':I')::h!i'¥.ei~¢iyed·-.t\1,e ~ng:r~qui~under tire,H'.Wci~ 

th~·P.qRM,IT; iil'i:d'tlii(~iipulatic:!ji,@i:J; ~1~F\n~l Jjj!{grq¢t; wlthln·t~_eJime. periods r~uii'ed, 

,
" 
9,30 Retentio"ii 'ofTi:itinirij(Ree(n:ils, :GEM_. 

' 

nn~ S.t!lricycle:;s\\a!lre'iaittJraining, tecori:is on . . .. 

QEM;./.I.NP:~TE.~1CY,'9P_E.EMf.L.P.YJ1~~; in~lu~i,ig au.recP,r~s;.~9,eiated',wfiji•Jfatagraph 926
- ' ' . 


of.~- f>UpiJlaui:in \iiitilcl\)~ure 'oJ. th~ 't'~'¢ILIJ'Y.is c.ajified by, bt$Q;,trainingorecords for·
. . . ... . . .. . . . ' .. 

t~in.at!i<l,.<:iEM:~).'llt S'.t$RIQ)'.cI,:E:Il},1PtbY.:EE.S sl\.a!llie'.kep(for- aUeast.ihree'xe$.frqro · - ...,. . .· ·­

1,9 

S_1il'4iati<io fotl;ntu' ,o,fOtder and·fihal'Judgment on'Cooseii(:CASE:.:NO. 3~li01;7-Q.02:.H34. ·, •, . 
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9jr Envjronmentaf,Comp)jance Assurance Contractor:- Within forty-fi:~·e (~5) cal~ndar: 

days of,ihe entry ·of.the Pin:al Judgment, OEM 'and Sterioycle shall eiiiploy i111d. nulin\ain,Jor a· 

_period.of.five (S}years a thiro-party contractor· kno~led1,1eable-in th:e'Califglil.i~ i:i_n,;/J:il!lll)elit.,il;, 

laws i:hatareJhe•subj:~ct'of;this StipuiatiOn and .tbi:{FiliaJ:Jud!iirieiil;_iifllD "Env1ril.ffi\1eil!il1 

Compiiance Assurance Contractor." Priorto selectiligth:e Bn..:h-oruiientai Ccmj"pliiiij~e.Asswanc.e 

Contractor OEM and:Steric leshali · · .. -Yide: '··e riil.fue,and· cumiiuluirl vii' · "' · ..... , 

the <J.Ualifi'cations (ifthe:proposed Complialice Assuraiice'Contl'actor fo DTSC·, ·'.l'p:e 

"Ei)vironrnental Corqpllance Assuranc~.Contractcir's.re.wo·nsibili\tshlill,belo·rniµi,iig{ClEM .M~ 

Steri.cydi~·'.~' cornpliilil'c;1:•wiih the·injunbti:ve •tenns 'in:.this:StiJ>,iJlaiidn•ilrid ,the Fibjll·J9.dgmept; 

GEM.,ani;I. ~tericyc!trs,hal! r.emain re~onsiole;fur the actions ot'aai:d ,coiitracto't /IJ:iij ~all ilf?! 

 otherwise:be'rciliev.ecimfany-requirements-set forth iii the,PERMIT; iliis"Stipuliit~<i!k'?t th~ Filj:i(J 

:

'

. . . 

' 

~l,l~g!llell'h ·The .duti~:u:i.f'tbe Enviroruiientai.Oompllanee Assii'ilil!UiGbntrlictor':Sl't!l)Ui;tchlde;"
1 • '. ' ' - .•• 

a. ·• 1U1deri~g good'faiih eft'.llrts .to· assess ,GEM:·l!Ji.ti,Steril)ybie's·toiiipll.imce wifli. 
.... '· . .., .. ,1• •• • • ­

apjiiicabli:°la.ws· and.re/!\J1iltions;, 

· ib. •attvi~in,~ oEiM;A'.~;sJI:iRid¥:/ru1.. BM.'Ptoms:-on,com.j)li~µ,~;:\Ymi:'lil.t:'~wlii\4li~~' 
Iaw.s.;iinci,ri:gµTatfon:s: an.cl tt1 ·corr!:ict.anr,noted,tilificiendiis oiJvi\>latioii~,'aj'fd·~ . . 

c.·· .. ·co1ieciin&iand:,rnaintainingfco'pits·o'f Mi'writtt1ir,(ci:Vis~~;o.fvi§l!!ti\lii,,iliclu<l!!l&a 

'Notice>t>r'Summm%41'VkilafioiiJ''.N0v.:il'''ant1c'\S'OVs\)"iin.tl':.ilisp~~il'li'rq'io'~,:~.or 

~j>i"otecilbida"'.i t~iaiiojt·to the,FAOILwt:for ii:ileriil'~il?.f:fi:v~'(SY!)r:eil$: 

'!);32i ,Annu~i'.Reports; ,i3e~g one year,ijft~ !)le e!Jtfy;ofJ)i&.Fi)W:i~jid~~~ti and 

continuin~for £;;,a (ii)'yelli's from,the:entfy:cifthe:Fiiiil!}[idffe.:elif, ,OE¥\iiic!:-~.t~*ycle.'~· 

Enviroiuiietital·Gompliance Assurii:riceContracfo('sliall ~~ii\ltfo l;!'.nlO; im: ajitiiiafsta\1.JS,repor!;. 
• , • • •• • ,. ' ' ,.;·•.. ' '>, ' "·' • • • 

 llescrlbing: 


: ii, ·~be·effl'.i'(is'.bf GEM:arid-·~tm~~le 19;&,,Q.iply ;wi..!Jl::.m¢;i'ecm~ ~f.lhi~:,Stiplllation and: 

, .• 

.Saf'<ti Cq~e sectiiln 255.Q.8.J; N,QVs 9r s·ovs: iss!\ed ~ GEl\i,i: /l?d.St!ldcycl~ fcir th(FAClLITY.;­
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c.. ,any actions taken by,\he·FACJLITY in response to a'rtj>ortable evetit and 

NbVslSQVs,.and 

d. any P.enalties·paid liy 'GEM and,StericycleMith tespecrtil,such NOVs/S9Vs.

~ach.,lll,ll!Uai •re~or:t'shaHlie,si~ed'by .GEM.n·nd Stericyde\s,EnViroillileri(~l C!)IDP!i.lll,!£6; 

Assurancet:ontractor,:one co!Jlorate . '6:fficer from,GEM,,one ,~ corporate 'ciflker froni .. ' 
Stericyc1,:;' ' ~ .. 

]wv(rorµrtentai .$olu!:iom .fuc.. aricl.'one(oo rate:officet' 

9,33. -Environmental Audiis:, 
" 

Within forty~fi~e (45) calcnciar:cias,s'Ofthe·ent,y·of the F:.iQa1

Juogo;ient,'..GJlM·aqci:S.t~~ycle :Shaff;Jefott anc(retalruthe-servi~ell;o(!lb itidejierrderifth.ii:d~p~rtY 

au4it.or..w'1.P )s·CJl\g.Jifi.e~Jo:.~nd11c.\.;~ARDcitJst:WAstEi;auditlrto.determirie·c9.\rilil.i~n~c ~i~. 

r,Jie HWCI,, t)}e P,E!<MIT,.i\tis,';$fipuiatfoI1,,and ffiei'inM fudgment.imli:shall.be ·either'a Regist~e!l;

Env[toj)JI\ep.tal;.~s~es~rg~·Pro(~s'i.~nfl1'Ea¢neer;:ilcensed.in .ailif<iiiii.a, w:id:kn~vJfdg~a~l~i@~: 

eiq1.eiiiwc~;ip ,env.k\lJlllltlD.t;il l~~·Jlonsilhclud~g,,tb~!HWCLtfA.uilitoi'',l: .Prioft9<5~li:~!iilg 

the,auditor,. oEivl: anc\:st.eQ.J?}'.ple,sha.ii;P.royiile .ihe.:name aru.i cutncutum: vitae:,~ro:?~eiW/Jle. pr¢s~~r', 

lhe,~uaiificaiion,s of:\.ihe;;P.rRpose'd'·Auditor.,ioiO:fSC,. 

a. . :r'he..:Aµ.ditor,wiJl·use\the~·jl"azani,ous'"Waste Geliliratorilftajiecti'oil;~Jip~jtt:a~ta,cl:\~; 

 . .Auditoi;to.;..ifeiem:fil\ew.hetheti@'EM\ailll~stedqy,de2areJ:n:eetln1>-t)Ie'i'eq·. ' .... ~, ...... ·· i,iiiemelits,.•.•...•• .., .. ,.1:oflhe;••.• , 

::ii~te llll.·Exhlbif'.3!~as;JJUidanc~:tor,a:i'IAZARD:ou&w:i\srt,auditpt~t'.(iei:!l ,tMt~jl}: M.:µ,.~~~;·~.Y' 

2d 

.2:i .
;22 .. 

:za 
•this SHpulntion;aild<tl:ielFiti111 Jucigpient Th6HAZ.ARBQ9~LWA~'J'J,: toqiJili~~e:)iu.iliis,~ha!J 
 evahuiie;oEM•and ,Sleii~Y,(lle!;s.:corupliilhce.wiili:thll/Htw:<JL,,iP,~¥!!, im~,!he-'.~q~ire.iA~r.ifs::,i'.f1' ~ ' ~ . . . 

,obJ,e<!ii\(~S;deemed:,:!lPmpfiifrJ.°~r:sB~'attd.Sterictiil~~d'ie:Cl)vii:\'l:!iffi~~tc\r.~pJJ!.lh!:)·ay~!ls sh~l,; 

·HVf.Ci.;.'l'ERMir.\thi:is~ptililtiint an·ii)heFihai'.Jud~L ·ln::adj/l~i,iii'to.-~y cfthgzju~!f 

:24 \

:2~ 

,alsore~alunte. thl.i'ilrt:Pferiientati'oil'end. effectivellesss<YfQE_tv!;'e~W.,~Jeri§Y.~)ei~ ~~'qf:!~ 

VASTFl tom,plinricie,proii£w'ri, inteO:dedJo iriaihtaiii;cti¢pfi,¥,i1i:::y,'i.tli[!!!,~ ijW,~L~ f~M1!t. an!!: 

:this Stipulatloll',ana<the'Flnlii iudgirtetit. 
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FAGH:iITY!tjl~!i-'~ 1Jl-\#.!~i!!'1:-w.te~; The /i.\jfi,fi.U'1i,1._c.o,(!4Ji~i~;:1,~··1)1?,Iilh~;~:fte.r-entrto:f'.Hie: 
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. " 


Fipal.Ndgµi¢qt, the,s~~,;int\ wjll· be 3.QfT!enlhs after eniry of the Final °Jiid~ent, arid·the thi!4 willr 
·2 

.fi: · '

J 

l .. 
9. 

. :1p; 

11.... 
)jt:. 

~!3 ..
.I.ii . 

}$· .

Jj'>, 

xr· 

~5 

·2~. 


/id. 

2·s···' .. 

. . . 
be'5:4·rp.9;iit~ ,~llli;ep!ry~fth\l,f.in,1 Jµd~ent. 

~;~4 .Narrative Audit Re,poris; f'.or .each audit,:.the Auditor shill! also prepare and S\!b~i~ a; 

q3!):litiY.ll' WAI.WOU~ WASTE. ~ujjit·;~port,to. GEM liild Steri~ycle!,with-ii c<iP,Y, to .p:r~c.. a9~, 

wi\lifu.@;caJ.lllld,1r,daY,~,.(lfter.each-9f the. t,hree auci.it deadlines stated.in Paragraph·9:33(q), Tl)~ .. 
HA,iAR.Q.9US. W:.A'.~J.E:·audit rts·r.~ference;d'.\iboY.eshall ihdlide·, but.not be'.lii' · ·· · · , 


~1:>!l!P.liil~id·~~Qrip!j9Q AA,1i;'d~<lt!S$.i1>.,;r,ofaiI.au\!it o~JedHY.es, sco,!"l;:and,cri\eri~.la'Udit:iictivi~i~•. 

B)ldit;fi.n4ings·.~d,#,l\dit9onc,lµ!,ions, ~.Q!J1111endations and shafl identify an.d discuss till.~i,ldjt 

' 1:-.:i\l~~~fWj~}~~'#l.P.!,J~i.¥.~p!)n J~ :s!lpportthe a~i.i.conciusibns; -The 'RAzARDOUS·. . ' 

W~~T~i~~ll!! ,t,ep:gJ'js,$~t,a)so Fq¢ain,!1•'.brh,fd~~ctjpij9n,of.uny,writien advist:rnents ot 
' . '. { .. .. 

:by~#y,}?!;[ik~~ii$,!.~t;f$:!l,Cll;ey!;~!l~Y4i\11t ,i4en!1fie!i 1111)'. vlqlatibn,of;any environnl'enthl1ir9t@o.jt 

 l~'&:~1~@&.tP:lM~~~AQ~·Af'~rJ:laz~r!:\oµs,material'cJtltAiARDolJs ·wA~Tli!·• $.iig,h.

rllii2r.\t~.IJ~!l':afaq:P1-~.li,\Q'~.;1>1it·l!!lO,$l:llii!lfl!ii,to; 11 bii~fidescnptioh,.of'.the:a/si,ositioil'o(ll.llj@#J.1 

~q!M;vf9l~µpn1t,wcl4!1~11g,w1J~ih\ll'.,G~i:I\D.d'.,-sier~yde'~atif•at.(y,fines, Cbsts.or.'b~.efp'~yjii.lihj!l,.. - .,' . 

,illl4;w.l)~k~cl;\ye,~w.,1)I~,~ll!f.'1:!Y0~~,llliil:'St~~ycie1{0·:totrect1myclefiilie~tj!;s<rij~~ \1:1; 
' . ' I ~ • • 

th_.11.J:v\tMIDO:V.$.'W.4._'SJ_~.:aµdi\irepilrl.sJ. if;,tmy, .v.v.ere•takeil,h,Y.,-OEM.anii,Sterfoyqle:· ,J1iiii 
-· ,,. . :.. ; " •' ., . . ''' 

rel!~e:·15a.M,~A4'..S,terlil¥,c;l~-of:tneir,·dbffgatfo:n :tO<;pl:OJl!J,11~ com:ct an~'d~fidie~~Y,'tjf ~ql,l\,tj9*.~' 

r~wr¢',~Y{Qi.e,;mYCL-, ihe;IiERMtn,ortiiis;Stipulaiion, lllid'iu.agment;
•' .. . ,~ . ,.. 

,9}3%' Cpm~liance:Audfts-, 11re,Nol'Bfuaing-oo'.DTSC: . ... } . ~ 
:T:ii:e)Pw:tl'es,lig_tee . !l)a,t~tb~:.

HAZ.A'R.POU.S w~stE.c9111p1i\llfpe ·audits~artd·correspo:o:diiig,:audit'repoi1s' f!l'~'ilc5.t, bjli\l,ilig,on... . . ' . .~ 

DJ'SQ.. :QTS~:iI).nO'WIIY:d.!l)eg;ites,or Waives ,its;ehftii'cem.ent ·au\hority.. F,ii~e.tmlll~, IrfSGrs. 

actiq1J.p1,fn11,!rt10IJ··with,~i:~p~t~l0',tl\e1audfts shnlf.rieit1\:er.}ini.ji'iii'r"n\it,\'v~ive,.1)T.S'.~'~,a~tJiorily-•to 


enfo;ce,.,the HWC~
1
ilie 'P,EtiMrr;; or tliis};'tfpuiation·and.ili:e:Fi!J:~l)ti.i!li#,cii~ 
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:10, CIVIL PENALTIES 

10.L SETTLEMENT PA~ENT 

a.. GEM and Stericycle shaHpay DTSC a,totatof$i,41·2,AOO in civ:ilpenalties within 

!)rirty (3~) days ofth~ 13;.FFECJIVE bATE. 

b. this payment sh,11lbe made by cashiet's check, par,able'!o the ''Department o{Toxic 

Substanc~~ Control!' an.d b.earin the. notation "GEM and.Steric 'Cle, in:c. and Cose No; '34r201'7., 

002213{8;" and mailed- to: 

Cashier 
:A,ccpuri~µg.Qffice,M~-21A 
Depurttntitit·af·Toxic Substances Control 
P.O'. Box 80.6 
S~mento, California· QS812-0806 

~: .tm, electrol)Jc (~;g,, A.§obe ~Dll) ciip)I q(papetpllofohopy pfJ!j'e pay\l)enj.shalf'be . 

sent; iifthe siim'e time; tQ,ll'iose ersoiis iden•tied·.i~ Para h n . . • .. . •. '•' ..·.. ' p .. .... " ll!'flP ..• 

10,2 .LATE; PA~J' 

PEM ·IUl\1 ~tajcy:cle)hiQLpay aJat'e p~)'jn~ht•ofHQ,00:0 ~ ij!J.y{or,e~clic d~y;the P,aymeni 

isJ~te. §':!l'!l/liti.o,\k!iifNf.,iji,d'~!e:ticyl;l9-s)i,~llp!,1)'D+.~'8iPQS.\fju!l:gipenbllte~.t as,prov.i,ded:in 

Cpde Qf;:<:;iv:il l'.toceoijj'f~~tjon.(j~S,.010 {10%) fi:!,n;,;the. diit~ ofd~(a1,11t. Fµi;lpq, GEM,;:and 

Stimcyclfis@\lig11t\':q !q P.iiY~iis!$ fuctm:~!,\.6i,D'f:ilC fo,~pf~ing the money,Juc;!l?,Jlent~~ainst 

.GJ:iM !!Pii!J.§t\rnc~re.,m t!ii's mattq, mc!Ji4ihg, )>,9i)~c1t.1,i:i™ieffr1 r,«!l§.i:maJ:il'i!:~ttQrp,~y•s fees.. 

ll, NQTJ~:t;~, 

Hsi AlJ·no#~ .wider Ws,S~pwition,im,d!\:he,f:ipal)u9gi;1t~l,sfoill b~,fo:1~fui~ani1'shlill 

,be s~n\:.to: 

De~~;Jsuji 
Branch Ohi.ei 
P¢11ii,t.m~t ofToaj_c Sµ,}istii,i).ces ·Conqol 
'iinforcement!and Emergency Response Diili16ri
ssoo C'itl Center Drive · ·· 
si~~enro'. c..i §ss26;3200 
E.iriiiil; 'Deiiise:'I'siiji@rltsc,ca::gciv 

 

1· 

1: 

13 

·.S/!p~l~Hqn·for ~try.QfOrder D\\d:f.lllill J~~!llJ.le~t:on l::<n1seni CA:SfNQ. 3ii:,iot7•Q022l3A~ 
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i?1l~~.iti':··1})~:ne, OG11e.i,d 

Brook~ O'H)mley Selzer· 
senior Attorney 
Office of):.;egal Couns.el 
Department ofTmdc Substances. Control 
70Q Heilµ: Ay~; 
B/:fkeley, :CA ·94710 
EiniµI: i3rocik'e:Se1zer@dtsc.ca.gov 

Rose B.,Ft.iii 

1s1scfayS1reet;Stii1e·2000 
P.O. BR~ 7~~~Q , . . . 
Oakland; CA'.94'612-0550 
Emiiil: ·fose,foii@doj.ca. gov. 

Legat Depi!fmient 
dEM/$.te.ricycJe, 11)9: 
•28161 :Nc.kcithDfive 
LB)\:!).Fi,r~ iL '60045 

Ma~; ¥i\,t!~ . . . 
sv:R,.Safety,Health.&·complfonce•. 

28161.N. K.eitli Drive · 

ak~Po:teii1;;1t &0045 

;lil):[w; Matt:l\llariii@STI'lRfCYCLE,com 


Jiim'es·EX'Trefoat: 
Vi~e'.Presiii~r;:-tsoF,Operatlons 

2816'1 N; I<leitli'Qriv.e . 

~etme:i1,:\i:?,o~\is: 
Eriifill::,farri'es;Trel6af@S:TERICYGLE;corn . 

:.1·~·::Z '$M1i :flilty:ifu.ily·9~ii,6.g¢;i,t$,t!,i.sJi~.tjtiy!l:,1.~1~rmtli?.\Y.~(~),filrputposes·J.itfoo:tlbe:.b:)l: 

p~Qxi,<J,i~g!!i,/iJi~fi:ie·ailii,.!J:ilqre.sii oft,\\.~sJ!l'lW, rc:pr_ese,ritafive, i!) writwl.~o,.those:persons,'ideatifi~ef: 

in)l.iltiigf.apli. ll :l, · All;iiqtice~ ,or:o(!ier,pg!'l.lll1urii'gafto.llli:requireif':o.r.P;eaniiied.under the Ftnai 

!11.dgii\fu.r,(h~tiiJ:'e,i(ddress~.4·as.pr.ov;ided. fnthisiPar11,graph ate. effectiv,elupon, ~foli:ver.y'ffcleii-vered
• ' '• <. 

p~i'&!ip;dlfo(b,y'ov~glftmaH,, gr, i(~e!J.ver.eci:by,;i;.l!!#l:;.~.mail,:are:e'tfectiye'.five,~~j calehcllir 
' ' . 

.ila~.'folJ.'\'!.wi,ng d91osit·w.illi !he .JJni!e;d $hit~ mal1; postage_prepaid,(;ii"deliveredby: miiili,or:;~ 

effeqtiy~:!ni; ll!"[li!;(!UrfiiaY, $at-elbcironi~iin.aii!is,s¢n(befote s\p.rli>: ~PST:) to ibeiel~bm>rii~.!Jlajl 

a!l~re~s~s.:ot-t!re de.s\.grut!cif recipient:fol;notice:colll)Ul:rent with serti:liiiij:,t_he n9n~e. b,r'Qni~: 

·statesmitiL 
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25. 

Stipiiliitio~ for Entith.f;Order; lllid FiriiM.ud~i!dt .on Coiisent.CASEN0.'311,201'7-Q,922l~f

.

11 ;J Ail notices,. approvals,, ani!'decisiqris 9fPTSC tinder the .terms of.tli,j_s Stipul11tion _.91; 

the final Jlld~erit sli~il he CQmmunica:.t.eq 1o GEM aM :5teri~ycle in writing. Ni? 11h!I 11d:,,i:ic1:>, 

g11id,iirice; sfiggesti(iris,'or comments \Ji eriij)Hiy~e~;or offi,c/a\~ orn:rsc. or people.or entit_ies 

ac\itig iiil'od:i~lfof GEM \liid Stericycle, regaidipg ma~eis :covere(\'in .this ~tipifl~li9li prth~ Pi!l1\

Ju~gment, shall b(l. cons.trued to reliev~ .GEM !ll,i9 Ste,icycle on~ o.~ligation~ un.!i.!lf this. 

1hft., N:othing in tli.i!;_'Stipulatioii or the·Fii\iil}ililiµn~~t shall be i!iterpJ"e!~ '!!~ ~PP.li~4Jo 

relieve GEM and.Stericycfo·ofits·existiJlg obli~tiol)s j~.;pr(lyide.copi~ of d~¢iJi/:i~il~a/ion UJ,i'I 

lqcal:agencfor Certified .Urufieil.P.rogtam Ageitcy. (CUPA) ·as tequirel:I by statute, .tegajation; o,i,_. . '. . . . . ' ' . . . .. . ' .
·requirement. 

12, ,RESERVATION OF AUTHORITY 

·12.1 :01her tlii111 1'©'.l'vered Ml!tted'.as de~~-.rn; pef!agrap1,)~~.Jiothirig,h¢f:'#/i..ii~i.n.te!\:~

!'ic;ifs)la~ Jtb'e,consned; to;'precfoii.e I>TS~; qi: ·any\Mte;.. dii'.i,ii,cy, :c:it'locilhageiil:Y,,jl¢P.arfiileyt,, 

ljoaiil;:iii'e!}§\jt'i~iff'¢xctd~ing it~ aiJtli~rity. uMe.r l\!iY)~w;}ta\\_rt~;,or ri:gill~t\o\i,. 

12,Z ,.. .. Nothiiigjiftl!iii S.ti. illatioii'.at-the FfrialJiid ' 'eii.Hn'aii"'.Wil. Waives.!iiJi. ·ts,an • ... ... . . .........·. p .,. .. ,...· ' .,......... ,... gw.. ... . .. .,, .. Y. ............. Im . ,. y 


~u9.J.:ofiWDTSC.):i~.filii4~·the ITT'{\?:t, '.to:.1 ):tfu_forceit'l);eJI.O:aJ Jii~gi'nijii,V2) ~ij·:i!i:e.¥iijlattpns1m
!~e·<::J~iµpliWJQ(> iieal<;.ili\l!liii,t:~p~).\1~.i¥. ili. !Uir:·~µj)~i:qµ~4r~dm\ii:i/itr11!iv~ !li ~iyil (ction:fP~how 

aP......a'ttimi .. \'if.. ~-.. 'iifsi): ... cif" ......colilluct , .. ot:ii"hi.... .$ii~,· · · ·ofiioll-cdfu.. , ...........Jt.:tiiilice-,, ..... ,,'iiful'....3)'u,...... se. . th,::-vibl. .. . . ~/;\eJl~ '· . ·.in ..... the:
.. 

er mT" ·t ...... ·· · · .'.[>... P., ··tti'il····· ·· ~l!l. ]9J!:P.el'lll!.. .g,pf9~ ··ea·"·" .... mg;:,.~! er · ·r .1.!JA,W~ · · ... '·il..r·· •· ··· ····· .. 9rPro..ce.~s, 

·12,;3 ~•.. 'othin' ' 
ti .. g_L ."iNircHore ......8.goin ............... il(i:riteridei! to. or.\shall-be ,.. ,.......i:<i"° ~·trued,iis ........... limioo $ .<Jr .P1'.C: e luiflt;.. , 81 
· 

I?J~q:;l);~jh.p\ll::;~ii):g.li\tiif:its fyini:¢.ir,,li tq ~i:i:fiiN~;Jqi~; StjP,ij]atiq_n)i!l\1-:!~e );'i!)!l(J¢?'11~JJhor. 

fr!)ni;'ii\itja~ipg:a;t•eii,flirctjii~rifactici\i;ag~ihs.t:0l;Mii\tr,\/cir-SJetj.'c)'C)~:s.ee~inJu,m;tjye,r¢llef)or

p~!'ta!tiei!, f~r,Jp~. JimQi:I pf,~!rile QEM: ilridl,of ~_tericiy¢J~·Ylcilated:1h~ terms, of tlii.s)\.t_ip,ulatiqn t)r .th

Fiii/.11 Jli4giij~fitJirili'.11P.i·W'J..tiatbig•~ Mf.iitctjij~#.i:(c\!on:1ag\\inst;QEM:~nd!(!r!S.t~cy~lp·for.Bny;... ,, 

viqlal\(ins 9f'!lle,JAVC!;t,¢\r'Jitle 12.(l,Xc~p'tll!?.: P_r9._vi_i!r;q:Qy, s¢ti~l\ 7; Ma.~ers.Cqv.ere.ct. 

,12';~. ,A,~ec_isioµ' bit;iT:'Sp. pq_ttq, enfor~e .!!I\Y p,w~lii.Q\11Q.fth.l~i$1ip.rii/.ll:io!l;,Q,/the'Firtal 

J_u(jginenl'~hijl1:neiil;ier. ~oii.emeij.a w.~yer of.(l\i; pr9:¢is:ion, nor·in; llil)"W.1!-Y. a'~i(t'h:e vaiiclity;d'ti . . ' ,•," . ' ',, ..... . 

tiiis:.Siipuiation, the r.iiull Jud$111e"t, pr 'l)TSC[s,.enf'orc¢mentau1ho1ity. A decisimfb.y:IfrsC;rie
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to enfoir;:e any pro.visipn·ofthis Stip~atjqn or i.he Final)udgmenhhalh,ot preclude,bTSC. from 

exer.cisi:r;ig·its·staMory ··a11Utority to en{orc.e. the sam.e. pr'o.ther provisions. 

12.5 GEM.and:Stericycle covenant not'to.pursue an)' civii or administrative claims ag~iiist 

OTSC ,Or agai.nst any .gov~entahinit.of the ,Slllie. of,C.aliforriia, .· any cou11tie1i"ot.riimticipalities
- ... 

in the,Staie of California, .orngainst their officers,.:en,pfoyees, reptesentaHves, .agents; .cir attorneys' . . . .. . ' . . .. 

fur actigns,taicen a ainsfOEM and Sterii:.. te·arisin ,out of'.or·reiated ·10 Co.veroo.Matters. 

GW,1:'and.Stericycle agree that, solely. fpr·p.im1.oses,of:s.$.eiiti9n.(aj and .(b) below· 
. : . ; ,• . . 

(lier~.naf!~r•''.DeM~d.. Siiuations''): ' 

¢oveyed).atft,he'F,A,OI1"ITY; and/or 

(bJ ~pemi\\lA1Jg,prnceaj1ng;.~eclsio~•. ™1il!.i>r.process:r~~d'iii_~·.GEM;and/ot·Stmicyclii·as, 

. · .~ BP,Rll~JQr·pi;:hP14~ ofa ~AIP>:OtJ~ WA,$tE facili(ies;P.ER:Mrt and/or'.i!Azmous 

W~STE;l)'.~11spqJ1erregis!l"a~on"inc!u~i1Jg, 
• • • . ' ,,, 

bht':not:)uniteifao, 
I ,• 

·any'de~lsion.:ma:de·pursuaiit.to· 
' ., ' 

»~~Ji);i. iw.d::~a~ty 9>~~,s~on,25.lll:~!ll!ld!!lr'proc~s.sari$iJ!J\(frotncf,ieaiihima.Sat'et;ycode 

: ·. s~cti91(~$lQ:();tJ, 

:Qie;l/io)a)'ions alle~· in ·the.Ci,mpl!iint-~ill.,be.•deeme<Lprov.en·without ail}';n'iled fo,r· 

: Je,stu,nony:pr. Qtht;: eyjaC,!IAA-.. GEM andj\:feri~;,.c\e..eachagreetlmttb:e,\&~!ations,.ii!~ge¢ iij't!j~, 

..Complamt,may.be,us.ea'1by·Iil'SC. in ihe:D.e:fineci(Situeiions, inter1~1ia; as·a·'.onsid'or. e~ced 
' •pena:iii~$ or-p~~t~pr~eeeding(s); itectsioit(sj III1illot',p~cess(¢$}.. Flmiiet; 6.EM;l,ll;!d, ..

' ... ' . . .. . . ~ 

,$!eri~y~le ~wecij:bat1l11i11ny:ofihe i5.~fiiie\fSiiuatit>!ll!!,i1eitii:er oiW:lilit shiii·cyt:lt.Wm dispU,tf 

" . ... . . ,, . . . 

·the faqls: 111!cl'erlyi.rigilie Y1o!aifons·aliegcd.:in.the complafutor·:D:fst's· usc:ot the violatio&,
. . . . .. .. 

' ,all\)gedfn ilie•Complaintnsn.ba:sis for eiJ:hanceil pentiltics or:forpimnittihg•pi'oceed~g(s);iin'<),'.6t: 
' . . . ' . ' '·. ­

,decision(~).'aniVor;~roc.es~(es)·.. ifn;i(SC,seeksita.:u~e·,the v.iolatioiLtiil!~ge\i:iii .tli~ .G9.i;np1iiii:it,. 

.dEM and Stenc;yble .each·also agree that,,in .any;of'ilie,·J:Jefiried· Situaiib~/they•w.ill ,l),\Jt:1i$sert,Eµil' 

. · ilefome&: bused.on ilie passage. oftim~i,indfucill!g;·iiutnoteilm.lfed't~k!~e)'.i¢ji; !li;lopl\~I; ari4·stafiite ..... . . .. ' ' ' .. . .. . ... 

. :ofliirliliifions: 
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1'4, NO LIABllil'h' OF'DTSC 

PTSq shall not.be liable for.any ii).j11ry or damage to persons 'or property resu,Iting· from acts .. '' . . . ' -·· <.. .. ­

or omissions by GEM and/or Sieric:ycfo,or its agents, servants; emplqye1is; ~r.es~tative$, or 

other pei:sons·actin,g·in conc:ert'or()W'ti'cipatin)(with1GEM and Stericy~le, ii;i c;a:rrjiiig out 

activiiies pursuant to. this Stipuliitiori ot ,the 'f'fria'i Judgrient 4n this matter, nor. shall PTSC be. held 

as,a a ·. ·tQ.Q~ uar~ior,ofiln ,contrac't ·entered iiit6 b ·GEM.arid 

servants; !'lllploy~es,.~rc;sentiiuves;or dthertieraons acting intoncert or p~icip~\i~gwith ()EM' ' 


and Stenc.rcie, ii). carrying,out.tbe ffl9Uirements,ofihis Stipulation iirthc FiI,1,lli ']U~Fi,I!ellt in this 


mat\~f. 

1s, FUTlJRE ~Gl/1,:,\'.fOJJ.Y':c':IiANGEs: 
Nothing in'·this;'Stipulalion· or.;the;FiriaLJud~eiltshaU excuse:GEM and/oi::S ttj'icycl e fn)m ... . . . ~. 	 . , '. . ' . ' .. . 

mee.ti!Jg l!!!Y111!>(e stri:n'gent re.qw.eA1!lfits,'tbat.'.ini\y:'be.. imposeiiby:/iipplicah!e,litivior by changQ~ in ,.. ·:· ' ·,,, •. 	 - . . .... •,. ... . .. 

·ibe,,ppli,1)8.):>Ul law. 


t~... FUT(l:i3,E PEnMit'.:c:EikNCES. 

J,{otlwlg,in tll1s:'.s1\1ri!'otion,oi'. tho,'. Flne.Ltucl@lent'el1teied:by•,thfCµ.ifrt Ill tpi~ U)att!)I' ..sh~ll 


' ' .,	I 
'w~~lii4fPrsc fi:o~ ~ptrin~:m91'e:s~~!\crit,requireirients,iifGEWSt¢ricyc;\!;'.~Jifl'RMIT:fi?r 

· clris.FA:Cii:;m'. 

,1'7., ".:iNTEGRA'.FIC>N' 

. 'This:stlpulaiion constitutes th~'ertilie.iigfeemeiitb'etWeei:r;!l,'!i/fiirti<//;;~!P#sPe<:t,io fue 

'Covered ,Mtitiexs,andnr~y.:not he:ameniled•or,s~liiaj~~t¢d,¢~c~P.t@..it~viil~J'i!t!1'1tliis 

StipulatiM'Pilhe ,Eili\il)u4gmel'it, 'N6 otal:repre!ieill~tj9ps,:J'i~~e:9.eenjp,ade, i;lr,r,cili#;on. otl!e;r'.ihan' 

as expresli):Y: set forth herein. 

·18'. INTERPR:ltF1\Tl@N·OKTill8'STIP.UL'ATI0N 
', '.' ' .....,., ·.. ' . ' ,\ ANIXTBE .... . ', ... " ' ' FiN:AL.•'.• ' ,,, 

·ThiiStipuiation: anti,the PinaFJu·4w,ent:*l\lJ,il J;!~ !!.~/#!!¢ii IQ, M~¢ be¢n.prafttd.equallyJ~y
'• 	 ... " ,, . ' . ,.,, 

:ine Piti'tiesh'ereto, The,R~itles agr~¥:lli:l1t, the: i'l:JJ¢;c/fcti~li;~dioli·holillng tfiat:@iblmilfy.is 

.coiis!riied'aMi!is.tW!l w~ftifig paft.Y su:a..11: j1ot ,a!i.J:llyi~o .~~ interpw~~ti~nof.tliis.Sti,pµllitidn'iln<:Hiie'
•' 	 ., 

Filial Jiidgi1rent.
' ,· ' •,' .. ,, . 

,27 
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19. :comiNtiINa,Ju.Itistiicr1ol'i 

Thel'arties, n~ee. that this Court has continuing'j~risdictlo1{to inteipret and enforce \pe 
' 	 ' 

provisions ~ftliis: Stipulation and tlie,Fin:lil Judgment and to addri;ss,an)' otller rplitters ·arising pl)t, 

ofor t.e~di:ni this,Stiplillition 'Olid ·.the Final,iiidtinem. 

20. AMENQMENTS:1'.0TillS'·STll'ULATION AND THI<) FI;N~.@GMEN'l 

or the Court following ilie>.tiiin'g ofa duiynoticed'motioh. 
,... ". '. '·' i 

:)1.. 'COSTSJANl>,Attdmvs; !fEES 

iEl!:<1,,ept.as cithecyi'se•pro:videdfo1this;S¥pulii.tiotr.:eaeh }>~, to·tllis;Stipu[!it.iop. ~dJ]ifl!'1!!!1 

Ju'tlgmen'i::~11 bear'its..own co!its:a:n'ifattom~}(S' fees. . ' 	 ' ~ 

h:z',, A1UTHORrl'Y.'!J'O..Ei\'ilili .mis ST-iPm'.ATION 

	.or siie.rll1resoo1&toientllrilito..tlii~;s#~ulilti6!1,,.t(r ei:ecute i'ton: behfilf'!',f!]ie·~w.y#ffir~~t~~ a.n&: 

·to•l4!wiilfllfo:ff;ffiatllnftY,,­

;2fi'., .coooJ!iRl>Att:'fs. 
. ithiil stl 'lilatiein ma...be cxec'tltcil,'fu:se~eraf'eoTui.te . i\tfo1f .• alt.each(. fwhich falcen.,P. . . ..'(; . . . .. . . JP... W ,, . .!?. ...... .. 

to$fill\~·sha1il:!onsti.tun::1.m.fute~ateii,docum~i., 

.. c .:it •}ENi'ltY'()Fiif.inE',FIN,Ai..'itrnG.~i,'q'.flIB$.UM'l'.1'1'0'.~1.'.[R.YP~'.iJP!'!I, 

ifufrsuant,toi@/Afe,of:civfl;eProcOO:ii't~,secticlrt;66it,fr:the,Paft1es 
..... «, ,, ......,,, .................... 

fiirth'eiisti. 
, ..... :!? ulatenuii ........ , u )l.0 ·n,

:al;iJirovlif:tofiliis.. stlpulalion,,by.ti\e.:Gawt; 1he:C..1i\JJ'1'·11!~¥·enfef;l:1)~:F19·~1;J,\i~w.~t-u.r•~is,roaft-er;11r 

ti'ie,futtn !l'elfui:ihiili. th'e.ilttlicheil:Eiiliih,i\ h IfJJ.i¢JJ\@'!-does·not ,~ppi'Q:ve this ,S~ip.ulatfon.and ihe: 

·agreed,upoit,Einal!Judgiiient 'in.'tlie. (oiffi :ill:iil ~pst.~)1,cf!)rtipos,t;t! .\fE,ffe.bi(Lher.~ta;,eacb P.arfy 

resewes,"'e ri"'..t'tiHvlt&ilraw. botlHhl's•,Sti · iilafioii:ano,.lhe "ro· dsoo :Final' Ju'1 · .en• · , UI, ,IS!c' ,. ,, ......,,.,...... ,_ ....,.P ·....... , .. P....P......... •, ,..,....8111, .. ,,.,.UpOA, 

wtitteilnonce to·iill PJ1rties liliilffii;.Cciufu. . .... . .. ' ........ "'. . . ; . ·. ,, ' . . ' ...... ~ . 

. 
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IT 1$ $.9.'S:rtP.UJ:..ATEO. 

Dated•. October' 15°':2018 	 F,or. the.Cali.foniia Department ofToxfo 
Subs1a1ites.Control 

£7 ,,.., .. ~/ 
<original signed by Keith Kihara 

~[ '/ 4-::::·=
KEia Jitf\..../ . ' 
CHlff 

'I ' 	 l• ,:,.,. 

t:iiv1slo:/

~IAZARoeus, WAsrn MANAGE~IEN'f. PRO.GRAM· 


for.Genernl Erfriri>nhieh\al·Mai1!ige11:ienf of' 
Ran~ho. Ccir~ov~, L~t\~b.a P.s_gj~,v.!rqjmtental, 
Sery,_ci:~ of.R~nqho <:ord.n~. p;C;:-~ter1~x.cl.e 
Eilvlt2,nn1t11.t~l Solutions,· fbc,; .Ste'tii>)•cle, 'Inc. 
· ,,- .'/ .1 ._..._ '/'\'·.II , 
, Original signed by Charles A. Alutto 

'-:.:...:.-:-........ 	 . 

'C:ttARhES"A, AtlJTTO 
.C.HIEF'EX.~.CUTIVEJ)FF.tC?ER, 

¢.~?Q1::i~J}9s; fe !tiJll,1~,!¥\1<>:~

s1ipnl~1ioil fo/·Entry·ofOrder Ond F.in>1•J1idgii1eiit. ontons<fa cASE'.NOo"Jacw·11.0022rl':1,~ · 
•. .•.. 	 •.' .... 

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
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' ' " 

'Dated· Oc1ober Jo_,·20JS 

.,fP.)'.ROVED.AS 'J\g}FORi\.l:• 

}>~.\~d:;; Q,ri,t!:)9~r.J.!l:2p:1 ~ . 

' ' •, .... ~ ' ·' 
P.afo~; :o:~t9b~r,.'it, Jo:i'.if 
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T l~'SOSTlPU!.,AT.ti.l). 

·Oatecb October __. , 2018 

Da!e(li.'Oct9b~r ru,ZRIB 

A:PPJ.lOVED ASTO:FORM~ 

For. tlie Califomia Depa_rtment ofToxi9 
. Subsiaoces Co.ntn;,1 

• )(:E(i'J.i,K.1HAR.A 
: CHII!F 
:T:;.tl:;f;)J,;,.fil,,g;~!'f, ,'\~!!f!!r"~fi'1~M;:.v R'tti;:Oni,.,q_c­

'J)tVi~tpN . . . 
: l:IAzAROOUS Wi,.sre'M,l.t,1AOEMEl.lT'PROGRAM· 

i F.or.'Geneial ,Environmental.Management of· 
: Riln~.bQ :Co.ril;v~:.i:Lc.:dba Ps.c.Enviionmen1a1 

Setiilces,ofR:ancho Cortlova1LLG; .st~fii:)'.cle 
. 'Etjv_fu'i~l.:S9.IJ1ti~*··].\1c,;:Siericy.cl~; Inc,
i ,/" . ¥; } /"\ , ...... /J. 

Original signed by Charles A. Alutto 
-~· 
'1(:i!Al!:LES>A, ALUTT(i 
'.Cl!IEF:EXECUTIVE.0FflCER· 

::,t,wmR•IlECERAA 
. i\-IT.ORNBY GEt'IERtlb 0f:.CALIFORNIA 

j.1 . . 

i 'MA'ROA'.IUTI>( PADILLA:' .• . . · 
i•'syiiili.J~IN.._.§;(i:¢i\drV,A:rto~y:C,~iiiezji
I'.R6SE·o -ni:IA· 
' :l;}BP.ITTY.,A'tl:Q!{NE¥G~ilRAl , 
;-~/t~(fitifs,for·'Bltillill.[lfPeople.oft1i1f:8_td1e,(if' 
1:•CQ(llomiti,_,ex•r.el: 11.ar'bata,;f...Ler;_ .Ditecto~,, 
:=<;r;Jlifotliia-'Depw:1menf'!J!!foxic.,$'i/1istancei, 
·-'CP.n/1:o{ ' 

' !
; 
! 

·I 

·oated: Ociober 
-.---:-;. 

; 201 g

}il 

·22, 

23 

·i~ 

15 

2p 

27' 

28 0.1<20l45.1'29.82, /9,1018752,tl~cit 

.Original signed by Daniel P. Brunton 
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XAVIER BJCERRA: ' 

Attomey General ofCaliforoia­

MAROARJrA PADILLA,-State Bar No. 99,96!> 

S_upervising DeputyAttqmey <J~l)eral

R0SE a: FUA,-Sta.t~ Bar l.'/o. 1-1975.7 

D<;P.Uty .Attorney Gen~t


1515. Clay, Street, 2.0thFloor 

.~t!~~-l~5 
R4612~Q5~0 .


!~!~9!'~.\F (510) ~I9-0t:QO


.E:mail,: 'Rose Fua@doj ca ·WJY . . ..

4lfill'!!f!YI for f(af.nti.ff P.er>pfe oftile $ta/~ of : . 

California,: ex rel . .IJarbara· A. Lee, Director, , EXEMPT EROMFf!'i!NG FEES 

<;_alifomfa D~partme~t.qf'J'px,t,c.S11,i:/sta~ces Cpntrol GOVERNMENT'CQEJE § pl03 
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[PRQfQ$.EPJFINAi Jt;in!J!,1El,/T ON. CONSENT AND.PERMANENT: .ll'IJUNcnqti Q4-2Q! 71>Q22J34S

. ·r.· •

: I 

sl(IiERIOR ¢OWTOF THE s:r.NtE OF'¢AiJF.ORNiA, -­

.cqw,rt;,;· qp:sAt;:MMBNJ'o· 
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 . ~OPL_*:otmS.TAl'!l.0.1\' CALIFORN1~. EX
RE~. ll~Af\,!\_A:,Ley:;pQ!J!,crQ~, . 


• :cAi.'i:i.ioa,"iii.DEPARTMENTOF'fOXIC 
.,_,,_ '" ... - '. ,.. ' ._.,... 
. SU1l$'1'M!.~. CONTR.()L,.-

'hla'ln:fiff.' . ' ,

 -~~ ENYJRO~IENl',\1..~,i\;WIENT
,_pF.RANCBO.CORDOY,ALLC DB:APSG 
Ji:NYllWNJ\,IENTAii:SERVICES.OFRA!'iCHO 
CORDOY-A;LLC.; Stl!RleYCLE 

·J/:NVIRom.fuN'.l:A:t
0

"so:t1IfJ9~1ifINc;;·, 
$J'ERICY.CLE~INrn;,AND'])OES;1;nmouC1I 
.10;,m!IDUSIYE,

. 

Case:i':Jo.J4,:foj;i7.OOi2i3'48
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Defendants,._____..._.______,__~~-

!i~mg r~vie~v~ 'ili!!: S.iip.t~a~l1;1p:,fi;jr,'Entry of:btd<er and.Emal iu1~entoifC9,11~~i(tl.>,q 

''Stip_ulatioo'.'}eicecuted by Plainti~.-ilie People.oftile.State of,Caiii'6rnlii_, e11,~e.U iji!i:han:i.A. µ;e,~. . . . 
blrector,ofiheCaliforlli'a: Toxic siliistahces.Coiitio1;(',~IHS$''), .aj;id·P.efendants· . .. . . . 

General EnmorurtentaiManagemen:t of'Raiici:i:o ():o_~~oV:i;.:tp9,)l\ia.:?.~&l.1'l.lvirq!lm\\lltl\1.S.e1yiG¢s

ofRancho Cordova; LLC;: Steiipycle.E~yjroh1i)eot~) $_Ql\itioµ~,-~c.i:8JJ.dSier:icycle; Inc.; and 

Depllltinen:t of
 

.. . . . . ·. ,, 
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good cause-appearing..herein, theCou\'Ftiiids that·th'il'scittlement between the:Plaintiff and the
' . . . . . 


befendantsias set forth.inthe·St[J?ulatiorr/is .fiiil..aiid in the·public \nti;it!t, Aec<>,roµigly; the Ci;!ur:t. 


npproves:the Sfipuiation '1l'true.and correct ci>1Jtof,wliiqh'is1attache.d 1 ~ E$ibit.A, .~n<l .en\ers:the 


FimilJudgment<cin Coriseritiind'J!errnruiel:it Irtjuricti01His s~rfotQi itj·\li'.¢ S\ipil)~~orn 


IT1SS·<ORD • 

Dated: 

.,I 
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Erliibrt2 
;to 

Stip\llij~i:@::tfotE.titey pf0ro¢t Ma:,Fitial JUdg¢fuenton Consfln~ 
.. .Case Nm 34.,20.17,o:0·12:t:i48 . 
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Emetgeney,.Respohse·P./ol:e. ures.an~ 
 ~ij. ,118_·"·, Qi\,
, . · . · .Cob'tihg ~nclj P.lari 

Firs Aid/CPR · ·11F.ras;teqU1re·d··. 1/R' as:acqwed 

Dv, nazarcfous Materials t<egU1, ,uvns·.arla 
 1ro /IR • ·1/R' ·3" J/R. 3 · ·oQ-r:S"ebtlli!iP/at 'rtairiirll:l i,r!),"e:V~.'3/eam: .. e:v.eP,'i:"'-'·¥ea[S ._.every- ;y.e.!!rs' . . :ev.ery .years 
------"-~==. 'hy.~IC:81$ , .. .' J' .· !}An!)UJJ: 

·-·--+--~-'---+---~-'-'---+----=-----c.i
lf~n1Jua1

 
PEiimit Parra Training ror·air OleS not · liR 	 ~.IR. : iiR 
lnvolvlr,9 Consolidation and! r,Bulking IOo.b -~P.~cifj_c;) 

Permit.Part B Tratnlng r. ·all.roles I 

lnvoi...1119 C2_niolld.~~io_n a.t:i~ I\_B~f\dng 
 ~~ 

RCAA Hazard~~}~~~? ; n:i~~,-i,--------+----V-f{-.---1-----./1-~-.----1-------~R-.. ------l 
2 ___	B~H~,o-u-,-.,~C~he~m~,~ea~,~c~o'""m~ "mity:"""'.aflc;..e1-------r-------~i--,..~-------.r.--~-"""'--------,/, 

Stotage, Chemical lder,tifh. ~tiOifand ~S:('e~ery s·monlhs} 
.Clas11iricatlon,. segr~.gation nd.-.Bas!c 

. ;Ctiemi""" Training· 
 ' 

Contingency Ptan:GuUlne'. JVe~l'eW 'JI.~'. IIR 
 1/1'! 
.Respiratory ProteCtiO · P.rO'g"rB'm' . 1/R 

.· Respirator I t Testing, · _ ·.. , .. 

Three. daYs·D1..Ca11fom1a·,c 1,1p11ance·: its, 	 11.SScitool M ulOS:·1-5, 
Vr'i!s':(~Y"!Y.'6:mOnlH.s)· l!l'<l~·l•v~iy:~. mbnlhs) 

/

,

.· 

I• 
R::i Re'fjetih~r (a.nllua1 except,w~·ere. AOted)' 

s =·As'R«qulred.hy.the supulot on. ... 

••:: Chemlsi aniflilborato'ry T, c"nlclans Only· 
0

•· ·.= ~1Jtl1;1dlng_.r..ira~ge_rs,:S:~f?.e viS<J:~! emp1oy"a.es;..coriti'8cton:i.:ah~fTUfflPOR:&1eriiptOS,ies' 

lhlllar.(tequoteaJ 


---- ··-·------····"·'-----t----·-------···- - .. •- ~-· --·----···-··· ......... "" ·,~............... ...--~--0--~·-·- ····-'' ~-· --· ------·-· -·-.. -~... ' ·.-- ,...,..____________ _ 
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S:dpufationfor Entcy"ofOrder!and Fw~rJµdg~m~n.f:qp-(.;Qh$~nt, 

. Gase No, 3Lk20tf,oli22l348 .. . . ~ .... ~'. . . . . .... 



• l ' 

AGENCY· 
·tertili'cd:Unificd Prti~m.AiCnc'Y fCUPA) 
Addrrss, thy,·t~ll(olTlia ZIP. 
Telrphonc:/(1111.:t) 1tXlC•ll.11.J1X' 

• 
(~~: (UX).'l)lk•~U.i

HA~\iP.g!Js VfA_SfF;. c;;fN£RAT_D~ 1fysn;c1"'0N· ~PORT'-A 

fllt:iliryNCme ----------------'-------------- Dote-------------­
0 l"itmdn 
Si1t- P:ddreu ----'---------'---------------------- ­ ~---, Ti~·Out

.Owricf/O~l'dtot -----------------------· Phone; ---------- ~fi~.· 

Tvm;:oi·lnspg;tign lrispt.ctioirCtmso\idialion EPA'ID# .....

Routine. Combined llo1.1tine lnspcetioi,
cbi{iliii~,, - J[lieg,mtc'.d oc, MuI1i~P..tedia,J~pec(l!f!
Other· 

·~0)''-1~..E~'r ~!) !N~~E,_q QR.~~£D:0)"(N1ltiilr / 'f.i~j):. ~-"-:-.:'.:':'.:::;:c::::;-::,:-::-:;:::,:::c;;-c::cc='.':"C,CCO.::=:cc--="°"=--,--,.,,....,,,.,--__,
ln#eCCicm mli:, Jnvo\vc.Obloinlni,.Pb(;(og~plis,.-1_1:1vj~,on4'ii0(7~:nlf or ~com 1md dtlennin,atio.~. ·~.t~pti~ ~itJ:1 ~-~US:~.,e~Ji4U~s..reflu:Jl1:iryi~ii 

1·Clll.Ss l,Violatiori, 11- ClaSS: ll.Viol1llilln, M. Minoi'>ViOhition of 


1 · H......... nr.ou·S ,..·,-_.,. ... .,"'Ul""'l·E~Ts v ,N N.1'•.· COMi\{EN:fSPJQT_._ES!f.>.!l.~.u~~-N.':t:(S.).Ri':VIEW,_,ED, 
1,·.,'f'-1,,:.;lleJ!.,':.;M';.-1,';C:.;o<I:.;•.;·..1.·.;·.;':'.;,?'_,..;.=.;·..· .;··;,·--,.'·.;·

0
.,.·•'.;·';-.;'-~;;;'"'.;·"}tc,,,,.,--.,-.;·.;"i.,-~t,,_,.;·.;....J._··..1...Ja...;·.;"'..t-..J~:.!!J~s~S:.,IN:.,'O;.,::.,rN:.,F;eO:,:ru~MATlONf·UNllSOLVE~:~uE-s-~ 

•Re tOrtlkcettln!!ldi,eumtn tntIon 
UCIHltQtor ·.11n. l::PA:to.11UIJl:tiet -

., .... onhnOen...; ;.ion infonnauoo "'atitd lle'Bt' Phone 
facillsv. Clffl.Oflaet demonstia,1e trainlnwawaretlcs~. 

:;uRO:S MtlnucsWCooS.Olid:itl>d:Nfanifcst:rcccipts com,lcte; 
..,. A kp1nic c:op,y otmani.rest:maile'd IQ SC' 

:oROH Bllb:of t11i'l1 na/r""C!Pts a.viiltlbk:i, -

,. J:.O'R.1iavilihible·Mit'toffl~'ieti:-
8nSltC,fe,..,,.lin•·)J ·Us:lti.. l:JPCP' 

Contdlnerllnnk fflADO"tnienr. 
coi:tMi .., :nre.n.. "!-nwuon 

nllll1Mn;: ote clqscd i:1.«1tl:wbcn.a;d/J11ht/nlmtW1no· · · 

:cCJl)1111Dl!fS•1n:!!C 

't. u.1ntrs 1m: · ,weekly --
0 Tan1ts,1~te~da:ily . ·- ,. 

co Satellite conu.mm btor'l'lc\Ji'"~intorgcm:nni<lo, 
,,u~v, SiUi:llitC·COOt&m_e~_'li et' l[:1)(1.troTi:lr Operalor 

·-~:~~iit:wrr£~tJ:re~·
.U!1c oonl:J1der.ffl'!.wnstCSlfQlm lilt salelllte·11rc.i • 

-AcCiinidf.alf'O'li TUiie. tlmlt!i 
.. 

W111tc:&'11CCUmulate<hwt-r~tbDJ1,90/l80f2'10' .• 
Sa«i1Hfe·w:tSl4S-btc •· ·tnted:lot:te:M:tfldn\1·~ ·· · ':' 
_r.mpiy C<!'"•t~ers IM,IU'.H!CO ~thin. one)c&r · • 

. •. '"-i#\04 Uni.f«si1 ~'~ ~Ullnilnte:dJ~'tban;onec:ycnr' .·-~:·.' 
o,nliltf'S'o•1~ite wiltiU1;1 ;,,.nfl .vCOfu·.c::1··10 · 

;p!J.ac::KliOOUEri"9.1/rsite,w.laiill:U!O H vr:· if!!Wton1-· 
....,,,. ,' .. -.....h..1:<:1.1.m.ta ,.,, •• , •• , •·,•, ····· .,. 

'COrltaiitcn,·a'tc.i<iitir ·~:la'Sttc'd -

. · · - ·s11~111~·conl1ineo:·ri11ve•.1:;.. , · niar1ted:a11ee."IUII 
GLOJ · .E:<.cluded't · clabtc·ttidtcilat!~it11JtkctH;roocr1v 

·. un,versa I~ste.co1111JI net" btoot:r~.li1bc 
·. u~d'.oil'Jill.trs:m,r.-eil,.':t1r.i,1ned uscd-ofl,nlrer& · 

Ottti~vrimi11fln••:...nt t ul. lterie't. 
'\'US~OU~·in\\fkiediOll'.aU. .... ''oil"u.'.n . . ' 'tn.ii\trS: 
T11nk,fflu.rkcd'w1th}'h01,~'-'.; contents" siurt: I( 

' ,rm .co111Blncrs .....~,... l1!'ith·4111e·emotiea1 

_ ~-- ·T.rta~~~r:ans!'~~~~~~Q-~~--1--;.--11--,.,... r.rfnt.~ ~l.ti•.!~:,~;~~,.~l9!·q:fC~'..~.tl.hi! ~r,.: stp.~.t;t,JOeS•. 
~, ~ot·, ~Hn~¢'.ne6ni_.,~®~~---!~:~'.1'Qtmnr/~iit: . , .' ~!\qc:jippl)':118:t~iu.~1~.flnain~..a.~ly.'re_ctip_ioficpprt:: 

· · ' Groll ~W1t,te..tc11t:with·nutborimt-t111n1......._i,.ettctlhtlble) 
~ · oDof. ·:w"'",.;.;Z dJ'..:.:~~1nr,0~1111lfulntca.~i.:.t1:.:.i-k1 , 

~ ·0Ho1 •· l!'iiiletJ.to~:.-erh, lt'.a.rniw...... -u81\c1;1-''"'<1....: 
!,OST tN:ir£\..-l,10N,1:'8Tlt0CTIONS:, . , 

:, • ,Rere~ 19 ih~ t,ack'oflMs.irispec1fC?n·.l'qJ~rt rot r~gU·,~1a~;Clti1tl~qs b.~d.e~~iVf)BC\l.ons' 

;. ,tcirJci tli~~·ViOtii1~n(t) ;,otc'iJiab~V,.b)'.' '• ' ' ' ' , " 

·•, ~wii.h~n<S~4;y, of to11cc'tin, ~1_1 o~l~r.Violations:i.s1~ andretum.a'f'?~Y or.'1hls p::ige~to_: 


.~!J~l.\,.~\fli.(!W•l.'>', c'~, ~p; A'tJ1'1:. · 
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AQE"'!C~. . .. . 

Cenifieit;U!ifiu1 rm3mn1 Agen_cy'(tUPAJ 

A.ddre:sG;£icy, California ZIP- ' .. 

Tdq~J1Qili:: (~ii)' Jlllx"V11eii° F..s.i; (:t:u.) .u.ic·;;uj·;:i . 


GENERAJOR:1NSP.EC11c:i'rl' O,~SERVA:TIOfjS P~PE • 

F:iciliry Narne ~----~---~-~---'-------- ID#: ~~------· Our: 

w 
. . 
. 

.. 

•·• 
. 

~Wiifoilim'Ai:rM 
~Jl~~lli\C ~­

w'llftcstream·' 

. ' 

1. 




. 
Guide 't9t violations~iind• violation codes.found on·lbfick' of the ibwec\iop iJ;pgrr 

l06.kc."' ·2.7 gallons 'liquid•"'· 220 lbs..solid; IOOOkg:"" 270 ·gallons"liquid ::::·2200 lbs. soUL______ 


.. . 

ti'ansnortet . . . : 
. . 
Fac'lllty.fiilled.io.'sullnilUl11idlfeti,eopr, J;ach mani¥est coniains ·6:@pie:i;ctwo ar whicli must .1,e retqnied·10,p:rsC{oiie t,y,, 
\be geucmliiiY.,,, l;li)tigeiiei'~lor,oowiii~eils'•to~phot?iopf,th~ii 6~i)lrial':menili'esi·andl§ll\ld',;f'j.i 'b,sc;61$ii;;to..Il'ox·-tb6;- · 
Sacramento: cid>S8.f2!0400; llfs""••ors m~"'Olil" oolifum.tlits'.ii':iioui~rlon~:fullaskliill' tlie ficililii ;r:fi'lias·been,ilone. •. . 

Code, .Regulatie>n, descripiion; guidance 

GROI Faclli~ faited'-to J:Cl and, EPN.JD,#. AH genera to~ (e«eP,t s\Jve,,r; op]y)•mu~t-have !'!I :E~A IDJI. If a f•fil/ty,generate~ • 
:mare:tlum 100 k~"~ RCRA'w•sieJri """ 'month the•,nood a Fedcriil'EPA·.!D otherwi,e-thev,need a California-EPA ID .. 

GR,~2 Facility .Ciiiiedtb u\'iikii-o·wa\ie~etiriid.na.tjqn, Filcil/t)e.1 IJl9'.t '!'•~• v,,~te deten,;ina\jqns for;a\l'w.astes,, They c"!l·apply, 
·j!e~~•tQr k.no;v.lo\!Ji.c,.butJf'!\lisHio•liilse~·on.knilwl«!~•.•f ihe waste qr·procesi. QJ1i~anc~·9an bf/ given:reg~r4i~£,lab · ·· 
-testing, inaicating,test methodS or·•eneric test names le~•. fisb bioaSsav'or CAM-17 Wiff'ot nH\ and-certified labs·for.use. 

' 

GR:04· ,Perslln.nei ~ot "*(juat.~Jr tr~lned_, Facilities ttiilt'geitenite' less'tlian ·lOOO'kg/mo~thlonly have,to demo~~\ite·tl!at s\\(ffap, 

· familiar )~.i\li ~~.t•J!!'Il~l!tlg.prope<!•li'S,,not prep~re a)'lritte.litraitibjg_program o(ieoords·of completion: Systemic 


- · -; ri.rObJems·.witll 18.bClina,·one.n·coTitninets:or other.:~aste.handling'.proced\lres mav be··reaSbn.tr):use··this citatiOr\. __. 


6R0S; ;i!,i!~r~,;~,~!J'i!~!1':t~e..11!f~ir~•!f.in~~niP!~te;eJi,,oli~~leirT~~1r~l're'~e!pt; .G~~enitiiirs:are respo~b)•·f.9r~~~·H ~ : 
~'.l S,, f.~~J~.~,!;!:f ~1~~1-~~~W''I ~~!1'4.~·1!101fo.!l~'!'lllil',1.iJf~l'i/4Uon: Fayil,17- Na~;. EPt.<:Il:J,n~l)be'~,,~:"h'd
qliantll;/J1f:Y111$tei.irtlelv1~!1faclllitt,''nnme-~n9.ad4_f\l.S~,:'1'an'.f~.1 ~l-'i'!.!",OSP.o\t•!•:~arn.!';,s1gna111~.or:gebo.rator·ana 

GR07:··__ . :. 

it~ tp~titii.!I.X>Ji~C!ltf~~~1~~ili.PJ7!ithff!ll:Rq~.wa,1e~ Ifo6~ful wro.· r.;;,oach$°iisle wittt ".'~<itle,il ~~,m~l!•
tiox 13 of't~o,manifest:,' t'E>Rs:shou1a:show wiiat'ihe·woste (or'cliqe)·ii'iiiid,the,jjjliiimwn,lreatme'ni.s6inUiitil . 

-ORSO, 

I 
I 
i 

.Gco.:r 	 ·. f;:mpfy f~1t;i,1~·:r.~''!91°!~P.'.iY,: ~!l'illy!~O~~\,hij~:l'nWt,\\<it:hpve'lij:fte)idY,'stt<il11if6f.liqiii1J",~t¥e."".h&!:.foviffed ol' iioli~si 
:irliisic~·sc~~r~.,,'\'!~"~'''M'~f!i~,;. :~,Tp~; £9~\ili~~:l!!l'Y fl\11.h'll~e ••!'1•;:~*·1il,!_bc~·lifter,~iil~fylfil!~i'ilr' · 
11ettltnt ofrestdilesi!lnsure,the facll1%:look meas_ureS'lornake.lbe.corifulner eronld,;e.foverted:1t'Oyec ne'1i,Jh'.uml. 

t:R::li<i: !"•tllosp,~ii)1g._~o..•f!l!n~r~ ,y~e)ifr; 'w'hite·in,P.!'Yit~·-··,,e.r,eljli[ied,.·19]i~[a....·.hOl r.~quir'edJii be kept. ;Look:fcir'signs lhi,f 
l..---~·~Orit'aiiiei$·8teii1libeiii2"-in'sp(!c·1ea:sucli.as'imomoei_t_llbtling,·01>en contalnets.or·coqtalncrs/in,poorrcondiiiOn._ '. l 

I 
.l IGCQS; 	 .:I'.\t,ri.!<. ·M~Xq~P.91i!~li'.:#:~liy; w}i\i~Jl:~Dk,i'!'p•ql\~~fogs,are;not'i~~ulf!ld: .P•/1:applies)o opeiatil[g'iliiys!(day.tankiis '. 


'bi!lne.11$e(l>;:TholUn1oecfions,shouJjf, tbclude,cond1iion, bf.coo tafo·m<iot (incluilliie:11,"'Jness) t,(UI controJ;:liid•.cOm>tiiiri.. . 


<;l.~l l!'i ng•sn1eijJJtJutMf,;~t.O.i'\n••.rpoi'!t:of:geiierlitloll. ldsp4'9fi>~;diset~tioii;f6;:il~tinition of"ii( ot'hfJ?\i,yag~~·1)5?t ' 
.. at or_noa~.aon'l,ouolifvT01 _l•v.or's.ateJl~e,a"l'umu1ktion. tu!e,musi'be-liela td;90/l801270"all'!.iiccl(mul<Mii"limes.. ..."'"'--+::;;;~:;;.::===:a..=.;:,.=c::;:..::====:.;:::==:::::;..;:;:.:;::.:.;:;;::;.==:;:.:-==~=====c:::..--.....J,

,OCOT. 	:~·!•lllte,;f-iui u!fdeii' .~n1ic\1;0G~p;riitor.•<ioiitame.:.:iili<iiilij ·b~ '~bt~,io,~~.;;;e:·regiilar:o:~~ti<?_n,frr'l!!'-~Ul!)lln~\~g, . , i
·GCO8, .'M,Ai:c ·.tii!il'fciiu)..,.;niijli\l:fP.•~)Y4tle.treli i)1. s~1eim~.ii'CC'ltinullii!iin•J',jliisfitl l~w:iiniy•oi,o,efoiiiaii)er, .YP 'li\lS1Iii.~~~~·il):~l~•. 

~-~··-~-4 ~_,,.,...~-~·=s•=~~l=lit~e~·!IM~·~fu=r~_:e~n~c~~~~-··="~=-·~n=/~re=a=m=~=•=l•=~=-;=it~~=-~:·~Jb=•~Js=h=~~=·=·~ili~n~t;i~lt~~~~=ot~,'P~··=~=ti=c•=·1=:0~M=•=·w:::,____.~·-------~· 
l.'GC09, 	 ,J£*cli1ileil.'t,ecyciiiblefmaterl•l.'sto~age: Tiieso'.Wastei-~ro•exoJuaia,·anihioi'silbjecfto·,1i1e:~:l--stornge or accumulation· 

•. ' '.-ritl~;.they,nre.ma/ertai~, 'tlse.fire :C/idi: end,loc11! ,;irdi~arJCe:10-govern:Sforage.(I/~; c<intaiiimeot;,occupafi1;fiiegrqpiti~u)°
:unless no local:oriliimoce•e1<ists: tften default to'-tiil,di tonic ieiis: ..., 	 . .. . '" l 

"'----·J,.;.,;•:;;;;;;:;;,;;;.;.;:;;;;::;:.;;;.;;;;;.;;:===::.·====:....:.==..;;:;;·=·c.;;t.:,:,.~---.....---------'"~----1, I 
1 
I' j 



... t 

,A.~cu~u~~ii~~;grc.,.ter·thnn iime.li~1:lts'(SCorage wit,li~ut.o pc.-nilt) .. ,IftbC·faciltty)euerl:ltes ::> I~O kg/1~~.J~otal ~~t~), · 
'clock suirtswith first drop. Ifil\~ fa_cility ge~er~tes·<.100,D ~gll\10,(tpfal)._,i.ND ncvc/-has:>6000 kg·orisile·MiD ships_ >290. 
l)li!es they get-270 aays to ilccuinWa:1e..1r gene roting< I000 kg/n19. (r,,(41)·AND never h.as "6000 kjf~nsilo th•Y.;s•i 180 
·days, lfgeneraiin&·i> IOQO kg/1110. (l,olal), they get,90 days to accumulate. Jf <100.kglm_o,,.get rn0/2?0 dny~fr_om,lhe-time 
they reach 1be'1ilo k• totnl waste.. lf> \ k•./mo:of Acu1elv1Ex1renielv.·hazardous ·treat like> LOOO-ko. of •reaular" waste. 

:~atellit1f a~~um·u1athiri ror great.er .t~an One yesfr.- Satellite ~l~s c.a:n.~ h~lci for ~n,e.:y~rfrom firs.t.cJrop:oRGAD2 
90/1'801270 davs from time containeds,full. whictievtr ·comes firsl 

. 

. 

.·-­

11 E.~~ty 11 :c~n~PJhcrs· heHl·fli'ea·ai:r·th·nn one ycnr." Empty ~':lntni~.c~s;.~~p~l9 ~ ~nt .~ff.'~ife.for scr,l)p._val~t'!,,recorlditiOOin·g ~·GA03. 
,reu!te·-or te"fiH ..if grea~erihail 5.gallons; Those ~5 gallOOs miay be diSPo~Cd ofto a solid waste facUity (with the trash).. ·· · 

Unlv~nal ,ras~~· 1freater·th8.n·.One· yea·r. ·Universal Wf\~tes. (fluor~-~-e.!?t.li~t. tu~es, nqn;t.eii~-ocid. batterJC,·s;··inen::·uryGA04 
' . . ' sWitches.. from:t11mri6st8tf HeTOSOt-Cacis ailii:inta.Ct CRTS) mav be st6Fed;onsite for. nn to one.vear. 

<,3AQ_5 . .0,11 Dltcl'S lir•a.icr .th••. i~i>-doy1ilyr,Afud!itfcail.h9)d tip ·10 olie·toii(:;!,l,dtuins:of:crit,~ed or 8 d[llm, of,uncru,~cr,l)'~f 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 


DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL 


In the Matter of 

General Environmental Management of 
Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba PSC 
Environmental Services, LLC 
11855 White Rock Road 
Rancho Cordova, California 95742 

ID Number: CAD980884183 

Respondent 

Docket HWCA 20125570 

IMMINENT AND SUBSTANTIAL 
ENDANGERMENT DETERMINATION 
AND ENFORCEMENT ORDER 

Health and Safety Code, section 
25187 

INTRODUCTION 

1.1. Parties. The California Department of Toxic Substances Control 

(Department) issues this Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination and 

Enforcement Order (Order) to General Environmental Management of Rancho 

Cordova, LLC, dba PSC Environmental Services, LLC (hereafter referred to as 

"Respondent"). 

1.2. Site. Respondent operates a hazardous waste storage and 

treatment facility, located at 11855 White Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, California, EPA 

ID Number: CAD 980884183 (Site). The storage and treatment facility includes, but is 

not limited to, an administrative building, a lab, truck parking, and five (5) waste 

management units. The facility is situated on a 4.5 acre parcel identified by 

Sacramento County Assessor Parcel map number 072-0530-001 . The Site is located 

in an area that is primarily industrial or open space and adjacent to White Rock Road, a 

public street. The Department estimates the closest residence to be about a mile from 

the Site. A map of the Site is attached as Exhibit A. 
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1.3. Permit/Interim Status. Respondent operates an active permitted 

hazardous waste storage and treatment facility that is authorized to engage in 

sampling, storage, packaging, re-packaging, bulking and consolidation in containers of 

RCRA, non-RCRA, and Toxic Substance Control Act (TSCA) waste, container crushing 

and equipment flushing. The Site has a permitted capacity of approximately 82,320 

gallons of hazardous waste. The permitted activity is conducted within five (5) waste 

management units known as areas A, B, C and D and a drum crusher unit. After 

storage, bulk liquid and containerized hazardous wastes are transferred off-site to an 

end user (recycler) or an off-site permitted disposal facility. 

1.4. Jurisdiction.(a) Health and Safety Code section 25187, subdivision 

(a)(1 ), authorizes the Department to order an action necessary to correct violations and 

assess a penalty whenever the Department determines that any person has violated 

specified provisions of the Health and Safety Code or any permit, rule, regulation, 

standard, or requirement issued or adopted pursuant thereto. Health and Safety Code 

section 25187, subdivision (h), authorizes the Department to issue an Order that takes 

effect upon issuance if the Department finds that the violations identified in the Order 

may pose an imminent and substantial endangerment to the public health or safety or 

the environment. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

2.1. Repackaging and bulking operations are forms of consolidation. 

2.2. Area C is a building that is permitted for sampling and consolidation 

of hazardous waste, as specified in the permit. 

2.3. Area D is located outdoors and is permitted for sampling and 

consolidation of hazardous waste, as specified in the permit. 

2.4. Respondent handles, stores, consolidates and otherwise manages 

a wide variety of hazardous waste at the Site, as identified in Part A of Respondent's 

Permit application, including incompatible wastes types identified in California Code of 

Regulations title 22, section 66264.801, appendix V. 

2.5. The accidental mixing of incompatible hazardous wastes or 
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materials during consolidation at the Site may cause a fire, explosion or other violent 

reaction that releases uncontrolled toxic materials in sufficient quantities to threaten 

human health or the environment. In addition to causing fires, explosions and other 

violent reactions, mixing incompatible hazardous wastes together during consolidation 

operations at the Site can also create toxic vapors or gases, or cause container failures, 

which could result in the release of corrosive waste and other hazardous waste 

constituents. 

2.6. On March 8, 2011, Respondent performed a consolidation 

operation in Area C involving a 55-gallon drum containing approximately 25 gallons 

nitric acid. This operation resulted in a violent and uncontrolled reaction. The reaction 

caused an explosion that ruptured the drum and launched it approximately 15 feet in 

the air, releasing vapors and hazardous waste to the surrounding environment. 

Respondent's March 16, 2011, letter to the Department reported that the reaction was 

likely caused by the mixing of incompatible waste, believed to be water soluble organics 

mixed with acids. 

2.7. On August 2, 2011, Respondent performed a consolidation 

operation in Area C. The operation caused a fire that burned and destroyed four, 55 

gallon drums of hazardous waste, which released toxic smoke to the surrounding 

environment. As a result of the fire, two firefighters from the Sacramento Metropolitan 

Fire District were sent to the local hospital for observation. Respondent mailed a report 

which described the fire event to the Department on August 15, 2011. According to 

Respondent's report, at approximately 10:40 AM an employee finished consolidation 

operations of pool chemical tablets into a 55-gallon drum and then closed the drum's 

lid. Approximately five minutes after consolidation, Respondent's employees observed 

green-yellow gas/smoke coming from the drum, and the drum begin to pressurize. 

Respondent then evacuated employees from Area C. During the evacuation, the drum 

pressurized enough to force the lid off the drum. Approximately 5 minutes after the 

evacuation of Area C, two of Respondent's employees returned to Area C after 

equipping themselves with personal protective equipment, including self-contained 
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breathing apparatus (SCBA). These employees attempted to extinguish a small fire 

found burning in the drum with a small dry chemical fire extinguisher. However, the 

two employees were unable to extinguish the fire and after using the contents of one 

fire extinguisher they left Area C. Shortly thereafter, the fire department arrived and 

restricted all personnel from the active area until the fire was extinguished. 

2.8. On February 28, 2013, Respondent consolidated hazardous waste 

solids from twenty-five, 55 gallon drums and 2,893 pounds of trash into a roll-off bin in 

Area D, which is located outdoors. On March 2, 2013, Respondent consolidated ten 

more 55 gallon drums of hazardous waste solids into the roll-off bin. On March 3, 2013, 

at approximately 6 AM a passerby reported observing flames coming from the site and 

called the local fire department. The fire department responded to the Site and then 

extinguished the fire found in the roll-off bin at approximately 6:45 AM. Respondent 

hand delivered a report, dated March 15, 2013, to the Department on March 18, 2013, 

the report indicates that the likely cause of the fire was an exothermic reaction that 

occurred from the mixing of incompatible wastes during the consolidation operation in 

the roll-off bin. Based on security camera footage, the roll-off bin began to smolder on 

March 3, 2013 at approximately 1 :30 AM. Therefore, the time period over which the fire 

occurred at the Site is approximately five hours. The fire burned the consolidated 

hazardous waste which was stored in the roll-off bin, releasing smoke and potentially 

toxic constituents into the environment. 

DETERMINATION OF VIOLA TIO NS AND 

IMMINENT AND SUBSTANTIAL ENDANGERMENT 

The Department has determined that: 

3.1. Respondent violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, 

section 66264.31 and section 66264.177, subsection (a), on or about March 8, 2011, in 

that Respondent failed to operate and maintain the facility in a manner to prevent the 

possibility of explosion or unplanned release of hazardous waste by placing 

incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials in the same container, 
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without taking sufficient precautions to prevent accidental ignition or reaction. 

3.2. Respondent violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 

66264.31 and section 66264.177, subsection (a), on or about August 2, 2011, in that 

Respondent failed to operate and maintain the facility in a manner to prevent the 

possibility of a fire or unplanned release of hazardous waste by placing incompatible 

wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials in the same container, without taking 

sufficient precautions to prevent accidental ignition or reaction. 

3.3. Respondent violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, 

section 66264.31 and section 66264.177, subsection (a), on or about March 3, 2013, in 

that Respondent failed to operate and maintain the facility in a manner to prevent the 

possibility of a fire, explosion or unplanned release of hazardous waste by placing 

incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials, in the same container, 

without taking sufficient precautions to prevent accidental ignition or reaction .. 

3.4. The hazardous wastes at the Site pose a public health risk if 

released, should human contact with the hazardous constituents or surrounding 

contaminated area occur. The continuing inability of Respondent to take precautions 

sufficient to prevent fires, explosions, or other violent or non-violent reactions that could 

potentially release hazardous wastes to the environment during consolidation 

operations in Area C or Area D, as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, 

section 66264.31 and section 66264.177, subsection (a), presents an imminent and 

substantial endangerment to human health and safety and the environment. 

SCHEDULE FOR COMPLIANCE 

4. Based on the foregoing Determination of Violations and Imminent 

and Substantial Endangerment Determination, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

4.1. Immediately upon issuance of this Order, Respondent shall cease 

all hazardous waste consolidation operations, i.e., repackaging, bulking and other 

consolidation activities, conducted at the Site until the Department authorizes 

Respondent in writing to resume them pursuant to paragraph 4.3. 

4.2. Within 60 days from the date of issuance of this Order, Respondent 



shall submit to the Department for its review and approval: 

4.2.1. A work plan that describes in detail the changes and additions that 

Respondent shall make to the existing Standard Operating Procedures to implement 

additional precautions to prevent fires, explosions, or other violent or non-violent 

reactions that could potentially release hazardous waste to the environment during 

consolidation operations at the facility. At a minimum, the work plan shall address the 

following: (1) procedures to identify incompatible waste, including but not limited to, 

review and documentation of records, manifests, waste profiles, and work orders 

pertaining to consolidation, (2) test methods, used to identify incompatible waste for 

both RCRA wastes and non-RCRA wastes (3) quality control practices and procedures 

used to ensure that adequate levels of precision and accuracy are maintained to 

prevent consolidation of incompatible wastes at all levels of operation, (4) protocols for 

separating and otherwise managing incompatible waste to prevent mixing of them 

during consolidation operations, (5) oversight procedures at the facility to ensure 

incompatible wastes are not mixed together, and (6) the proposed schedule for 

implementing the identified changes and additions to the Standard Operating 

Procedures and subsequently incorporating the revised Standard Operating Procedures 

into the facility permit pursuant to the Department's permit modification regulations. 

4.2.2. A detailed training plan on the management of incompatible wastes 

and other related hazardous waste management practices including, but not limited to, 

requirements for handling reactive and/or ignitable waste, and QA/QC practices for 

identifying incompatible wastes. The training plan shall describe: (1) the level of 

training for each person that holds a position that is responsible for hazardous waste 

management, (2) how often the training will be given, (3) who will provide each level of 

training, (4) each position for which the training is required, (5) records (e.g. a 

certification of completion) for each person that he or she has successfully completed 

the training and has demonstrated the necessary understanding and skills required to 

be competent in the course areas covered by the training, and (6) the proposed 

schedule for implementing the training plan and subsequently incorporating the revised 
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Standard Operating Procedures into the facility permit pursuant to the Department's 

permit modification regulations. The training plan shall include a syllabus for each 

training course identified in the plan which describes the training elements covered by 

each course. 

4.2.3. The name of the responsible corporate officer at the Site who shall 

ensure the work plan is implemented and that persons/positions detailed in the training 

plan have been properly trained. 

4.3. After the Department has approved the work plan and training plan, 

Respondent shall implement the plans pursuant to the schedules therein. Respondent 

may resume consolidation operations as specified in the Department's approval 

letter(s). 

OTHER PROVISIONS 

5.1. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 25187.2 Respondent 
shall reimburse the Department for the Department's cost incurred in overseeing the 
work required by this Order. 

5.2. Submittals. All submittals from Respondent pursuant to this Order 
shall be sent to: 

Mr. Paul Kewin, Division Chief 
Enforcement and Emergency Response Division 
Department of Toxic Substances Control 
8800 Cal Center Drive 
Sacramento, California 95826-3200 

5.3. Communications. All approvals and decisions of the Department 

made regarding submittals and notifications will be communicated to Respondent in 

writing by the Enforcement and Emergency Response Program, State Oversight and 

Enforcement Branch Chief or his/her designee. No informal advice, guidance, 

suggestions, or comments by the Department regarding reports, plans, specifications, 

schedules, or any other writings by Respondent shall be construed to relieve 

Respondent of the obligation to obtain such formal approvals as may be required. 
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5.4. Department Review and Approval. If the Department determines 

that any report, plan, schedule, or other document submitted for approval pursuant to 

this Order fails to comply with the Order or fails to protect public health or safety or the 

environment, the Department may: 

a. Modify the document as it deems necessary and approve the document 

as modified, or 

b. Return the document to Respondent with recommended changes and a 

date by which Respondent must submit to the Department a revised document 

incorporating the recommended changes. 

5.5. Compliance with Applicable Laws: Respondent shall carry out this 

Order in compliance with all local, State, and federal requirements, including but not 

limited to requirements to obtain permits and to assure worker safety. 

5.6. Endangerment during Implementation: In the event that the 

Department determines that any circumstances or activity (whether or not pursued in 

compliance with this Order) are creating a further imminent or substantial 

endangerment to the health or welfare of people on the site or in the surrounding area 

or to the environment, the Department may order Respondent to stop further 

implementation of this Order for such period of time as needed to abate the 

endangerment. Any deadline in this Order directly affected by a Stop Work Order 

under this paragraph shall be extended for the term of the Stop Work Order. 

5.7. Liability: Nothing in this Order shall constitute or be construed as a 

satisfaction or release from liability for any conditions or claims arising as a result of 

past, current, or future operations of Respondent. Notwithstanding compliance with the 

terms of this Order, Respondent may be required to take further actions as are 

necessary to protect public health or welfare or the environment. 

5.8. Site Access: Access to the Site shall be provided at all reasonable 

times to employees, contractors, and consultants of the Department, and any agency 

having jurisdiction. Nothing in this Order is intended to limit in any way the right of entry 

or inspection that any agency may otherwise have by operation of any law. The 
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Department and its authorized representatives shall have the authority to enter and 

move freely about all property at the Site at all reasonable times for purposes including 

but not limited to: inspecting records, operating logs, and contracts relating to the Site; 

reviewing the progress of Respondent in carrying out the terms of this Order; and 

conducting such tests as the Department may deem necessary. Respondent shall 

permit such persons to inspect and copy all records, documents, and other writings, 

including all sampling and monitoring data, in any way pertaining to work undertaken 

pursuant to this Order. 

5.9. Data and Document Availability. Respondent shall permit the 

Department and its authorized representatives to inspect and copy all sampling, testing, 

monitoring, and other data generated by Respondent or on Respondent's behalf in any 

way pertaining to work undertaken pursuant to this Order. Respondent shall allow the 

Department and its authorized representatives to take duplicates of any samples 

collected by Respondent pursuant to this Order. Respondent shall maintain a central 

depository of the data, reports, and other documents prepared pursuant to this Order. 

All such data, reports, and other documents shall be preserved by Respondent for a 

minimum of six years after the conclusion of all activities under this Order. If the 

Department requests that some or all of these documents be preserved for a longer 

period of time, Respondent shall either, comply with that request, deliver the documents 

to the Department, or permit the Department to copy the documents prior to 

destruction. Respondent shall notify the Department in writing at least six months prior 

to destroying any documents prepared pursuant to this Order. 

5.10. Government Liabilities: The State of California shall not be liable 

for injuries or damages to persons or property resulting from acts or omissions by 

Respondent or related parties in carrying out activities pursuant to this Order, nor shall 

the State of California be held as a party to any contract entered into by Respondent or 

its agents in carrying out activities pursuant to the Order. 

5.11. Incorporation of Plans and Reports. All plans, schedules, and 

reports that require Department approval and are submitted by Respondent pursuant to 
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this Order are incorporated in this Order upon approval by the Department. 

5.12. Extension Request: If Respondent is unable to perform any activity 

or submit any document within the time required under this Order, Respondent may, 

prior to expiration of the time, request an extension of time in writing. The extension 

request shall include a justification for the delay. 

5.13. Extension Approvals: If the Department determines that good 

cause exists for an extension, it will grant the request and specify in writing a new 

compliance schedule. 

5.14. Additional Enforcement Actions: By issuance of this Order, the 

Department does not waive the right to take further enforcement actions. 

5.15. Penalties for Noncompliance: Failure to comply with the terms of 

this Order may also subject Respondent to costs, penalties, and/or punitive damages 

for any costs incurred by the Department or other gc;>vernment agencies as a result of 

such failure, as provided by Health and Safety Code section 25188, and other 

applicable provisions of law. 

5.16. Parties Bound: This Order shall apply to and be binding upon 

Respondent, and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, 

receivers, trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, 

partners, and subsidiary and parent corporations. 

5.17. Time Periods: 

5.17.1. "Days" for purposes of this Order means calendar days. 

5.17.2. All times for performance for compliance schedules described in 

paragraphs nos. 4.1 and 4.2 shall be calculated from the date of Respondent's receipt 

of this Order 

5.17.3. All times for performance for compliance schedules described in 

paragraph no. 4.3 shall be calculated from the date of Respondent's receipt of the 

Department's approval, unless otherwise specified therein. 

RIGHT TO A HEARING 

6. Any Respondent may request a hearing to challenge the Order. 



Appeal procedures are described in the attached Statement to Respondent. Under 

Health and Safety Code section 25187, a request for a hearing shall not stay the effect 

of this Order. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

7. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25187, subdivision (h), 

this Order is effective immediately upon date of issuance indicated below. 

Date of Issuance: A( '.,..;' "'"b ,.,, ~ ~ \6 

Original signed by Brian Johnson 

Bri~n Johnson// 
Deputy Direct 
Enforcement and Emergency Response Division 
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Process Form Number: -------------------------
Type: D Consolidation/ Lab Pack 

D Consolidation/ Loose Pack
Shift: ________________ 0 Bulking/ Liquids or Solids (REQUIRES 

------------
Commingled Compatibility 

------
Test) 

Technicians: # of New Containers Created: 

Proper Shipping Name and/or 
Hazard Class of Material being Processed: 

--------------------

GEM Rancho Cordova LLC Container Process Form - Permit Specific 

~ 

l 

Original Container Analysis and Compatibility 

~ 

I 
~ Ig ~ :1l a'• ro ~ 

ic: e ft " E 

"'u f ~ 8e ~ 8 ~ %of source t e .;; ~ 

£ □Bl " ~-moved to 'tl ~ "' . .~~ 
w 

Unique il C u E ti "' destination -~ " ~~ E -.,, ,_ => 
} ~ E • ~ ~Container# container: : "' ~~ 8i 6 ~ ~ ~ 

Container tJ _{Process 
form U+ sequencial 
number, starting at 

001) 

Destination Container 

Container Type Waste Drum to be 
and Size Category stored in: 

Chemist's Signature to Proceed (REQUIRED): 
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July 28, 2017 Mail certification #9590940224026249434770 

Mr. Dan Pineschi 

Department of Toxic Substances Control 

8800 Cal Center Drive 

Sacramento, California  95826 

Re: Response to Summary of Violations 

General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC 

11855 White Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, California 95742 

EPA ID No. CAD980884183 

Dear Mr. Pineschi: 

General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, (“GEM”) respectfully submits this 

response to the Department’s Summary of Violations (SOV) dated June 27, 2017. This submittal includes 

a description of actions taken in response to Department observations. Actions taken do not constitute 

admission by GEM of alleged violations, and GEM reserves the right to further discuss allegations and 

provide additional information. (Please note that italicized passages are excerpts from Department’s 

Summary of Violations) 

SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS 

NON-MINOR VIOLATIONS, page 2 

On or about June 27, 2017 GEM violated California Health and Safety Code 25202(a)and 

California Code of Regulation, Title 22, section 66270.30(a) in that GEM failed to comply with 

Section VIII-B(1) of the permit part B. DTSC Staff observed employees not wearing protective 

equipment (e.g. hard hats) as direct by GEM LLC Facility Mgmt. 

Corrective Action: GEM operation staff must be provided with and use the proper protective equipment 

during waste receiving, inspecting, sampling, analyzing, processing and shipping as directed by the GEM 

facility management. 

GEM Response 

GEM respectfully requests that the Department withdraw this violation allegation or document as an 

Issue/Concern. The department inspection team received the visitor safety instructions prior to the 

inspection  which included the fact that “hard hats”  were no longer required in the active area. As the 

physical inspection began, Mr. Pineschi noticed and pointed out that a sign in Area A indicated hard hats 

are required in the area. The sign was inadvertently left in place when Facility Management decreed the 

change to minimize unwarranted PPE use because there are no overhead hazards to personnel. 

Department staff alleges that GEM violated subdivision VIII.B.(1) of its Operation Plan, which, in 

summary, indicates that facility management will provide direction to operation staff regarding the 

proper protective equipment to be used while conducting TSDF operations. The Department’s 

interpretation of the posted sign as a direction from facility management is understandable, but 

GEM of Rancho Cordova, LLC | Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. 
11855 White Rock Rd | Rancho Cordova, CA | 95742 

T: 916-951-0980  F: 916-351-1707 W: | www.stericycle.com 
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mistaken. GEM facility management made the determination in October, 2016, that hard hats were not 

required personal protective equipment in the facility due to a lack of head injury hazards. This change 

in facility PPE requirements was communicated to all employees, and also is reflected in visitor safety 

communications, which Department staff completed prior to this inspection. 

Corrective Action: 

GEM, LLC respectfully contends that no violation regarding “hard hat” use occurred. GEM had 
previously changed visitor card safety requirements and per Mr. Pineschi’s request, signage reflecting 
the use of PPE in Area A was revised as shown in the photograph below. 

SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS 

NON-MINOR VIOLATIONS, page 3 

On or about June 27, 2017 GEM violated California Health and Safety Code section 25202(a), and 

Code of Regulation title 22 section 66270.30(a) in that GEM failed to operate Area C according to 

conditions of the Permit Part B sections V-C(10) in that facility management or the facility 

chemist failed to approve of the intent to bulk waste using the appropriate process form.  

GEM Response 

GEM respectfully contends that no violation of the referenced regulatory or permit sections has 
occurred. The permit does not expressly stipulate use of the permit enclosed form example. 
Section V.A, page 2 of the Operation Plan includes the following paragraph: 

“The forms referenced within this Waste Analysis Plan are typical forms developed for 
use by the facility. These forms may change to equivalent or alternate forms as 
regulations, customer needs, operations, or company policy dictate.”  

This excerpt from the permit is clear that internal forms can be changed as necessary. There are 
no permit conditions that indicate otherwise. GEM did not change the form’s specific 
information, and in this case the difference is a signature on the form itself. As it stands, the 
permit discusses the form example and approval for processing separately. Further, the form is 
only one portion of the approval process. GEM contends that approval may also be managed 
and approved through other steps in our procedures such as during receiving procedures and 
use of internal assigned containers numbers. GEM believes that use of the version of the form 

GEM of Rancho Cordova, LLC | Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. 
11855 White Rock Rd | Rancho Cordova, CA | 95742 

T: 916-951-0980  F: 916-351-1707 W: | www.stericycle.com 



 
 

• 
• •••• I • • Stericyc e 

• Environmen I Solu ,ons 

which did not have a signature line does not constitute failure to approve intent to bulk. (See 
Attachment A, sample forms) 

GEM requests the alleged violation be changed to minor issues/concerns. 

Corrective Action: 

GEM has reinstalled the permit sample form that includes signatures as a gesture of cooperation. GEM is 
planning to re-work the associated approval methods and documentation to preclude future 
misunderstandings. 

SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS 

NON-MINOR VIOLATIONS, page 4 

On or about June 27, 2017 GEM violated California Health and Safety Code, section 25202(a) and 

California Code of Regulation title 22 section 66264.3(a) in that GEM failed to comply with section 

VIII-E-2 of the Permit Part B. DTSC observed approximately 200 Drums located behind the Facility 

that were not labeled with an empty date. 

GEM Response 

GEM notes that the Department’s documented observation occurred “behind” the Facility. The Facility 

operator is GEM, LLC. GEM is the property owner however it is GEM’s contention that the permitted 

area is not the complete property address. The active permitted TSDF area is surrounded and separated 

from all other property address activity by a secured chain link fence. The transporter operating outside 

the active TSDF area is responsible for that outer area. The empty drum loads are delivered to and 

managed by that division. GEM respectfully requests that the department rescinds this alleged violation 

of the permit. 

Corrective Action: 

Stericycle Specialty Waste Solutions, Inc. is glad to discuss with the department and has informed GEM 

that the drums were labeled immediately, on June 27, 2017. The empty drums were shipped off site the 

following week. (Photographs included) 

GEM has taken no corrective action. Please note that all empty drums managed in the permitted area 

were labeled appropriately at the time of inspection. 

GEM of Rancho Cordova, LLC | Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. 
11855 White Rock Rd | Rancho Cordova, CA | 95742 

T: 916-951-0980  F: 916-351-1707 W: | www.stericycle.com 
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SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS 

NON-MINOR VIOLATIONS, page 5: 

On or about June 27, 2017 GEM violated California Health and Safety Code, section 25202(a) and 

California Code of Regulation Title 22 Section 66270.30(a) in that GEM failed to comply with section VI-

D-2 of the permit Part B. DTSC observed three containers of corrosive waste marked with acceptance 

dates of 6/13/17, 6/16/17, and 3/28/17. The containers were stored longer than 10 days in Area A. 

GEM Response 

GEM did not store waste in Area A beyond the permitted 10 days. The waste containers noted by the 

Department personnel were repackaged containers created in Area A. If the created containers are not 

full, the containers are stored in Area B where waste may be added periodically until full and ready for 

shipment. Containers are stored in Area B until a shipment plan is developed and implemented. The 

containers are moved to Area A in preparation for outbound shipment, which is allowed by permit. The 

container with the March label date would not have been dismissed otherwise during weekly 

inspections. The containers were staged in Area A just prior to the inspection for shipment, and 

consequently received updated shipping labels the day of the inspection. GEM researched the allegation 

and found that the labels utilized were incidentally printed with accumulation start dates of March 28, 

2017 however the labels were not actually used until June 2017. The technician neglected to annotate 

the appropriate date on the label during repack. Subsequently, the drums were shipped June 28, 2017. 

Containers scheduled for shipment are routinely pulled from storage areas and staged in Area A where 

containers are accounted for and outbound shipping labels are attached. The staging, prep and loading 

typically requires one to two days. GEM does not have the container movement dates documented at 

this time. 

Corrective Action: 

To preclude any future misunderstandings for inspectors, GEM is adding a container movement date to 

the outbound shipment report that will document when the containers are moved to Area A staging for 

outbound shipments. GEM is evaluating procedures to include preprinting labels with no dates to ensure 

TSDF personnel date labels appropriately, as containers are created. 

SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS 

NON-MINOR VIOLATIONS, page 6 

On or about June 27, 2017 GEM violated Health and Safety Code section 25202(a) and California Code of 

Regulation title 22 section 66270.30(a) in that GEM failed to comply with Section VIII-E(1)(b) of the 

Permit Part B by ensuring containers located in Area B are marked and labeled as required at all times 

while they contain hazardous waste. DTSC observed five boxes and one bucket of Class 1.4 Hazardous 

Waste without accumulation start dates marked on the containers, located in cell 6. 

GEM of Rancho Cordova, LLC | Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. 
11855 White Rock Rd | Rancho Cordova, CA | 95742 
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GEM Response 

GEM notes the annotated SOV discusses accumulation dates however the finding discussed in Area B 
during the inspection noted the containers were missing permit directed "acceptance" dates. All 
container labels observed contained accumulation dates. Acceptance dates for containers are part of 
the waste receiving activity following the permit conditions. GEM investigated this issue and finds that 
during receiving activities, those containers we re overlooked and not stamped with t he receiving dates. 

GEM Corrective Action: 

GEM reviewed the manifest files and stamped each container with the appropriate acceptance dates. 
GEM is adding a Quality Control notation to the Waste Receiving documents to further aid Waste 
Receivers in complying with the permit during receiving activity. The issue has been addressed with the 
Supervisor and receiving teams. Sample photographs included. (manifest copies/photos attachment B) 

~-
.-= ~........,... "---I 1'mlC 

HANDLE WITH CAREicoon _ _,, 

Closing 

GEM management would also like to thank Mr. Pineschi and Ms. Aung for their assistance and 
professionalism during the inspection. 

Please contact Darla M. Adams, Field Compliance Manager, via telephone at (310) 912-0183 or via email 
at Darla.Adams@stericycle.com if you have any further questions or require additional information. 

Sincerely, 
For General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, 

Original signed by James D. Treloar 

James D. Treloar 
Vice President, Compliance 
Stericycle, Inc. 

ATTACHMENTS 
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Attachments: Sample Forms 

Label corrections, Manifest copies/Corresponding photographs 

cc: Ms. Renee Lane, Southwest Regional Manager 

Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc./GEM of Rancho Cordova, LLC 

11855 White Rock Rd 

Rancho Cordova, CA  95742 

Mr. Alex Baillie, Supervisory Environmental Scientist 
Enforcement and Emergency Response Division 
Hazardous Waste Program 
Statewide Emergency Response & Sacramento Enforcement Branch 
Department of Toxic Substances Control 
8800 Cal Center Drive 
Sacramento, California 95826-3200 

Ms. Nyein Aung, Environmental Scientist 
Hazardous Waste Management Program 
Statewide Emergency Response and Sacramento Enforcement Branch 
Department of Toxic Substances Control 
8800 Cal Center Drive 
Sacramento, CA  95826 

GEM of Rancho Cordova, LLC | Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. 
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	COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 
	Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief
	Introduction
	Superior Court of the State of California County of Sacramento
	People of  the State of
	CALIFORNIA, EX REL. MEREDITH WILLIAMS, DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL, 
	Plaintiff, 
	v.
	General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova LLC DBA PSC
	Environmental Services of
	Rancho Cordova LLC, Stericycle Environmental
	Solutions, Inc., Stericycle, Inc., and does 1 through 10, inclusive,
	Defendants. 
	Case Number 34-2020-00275561
	COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
	(Hazardous Waste Control Law, Health and 
	Safety Code
	section 25100
	et seq.) 
	Plaintiff, the People of the State of California, ex rel. Meredith Williams, Director, Department of Toxic Substances Control (“Department” or “DTSC”), alleges the following: 

	Statement of the Case
	STATEMENT OF THE CASE  
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Defendants General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC (“GEM”); Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. (“Stericycle Environmental”) and Stericycle, Inc. (collectively “Stericycle”); and DOES 1 through 10 (collectively, “Defendants”), at all times relevant to this Complaint, owned, operated, and managed the hazardous waste treatment and storage facility located at 11855 White Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, California (referred to as the “Facili

	2.  Enforcement History: 
	2.  Enforcement History: 
	2.  Enforcement History: 

	Defendants have a long and troubled history of violating the Hazardous Waste Control Law, chapter 6.5 of division 20 of the California Health and Safety Code and its implementing regulations set forth in the California Code of Regulations, title 22, division 4.5, section
	Defendants have a long and troubled history of violating the Hazardous Waste Control Law, chapter 6.5 of division 20 of the California Health and Safety Code and its implementing regulations set forth in the California Code of Regulations, title 22, division 4.5, section
	66260.1
	et seq. (“HWCL”) in connection with their operations of the Facility. As set forth below in detail, the Department found violations of the HWCL at Defendants’ Facility in 2009, 2011, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018. Pursuant to a consent order with the Department entered on October 12, 2010, Defendant GEM admitted to the 2009 violations, agreed to a schedule of compliance, and paid $574,000 in penalties to the Department (“2010 Consent Order”).  The Department and Defendants settled the 2011-2017 vio
	v.
	GEM and Stericycle, Sacramento Superior Court, Case 
	No.
	34-2017-00221348.  As part of the 2018 Final Judgment, Defendants stipulated that the violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint (“2017 Complaint”) against Defendants for violations identified by the Department between 2011-2017 are deemed proven and may be considered as a basis for, inter alia, enhanced penalties in any future HWCL enforcement or the Department’s determination in a permitting proceeding, decision, and/or process (2018 Final Judgment at 
	paragraph 13).
	A copy of the 2010 Consent Order, 2017 Complaint, and 2018 Final Judgment are attached as Exhibits A, B, and C, respectively, to this Complaint. 


	3.  The Current Action:  
	3.  The Current Action:  
	3.  The Current Action:  

	The Department  inspectors  conducted an inspection at the Facility on
	The Department  inspectors  conducted an inspection at the Facility on
	 June 25-26, 2018  
	(“2018 Inspection”), 
	reviewed the  Facility’s documents  and identified,  once again, that Defendants  violated the  HWCL by mismanaging hazardous  waste, including many serious and repeat  violations  as described below.  


	4.  
	4.  
	4.  

	The Department hereby seeks injunctive relief and civil penalties against the Defendants for the violations identified in this Complaint pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 
	The Department hereby seeks injunctive relief and civil penalties against the Defendants for the violations identified in this Complaint pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 
	25181, 25184, 25188, and 25189.2,
	and enhanced civil penalties against the Defendants for repeat and continued violations of the HWCL. 




	Plaintiff
	PLAINTIFF 
	5. 
	5. 
	5. 
	5. 
	The Department is a state agency organized and existing pursuant to section 
	The Department is a state agency organized and existing pursuant to section 
	58000
	et seq. of the California Health and Safety Code. The Department is the state agency responsible for administering and enforcing the HWCL. 


	6. 
	6. 
	Meredith Williams is the Director of the Department. 

	7. 
	7. 
	Health and Safety Code sections
	Health and Safety Code sections
	25181,
	subdivision (a), and
	25182
	authorize the Attorney General of the State of California, at the request of the Department, to commence an action in the name of the People of the State of California for civil penalties and injunctive relief under the HWCL.  The Department has requested the Attorney General to apply to this Court for 
	injunctive relief and civil penalties pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 
	25181, 25184, 25188, 25189, and 25189.2
	for violations of the HWCL by Defendants.  





	Defendants
	DEFENDANTS  
	8. 
	8. 
	8. 
	Based on information and belief, Defendant GEM has owned and operated the Facility from at least 2009 to at least the date of the 2018 Inspection and did and does business under the name PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC. 
	Based on information and belief, Defendant GEM has owned and operated the Facility from at least 2009 to at least the date of the 2018 Inspection and did and does business under the name PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC. 


	9. 
	9. 
	Based on information and belief, Defendant Stericycle Environmental or Defendant Stericycle, Inc., or both, owned and/or operated the Facility from on or about 2014 to at least the date of the 2018 Inspection.  

	10. 
	10. 
	When reference is made in this Complaint to any act of Defendants, such allegation shall mean that the officers, directors, employees, agents, or representatives of Defendants did, or authorized, such acts or intentionally and/or negligently failed to adequately or properly supervise, control, or direct their employees and/or agents while engaged in the management, direction, operation, or control of the affairs of the Facility. 

	11. 
	11. 
	Defendants are each “persons” as that term is defined by Health and Safety Code section
	Defendants are each “persons” as that term is defined by Health and Safety Code section
	25118.


	12. 
	12. 
	The names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, or otherwise, of defendants named herein as Does 1 through 10, inclusive, are unknown at this time to the Department.  The Department therefore sues said defendants by such fictitious names.  The Department will seek leave to amend this Complaint to show their true names and capacities when the names have been ascertained.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that each defendant designated as a DOE defendant is responsible, 

	13. 
	13. 
	Each reference in this Complaint to “Defendants” refers not only to the named Defendants, but also all DOE defendants sued under fictitious names. 



	Jurisdiction and Venue
	JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
	14. 
	14. 
	14. 
	This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to California Constitution Article VI, section 10 and Health and Safety Code section 
	This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to California Constitution Article VI, section 10 and Health and Safety Code section 
	25181.


	15. 
	15. 
	This Complaint has been filed within 
	This Complaint has been filed within 
	5
	years of the Plaintiff discovering the HWCL violations alleged herein. 


	16. 
	16. 
	Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25183
	in that the violations at issue occurred at the Facility, which is in Sacramento County. 


	17. 
	17. 
	This action is an unlimited civil case because the amount of penalties requested exceeds 
	This action is an unlimited civil case because the amount of penalties requested exceeds 
	$25,000
	and because none of the Plaintiff’s causes of action meets the criteria for limited civil cases in the Code of Civil Procedure. 




	Statutory and Regulatory Background
	STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND  
	18. 
	18. 
	18. 
	The State of California has enacted a comprehensive statutory and regulatory framework for the generation, handling, treatment, transport, and disposal of hazardous wastes. The framework contained in the HWCL mandates a “cradle to grave” registration, tracking, storage, treatment, and disposal system for the protection of the public from the risks posed by hazardous wastes and for the protection of the environment—i.e., soil, air, surface water, groundwater—from contamination by hazardous wastes and their c

	19.  
	19.  
	19.  

	Pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections
	Pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections
	25101,
	 subdivision (d) and 
	25189-25159.9,
	California administers the HWCL in lieu of federal administration of the federal  
	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), which is codified at  42 United States Code  section 
	6901
	 et seq.  Federal law prohibits California from imposing any requirements less  stringent than those authorized under RCRA. 
	(42 United States Code section 6929)
	Certain provisions in the  HWCL are stricter than the analogous provisions in RCRA.  


	20. 
	20. 
	The HWCL provides that the Department shall adopt, and revise when appropriate, standards and regulations for the management of hazardous waste to protect, inter alia, the public health and environment. 
	The HWCL provides that the Department shall adopt, and revise when appropriate, standards and regulations for the management of hazardous waste to protect, inter alia, the public health and environment. 
	(Health and Safety Code section 25150.)
	Accordingly, the Department has promulgated regulations setting forth numerous and extensive environmental and health protective requirements for the day-to-day operation of hazardous waste generators, 
	transporters,  and 
	owners  
	 and operators of hazardous waste facilities.
	(See California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66260.1 et seq.)


	21. 
	21. 
	The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 
	The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 
	25201,
	subdivision (a), provides that an owner or operator of a hazardous waste facility may not “accept, treat, store, or dispose of a hazardous waste at the facility, area, or site, unless the owner or operator holds a hazardous waste facilities permit or other grant of authorization from the Department to use and operate the 
	facility, area, or site…” 


	22. 
	22. 
	The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 
	The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 
	25200,
	subdivision (a), authorizes the Department to issue operating permits, called hazardous waste facilities permits, to the owners and operators of facilities managing hazardous wastes. 


	23. 
	23. 
	The HWCL requires that the owner and operator of a hazardous waste facility comply with the provisions of the facility’s hazardous waste permit. 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Health and Safety Code section
	Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision (a) requires the owner or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit to “comply with the conditions of [that] permit.” 


	b. 
	b. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30
	subdivision (a)  
	requires that the “permittee comply with the conditions of the permit” and specifies that any “noncompliance . . . constitutes a violation of the [HWCL] and is grounds for” enforcement. 






	Enforcement Authority Under the HWCL
	ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY UNDER THE HWCL 
	24. 
	24. 
	24. 
	The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose civil penalties under two distinct and alternative statutory provisions.  Section 
	The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose civil penalties under two distinct and alternative statutory provisions.  Section 
	25189
	 of the Health and Safety Code creates liability for any negligent or intentional violation of the HWCL.  Section 
	25189.2
	is a strict liability provision, which creates liability for any violation of the HWCL.  A person may not be held liable for a civil penalty under both section 
	25189
	and section 
	25189.2
	for the same act.
	(Health and Safety Code, Section 25189.2, subdivision (f).)


	25. 
	25. 
	Effective January 1, 2018, the HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a civil penalty of up to 
	Effective January 1, 2018, the HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a civil penalty of up to 
	$70,000
	 per day for each violation of a separate provision of the HWCL.  For continuing violations, the HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a penalty of up to
	$25,000
	 for each day that a violation continues.
	(see, e.g., Health and Safety Code, sections 25189, subdivision (b) and 25189.2, subdivision (b).)


	26. 
	26. 
	In addition, Health and Safety Code section 
	In addition, Health and Safety Code section 
	25188
	provides that a person subject to an order under Health and Safety Code section 
	25187
	who does not comply with that order shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than 
	$70,000
	 for each day of noncompliance. 


	27. 
	27. 
	Defendants are subject under Health and Safety Code section 
	Defendants are subject under Health and Safety Code section 
	25187
	 to comply with the Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination and Enforcement Order that was issued by the Department in 2013 (“2013 ISE Order”) after two fires and an explosion occurred at the Facility resulting from the mismanagement of hazardous waste by Defendant GEM as more fully described in Paragraphs 37-42. 


	28. 
	28. 
	Health and Safety Code sections
	Health and Safety Code sections
	25181 and 25184,
	 authorizes and directs the Court to enjoin any ongoing or potential violation of the HWCL. 


	29.  
	29.  
	29.  

	Section 
	Section 
	25181
	of the Health and Safety Code provides: 
	 “when the Department determines that any person has engaged in, is engaged in, or is  about to engage in any acts or practices  which  constitute or will constitute a violation of any  provision of the HWCL  or any rule, regulation, covenant, standard,  requirement  or order issued, pr omulgated or executed thereunder, and when requested by the  [D]epartment,  . . .  the Attorney General may  apply to the superior court for an order enjoining such acts or  practices, or for  an order  directing compliance,


	30.  
	30.  
	30.  

	Health and Safety Code section
	Health and Safety Code section
	25184
	 provides that in civil actions brought pursuant to the HWCL in which an injunction or temporary restraining order is sought: 
	It shall not be necessary to allege or prove at any stage of the proceeding that irreparable damage will  occur should the temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, or permanent  injunction not be issued; or that the remedy at law  is inadequate, and the temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, or permanent injunction shall issue without such allegations and without such proof.  




	General Allegations
	GENERAL ALLEGATIONS  
	The Facility:  
	31. 
	31. 
	31. 
	The Facility is situated on a 4.5-acre parcel adjacent to White Rock Road and is identified by Sacramento County Assessor Parcel Number 072-0530-001.  The Facility includes, but is not limited to, an administrative building, a lab, truck parking, a loading and unloading area, five hazardous waste management units known as Areas A, B, C, and D, and a drum crusher unit.  The drum crusher unit is currently undergoing regulatory closure as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, division 4.5, chap
	The Facility is situated on a 4.5-acre parcel adjacent to White Rock Road and is identified by Sacramento County Assessor Parcel Number 072-0530-001.  The Facility includes, but is not limited to, an administrative building, a lab, truck parking, a loading and unloading area, five hazardous waste management units known as Areas A, B, C, and D, and a drum crusher unit.  The drum crusher unit is currently undergoing regulatory closure as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, division 4.5, chap


	32. 
	32. 
	At the times relevant to this Complaint, one or more of the Defendants owned and/or operated the Facility and continue to own and operate the Facility. 

	33. 
	33. 
	Defendants have operated and continue to operate the Facility as an active permitted hazardous waste management facility. The Facility has a permitted capacity of approximately 82,320 gallons of hazardous waste.  The Facility’s current hazardous waste permit, (“Permit”), which also incorporates by reference the Part A and Part B permit application (“Permit Part A” and “Permit Part B”), was issued by the Department on April 25, 2007 and was subsequently modified.  The Permit expired on April 25, 2017.  

	34. 
	34. 
	Defendants continue to operate the Facility pending the Department’s review of a permit renewal application submitted to the Department in October 2016. 

	35. 
	35. 
	Under the Permit, Defendants are authorized by the Department to engage in the following hazardous waste management activities at the Facility: 
	Under the Permit, Defendants are authorized by the Department to engage in the following hazardous waste management activities at the Facility: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 

	sampling,
	sampling,


	 (2)
	 (2)
	 (2)

	 storage,
	 storage,


	 (3) 
	 (3) 
	 (3) 

	packaging and re-packaging, 
	packaging and re-packaging, 


	(4)
	(4)
	(4)

	 bulking and consolidation of containers, and 
	 bulking and consolidation of containers, and 


	(5)  
	(5)  
	(5)  

	container crushing and equipment flushing, in accordance with the conditions set forth in the Permit.  
	container crushing and equipment flushing, in accordance with the conditions set forth in the Permit.  






	Defendants’ History of HWCL Violations at the Facility Between 2009 – 2017 Including Fires and an Explosion Due to Mixing of Incompatible Hazardous Waste and Intentional Conduct 
	36. 
	36. 
	36. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2010 Consent Order, Defendant GEM admitted to HWCL violations, including the storage
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2010 Consent Order, Defendant GEM admitted to HWCL violations, including the storage
	 of incompatibles, 
	and
	  paid
	$574,000
	in penalties.   Defendants have repeatedly stored incompatible  
	hazardous waste at the Facility in violation of the HWCL. The Department identified violations for the storage of incompatible hazardous waste in 2009, 2011, 2013, 2015, 2016, and most recently during the 2018 inspection of the Facility.  


	37. 
	37. 
	Since 2011, 
	Since 2011, 
	1
	explosion and 
	3
	 fires have occurred at the Facility due to the mixing of incompatible hazardous waste and/or intentional conduct by Defendants while managing hazardous waste.  The explosion occurred on March 8, 2011, when Defendant GEM mixed incompatible hazardous waste by bulking soluble organics with
	22
	gallons of nitric  acid into a drum, resulting in a violent and uncontrolled reaction.  The reaction 
	caused an explosion that ruptured the drum and launched it approximately
	15
	feet in the air, spraying hot, concentrated acid throughout most of the Facility’s repackaging area.  The explosion also released vapors and hazardous waste to the surrounding environment.  


	38. 
	38. 
	The first fire at the Facility occurred on August 2, 2011, when Defendant GEM mixed incompatible hazardous waste by consolidating oxidizing pool chemicals, including acids and oxidizers, into a 55-gallon drum, and then closed the drum’s lid.  Shortly thereafter, the drum began to emit a yellowish-green gas.  The drum pressurized sufficiently to blow the lid off the drum, and the drum caught fire.  The fire spread to consume a total of 
	The first fire at the Facility occurred on August 2, 2011, when Defendant GEM mixed incompatible hazardous waste by consolidating oxidizing pool chemicals, including acids and oxidizers, into a 55-gallon drum, and then closed the drum’s lid.  Shortly thereafter, the drum began to emit a yellowish-green gas.  The drum pressurized sufficiently to blow the lid off the drum, and the drum caught fire.  The fire spread to consume a total of 
	4
	plastic drums of hazardous waste.  The local fire department subsequently arrived and extinguished the fire, but their response efforts resulted in two firefighters being sent to the local hospital for observation.      


	39. 
	39. 
	The second fire at the Facility occurred in March 2013.  Beginning on February 28, 2013, Defendant GEM mixed incompatible waste by consolidating hazardous waste solids and trash into a roll-off bin. On March 3, 2013, the bin that Defendant GEM mixed hazardous waste in began to smolder.  A passerby observed flames coming from the Facility and called the fire department who arrived and extinguished the fire.  The fire, which burned for five hours and released smoke and potentially toxic constituents into the 

	40. 
	40. 
	In response to the 2011 explosion and 2011 and 2013 fires, the Department issued the 2013 ISE Order to Defendant GEM, ordering Defendant GEM to immediately cease the bulking and consolidation of all hazardous waste operations at the Facility until the Department authorized Defendant GEM to resume operations because of the “… continuing inability of Respondent [Defendant GEM] to take precautions sufficient to prevent fires, explosions, or other violent or non-violent reactions that could potentially release 
	In response to the 2011 explosion and 2011 and 2013 fires, the Department issued the 2013 ISE Order to Defendant GEM, ordering Defendant GEM to immediately cease the bulking and consolidation of all hazardous waste operations at the Facility until the Department authorized Defendant GEM to resume operations because of the “… continuing inability of Respondent [Defendant GEM] to take precautions sufficient to prevent fires, explosions, or other violent or non-violent reactions that could potentially release 
	at page 5)
	A copy of the 2013 ISE Order is attached as Exhibit D to this Complaint. The 2013 ISE Order applies to Defendant GEM, “and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, and subsidiary and parent corporations.” (2013 ISE Order at
	page 10)


	41. 
	41. 
	Defendant GEM was authorized to resume bulking and consolidation operations at the Facility on October 21, 2013 after it agreed to revise its existing Standard Operating Procedures (“SOP”) and modify the Permit to institute a safety protocol to prevent the reoccurrence of fires and explosions due to incompatibles being mixed together. Permit Part B, section V, Attachment V8-A, “Container Process Form-Permit Specific” (“Permit Process Form”) was part of the revised SOP and embodies the safety protocol that w

	42. 
	42. 
	The safety protocol required Defendants to conduct screening and/or testing for incompatible wastes prior to bulking or consolidating wastes together, to record the screening and/or testing results on the Permit Process Form, and to have a chemist or facility management personnel review the screening and/or test results to determine whether bulking or consolidation can occur.  Review and approval by the chemist or facility management would be evidenced by their respective signature on the Permit Process For

	43. 
	43. 
	The third fire at the Facility occurred on August 7, 2017.  The fire occurred when
	The third fire at the Facility occurred on August 7, 2017.  The fire occurred when
	2
	employees intentionally poured liquid naphthalene (flammable) onto paper and lit the paper on fire with a lighter where other employees were also consolidating hazardous waste and where other ignitable hazardous waste was located.       


	44. 
	44. 
	The Department also inspected the Facility in 2014, 2015, 2016, and 2017.  The Department found that Defendants violated the HWCL during each of these inspections.  The Department filed the 2017 Complaint, which included the violations at the Facility identified by the Department between 2011 and 2017.  As noted above, the violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint were resolved pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment. 


	Current Action for Violations of the HWCL in 2018 by Defendants 
	45.  
	45.  
	45.  
	45.  

	The Department’s 2018 inspection of the Facility again found multiple instances of serious and/or repeat HWCL violations by Defendants, including, 
	The Department’s 2018 inspection of the Facility again found multiple instances of serious and/or repeat HWCL violations by Defendants, including, 

	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Fifty  (50)
	50
	 instances of stored and/or failed to properly segregate incompatible hazardous waste from one another, 


	b. 
	b. 
	One hundred forty-two  (142)
	142
	 instances of failing to use the safety protocol to prevent incompatibles from being mixed together during bulking activities as required by the Permit and 2013 ISE order, 


	c. 
	c. 
	Forty-seven  (47)  
	47
	instances of storing hazardous waste beyond the Facility’s 10-day storage limit, 


	d. 
	d. 
	At least
	At least
	20
	 instances of failing to mark when hazardous waste containers became empty, 


	e. 
	e. 
	Incorrectly labeling hazardous waste during storage, 

	f. 
	f. 
	Failing to remove spills, leaks, and/or liquids from secondary containment systems, 

	g. 
	g. 
	Storing hazardous waste in containers that were not in good condition (e.g., some of the containers had structural defects) during storage, and 

	h. 
	h. 
	Forty-two (42) 
	42
	instances of failing to use the required air pollution control device (i.e., an organic air scrubber) designed to vent organic vapors, e.g., flammable vapors when bulking organic hazardous waste. 






	First Cause of Action
	FIRST  CAUSE OF ACTION  
	REPEAT VIOLATION 
	(Management of  Incompatible Wastes in Violation of
	Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66264.177, subdivisions (a) and (c) and 66270.30, subdivision (a))
	46.  
	46.  
	46.  
	46.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	47. 
	47. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	defines  
	66260.10
	“incompatible waste” as “a hazardous waste which is unsuitable for 

	(a)
	(a)
	(a)
	(a)

	 placement in a particular device or facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g., containment inner liners or tank walls); or 
	 placement in a particular device or facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g., containment inner liners or tank walls); or 


	(b)
	(b)
	(b)

	 commingling with another waste or material under uncontrolled conditions because the commingling might produce heat or pressure, fire or explosion, violent reaction, toxic dusts, mists, fumes, or gases or flammable fumes or gases.” 
	 commingling with another waste or material under uncontrolled conditions because the commingling might produce heat or pressure, fire or explosion, violent reaction, toxic dusts, mists, fumes, or gases or flammable fumes or gases.” 




	48. 
	48. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.177
	subdivision (c) provides that, a “container holding a hazardous waste that is incompatible with any waste or other materials transferred or stored nearby in other containers, piles, open tanks, or surface impoundments shall be separated from the other materials or protected from them by means of a dike, berm, wall, or other device.” 


	49. 
	49. 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and California Code of 
	Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) provides that the owner and/or operator of 
	a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 


	50. 
	50. 
	Sections VIII(D)(1)(d)(1) and VIII(E)(1) (b) of the Permit Part B requires the separation of containers of incompatible hazardous waste in Area A. 

	51. 
	51. 
	Sections VI(E)(8) and VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B prohibit containers of incompatible wastes from being placed within the same cell in Area B. In addition, section VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B requires that containers of incompatible waste stored in different cells in Area B, be segregated in accordance with California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	Sections VI(E)(8) and VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B prohibit containers of incompatible wastes from being placed within the same cell in Area B. In addition, section VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B requires that containers of incompatible waste stored in different cells in Area B, be segregated in accordance with California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.177,
	 subdivision (c).  


	52. 
	52. 
	Sections VI(G)(1) and (4) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of incompatible material within Area C. Section VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B states that Area C will follow the requirements [segregation requirements] specified in Section V, Paragraph (G)(3)(a) of the permit. 

	53. 
	53. 
	Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section
	Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66264.177,
	 subdivisions (a) and (c), and 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) and the Permit by failing to appropriately separate incompatible hazardous waste by means of a dike, berm, wall, or other device as follows: 

	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants failed in at least
	On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants failed in at least
	9
	 instances to properly separate containers of incompatible wastes such as oxidizers and flammable liquids, by a dike, berm, wall or other device in Areas B and C.  
	Health and Safety Code Section 25202, subdivision (a)
	and California
	Code of Regulatoins, Title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66264.177, subdivision (c).)


	b. 
	b. 
	On June 25, 2018, the Department requested the Facility’s daily inspection logs (“daily logs”) from January 2018 through June 2018. After reviewing the daily logs provided by the Defendants, the Department also determined that Defendants failed to separate containers of incompatible hazardous waste at least an additional
	On June 25, 2018, the Department requested the Facility’s daily inspection logs (“daily logs”) from January 2018 through June 2018. After reviewing the daily logs provided by the Defendants, the Department also determined that Defendants failed to separate containers of incompatible hazardous waste at least an additional
	41
	 times in Areas A, B, and C between January 2018 and June 2018. 
	Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, Title
	22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66264.177, subdivision (c).)


	c. 
	c. 
	This is the seventh inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that Defendant(s) improperly stored and/or failed to properly segregate incompatible hazardous waste.  Defendant(s) previously stored incompatible hazardous waste together in violation of the HWCL and the Permit Part B at the Facility in 2009, 2011, 2013, 2015, 2016, and 2017, which at times resulted in fires and explosions at the Facility.  



	54. 
	54. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202
	subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66264.177,
	 subdivisions (a) and (c), and 
	66270.30
	subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b). 


	55. 
	55. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment 
	paragraph 13).


	56. 
	56. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	 subdivision (a). 




	Second Cause of Action
	Second Cause of Action
	REPEAT VIOLATION 
	(Failure to Follow Safety Protocol Encapsulated in Permit Process Form for the Management of Ignitable, Reactive, or Incompatible Hazardous Wastes and Improper Bulking in Violation of 
	Health and Safety Code, Sections 25202, subdivision (a), 25188 and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a), 66264.17, subdivision (a) and (b), and 2013 ISE Order)
	57.  
	57.  
	57.  
	57.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	58. 
	58. 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and California Code of 
	Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) provides that the owner and/or operator of 
	a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 


	59. 
	59. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.17,
	 subdivision (a) 
	requires that an owner and/or operator of a facility take precautions to prevent accidental ignition or reaction of ignitable or reactive waste. 


	60. 
	60. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.17,
	subdivision (b) 
	requires that an owner and/or operator of a facility prevent reactions which generate extreme heat or pressure, fire or explosions, or violent reactions. 


	61. 
	61. 
	The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.2.1 of the 2013 ISE Order issued pursuant to Section 
	The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.2.1 of the 2013 ISE Order issued pursuant to Section 
	25187
	required Defendants to revise its Permit and SOP to implement a safety protocol to prevent fires and explosions or other violent or non-violent reactions that could potentially release hazardous waste to the environment by ensuring incompatible wastes are not bulked or consolidated together.  


	62. 
	62. 
	62. 
	The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.3 of the 2013 ISE Order issued pursuant 
	The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.3 of the 2013 ISE Order issued pursuant 
	to Section 
	25187
	provides that after  the Department approves the safety protocol, Defendants will    implement the  plans.  



	63. 
	63. 
	Permit Part B sections V(C)(10), V(D)(1), V(G)(1), and the Permit Process Form are part of the safety protocol instituted and required to be followed to ensure “safe and appropriate methods of handling of wastes within the facility” and ensure proper oversight for bulking and consolidation of hazardous waste. 
	Permit Part B sections V(C)(10), V(D)(1), V(G)(1), and the Permit Process Form are part of the safety protocol instituted and required to be followed to ensure “safe and appropriate methods of handling of wastes within the facility” and ensure proper oversight for bulking and consolidation of hazardous waste. 


	64. 
	64. 
	The Permit Process Form encapsulates the safety protocol Defendants are required to follow, including documenting the physical state of the hazardous waste, performing a radioactivity screen, conducting commingled hazardous waste compatibility testing before bulking hazardous waste and obtaining the signature of a chemist or facility manager who has reviewed and approved the Permit Process Form to ensure that the safety protocol has been followed, no evidence of an incompatible reaction was observed, and th

	65. 
	65. 
	Between January 1, 2018 and June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	Between January 1, 2018 and June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) and 
	66264.17,
	subdivisions (a) and (b), and the 2013 ISE Order by 
	failing to perform and/or document compliance with the safety protocol, including the comingled compatibility testing and/or failing to obtain written approval by the chemist or facility management prior to bulking wastes on at least 
	142
	occasions. 


	66. 
	66. 
	Only 
	Only 
	6
	 months earlier, on July 28, 2017, Defendants represented to the Department that it had “reinstalled” the Permit Process Form in response to a similar violation where Defendants had failed to obtain the approval of the facility chemist prior to bulking hazardous waste. In a letter to DTSC on July 28, 2017, Defendants informed the Department they had “reinstalled the permit sample form that includes signatures as a gesture of cooperation.  GEM is planning to re-work the associated approval methods and docume
	page 3).
	 A copy of the 7/28/17 Letter is attached as Exhibit F to the Complaint. 


	67. 
	67. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a),
	66264.17,
	subdivision (a) and (b), subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2
	subdivision (b). 


	68. 
	68. 
	Failure to comply with the terms of the 2013 ISE Order subjects Defendants to costs and penalties for any costs incurred by the Department resulting from Defendants failure to comply. 

	69. 
	69. 
	Health and Safety Code section
	Health and Safety Code section
	25188
	provides that any person subject to a Schedule of Compliance issued pursuant to Section
	25187
	who does not comply with that schedule shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than 
	$70,000
	for each day of noncompliance. 


	70. 
	70. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment 
	paragraph 13).


	71. 
	71. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Third Cause of Action
	Third Cause of Action
	(Failure to Use  Air Pollution Control Device  in Violation  of 
	Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, section 66270.30, subdivision (a))
	72.  
	72.  
	72.  
	72.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	73. 
	73. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	74. 
	74. 
	Section VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B requires that Defendants use the appropriate scrubber, an air pollution control device, during bulking operations.  This requirement 
	Section VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B requires that Defendants use the appropriate scrubber, an air pollution control device, during bulking operations.  This requirement 
	helps  to vent  or capture  vapors from the hazardous waste  management operations  before vapors  can  build up in the room,  be released outside of the Facility, or be harmful to employees.   


	75. 
	75. 
	Between January 2018 and June 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	Between January 2018 and June 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) by failing to use the organic scrubber at the Facility as required by the Permit at least 42 times while bulking organic hazardous waste, e.g., flammable waste inside Area C.  


	76. 
	76. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to 
	a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections
	25189,
	 subdivisions (a) and (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivisions (a) and (b). 


	77. 
	77. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	paragraph 13).


	78. 
	78. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Fourth Cause of Action
	FOURTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
	REPEAT VIOLATION  
	(Improper Storage of Hazardous Waste in Area A in V iolation of Health
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a),
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a))
	79.  
	79.  
	79.  
	79.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	80. 
	80. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	Health and Safety Code, Section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	81. 
	81. 
	Permit Part IV, Unit Area A and sections VI(D) and VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B specifies that Area A is a temporary staging area for receiving, inspecting, repackaging, and preparation of containerized waste for shipping. Hazardous waste containers can only be stored in Area A for no longer than 
	Permit Part IV, Unit Area A and sections VI(D) and VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B specifies that Area A is a temporary staging area for receiving, inspecting, repackaging, and preparation of containerized waste for shipping. Hazardous waste containers can only be stored in Area A for no longer than 
	10
	 days. 


	82. 
	82. 
	Between January 2018 and June 2018, Defendants violated the Health and Safety Code section
	Between January 2018 and June 2018, Defendants violated the Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a), and the Permit by storing hazardous waste containers in Area A for longer than
	10
	days on at least 
	47
	separate days. 


	83. 
	83. 
	This is the fourth inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that Defendant(s) improperly stored hazardous waste for longer than the 
	This is the fourth inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that Defendant(s) improperly stored hazardous waste for longer than the 
	10
	day limit in Area A. Defendant(s) previously stored hazardous waste containers for longer than the allowed 
	10
	days in Area A in violation of the HWCL, Permit, and Permit Part B in 2014, 2016, and 2017. 


	84. 
	84. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to 
	a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	 subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	85. 
	85. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	paragraph 13).


	86. 
	86. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	 subdivision (a). 




	Fifth Cause of Action
	FIFTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
	REPEAT VIOLATION 
	(Failure to  Properly Mark 
	Containers
	  in Violation of Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision
	(a), and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a), 66266.80, subdivision (a))
	87.  
	87.  
	87.  
	87.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	88. 
	88. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	(Health and Safety Code, Section 25202, subdivision (a)
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision
	(a).) 


	89. 
	89. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66266.80,
	subdivision (a)  
	requires spent 
	lead-acid
	storage batteries or their components be managed as hazardous waste (unless specifically exempted in California Code of Regulations, title 22, Chapter 16, Article 7). 


	90. 
	90. 
	Section VIII(D)(1)(f)(2) of the Permit Part B specifies that containers must be labeled with the Department of Transportation (DOT) hazard class and proper shipping description. 

	91.  
	91.  
	91.  

	On, a nd prior to, J une 25 and 26, 2018, Defendants  violated Health and Safety  Code section 
	On, a nd prior to, J une 25 and 26, 2018, Defendants  violated Health and Safety  Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a),
	66266.80,
	subdivision (a), and the  Permit Part B  by:  

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 

	improperly affixing a  universal waste label to  two fifty–five gallon drums containing “Automotive Type” spent 
	improperly affixing a  universal waste label to  two fifty–five gallon drums containing “Automotive Type” spent 
	lead
	batteries  instead of identifying the  batteries  as  hazardous waste; and 


	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 

	mislabeling  formaldehyde solution as  a DOT  Class 6 and Class 8 DOT hazardous material instead of a Class 3  DOT flammable material.  
	mislabeling  formaldehyde solution as  a DOT  Class 6 and Class 8 DOT hazardous material instead of a Class 3  DOT flammable material.  




	92. 
	92. 
	This is the third inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that Defendant(s) improperly labeled hazardous waste, including waste Automotive Type spent 
	This is the third inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that Defendant(s) improperly labeled hazardous waste, including waste Automotive Type spent 
	lead
	acid batteries.  In addition to the 2018 violations, Defendant(s) previously improperly labeled hazardous waste containers in violation of the HWCL and the Permit Part B in 2014 and 2016. 


	93. 
	93. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) and 
	66266.80
	subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189
	 subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	LI
	94. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	paragraph 13).


	95. 
	95. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	 subdivision (a). 




	Sixth Cause of Action
	SIXTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
	REPEAT VIOLATION 
	(Failure to Properly Mark Empty Containers in Violation of Health &  
	Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66261.7, subdivision (f))
	96.  
	96.  
	96.  
	96.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	97. 
	97. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a)


	98. 
	98. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66261.7,
	subdivision (f)  
	provides that a container larger than
	5
	gallons in capacity shall be marked with the date it has been emptied. 


	99. 
	99. 
	Section VIII(E)(2) of the Permit Part B requires that empty containers at a hazardous waste facility must be marked to identify them as empty.   

	100. 
	100. 
	On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code 
	On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code 
	section 
	25202,
	 subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a), and Permit Part B by failing to mark approximately 
	20 to 40
	empty containers larger than 
	5
	gallons in capacity that once held hazardous waste with the dates the containers were emptied. 


	101. 
	101. 
	101. 
	This is the fifth inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that Defendant(s) failed to mark containers to identify them as empty. Defendant(s) previously failed to mark containers to identify them as empty in violation of the HWCL and Permit Part B in 
	This is the fifth inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that Defendant(s) failed to mark containers to identify them as empty. Defendant(s) previously failed to mark containers to identify them as empty in violation of the HWCL and Permit Part B in 
	2011, 2015, 2016, and 2017. 



	102. 
	102. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) and 
	66261.7,
	subdivision (f) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	103. 
	103. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	paragraph 13).


	104. 
	104. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Seventh Cause of Action
	SEVENTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
	REPEAT VIOLATION 
	(Failure to Properly Manage Containers in Violation of  Health and Safety Code § 
	25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171, 66264.173 subdivision (b), and 66270.30, subdivision (a))
	105.  
	105.  
	105.  
	105.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	106. 
	106. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66264.171 and 66264.173
	subdivision (b) provide that containers holding hazardous waste must be in good condition and cannot be stored in a manner that may cause the containers to leak and if containers holding hazardous waste begin to leak, the owner and/or operator shall transfer the hazardous waste to a container in good condition. 


	107. 
	107. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	(Health
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision
	 (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	 (a).)  


	108. 
	108. 
	Section VIII(H)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B requires that if a container holding waste is found to be damaged during receiving or any phase of storage or processing, the operator will overpack, transfer, or re-package the container. 

	109. 
	109. 
	On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66264.171 and 66264.173
	subdivision (b) by storing hazardous waste in Areas B and C in 
	7
	separate containers with structural defects. Containers were torn, dented, or damaged. 


	110. 
	110. 
	This is the second inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that Defendant(s) used containers that were not in good condition.  In addition to the 2018 violations, Defendant(s) previously stored hazardous waste in containers that were not in good condition in violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	This is the second inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that Defendant(s) used containers that were not in good condition.  In addition to the 2018 violations, Defendant(s) previously stored hazardous waste in containers that were not in good condition in violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66264.171
	in 2016. 


	111. 
	111. 
	Each violation of  California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	Each violation of  California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66264.171 and 66264.173
	subdivision (b)
	 subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	112. 
	112. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment 
	paragraph 13).


	113. 
	113. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to and prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to and prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181
	 subdivision (a). 




	Eighth Cause of Action
	EIGHTH CAUSE  OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Properly Close Containers in Violation of  
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.173, subdivision (a))
	114.  
	114.  
	114.  
	114.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	115. 
	115. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.173,
	subdivision (a)  
	provides that containers holding hazardous waste shall always be closed during transfer and storage, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste. 


	116. 
	116. 
	On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.173,
	subdivision (a) by failing to ensure that at least 
	5
	containers of hazardous waste in Area C were closed. 


	117. 
	117. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.173
	subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25189
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code
	25189.2,
	subdivision  (b).  


	118. 
	118. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	paragraph 13).


	119. 
	119. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Ninth Cause of Action
	NINTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Remove Spilled or Leaked Hazardous Waste in a Timely Manner as Necessary in Violation of 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.175, subdivision (b)(5))
	120.  
	120.  
	120.  
	120.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	121. 
	121. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.175,
	subdivision (b)(5)  
	provide that the containment system shall be operated to drain and remove liquids resulting from leaks, spills, or precipitation and that spilled or leaked waste and accumulated precipitation shall be removed from the sump or collection area in as timely a manner is necessary. 


	122. 
	122. 
	From at least January 2018 through June 2018, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	From at least January 2018 through June 2018, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.175,
	subdivision (b)(5) by failing to operate the containment system(s) in Area C to remove spilled or leaked waste or accumulated precipitation in a timely manner. 


	123. 
	123. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22 sections
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22 sections
	66264.175,
	subdivision (b)(5) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each 
	violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	124. 
	124. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	paragraph 13).


	125. 
	125. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Tenth Cause of Action
	TENTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to  Properly Stack and Palletize Containers  in Violation of  Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a))
	126.  
	126.  
	126.  
	126.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	127. 
	127. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	(Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a))


	128. 
	128. 
	Sections VI(E)(7) and VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B require that Defendants store containers on pallets and only allows for double stacking of containers in Area B. 

	129. 
	129. 
	On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section
	On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) by triple stacking containers in Area B, Cell 5.  


	130. 
	130. 
	On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants also violated Health and Safety Code section
	On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants also violated Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30.
	subdivision (a) by stacking five-gallon buckets on top of other containers instead of placing them on pallets. In addition, Defendants’ daily logs note 
	3
	of containers stacked improperly or on broken pallets. 


	131. 
	131. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to 
	a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivisions (a) and (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	 subdivisions (a) and (b). 


	132. 
	132. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	paragraph 13.


	133. 
	133. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	 subdivision (a). 




	Eleventh Cause of Action
	ELEVENTH  CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Storage of Containers in Unauthorized Areas in Violation of Health
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a))
	134.  
	134.  
	134.  
	134.  

	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	135. 
	135. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit. 
	Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a))


	136. 
	136. 
	Section V(G)(3)(a) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of DOT class 6 poisonous liquid hazardous waste in Area B, Cell 5. Area B, Cell 5 is intended for Flammable Solids, including Water Reactives. 

	137. 
	137. 
	Section V(G)(3)(a) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of DOT Class 3 flammable hazardous waste in Area B, Cell 4. Area B, Cell 4 is intended for corrosives (alkaline) oxidizers and organic peroxides. At the time of the inspection, Area B, Cell 4 contained both corrosives (alkaline) and oxidizers. 

	138. 
	138. 
	On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code 
	On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code 
	section 
	25202,
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30
	subdivision (a), and Permit Part B by  storing  DOT Class 6  poisonous  liquid hazardous waste  (barium sulfate and  
	insulin) with flammable solids and water reactives in Area B, Cell 5 and by storing DOT Class 3 flammable hazardous waste with oxidizers in Area B, Cell 4. 


	139. 
	139. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) subjects Defendants  to 
	a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	140. 
	140. 
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action.  Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment
	paragraph 13).


	141. 
	141. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Request for Relief
	REQUEST FOR RELIEF  
	142.  
	142.  
	142.  
	142.  

	The Department requests that the Court grant the relief that follows: 
	The Department requests that the Court grant the relief that follows: 

	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Enter judgment that Defendants have violated the HWCL as set forth in the First through Eleventh Causes of Action; 

	b. 
	b. 
	Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for civil penalties for the violations set forth in the First through Eleventh Causes of Action as authorized by Health and Safety Code section 
	Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for civil penalties for the violations set forth in the First through Eleventh Causes of Action as authorized by Health and Safety Code section 
	25189
	or, in the alternative, by Health and Safety Code section
	  25189.2, 
	in an amount according to proof;  


	c. 
	c. 
	Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for enhanced civil penalties for the violations set forth in the First through Eleventh Causes of Action. In the 2018 Final Judgment, Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment 
	Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for enhanced civil penalties for the violations set forth in the First through Eleventh Causes of Action. In the 2018 Final Judgment, Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment 
	paragraph 13);


	d. 
	d. 
	d. 

	Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for costs and penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25188 and pursuant to section 5.15 of the 2013 ISE Order;   
	Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for costs and penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25188 and pursuant to section 5.15 of the 2013 ISE Order;   


	e. 
	e. 
	e. 

	Enter permanent injunctions and other orders enjoining Defendants from violating the HWCL, the Permit, and the 2013 ISE Order and requiring Defendants to otherwise comply with the HWCL, the Permit, and the 2013 ISE Order; 
	Enter permanent injunctions and other orders enjoining Defendants from violating the HWCL, the Permit, and the 2013 ISE Order and requiring Defendants to otherwise comply with the HWCL, the Permit, and the 2013 ISE Order; 


	f. 
	f. 
	f. 

	Grant the Department its costs of suit herein; and 
	Grant the Department its costs of suit herein; and 


	g. 
	g. 
	g. 

	Grant such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper. 
	Grant such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper. 





	Dated: February 14, 2020  
	Respectfully Submitted, 
	XAVIER BECERRA 
	Attorney General of California 
	MARGARITA PADILLA 
	Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
	ORIGINAL SIGNED BY ROSE FUA 
	ROSE B. FUA 
	Deputy Attorney General 
	Attorneys for Plaintiff People of the State of California, ex rel. Department of Toxic Substances Control 


	Exhibit A - 2009 Consent Order
	EXHIBIT A 
	Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief 
	People v. GEM and Stericycle 
	Introduction
	In the Matter of: 
	General Environmental Management of
	Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba PSC 
	Environmental Services of Rancho 
	Cordova, LLC 
	11855 White Rock Road 
	Rancho Cordova, CA 95742 
	EPA ID: 
	CAD980884183
	Respondent. 
	Docket HWCA 20091998 
	Consent Order 
	1. INTRODUCTION  
	1.1. Parties. 
	1.1. Parties. 
	1.1. Parties. 
	1.1. Parties. 

	The California Department of Toxic Substances Control 
	The California Department of Toxic Substances Control 
	(Department) and General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba 
	PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC (Respondent) enter into this Consent Order (Order) and agree as follows: 


	1.2. Site. 
	1.2. Site. 
	1.2. Site. 

	Respondent generates, handles, treats, stores, and/or disposes of 
	Respondent generates, handles, treats, stores, and/or disposes of 
	hazardous waste at the following site: 
	11855 White Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, CA 95742 (Site). 


	1.3. Inspection. 
	1.3. Inspection. 
	1.3. Inspection. 

	The Department inspected the Site on March 11, 19, and 23, 2009. 
	The Department inspected the Site on March 11, 19, and 23, 2009. 


	1.4. Authorization Status. 
	1.4. Authorization Status. 
	1.4. Authorization Status. 

	The Department authorized Respondent to manage hazardous waste by a Hazardous Waste Facility Permit 
	The Department authorized Respondent to manage hazardous waste by a Hazardous Waste Facility Permit 
	(HWFP)
	 issued on March 21, 2007. 


	1.5. Jurisdiction
	1.5. Jurisdiction
	1.5. Jurisdiction

	Health and Safety Code, section 25187, authorizes the Department to order action necessary to correct violations and to assess a penalty 
	Health and Safety Code, section 25187, authorizes the Department to order action necessary to correct violations and to assess a penalty 
	when the Department determines that any person has violated specified provisions of
	the Health and Safety Code or any permit, rule, regulation, standard, or requirement 
	issued or adopted pursuant thereto. 


	1.6. Full Settlement. 
	1.6. Full Settlement. 
	1.6. Full Settlement. 

	By their respective signatures below, the Parties, and each
	By their respective signatures below, the Parties, and each
	of them, agree that this Order, and all of the terms contained herein, are fair, 
	reasonable, and in the public interest. This Order shall constitute full settlement of the violations alleged below. By agreeing to this Order, the Department does not waive any
	right to take further enforcement actions within its jurisdiction and involving either the Respondent(s) or the Site, except to the extent provided in this Order.   


	1.7. Hearing. 
	1.7. Hearing. 
	1.7. Hearing. 

	Respondent waives any and all rights to a hearing in this matter.
	Respondent waives any and all rights to a hearing in this matter.


	1.8. Admissions. 
	1.8. Admissions. 
	1.8. Admissions. 

	Respondent admits the violations described below. 
	Respondent admits the violations described below. 




	Violations Alleged
	2. VIOLATIONS ALLEGED  
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 

	The Department alleges the following violations: 
	The Department alleges the following violations: 


	2.1. 
	2.1. 
	2.1. 

	Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), and section 25200.19, subdivision (c)(3); California Code of Regulations section 
	Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), and section 25200.19, subdivision (c)(3); California Code of Regulations section 
	66270.30
	subdivision (a); and, HWFP,
	Part V
	 subsection II, in that on numerous 
	occasions Respondent exceeded the permitted facility limit of 82,302 gallons of waste in containers (other than roll-off bins). Respondent also stored hazardous waste on 
	transport vehicles which, if unloaded, would exceed the permitted capacity of the originating unit at the hazardous waste facility. 


	2.2. 
	2.2. 
	2.2. 

	Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a); California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a); California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30
	subdivision (a); and, HWFP Operations Plan Section
	 VI (C), 
	in that on multiple occasions Respondent stored hazardous waste in the Loading and Unloading Areas overnight. Respondent’s Operation Plan specifies that waste will not be left in the Loading and Unloading Area, outside of a truck, overnight. 


	2.3. 
	2.3. 
	2.3. 

	Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25201, subdivision (a); section 25202, subdivision (a); and, California Code of Regulations, title 22,
	Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25201, subdivision (a); section 25202, subdivision (a); and, California Code of Regulations, title 22,
	66270.30
	subdivision (a); and, HWFP Operation Plan Section 
	VIII(F)(1), 
	in that on multiple occasions Respondent stored hazardous waste in loaded trailers outside the boundary 
	of the permitted facility. Respondent also moved loaded transport vehicles out of the 
	Loading and Unloading Areas before the generator or transporter signed the manifests. 


	2.4. 
	2.4. 
	2.4. 

	Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25200.19, subdivision (c)(1), in that on numerous occasions hazardous waste moved into the Loading and 
	Respondent violated Health & Safety Code, section 25200.19, subdivision (c)(1), in that on numerous occasions hazardous waste moved into the Loading and 
	Unloading Area was not moved directly between trucks and the authorized units and was left in the Loading and Unloading Area for more than that incidental period of time 
	that is necessary to safely and effectively move the waste between the transport vehicle 
	and the authorized unit. The area was used for more than just the loading and unloading of trucks. Containers in the Loading and Unloading Area were generally 
	sampled, fingerprinted, marked and labeled, and then placed into the appropriate hazardous waste management unit for storage. 


	2.5. 
	2.5. 
	2.5. 

	Respondent violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	Respondent violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.177
	 subdivision (c), in that a drum labeled as “oxidizer” was stored on a wooden 
	pallet without secondary containment in Unit C while Respondent staff were 
	consolidating flammable hazardous waste nearby. 




	Schedule for Compliance
	3. SCHEDULE FOR COMPLIANCE  
	3. 
	3. 
	3. 
	3. 

	Respondent shall comply with the following: 
	Respondent shall comply with the following: 


	3.1.1. 
	3.1.1. 
	3.1.1. 

	Respondent has returned to compliance in regard to violations alleged. 
	Respondent has returned to compliance in regard to violations alleged. 


	3.1.2. 
	3.1.2. 
	3.1.2. 

	Respondent shall maintain records documenting the volumes of hazardous waste within the facility and shall maintain the ability to provide 
	Respondent shall maintain records documenting the volumes of hazardous waste within the facility and shall maintain the ability to provide 
	documentation of the volume of hazardous waste at the facility from the effective date of the Order to present day of operation as part of the facility’s operating record pursuant 
	to California Code of Regulations, title 22, 
	66264.73
	until closure of the facility.  The hazardous waste volume may be substantiated either by maintaining daily hard copy 
	reports or by maintaining the ability to generate and print a report from the electronic operating record for any date. The report shall list the volume of waste in each 
	individual permitted unit, the loading and unloading area, inbound trailers, outbound trailers, and the total facility, each separately. The report shall assume all containers 
	are full for the purpose of calculating compliance with permitted unit and total facility capacity. The total volume of waste at the facility shall include waste loaded on inbound 
	or outbound trailers that are at the facility, and listed on a Hazardous Waste Manifest 
	specifying the facility as the Generator or Designated Facility.  Respondent shall, within 
	sixty days of the effective date of this Order, submit a permit modification request to  
	include the above as part of the operating record requirement of its hazardous waste 
	facility permit. 


	3.1.3. 
	3.1.3. 
	3.1.3. 

	Respondent shall, at all times, comply with its Operation Plan, Sections 
	Respondent shall, at all times, comply with its Operation Plan, Sections 
	VIII E 1 b and VI D 6 b
	 which state that incoming waste will be moved into Area A for processing and outgoing waste will be moved into Area A for staging.  These hazardous 
	waste handling processes shall not take place in the Loading and Unloading Area. Respondent shall conduct hazardous waste unloading and loading operations in 
	accordance with Section 
	VI-4 
	of the Operations Plan and California Health & Safety Code Section 
	25200.19. 


	3.1.4. 
	3.1.4. 
	3.1.4. 

	Respondent shall make all payments at the 
	Respondent shall make all payments at the 
	times
	and in accord with any other conditions set forth in Section 5 (Penalty) below. 


	3.2. Submittals. 
	3.2. Submittals. 
	3.2. Submittals. 

	All submittals from Respondent pursuant to this Order shall be sent to
	All submittals from Respondent pursuant to this Order shall be sent to
	Paul S. Kewin
	Supervising Hazardous Substances Scientist I  
	Department of Toxic Substances Control  
	8800 Cal Center Drive  
	Sacramento, California 95826-3200  


	3.3. Communications. 
	3.3. Communications. 
	3.3. Communications. 

	All approvals and decisions of the Department made regarding such submittals and notifications shall be communicated to Respondent in 
	All approvals and decisions of the Department made regarding such submittals and notifications shall be communicated to Respondent in 
	writing by the appropriate Branch Chief, or his/her designee.  No informal advice, guidance, suggestions, or comments by the Department shall relieve Respondent of its 
	obligation to obtain required formal approvals. 


	3.4. Department Review and Approval. 
	3.4. Department Review and Approval. 
	3.4. Department Review and Approval. 

	If the Department determines that any 
	If the Department determines that any 
	report, plan, schedule, or other document submitted for approval pursuant to this Order
	fails to comply with this Order or fails to protect public health or safety or the 
	environment, the Department may: 

	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Modify the document and approve the document as modified, or  

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Return the document to Respondent with recommended changes and a date by which Respondent must submit to the Department a revised document incorporating the recommended changes. 



	3.5. Compliance with Applicable Laws. 
	3.5. Compliance with Applicable Laws. 
	3.5. Compliance with Applicable Laws. 

	Respondent shall carry out this Order in
	Respondent shall carry out this Order in
	compliance with all local, State, and federal requirements, including but not limited to 
	requirements to obtain permits and to assure worker safety. 


	3.6. Endangerment during Implementation. 
	3.6. Endangerment during Implementation. 
	3.6. Endangerment during Implementation. 

	In the event that the Department determines that any circumstance or activity (whether or not pursued in compliance with
	In the event that the Department determines that any circumstance or activity (whether or not pursued in compliance with
	this Order) is creating an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfareof people on the Site, in the surrounding area, or to the environment, the Department 
	may order Respondent to stop further implementation of this Order for such period of 
	time as is needed to abate the endangerment. Any deadline in this Order directly affected by a Stop Work Order under this section shall be extended by the term of such
	Stop Work Order. 


	3.7. Liability. 
	3.7. Liability. 
	3.7. Liability. 

	Nothing in this Order shall constitute or be construed as a
	Nothing in this Order shall constitute or be construed as a
	satisfaction or release from liability for any conditions or claims arising as a result of
	Respondent’s operations, except as provided in this Order.  Notwithstanding
	compliance with the terms of this Order, Respondent may be required to take such 
	further actions as are necessary to protect public health or welfare, or the environment. 


	3.8. Site Access. 
	3.8. Site Access. 
	3.8. Site Access. 

	Access to the Site shall be provided at all reasonable times to employees, contractors, and consultants of the Department, and any other agency 
	Access to the Site shall be provided at all reasonable times to employees, contractors, and consultants of the Department, and any other agency 
	having jurisdiction. The Department and its authorized representatives shall have the authority to enter and move freely about all property at the Site at all reasonable times 
	for purposes including but not limited to: inspecting records, operating logs, and 
	contracts relating to the Site; reviewing the progress of Respondent in carrying out the terms of this Order; and conducting such tests as the Department may deem necessary. 
	 Nothing in this Order is intended to limit in any way the right of entry or inspection that any agency may otherwise have by operation of any law. 


	3.9. 
	3.9. 
	3.9. 

	Sampling, Data, and Document Availability. 
	Sampling, Data, and Document Availability. 

	3.9.1. 
	3.9.1. 
	3.9.1. 
	3.9.1. 

	Respondent shall permit the Department and/or its authorized representatives to inspect and copy all sampling, testing, monitoring, and/or other data 
	Respondent shall permit the Department and/or its authorized representatives to inspect and copy all sampling, testing, monitoring, and/or other data 
	(including, without limitation, the results of any such sampling, testing and monitoring) 
	generated by Respondent, or on Respondent's behalf, in any way pertaining to work undertaken pursuant to this Order. 


	3.9.2. 
	3.9.2. 
	3.9.2. 

	Respondent shall allow the Department and/or its authorized representatives to take duplicates or splits of any samples collected by Respondent 
	Respondent shall allow the Department and/or its authorized representatives to take duplicates or splits of any samples collected by Respondent 
	pursuant to this Order. Respondent shall maintain a central depository of the data, reports, and other documents prepared pursuant to this Order.  All such data, reports, 
	and other documents shall be preserved by Respondent for a minimum of six years 
	after the conclusion of all activities under this Order. 


	3.9.3. 
	3.9.3. 
	3.9.3. 

	If the Department requests that some or all of these documents be preserved for a longer period of time, Respondent shall either: 
	If the Department requests that some or all of these documents be preserved for a longer period of time, Respondent shall either: 

	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	comply with that request, 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	deliver the documents to the Department, or 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	notify the Department in writing at least six months prior to destroying any documents prepared pursuant to this Order and permit the Department to copy the documents prior to destruction. 



	3.10. Government Liabilities. 
	3.10. Government Liabilities. 
	3.10. Government Liabilities. 

	Neither the State of California nor the Department shall be liable for injuries or damages to persons or property resulting from acts or omissions by Respondent, or related parties, in carrying out activities pursuant to this 
	Neither the State of California nor the Department shall be liable for injuries or damages to persons or property resulting from acts or omissions by Respondent, or related parties, in carrying out activities pursuant to this 
	Order. Neither the State of California nor the Department shall be held as a party to any contract entered into by Respondent or its agents in carrying out activities pursuant to the Order


	3.11. Incorporation of Plans and Reports. 
	3.11. Incorporation of Plans and Reports. 
	3.11. Incorporation of Plans and Reports. 

	All plans, schedules, and reports that were submitted by Respondent pursuant to the violations set forth above, and/or this 
	All plans, schedules, and reports that were submitted by Respondent pursuant to the violations set forth above, and/or this 
	schedule for compliance, and were approved by the Department are hereby incorporated into this Order.


	3.12. Extension Requests. 
	3.12. Extension Requests. 
	3.12. Extension Requests. 

	If Respondent is unable to perform any activity or submit any document within the time required under this Order, the Respondent may, 
	If Respondent is unable to perform any activity or submit any document within the time required under this Order, the Respondent may, 
	prior to expiration of the time, request an extension of time in writing.  The extension request shall include a justification for the delay. 


	3.13. Extension Approvals. 
	3.13. Extension Approvals. 
	3.13. Extension Approvals. 

	If the Department determines that good cause exists for an extension, it will grant the request and specify in writing a new compliance schedule. 
	If the Department determines that good cause exists for an extension, it will grant the request and specify in writing a new compliance schedule. 






	Other Provisions
	4. OTHER PROVISIONS  
	4.1. Penalties for Noncompliance. 
	4.1. Penalties for Noncompliance. 
	4.1. Penalties for Noncompliance. 
	4.1. Penalties for Noncompliance. 

	Failure to comply with the terms of this Order may subject Respondent to costs, penalties and/or damages, as provided by Health and Safety Code, section 25188, and other applicable provisions of law. 
	Failure to comply with the terms of this Order may subject Respondent to costs, penalties and/or damages, as provided by Health and Safety Code, section 25188, and other applicable provisions of law. 


	4.2. Parties Bound. 
	4.2. Parties Bound. 
	4.2. Parties Bound. 

	This Order shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, 
	This Order shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, 
	trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, and subsidiary and parent corporations, and upon the Department and any successor 
	agency that may have responsibility for and jurisdiction over the subject matter of this Order. 


	4.3. Privileges. 
	4.3. Privileges. 
	4.3. Privileges. 

	Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require any party to waive any privilege. However, the assertion of any privilege shall not relieve any party of its obligations under this Order. 
	Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require any party to waive any privilege. However, the assertion of any privilege shall not relieve any party of its obligations under this Order. 


	4.4. Time Periods. 
	4.4. Time Periods. 
	4.4. Time Periods. 

	“Days” for the purpose of this Order means calendar days. 
	“Days” for the purpose of this Order means calendar days. 


	4.5. Captions and Headings. 
	4.5. Captions and Headings. 
	4.5. Captions and Headings. 

	Captions and headings used herein are for convenience only and shall not be used in construing this Order. 
	Captions and headings used herein are for convenience only and shall not be used in construing this Order. 


	4.6. Severability. 
	4.6. Severability. 
	4.6. Severability. 

	If any provision of this Order is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, unlawful, void or unenforceable, then such provision 
	If any provision of this Order is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, unlawful, void or unenforceable, then such provision 
	shall be enforced to the extent that it is not illegal, invalid, unlawful, void, or unenforceable, and the remainder of this Order shall continue in full force and effect.   


	4.7. Entire Agreement. 
	4.7. Entire Agreement. 
	4.7. Entire Agreement. 

	This Order contains the entire and only understanding between the Parties regarding the subject matter contained herein and shall supercede 
	This Order contains the entire and only understanding between the Parties regarding the subject matter contained herein and shall supercede 
	any and all prior and/or contemporaneous oral or written negotiations, agreements, representations and understandings and may not be amended, supplemented, or 
	modified, except as provided in this Order.  The Parties understand and agree that in 
	entering into this Order, the Parties are not relying on any representations not expressly contained in this Order. 


	4.8. Counterparts. 
	4.8. Counterparts. 
	4.8. Counterparts. 

	This Order may be executed and delivered in any number of counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same document. 
	This Order may be executed and delivered in any number of counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same document. 


	4.9. Non-Waiver. 
	4.9. Non-Waiver. 
	4.9. Non-Waiver. 

	The failure by one party to require performance of any provision shall not affect that party's right to require performance at any time thereafter, 
	The failure by one party to require performance of any provision shall not affect that party's right to require performance at any time thereafter, 
	nor shall a waiver of any breach or default of this Contract constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 




	Penalty
	5. PENALTY  
	5.1. 
	5.1. 
	5.1. 
	5.1. 

	Respondent shall pay the Department the total sum of $600,000 which includes $26,000 as reimbursement of the Department's costs incurred in connection with this matter. 
	Respondent shall pay the Department the total sum of $600,000 which includes $26,000 as reimbursement of the Department's costs incurred in connection with this matter. 


	5.2. 
	5.2. 
	5.2. 

	Payment is due as follows: 
	Payment is due as follows: 

	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	is due and payable within 30 days from the effective date of this order. $200,000, of which $174,000 is penalty and $26,000 is reimbursement, 

	b. 
	b. 
	$200,000 is due and payable on December 31, 2010. 

	c. 
	c. 
	$200,000 is due and payable on April 8, 2011. 



	5.3. 
	5.3. 
	5.3. 

	Respondent's 
	Respondent's 
	check(s) 
	shall be made payable to Department of Toxic Substances Control, shall identify the Respondent and Docket Number, as shown in the 
	caption of this case, and shall be delivered together with the attached Payment Voucher to: 
	Department of Toxic Substances Control
	Accounting Office
	1001 I Street, 21st Floor
	P.O Box 806
	Sacramento, California 95812-0806 
	A photocopy of the
	 check(s) 
	shall be sent to
	Paul S. Kewin
	Unit Chief
	Enforcement & Emergency Response Program
	Department of Toxic Substances Control
	8800 Cal Center Drive
	Sacramento, California 95826-3200
	and Joseph F. Smith
	Senior Staff Counsel 
	Office of Legal Counsel
	Department of Toxic Substances Control
	1001 I Street, MS 23A
	Post Office Box 806
	Sacramento, California 95812-0806


	5.4. 
	5.4. 
	5.4. 

	If Respondent fails to make payment as provided above, Respondent agrees to pay interest at the rate established pursuant to Health and Safety Code 
	If Respondent fails to make payment as provided above, Respondent agrees to pay interest at the rate established pursuant to Health and Safety Code 
	section 25360.1 and to pay all costs incurred by the Department in pursuing collection including attorney's fees. 




	Public Comment
	6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
	6. 
	6. 
	6. 
	6. 

	This Order shall be subject to a public comment period for not less than 30 days after execution by the parties. DTSC may modify or withdraw its consent to the Order if comments received disclose facts or considerations that indicate that the Order is inappropriate, improper, or inadequate. 
	This Order shall be subject to a public comment period for not less than 30 days after execution by the parties. DTSC may modify or withdraw its consent to the Order if comments received disclose facts or considerations that indicate that the Order is inappropriate, improper, or inadequate. 




	Effective Date
	7. EFFECTIVE DATE 
	7. 
	7. 
	7. 
	7. 

	The Effective Date of the Order shall be the last day of the public comment period set forth in Section 6 above, unless the Department notifies the Respondent within five days of the end of the public comment period of its intent to modify or· withdraw its consent to the Order. 
	The Effective Date of the Order shall be the last day of the public comment period set forth in Section 6 above, unless the Department notifies the Respondent within five days of the end of the public comment period of its intent to modify or· withdraw its consent to the Order. 



	Dated: September 29, 2010 
	Signature:  Original signed by Deborah S. Huston
	Print: Deborah S. Huston, General Counsel and Secretary 
	General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC 
	Respondent 
	Dated: October 12, 2010 
	Original signed by Gale Filter 
	Gale Filter 
	Deputy Director 
	Enforcement and Emergency Response Program Department of Toxic Substances Control 


	Exhibit B - 2017 Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief 
	Exhibit B
	Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief 
	People v. GEM and Stericycle 
	Introduction
	SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
	COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 
	PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF 
	CALIFORNIA, EX REL. BARBARA A. LEE, 
	DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC 
	SUBSTANCES CONTROL, 
	v. 
	GENERAL ENVIRONMENT AL 
	MANAGEMENT OF RANCHO CORDOVA LLC 
	OBA PSC 
	ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES OF RANCHO CORDOVA, LLC, 
	STERICYCLE
	 ENVIRONMENT AL 
	SOLUTIONS, INC., STERICYCLE, INC., 
	AND DOES 1 THROUGH 10, INCLUSIVE, 
	CaseNo. 
	COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
	(Health and Safety Code sections 2518 l, 25184, 25189, and 25189.2) 
	(Health and Safety Code sections 2518 l, 25184, 25189, and 25189.2) 

	Plaintiff, the People of the State of California, ex rel. Barbara A. Lee, Director, Department of Toxic Substances Control (“Department”), alleges the following: 

	Statement of the Case
	STATEMENT OF THE CASE  
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Defendants General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC; Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc.; Stericycle, Inc.; and DOES 1 through 10 (collectively, “Defendants”), at all times relevant to this Complaint, owned, operated, and managed the hazardous waste treatment and storage facility located at 11855 White Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, California (referred to as the “Facility”). 

	2. 
	2. 
	On and prior to March 8, 2011, and continuing through the present, Defendants have violated the Hazardous Waste Control Law, chapter 6.5 of division 20 of the Health and Safety Code (“HWCL”), and its implementing regulations by managing hazardous waste without complying with the applicable laws and regulations. 

	3. 
	3. 
	The Department hereby seeks injunctive relief against and civil penalties from Defendants for violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations. 



	Plaintiff
	PLAINTIFF 
	4. 
	4. 
	4. 
	4. 
	The Department is a state agency organized and existing pursuant to sections 
	The Department is a state agency organized and existing pursuant to sections 
	58000
	et seq. of the California Health and Safety Code. The Department is the state agency responsible for administering and enforcing the HWCL and its implementing regulations set forth in the California Code of Regulations, title 22, division 4.5, section 
	66260.1
	 et seq. (“Title 22”). 


	5. 
	5. 
	Barbara A. Lee is the Director of the Department. 

	6. 
	6. 
	Health and Safety Code sections
	Health and Safety Code sections
	25181,
	subdivision (a), and 
	25182,
	authorize the Attorney General of the State of California, at the request of the Department, to commence an action in the name of the People of the State of California for civil penalties and injunctive relief under the HWCL.  The Department has requested the Attorney General to apply to this Court for 
	injunctive relief and civil penalties pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 
	25182, 25184, 25189, and 25189.2
	for violations of the HWCL by  Defendants. 





	Defendants
	DEFENDANTS  
	7. 
	7. 
	7. 
	Based on information and belief, Defendant General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC (“GEM”) owned and operated the Facility from at least 2011 and did business under the name PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC. 

	8. 
	8. 
	Based on information and belief, Defendant Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. (“Stericycle Environmental”) or Defendant Stericycle, Inc. (“Stericycle, Inc.”), or both, owned and/or operated the Facility from 2014 to at least the date of the filing of the Complaint.  Stericycle Environmental and Stericycle, Inc. will be collectively referred to as “Stericycle.”  

	9. 
	9. 
	GEM and Stericycle will collectively be referred to as “Defendants”.  Because the Department does not know when the ownership/operational control of the Facility may have changed from GEM to Stericycle because neither GEM or Stericycle followed the requirements for a change in ownership/operational control, the Department is alleging for certain violations that “Defendants” are responsible. 

	10. 
	10. 
	When reference is made in this Complaint to any act of Defendants, such allegation shall mean that the officers, directors, employees, agents, or representatives of Defendants did, or authorized, such acts or intentionally and/or negligently failed to adequately or properly supervise, control, or direct their employees and/or agents while engaged in the management, direction, operation, or control of the affairs of the Facility. 

	11. 
	11. 
	Defendants are “persons” as that term is defined by Health and Safety Code section 
	Defendants are “persons” as that term is defined by Health and Safety Code section 
	25118.


	12. 
	12. 
	The names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, or otherwise, of defendants named herein as Does 1 through 10, inclusive, are unknown at this time to the Department.  The Department therefore sues said defendants by such fictitious names.  The Department will seek leave to amend this Complaint to show their true names and capacities when the names have been ascertained.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that each defendant designated as a DOE defendant is responsible, 

	13. 
	13. 
	Each reference in this Complaint to “Defendants” refers not only to the named Defendants, but also all DOE defendants sued under fictitious names. 



	Jurisdiction and Venue
	JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
	14. 
	14. 
	14. 
	This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to California Constitution Article VI, section 10 and Health and Safety Code section 
	This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to California Constitution Article VI, section 10 and Health and Safety Code section 
	25181.


	15. 
	15. 
	Defendants and the Department have agreed to five tolling agreements with respect to any applicable statute of limitations.  Accordingly, none of the violations alleged herein are time-barred.  This Complaint has been timely filed with respect to all violations alleged. 

	16. 
	16. 
	Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25183
	 in that the violations at issue occurred at the Facility, which is in Sacramento County. 


	17. 
	17. 
	This action is an unlimited civil case because the amount of penalties requested exceeds $25,000 and because none of the Plaintiff’s causes of action meets the criteria for limited civil cases in the Code of Civil Procedure. 



	Statutory and Regulatory Background
	STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND 
	18. 
	18. 
	18. 
	The State of California has enacted a comprehensive statutory and regulatory framework for the generation, handling, treatment, transport, and disposal of hazardous wastes. The framework contained in the HWCL, and its implementing regulations, mandate a “cradle to grave” registration, tracking, storage, treatment, and disposal system for the protection of the public from the risks posed by hazardous wastes and for the protection of the environment—i.e., soil, air, surface water, groundwater—from contaminati

	19. 
	19. 
	Pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections
	Pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections
	25101,
	subdivision (d) and
	25159-
	25159.9,
	California administers the HWCL in lieu of federal administration of the federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), which is codified at 42 United States Code sections 6901 et seq.  Federal law prohibits California from imposing any requirements less stringent than those authorized under RCRA. (42 U.S.C. § 6929.)  Certain provisions in the HWCL are stricter than the analogous provisions in RCRA. 


	20.
	20.
	The HWCL charges the Department with the responsibility to adopt standards andregulations for the management of hazardous waste to protect the public health and environment.  (Health & Saf. Code
	The HWCL charges the Department with the responsibility to adopt standards andregulations for the management of hazardous waste to protect the public health and environment.  (Health & Saf. Code
	section 25150.)
	 Accordingly, the Department has promulgated regulations setting forth numerous and extensive environmental and health protective requirements for the day-to
	day operation of hazardous waste generators, transporters, owners, and operators of hazardous waste facilities.  
	(See California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.1
	 et seq.) 


	21.
	21.
	The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 
	The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 
	25201,
	subdivision (a), provides that
	an owner or operator of a hazardous waste management facility may not “accept, treat, store, or dispose of a hazardous waste at the facility, area, or site, unless the owner or operator holds a hazardous waste facilities permit or other grant of authorization from the Department to use and operate the facility, area, or site . . ..” 


	22.
	22.
	The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section
	The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section
	25200,
	subdivision (a), authorizes the
	Department to issue operating permits, called hazardous waste facilities permits, to the owners and operators of facilities managing hazardous wastes. 


	23.
	23.
	The HWCL and its implementing regulations each require that the owner andoperator of a hazardous waste facility comply with the provisions of the facility’s hazardous waste management permit. 
	a.
	a.
	a.
	Health and Safety Code section
	Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) requires the owner oroperator of 
	a hazardous  waste facility who holds  a hazardous
	 waste facilities
	permit to “comply with the conditions of [that] permit.”


	b.
	b.
	Title 22, section 
	Title 22, section 
	66270.30
	subdivision (a) requires that the “permittee comply
	with the conditions of the permit” and specifies
	 that any ‘noncompliance
	constitutes a violation of the [HWCL] and is 
	grounds for” enforcement.


	c.
	c.
	Reference made in this Complaint to any section or part of the Permit shallmean the section(s) or part(s) of the Permit that existed at the time theviolation(s) occurred as alleged in this Complaint.





	Enforcement Authority Under the HWCL
	ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY UNDER THE HWCL 
	24. 
	24. 
	24. 
	The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose civil penalties under two distinct and alternative statutory provisions.  Section 
	The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose civil penalties under two distinct and alternative statutory provisions.  Section 
	25189
	of the Health and Safety Code creates liability for any negligent or intentional violation of the HWCL.  Section
	25189.2
	is a strict liability provision, which creates liability for any violation of the HWCL.  A person may not be held liable for a civil penalty under both section 
	25189
	and section 
	25189.2
	 for the same 
	act.
	Health and Safety Code, section 25189.2, subdivision (f).)


	25. 
	25. 
	The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a civil 
	The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a civil 
	penalty of up to
	$25,000
	 for each violation of a  separate provision of the  HWCL  and/or  
	implementing regulations.  For continuing violations, the HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a penalty of up to
	$25,000
	 for each day that a violation continues. 
	Health and Safety Code, sections 25189, subdivision (b) and 25189.2, subdivision (b).)


	26. 
	26. 
	The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code sections 
	The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code sections 
	25181 and 25184,
	authorizes and directs the Court to enjoin any ongoing or potential violation of the HWCL. 


	27. 
	27. 
	Section 
	Section 
	25181
	of the Health and Safety Code provides that when the Department determines that any person has engaged in, is engaged in, or is about to engage in any acts or practices that constitute or will constitute a violation of any provision of the HWCL or any rule or requirement issued or promulgated thereunder, and when requested by the Department, the Attorney General may make application to the superior court for an order enjoining such acts or practices, or for an order directing compliance, and upon a showing 


	28. 
	28. 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	25184
	provides that in civil actions brought pursuant to the HWCL in which an injunction or temporary restraining order is sought: 
	It shall not be necessary to allege or prove at any stage of the proceeding thatirreparable damage will occur should the temporary restraining order, preliminaryinjunction, or permanent injunction not be issued; or that the remedy at law isinadequate, and the temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, or permanentinjunction shall issue without such allegations and without such proof. 




	General Allegations
	GENERAL ALLEGATIONS  
	29. 
	29. 
	29. 
	The Facility is situated on a 4.5-acre parcel adjacent to White Rock Road and is identified by Sacramento County Assessor Parcel Number 072-0530-001.  The Facility includes, but is not limited to, an administrative building, a lab, truck parking, five hazardous waste management units known as areas A, B, C, D, and a drum crusher unit.  The drum crusher hazardous waste unit is currently undergoing closure. 

	30. 
	30. 
	At the times relevant to this Complaint, one or more of the Defendants owned and/or operated the Facility. 

	31. 
	31. 
	Defendants have operated and continue to operate the Facility as an active permitted hazardous waste storage and treatment facility.  The Facility has a permitted capacity of approximately 82,320 gallons of hazardous waste.  The Facility’s current hazardous waste permit, (“Permit”), which also incorporates by reference the Part A and Part B permit application (“Permit Part A” and “Permit Part B”), was issued by the Department on April 25, 2007 and was subsequently modified.  The Permit expired on April 25, 

	32. 
	32. 
	Defendants continue to operate the Facility pending the Department’s review of a permit renewal application submitted to the Department in October 2016. 

	33. 
	33. 
	The Facility is authorized by the Department to engage in sampling, storage, packaging, re-packaging, and bulking and consolidation in containers of RCRA, non-RCRA, and Toxic Substance Control Act waste, as well as container crushing and equipment flushing.  After storage, bulk liquid and containerized hazardous waste are transferred off-site to an end user (recycler) or to an off-site permitted disposal facility. 

	34. 
	34. 
	On October 12, 2010, the Department and Defendant GEM entered into a Consent Order (“2010 Consent Order”), pursuant to which Defendant GEM admitted to HWCL violations identified by the Department during the Department’s March 2009 inspection of the Facility.  Defendants have since violated the 2010 Consent Order.  

	35. 
	35. 
	Since 2011, one explosion and three fires have occurred at the Facility due to the mismanagement of hazardous waste by Defendants.  The explosion occurred on March 8, 2011, when Defendant GEM consolidated soluble organics with 22 gallons of nitric acid into a drum, 
	Since 2011, one explosion and three fires have occurred at the Facility due to the mismanagement of hazardous waste by Defendants.  The explosion occurred on March 8, 2011, when Defendant GEM consolidated soluble organics with 22 gallons of nitric acid into a drum, 
	resulting in a violent and uncontrolled reaction.  The reaction caused an explosion that ruptured the drum and launched it approximately 15 feet in the air, spraying hot, concentrated acid throughout most of the  Facility’s repackaging area.  The explosion also released vapors and hazardous waste to the surrounding e nvironment.  The Department commenced an inspection of  the Facility that same day, arriving while the fire  trucks were still at the Facility responding to the  explosion.  Department staff re


	36. 
	36. 
	The first fire at the Facility occurred on August 2, 2011, when Defendant GEM consolidated oxidizing pool chemicals, including trichloroisocyanuric acid and hypochlorites, into a 55-gallon drum, and then closed the drum’s lid.  Shortly thereafter, the drum began to emit a yellowish green gas.  The drum pressurized sufficiently to blow the lid off the drum, and the drum caught fire.  The fire spread to consume a total of four plastic drums of hazardous waste.  The local fire department subsequently arrived a

	37. 
	37. 
	The second fire at the Facility occurred in March 2013.  Beginning on February 28, 2013, Defendant GEM consolidated hazardous waste solids and trash into a roll-off bin. On March 3, 2013, the bin began to smolder.  A passerby observed flames coming from the Facility and called the fire department who arrived and extinguished the fire.  The fire, which burned for five hours and released smoke and potentially toxic constituents into the environment, was caused by an exothermic reaction that occurred from mixi
	The second fire at the Facility occurred in March 2013.  Beginning on February 28, 2013, Defendant GEM consolidated hazardous waste solids and trash into a roll-off bin. On March 3, 2013, the bin began to smolder.  A passerby observed flames coming from the Facility and called the fire department who arrived and extinguished the fire.  The fire, which burned for five hours and released smoke and potentially toxic constituents into the environment, was caused by an exothermic reaction that occurred from mixi
	Summary of Violations that was signed on April  11, 2013 and an Inspection Report that was  signed on May 6, 2013.    


	38. 
	38. 
	In response to the 2011 explosion and 2011 and 2013 fires, the Department issued an Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination and Enforcement Order (“2013 ISE Order”) to Defendant GEM, ordering Defendant GEM to immediately cease all hazardous waste consolidation operations at the Facility until the Department authorized Defendant GEM to resume operations.  Defendant GEM was authorized to resume consolidation operations in Area C and Area D of the Facility on October 21, 2013.  Defendants have sinc

	39. 
	39. 
	The third fire at the Facility occurred on August 7, 2017.  The fire occurred when two employees deliberately poured liquid naphthalene onto paper and lit the paper on fire with a lighter.  In response, on October 6, 2017, the Department sent an Information Request letter to Defendants requesting additional information related to the fire at the Facility (“2017 Information Request”).  The Department determined that Defendant(s) violated the HWCL and issued a Summary of Violations on October 25, 2017.     

	40. 
	40. 
	In addition to the inspections that the Department conducted and the information it requested in response to the 2011 explosion and the 2011, 2013, and 2017 fires, the Department also inspected the Facility in 2014, 2015, 2016, and 2017.  The Department determined that Defendants violated the HWCL during each of these inspections and issued a Summary of Violations that were signed on March 19, 2014, May 12, 2015, May 11, 2016, and June 27, 2017 and Inspection Reports that were signed on May 6, 2014, July 19



	First Cause of Action
	FIRST CAUSE OF  ACTION  
	(Failure to Maintain and Operate in a Manner that Minimizes the Possibility  of  a Fire, Explosion or Any Unplanned Release of Hazardous Waste in Violation of
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66264.31, 66264.175, subdivision (b)(5) and (6), 66264.177, subdivision (a), and 66264.17, subdivision (a) and (b), Health and Safety Code sections 25189.5, subdivision (a) and 25201, subdivision (a) Against Defendants)
	41. 
	41. 
	41. 
	41. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	42. 
	42. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.31
	provides that facilities must 
	be maintained and operated to minimize the possibility of a fire, explosion, or an unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents to air, soil, or surface water which could threaten human health or the environment.  


	43. 
	43. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.177,
	 subdivision (a) provides that, incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials, shall not be placed in the same 
	container, unless California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.17,
	subdivision (b) is 
	complied with.   


	44. 
	44. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.17,
	subdivision (a) provides 
	that the owner or operator of hazardous waste facility shall take precautions to prevent accidental ignition or reaction of ignitable or reactive waste. 


	45. 
	45. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.17,
	subdivision (b) provides 
	that “the transfer, treatment, storage, or disposal of ignitable or reactive waste, and the mixture or commingling of incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials, shall be conducted so that it does not: 
	(1)
	(1)
	(1)
	(1)

	 generate extreme heat or pressure, fire or explosion, or violent reaction; 
	 generate extreme heat or pressure, fire or explosion, or violent reaction; 


	(2)  
	(2)  
	(2)  

	produce uncontrolled toxic mists, fumes, dusts, or gases, in sufficient quantities to threaten human health and the environment; 
	produce uncontrolled toxic mists, fumes, dusts, or gases, in sufficient quantities to threaten human health and the environment; 


	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 

	produce uncontrolled flammable fumes or gases in sufficient quantities to pose a risk of fire or explosions; 
	produce uncontrolled flammable fumes or gases in sufficient quantities to pose a risk of fire or explosions; 


	(4)
	(4)
	(4)

	 damage the structural integrity of the device or facility containing the waste; or 
	 damage the structural integrity of the device or facility containing the waste; or 


	(5)
	(5)
	(5)

	 through other like means threaten human health or the environment.” 
	 through other like means threaten human health or the environment.” 





	46. 
	46. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66260.10
	defines “incompatible 
	waste” as “a hazardous waste which is unsuitable for 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 

	placement in a particular device or facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g. containment inner liners or walls); or 
	placement in a particular device or facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g. containment inner liners or walls); or 


	(b)
	(b)
	(b)

	 commingling with another waste or material under uncontrolled conditions because the commingling might produce heat or pressure, fire or explosion, violent reaction, toxic dusts, mists, fumes, or gases or flammable fumes or gases.” 
	 commingling with another waste or material under uncontrolled conditions because the commingling might produce heat or pressure, fire or explosion, violent reaction, toxic dusts, mists, fumes, or gases or flammable fumes or gases.” 





	47. 
	47. 
	47. 

	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.175,
	 subdivisions (b)(5) and (6) provide that the containment system shall be operated to drain and remove liquids resulting 
	from leaks, spills, or precipitation and that spilled or leaked waste and accumulated precipitation shall be removed from the sump or collection area in as timely a manner is necessary. 


	48. 
	48. 
	Health and Safety Code section
	Health and Safety Code section
	25189.5
	 subdivision (a) provides that disposal or the causing of disposal, of any hazardous waste at a facility which does not have a permit is prohibited. 


	49. 
	49. 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	25201,
	 subdivision (a) provides that the owner or operator of a hazardous waste management facility may not accept, treat, store, or dispose of a hazardous waste at the facility, area, or site, unless the owner or operator holds a hazardous waste facility permit or other grant of authorization from the Department to use and operate the facility, area, or site. 


	50. 
	50. 
	50. 

	Defendants have violated the HWCL and its regulations as follows:  Defendant GEM:  
	Defendants have violated the HWCL and its regulations as follows:  Defendant GEM:  

	a.. 
	a.. 
	a.
	On March 8, 2011, GEM improperly combined soluble organics with approximately 22 gallons of nitric acid, which are incompatible hazardous wastes in a drum.  This caused a violent and uncontrolled reaction that caused an explosion that launched the drum 15 feet into the air in Area C at the Facility, which sprayed hot concentrated acid throughout most of the repackaging area and released vapors and hazardous waste to the surrounding environment. 
	On March 8, 2011, GEM improperly combined soluble organics with approximately 22 gallons of nitric acid, which are incompatible hazardous wastes in a drum.  This caused a violent and uncontrolled reaction that caused an explosion that launched the drum 15 feet into the air in Area C at the Facility, which sprayed hot concentrated acid throughout most of the repackaging area and released vapors and hazardous waste to the surrounding environment. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.17, subdivision (b), 66264.31, and 
	66264.177, subdivision (a).)


	b.. 
	b.
	On August 2, 2011, GEM improperly consolidated oxidizing pool chemicals into a 55-gallon drum while conducting a consolidation operation in Area C. This caused the drum to catch fire, and emit a “yellowish green gas/smoke.” 
	On August 2, 2011, GEM improperly consolidated oxidizing pool chemicals into a 55-gallon drum while conducting a consolidation operation in Area C. This caused the drum to catch fire, and emit a “yellowish green gas/smoke.” 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.17, subdivision (b), 66264.31, and 66264.177, subdivision (a).)


	c.. 
	c.
	On March 3, 2013, a fire occurred at the Facility due to the consolidation of incompatible wastes and/or material in a roll off bin. 
	On March 3, 2013, a fire occurred at the Facility due to the consolidation of incompatible wastes and/or material in a roll off bin. 
	(California Code of Regulations, title 22,
	sections 66264.31 and 66264.177, subdivision (a).)
	Defendants:  


	d. 
	d. 
	d. 
	On May 10, 2016, Defendants released a dust cloud of hazardous waste near a roll off bin in Area D and outside the permitted area. (Health & Saf. Code §§ 25201 and 25189.5, subd. (a), and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.31.) 

	e. 
	e. 
	On May 10, 2016, Defendants failed to operate the containment systems in Area B to remove spilled or leaked waste or accumulated precipitation in a timely manner. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66264.31 and 66264.175, subds. (b)(5) and (6).) 

	f. 
	f. 
	On May 10, 2016, Defendants spilled hazardous waste in Area D that was being tracked throughout the Facility by equipment. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.31.) 

	g. 
	g. 
	On August 7, 2017, Defendants intentionally poured an ignitable hazardous waste onto paper and lit the paper on fire with a lighter in Area C where other employees were also consolidating hazardous waste and where other ignitable hazardous waste was located.  (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66264.17, subd. (a) and 66264.31.) 




	51. 
	51. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66264.31,
	66264.177,
	 subdivision (a),
	66264.17,
	subdivisions (a) and (b), 
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) and Health and Safety Code sections 
	25189.5,
	 subdivision (a), 
	25201,
	 subdivision (a), and
	25202,
	subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	52. 
	52. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Second Cause of Action
	SECOND CAUSE OF  ACTION  
	(Management of  Incompatible Wastes in Violation  of Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202 (a), California Code of Regulations, sections 66264.17, subdivision (b), 66264.177, subdivisions (a) and (c), and 66270.30, subdivision (a)
	 Against Defendants)  
	53. 
	53. 
	53. 
	53. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	54. 
	54. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.17,
	subdivision (b) provides 
	that “the transfer, treatment, storage, or disposal of ignitable or reactive waste, and the mixture or commingling of incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials, shall be conducted so that it does not:
	 (1) 
	 (1) 
	 (1) 
	 (1) 

	generate extreme heat or pressure, fire or explosion, or violent reaction; 
	generate extreme heat or pressure, fire or explosion, or violent reaction; 


	(2)  
	(2)  
	(2)  

	produce uncontrolled toxic mists, fumes, dusts, or gases, in sufficient quantities to threaten human health and the environment; 
	produce uncontrolled toxic mists, fumes, dusts, or gases, in sufficient quantities to threaten human health and the environment; 


	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 

	produce uncontrolled flammable fumes or gases in sufficient quantities to pose a risk of fire or explosions; 
	produce uncontrolled flammable fumes or gases in sufficient quantities to pose a risk of fire or explosions; 


	(4)
	(4)
	(4)

	 damage the structural integrity of the device or facility containing the waste; or
	 damage the structural integrity of the device or facility containing the waste; or


	 (5)
	 (5)
	 (5)

	 through other like means threaten human health or the environment.” 
	 through other like means threaten human health or the environment.” 





	55. 
	55. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66260.10
	defines “incompatible 
	waste” as “a hazardous waste which is unsuitable for 
	(a)
	(a)
	(a)
	(a)

	 placement in a particular device or facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g. containment inner liners or walls); or 
	 placement in a particular device or facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g. containment inner liners or walls); or 


	(b)
	(b)
	(b)

	 commingling with another waste or material under uncontrolled conditions because the commingling might produce heat or pressure, fire or explosion, violent reaction, toxic dusts, mists, fumes, or gases or flammable fumes or gases.”  
	 commingling with another waste or material under uncontrolled conditions because the commingling might produce heat or pressure, fire or explosion, violent reaction, toxic dusts, mists, fumes, or gases or flammable fumes or gases.”  





	56. 
	56. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.177,
	subdivision (a) provides that incompatible wastes or incompatible wastes and materials shall not be placed in the same 
	container unless section 
	66264.17
	subdivision (b) is complied with. 


	57. 
	57. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.177
	subdivision (c) provides that, a container holding a hazardous waste that is incompatible with any waste or other materials transferred or stored nearby in other containers, piles, open tanks, or surface impoundments shall be separated from the other materials or protected from them by means of a dike, berm,
	wall
	 or other device.  


	58. 
	58. 
	Health and Safety Code section
	Health and Safety Code section
	25202
	 subdivision (a) and California Code of 
	Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) provides that the owner and/or operator of 
	a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.  


	59. 
	59. 
	Section VI(G)(1) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of incompatible material within Area C. 

	60. 
	60. 
	Sections VI(E)(8) and VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B prohibit containers of incompatible wastes from being placed within the same cell in Area B. 

	61. 
	61. 
	Sections VIII(D)(1)(d)(1) and VIII(E)(1)(a) and (b) of the Permit Part B requires the separation of containers of incompatible hazardous waste in the Loading and Unloading Area and in Area A. 

	62. 
	62. 
	Section VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B requires that containers located in areas designated as one-year storage areas be segregated in accordance with California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	Section VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B requires that containers located in areas designated as one-year storage areas be segregated in accordance with California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.177,
	subdivision (c). 


	63.. 
	63.. 
	63.. 

	Areas B and C are designated as one-year storage areas in the Permit. 
	Areas B and C are designated as one-year storage areas in the Permit. 


	64. 
	64. 
	64. 

	Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section
	Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66264.17,
	subdivision (b), 
	66264.177,
	subdivisions (a) and (c), and
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) in that they failed to take precautions to 
	appropriately separate incompatible hazardous waste by means of a dike, berm, wall, or other device as follows: 
	Defendant GEM:  

	a.. 
	a.. 
	a.. 
	a.

	On March 8, 2011, GEM improperly  combined 
	On March 8, 2011, GEM improperly  combined 
	soluble organics with approximately 22 gallons of nitric 
	acid in a drum, which are incompatible 
	wastes.  This caused  a violent and uncontrolled 
	reaction that caused an 
	explosion 
	that launched the drum 15 feet
	 into the air in Area C at the Facility, 
	which sprayed hot  concentrated acid
	 throughout most of the repackaging area 
	and released vapors and  hazardous waste to 
	the surrounding environment.
	(California
	Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.17, subdivision (b), 66264.31, and 66264.177, subdivision (a).)


	b.. 
	b.
	On and prior to August 4, 2011, GEM stored 
	On and prior to August 4, 2011, GEM stored 
	incompatible waste in at least six 
	separate incidents.  These wastes include 
	oxidizers and flammables, cyanides, 
	acids, and spontaneously combustible 
	material and corrosives, next to each 
	other, in Area C.  
	Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 
	22, sections 66264.177, subdivision (c) and 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	c.. 
	c.
	On March 25, 2013, GEM failed to take adequate
	On March 25, 2013, GEM failed to take adequate
	 precautions to prevent 
	incompatible hazardous waste from 
	being bulked from loose packs or 
	lab packs into 55-gallon drums in Area C. For instance, 
	it failed to follow its best safety 
	practice, to utilize the 
	commingled compatibility test procedure. 
	California Code
	Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (a).)
	Defendants: 



	d.. 
	d.. 
	d.
	On May 6, 2015, Defendants failed in 
	On May 6, 2015, Defendants failed in 
	at least five instances to properly 
	separate containers of incompatible 
	wastes such as organic peroxides and
	 oxidizers from corrosives and also to 
	separate inorganic acids from organic 
	acids by  a dike, berm, wall
	 or other device in Area B. 
	Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a), 66262.17, subdivision (b), and 66264.177, subdivision (c).)


	e.. 
	e.
	On May 10, 2016, Defendants failed to 
	On May 10, 2016, Defendants failed to 
	separate multiple containers of 
	incompatible hazardous waste in
	 at least three instances in the Loading  and 
	Unloading Area and in Area A, 
	including placing m any incompatibles in a 
	truck without proper separation.
	Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California
	Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66264.177, subdivision (c).)




	65. 
	65. 
	Each violation of Health & Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health & Safety Code section 
	25202
	subdivision (a), California 
	Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66264.17,
	subdivision (b), 
	66265.177,
	 subdivisions (a) and 
	(c), and 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to 
	proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189
	subdivision (b) or in the  alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	66. 
	66. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Third Cause of Action
	THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Use Clean Containers for the Storage of Hazardous Waste in Violation 
	of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.177, subdivision
	(b) Against Defendant GEM) 
	67. 
	67. 
	67. 
	67. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	68. 
	68. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.177,
	subdivision (b) provides that, hazardous waste shall not be placed in an unwashed container that previously held an incompatible waste or material. 


	69. 
	69. 
	On August 4, 2011 and March 26, 2013, Defendant GEM violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	On August 4, 2011 and March 26, 2013, Defendant GEM violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.177,
	subdivision (b) in that it failed to utilize clean containers for the storage of hazardous waste.  


	70. 
	70. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.177,
	subdivision (b), subjects Defendant GEM to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b). 


	71. 
	71. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Fourth Cause of Action
	FOURTH CAUSE OF  ACTION  
	(Management of Ignitable, Reactive, or Incompatible Hazardous Wastes And Improper Bulking 
	in Violation of Health 
	and Safety Code, sections 25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a), 66264.17, subdivisions (a) and (b)
	 and 2013 ISE  Order Against Defendants)  
	72. 
	72. 
	72. 
	72. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	73. 
	73. 
	Health and Safety Code section
	Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and California Code of 
	Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30
	subdivision (a) provides that the owner and/or operator of 
	a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.  


	74. 
	74. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.17,
	subdivision (a) requires 
	that an owner and/or operator of a facility take precautions to prevent accidental ignition or reaction of ignitable or reactive waste. 


	75. 
	75. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.17,
	subdivision (b) requires 
	that an owner and/or operator of a facility prevent reactions which generate extreme heat or pressure, fire or explosions, or violent reactions. 


	76. 
	76. 
	Section V(C)(10) of the Permit Part B requires written authorization from facility management or facility chemist before bulking waste in Area C. 

	77. 
	77. 
	Sections V(D)(1) and V(G)(1) and Attachment V-5 of the Permit Part B require compatibility testing be performed and written approval by the facility chemist prior to bulking wastes. 

	78. 
	78. 
	Section VI(D)(6)(d) of the Permit Part B and Part IV of the Permit provides that no bulking of hazardous waste is allowed in Area A. 

	79. 
	79. 
	Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25187,
	 subdivision (a) the Department issued the 2013 ISE Order including a Schedule of Compliance to Defendant GEM on April 3, 2013. 


	80. 
	80. 
	Section 5.16 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that “[t]his Order shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent, and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, and subsidiary and parent corporations.” 

	81. 
	81. 
	The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.2.1 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that Defendant GEM must submit a modification to its Permit Part B to revise its existing Standard Operating Procedures to implement additional precautions to prevent fires and explosions or other violent or non-violent reactions that could potentially release hazardous waste to the environment during consolidation operations at the Facility, including oversight procedures at the Facility to ensure incompatible wastes are not mixed tog
	The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.2.1 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that Defendant GEM must submit a modification to its Permit Part B to revise its existing Standard Operating Procedures to implement additional precautions to prevent fires and explosions or other violent or non-violent reactions that could potentially release hazardous waste to the environment during consolidation operations at the Facility, including oversight procedures at the Facility to ensure incompatible wastes are not mixed tog


	82. 
	82. 
	Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	25202
	 subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a), California Code of 
	Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.17,
	subdivisions (a) and (b) as follows: 

	a.. 
	a.. 
	a.
	On and prior to March 8, 2011, Defendant 
	On and prior to March 8, 2011, Defendant 
	GEM failed to have compatibility 
	testing performed in the laboratory and 
	failed to obtain written approval by the 
	facility  chemist prior to bulking wastes in Area C. 
	(Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, sections 66264.17, subdivision (b) and 66270.30, subdivision (a))


	b.. 
	b.
	On and prior to March 25, 2013, 
	On and prior to March 25, 2013, 
	Defendant GEM failed to take adequate 
	precautions to prevent incompatible 
	hazardous waste from being bulked in Area 
	C by failing to follow the Standard
	 Operating Procedure for Area C.  For 
	instance, GEM failed to follow the 
	commingled compatibility test procedure
	 that it adopted as a “best safety practice” 
	to ensure incompatible hazardous 
	waste was not being bulked from loose
	 packs or lab packs into 55-gallon drums 
	in Area C.
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (a).)
	Defendants


	c.. 
	c.. 
	c.
	On and prior to May 6, 2015, and May 12, 2015, Defendants improperly bulked approximately 14 containers of used oil and 14 containers of antifreeze in Area A, where no bulking of hazardous waste is allowed. 

	d.. 
	d.
	On and prior to June 27, 2017,
	On and prior to June 27, 2017,
	 Defendants bulked waste in Area C without 
	written authorization by the facility chemist.  
	Health and Safety Code, section 25202,
	subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30 subdivision (a) and 2013 ISE Order, section 4 . 2 . 1)





	83. 
	83. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30
	 subdivision (a), California Code of 
	Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.17,
	subdivision (a) and (b), subjects Defendants to a separate 
	penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	84. 
	84. 
	Failure to comply with the terms of the 2013 ISE Order in 2017 subjects each Defendant to costs, penalties, and/or damages, pursuant to section 5.15 of the 2013 ISE Order.  

	85. 
	85. 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	25188
	 provides that any person subject to a Schedule of Compliance issued pursuant to Section
	25187
	who does not comply with that schedule shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than twenty-five thousand dollars for each day of noncompliance. 


	86. 
	86. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a).  




	Fifth Cause of Action
	FIFTH CAUSE OF  ACTION  
	(Failure to Maintain Adequate Aisle Space in Violation of 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.35
	Against Defendant GEM)  
	87. 
	87. 
	87. 
	87. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	88. 
	88. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.35
	 provides an owner and/or 
	operator of a facility must maintain aisle space adequate to allow the unobstructed movement of personnel, fire protection equipment, spill control equipment, and decontamination equipment. 


	89. 
	89. 
	On and prior to August 4, 2011, Defendant GEM did not maintain aisle space adequate to allow the unobstructed movement of personnel, fire protection equipment, spill control equipment, and decontamination equipment in that several drums were stored in front of the eyewash and safety shower obstructing access to its use.   

	90. 
	90. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.35
	subjects 
	Defendant GEM to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety 
	Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code 
	25189.2
	subdivision (b). 


	91. 
	91. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Sixth Cause of Action
	SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(False Statements and/or Representations in Waste Labels in Violation of 
	Health and Safety Code, sections 25189, subdivision (a), 25189.2, subdivision (a) 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a)
	 Against Defendants)  
	92. 
	92. 
	92. 
	92. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	93. 
	93. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facility permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facility permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit. (Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	94. 
	94. 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (a) and Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,.2
	 subdivision (a), provide in relevant part that any person who intentionally or negligently makes any false statement or representation in any label shall be liable for a penalty. 


	95. 
	95. 
	Section VIII(D)(1)(g) of the Permit Part B requires the Defendants to mark or verify that each container is marked with the following information to ensure efficient tracking and management within 24 hours of being unloaded at the Facility:
	Section VIII(D)(1)(g) of the Permit Part B requires the Defendants to mark or verify that each container is marked with the following information to ensure efficient tracking and management within 24 hours of being unloaded at the Facility:

	 1) 
	 1) 
	 1) 
	 1) 

	uniform hazardous waste manifest document number and line item number; and 
	uniform hazardous waste manifest document number and line item number; and 


	2) 
	2) 
	2) 

	acceptance date into the Facility. 
	acceptance date into the Facility. 




	96. 
	96. 
	On May 6, 2015, Defendants made false representations on their hazardous waste labels by affixing outbound labels over waste receipt check-in labels, which consequently misstated the accumulation start date(s). 

	97. 
	97. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code sections
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code sections
	25189
	 subdivision (a), 
	25189.2
	subdivision (a),
	25202
	 subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 
	25189,
	subdivisions (a) and (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	 subdivisions (a) and (b). 


	98. 
	98. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Seventh Cause of Action
	SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Provide and Document Employee Training in Violation of 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.16, Health and Safety
	Code section 25188,
	and 2013 ISE Order Against Defendants)  
	99. 
	99. 
	99. 
	99. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	100. 
	100. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.16,
	 subdivision (a), provides 
	the owner or operator of a hazardous waste facility shall ensure that all facility personnel successfully complete a program of classroom instruction or on-the-job training that teaches them to perform their duties in a way that ensures the facility’s compliance with the requirements of HWCL and its implementing regulations. 


	101. 
	101. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.16,
	subdivision (b) provides 
	all facility personnel shall successfully complete the program required in subdivision (a) within six months after the date of their employment or assignment to a facility, or to a new position at a facility. 


	102. 
	102. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.16,
	subdivision (c) provides 
	all facility personnel shall take part in an annual review of the initial training required in subsection (a) of this section.   


	103. 
	103. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.16,
	subdivision (d) provides 
	the owner or operator of a facility shall maintain training documents and records at the facility.  


	104. 
	104. 
	Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25187
	, subdivision (a), the Department issued the 2013 ISE Order to Defendant GEM on April 3, 2013 with a Schedule of Compliance.  


	105. 
	105. 
	Section 5.16 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that “[t]his Order shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent [GEM], and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, and subsidiary and parent corporations.” 

	106. 
	106. 
	The Schedule of Compliance, Section 4.2.2 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that Defendants must submit a detailed training plan describing 
	The Schedule of Compliance, Section 4.2.2 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that Defendants must submit a detailed training plan describing 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 

	the level of training for each person that holds a position that is responsible for hazardous waste management, 
	the level of training for each person that holds a position that is responsible for hazardous waste management, 


	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 

	how often the training will be given,
	how often the training will be given,


	 (3) 
	 (3) 
	 (3) 

	who will provide each level of training, 
	who will provide each level of training, 


	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 

	each position for which the training is required, 
	each position for which the training is required, 


	(5) 
	(5) 
	(5) 

	records (e.g. a certificate of completion) for each person that he or she has successfully completed the training and has demonstrated the necessary understanding and skills required to be competent in the course areas covered by the training, and 
	records (e.g. a certificate of completion) for each person that he or she has successfully completed the training and has demonstrated the necessary understanding and skills required to be competent in the course areas covered by the training, and 


	(6) 
	(6) 
	(6) 

	the proposed schedule for implementing the training plan.  
	the proposed schedule for implementing the training plan.  




	107. 
	107. 
	The Schedule of Compliance, Section 4.2.3 of the 2013 ISE Order provides Defendants will provide the name of the responsible corporate officer at the Site who shall ensure the work plan is implemented and that persons/positions detailed in the training plan have been properly trained. 

	108. 
	108. 
	The Schedule of Compliance, Section 4.3 of the 2013 ISE Order provides that after the Department approves the training plan, Defendants will implement the plans pursuant to the schedules therein.   

	109. 
	109. 
	Health and Safety Code section
	Health and Safety Code section
	25188
	provides that any person subject to a Schedule of Compliance issued pursuant to Section
	25187
	who does not comply with that schedule shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than twenty-five thousand dollars for each day of noncompliance. 


	110. 
	110. 
	On and prior to March 25, 2013 and March 26, 2013, Defendant GEM failed to properly train facility personnel and maintain training documents and records pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	On and prior to March 25, 2013 and March 26, 2013, Defendant GEM failed to properly train facility personnel and maintain training documents and records pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.16.


	111. 
	111. 
	On and prior to March 18, 2014 and March 19, 2014, Defendant GEM failed to properly train facility personnel and maintain training documents and records pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	On and prior to March 18, 2014 and March 19, 2014, Defendant GEM failed to properly train facility personnel and maintain training documents and records pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.16.
	and the 2013 ISE Order, section 4.2.2 
	and 4.3. 


	112. 
	112. 
	On and prior to May 6, 2015 and May 10, 2016, Defendants failed to properly train facility personnel and or maintain training documents and records pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	On and prior to May 6, 2015 and May 10, 2016, Defendants failed to properly train facility personnel and or maintain training documents and records pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.16
	and the 2013 ISE Order, section 4.2.2 and 4.3.   


	113. 
	113. 
	On and prior to August 7, 2017, Defendants failed to properly train facility personnel and or maintain training documents and records pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	On and prior to August 7, 2017, Defendants failed to properly train facility personnel and or maintain training documents and records pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.16
	 and the 2013 ISE Order, section 4.2.2 and 4.3.   


	114. 
	114. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.16
	subjects 
	each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety section
	25189
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	115. 
	115. 
	Failure to comply with the terms of the 2013 ISE Order in 2014, 2015, 2016, and 2017 subjects each Defendant to costs, penalties, and/or damages, pursuant to section 5.15 of the 2013 ISE Order. 

	116. 
	116. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	subdivision (a).  




	Eighth Cause of Action
	EIGHTH CAUSE OF  ACTION  
	(Failure to Notify the Department of a New Release Within 24  Hours in Violation of Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a)
	 Against Defendants)  
	117. 
	117. 
	117. 
	117. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	118. 
	118. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit.
	(Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	119. 
	119. 
	Section VI of the Permit requires Defendants to notify the Department within 24 hours of the discovery of new releases from the Facility.  

	120. 
	120. 
	Defendant GEM violated Health and Safety Code section
	Defendant GEM violated Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) by failing to notify the 
	Department within 24 hours of discovery of new releases from the fire at the Facility that occurred on August 2, 2011.   


	121. 
	121. 
	Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) by failing to notify the 
	Department within 24 hours of discovery of new releases from the fire at the Facility that occurred on August 7, 2017. 


	122. 
	122. 
	Each violation of Health & Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health & Safety Code section 
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) and California 
	Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a 
	separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code 
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b). 


	123. 
	123. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Ninth Cause of Action
	NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Properly Maintain Resin Coating in Violation of Health & 
	Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title ww, section 66270.30, subdivision (a), and 66264.175, subdivision (b)(1)
	124. 
	124. 
	124. 
	124. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	125. 
	125. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit
	Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	126. 
	126. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.175,
	subdivision (b)(1) provides that a base for containers should be free of cracks or gaps and sufficiently impervious to contain leaks, spills, or precipitation. 


	127. 
	127. 
	Section VI(D)(1) of the Permit Part B requires Defendants to maintain the concrete floor and containment berm in Area A of the Facility with a properly coated layer of chemical-resistant phenolic resin.  

	128. 
	128. 
	Section VIII(I)(2) of the Permit Part B requires Defendants to inspect the concrete base in the Loading and Unloading Areas and in Areas A, B, C, and D for damage, cracks and erosion. 

	129. 
	129. 
	On and prior to March 9, 2011, GEM violated Health and Safety Code, section 
	On and prior to March 9, 2011, GEM violated Health and Safety Code, section 
	25202,
	 subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) by failing to properly seal the resin coating on the surface of the ramp into Area A of the Facility. 


	130. 
	130. 
	On and prior to May 10, 2016, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code, section 
	On and prior to May 10, 2016, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code, section 
	25202
	subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66264.175,
	subdivision (b)(1) and
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) by not fixing the cracks in the Loading and 
	Unloading Area and in Area D despite having noted the cracks in its inspection log. 


	131. 
	131. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) and 
	66264.175,
	subdivision (b)(1) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	132. 
	132. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Tenth Cause of Action
	TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Construct and Give Notice of Temporary Storage Cells in 
	Violation of Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a)
	 Against Defendant GEM)  
	133. 
	133. 
	133. 
	133. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	134. 
	134. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit.
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a)


	135. 
	135. 
	Section VI(E)(1) of the Permit Part B requires Defendant GEM to construct temporary storage cells using visqueen and sandbags and to provide notification to the Department before relocating containers and performing maintenance on the storage cells in Area B. 
	Section VI(E)(1) of the Permit Part B requires Defendant GEM to construct temporary storage cells using visqueen and sandbags and to provide notification to the Department before relocating containers and performing maintenance on the storage cells in Area B. 


	136. 
	136. 
	On and prior to March 25, 26, and April 9, 2013, Defendant GEM violated Health and Safety Code section 
	On and prior to March 25, 26, and April 9, 2013, Defendant GEM violated Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) by not providing visqueen under containers and sandbags around containers containing ignitable, corrosive, and toxic waste and by failing to notify the Department of the maintenance being performed on the storage cells in Area B of the Facility. 


	137. 
	137. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) subjects Defendant 
	GEM to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	 subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b). 


	138. 
	138. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Eleventh Cause of Action
	ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Improper Storage of Hazardous Waste in Area A and Loading and Unloading Area in Violation of Health
	and Safety Code, sections 25188, 25202, subdivision (a), 25200.19, subdivision (c)(1), California
	Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a)
	 and 2010 Consent Order Against Defendants)  
	139. 
	139. 
	139. 
	139. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	140. 
	140. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit.
	(Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	141. 
	141. 
	Health and Safety Code section
	Health and Safety Code section
	25200.19,
	subdivision (c)(1) provides that “[a]s part 
	of a loading or unloading operation conducted within the boundary of a hazardous waste facility, the hazardous waste shall not be held longer than 10 days outside of an authorized unit at the facility.” 


	142. 
	142. 
	On October 12, 2010, the Department and Defendant GEM entered into the 2010 Consent Order to address Defendant GEM’s violations of the HWCL that were identified by the Department in March 2009.   

	143. 
	143. 
	Section 4.2 of the 2010 Consent Order provides that “[t]his Order shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, and subsidiary and parent corporations…” 

	144. 
	144. 
	Section 3.1.3 of the 2010 Consent Order provides that Defendant GEM shall conduct unloading and loading operations in accordance with Health and Safety Code section
	Section 3.1.3 of the 2010 Consent Order provides that Defendant GEM shall conduct unloading and loading operations in accordance with Health and Safety Code section
	25200.19,
	and comply with section VIII(E)(1)(a) of the Permit Part B (Operation Plan). 


	145. 
	145. 
	Section VIII(E)(1)(a) of the Permit Part B specifies that hazardous waste cannot be stored for more than 10 days in the Loading and Unloading Area.   

	146. 
	146. 
	Section V(I)(D) of the Permit Part B specifies that Area A is a temporary staging area for receiving, inspecting, repackaging, and preparation of containerized waste for shipping, and hazardous waste containers can only be stored in said area for 10 days. 

	147.. 
	147.. 
	147.. 

	Defendants violated the HWCL and its regulations and the 2010 Consent Order as 
	Defendants violated the HWCL and its regulations and the 2010 Consent Order as 
	follows: 
	Defendant GEM:  

	a.. 
	a.. 
	a.. 
	a.

	On and prior to March 18-19, 2014, 
	On and prior to March 18-19, 2014, 
	GEM stored eleven hazardous waste 
	containers in Area A  for  longer than 10 days.
	(Health and Safety Code, Section 25202,
	subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	b.. 
	b.
	Defendants:  
	Defendants:  
	On and prior to May 10-11, 2016,
	 Defendants stored hazardous waste 
	containers, including automobile
	lead
	acid batteries in Area A for longer than 
	10 days. 
	(Health and Saftey Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	c.. 
	c.
	On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants stored hazardous waste containers in the Loading and Unloading Area for longer than 10 days. (Health 
	On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants stored hazardous waste containers in the Loading and Unloading Area for longer than 10 days. (Health 
	and Safety Code, sections 25202, subdivision (a), 25200.19, subdivision (c)(1), 25187, subdivision (a), California
	Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a),
	 2010 Consent Order.)      


	d.. 
	d.. 
	d.

	On and prior to June 27, 2017, Defendants stored hazardous waste containers 
	On and prior to June 27, 2017, Defendants stored hazardous waste containers 
	with corrosive waste in Area  A for longer than 10 days. 
	(Health and Safety Code, Section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)




	148. 
	148. 
	148. 

	Each violation of Health and Safety Code, sections 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code, sections 
	25200.19,
	subdivision (c)(1), 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) subjects  each  Defendant to a separate penalty,  according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25189,
	 subdivision (b) or in the  alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	149. 
	149. 
	Failure to comply with the terms of the 2010 Consent Order subjects each Defendant to costs, penalties, and/or damages, pursuant to section 4.1 of the 2010 Consent Order. 

	150. 
	150. 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	Health and Safety Code section 
	25188
	provides that any person subject to a Schedule of Compliance issued pursuant to Section 
	25187
	who does not comply with that schedule shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than twenty-five thousand dollars for each day of noncompliance. 


	151. 
	151. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Twellfth Cause of Action
	TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Improper Storage of Universal Waste in Violation of Health 
	and Safety Code, Section 25202
	subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a)
	 Against Defendant GEM)  
	152..
	152..
	152..
	152..

	 Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	 Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	153. 
	153. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit. 
	Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	154. 
	154. 
	Part IV, Unit A of the Permit and section VI(D) of the Permit Part B specifies that universal waste can only be stored in Area A of the Facility. 

	155. 
	155. 
	On and prior to March 18, 2014 and March 19, 2014, Defendant GEM violated 
	On and prior to March 18, 2014 and March 19, 2014, Defendant GEM violated 
	Health and Safety Code, section
	25202,
	subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title  22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) by improperly  storing seven boxes of universal waste in Area C.     


	156. 
	156. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) subjects Defendant 
	GEM to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	157. 
	157. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Thirteenth Cause of Action
	THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
	(Failure to Inspect Containers for Proper  Labeling and Marking in Violation of Health &  
	Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a),
	66262.31, 66262.32, subdivision (b)(2), and 66266.81, subdivision
	(a)(1)(6)(D)
	 Against Defendants)  
	158. 
	158. 
	158. 
	158. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	159. 
	159. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit. (Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	160. 
	160. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66262.31
	requires facility personnel 
	to label hazardous waste containers in accordance with Title 49 CFR Part 172 before they are transported off-site. 


	161. 
	161. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66262.32,
	subdivision (b)(2) requires 
	that a generator mark each container of 110 gallons or less of hazardous waste offered for offsite transportation in accordance with the requirements of 49 Code of Federal Regulations section 172.304. 


	162. 
	162. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66266.81,
	subdivision (a)(1)(6)(D), 
	requires that the owner or operator of a hazardous waste facility to store spent
	lead-acid
	storage batteries in accordance with the packaging requirements of Title 49 CFR section 173.260 and to label the packaged batteries with the date they were received. 


	163. 
	163. 
	Section VIII(I) (2)(b)(7) of the Permit Part B specifies that Defendants must inspect and properly label all containers contained within the Facility.  

	164. 
	164. 
	On and prior to March 18, 2014, and March 19, 2014, Defendant GEM violated Health and Safety Code section
	On and prior to March 18, 2014, and March 19, 2014, Defendant GEM violated Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) by improperly affixing a universal waste label to a used oil drum.  Used oil is a hazardous waste not a universal waste. 


	165. 
	165. 
	On and prior to May 10, 2016, and May 11, 2016, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	On and prior to May 10, 2016, and May 11, 2016, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a),
	66262.31, and 66262.32,
	subdivision (b)(2) by failing to properly label two pallets of automobile 
	lead
	acid type batteries, and
	66266.81,
	subdivision (a)(1)(6)(D) by 
	failing to label two drums of automobile 
	lead
	 acid type batteries. 


	166. 
	166. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a),
	66262.31, 66262.32
	subdivision (b)(2), and 
	66266.81,
	subdivision (a)(1)(6)(D) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	167. 
	167. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Fourteenth Cause of Action
	FOURTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Mark Containers with Accumulation Start Dates in Violation of Health 
	and Safety Code, section
	25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, section 66270.30, subdivision (a)
	Against Defendants)  
	168. 
	168. 
	168. 
	168. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	169. 
	169. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit. (Health  
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	170. 
	170. 
	Section VIII (E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B requires that containers with hazardous waste be marked and labeled. 

	171. 
	171. 
	On and prior to June 27, 2017, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	On and prior to June 27, 2017, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) because six containers of hazardous waste in Area B did not have accumulation start dates. 


	172. 
	172. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66270.30
	subjects each Defendant to a separate 
	penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b). 


	173. 
	173. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Fifteenth Cause of Action
	FIFTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Properly Mark Empty Containers Larger Than Five Gallons in 
	Violation of Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations
	title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66261.7, subdivision (f)
	Against Defendants) 
	174. 
	174. 
	174. 
	174. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	175. 
	175. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit. (Health
	and Safety
	Code
	section 25202, subdivision (a)
	and California Code of Regulations, title 22, 
	section
	66270.30, subdivision (a)


	176. 
	176. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66261.7,
	 subdivision (f) provides that a container larger than five gallons in capacity shall be marked with the date it has been emptied. 


	177. 
	177. 
	Section VIII(E)(2) of the Permit Part B requires that empty containers at a hazardous waste facility must be marked to identify them as empty. 

	178. 
	178. 
	Defendants failed to mark empty containers to identify them as empty in violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Defendants failed to mark empty containers to identify them as empty in violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 
	22, sections 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) and
	66261.7,
	subdivision (f) on and prior to four 
	inspections: March 8-9, 2011; May 6 and 12, 2015; May 10-11, 2016; and June 27, 2017.  


	179. 
	179. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	(a) and California Code of 
	Regulations, title 22, sections
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) and 
	66261.7,
	subdivision (f) subjects 
	each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	 subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	180. 
	180. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Sixteenth Cause of Action
	SIXTEENTH CAUSE  OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Properly and Accurately Complete the Facility Closure Plan in Violation of 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.112, subdivision (b)(3)
	Against Defendants) 
	181. 
	181. 
	181. 
	181. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	182. 
	182. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.112,
	 subdivision (b)(3) requires that the owner or operator of a hazardous waste facility shall have a Closure Plan that includes an estimate of the maximum inventory of hazardous wastes ever on-site over the active life of the facility and a detailed description of the methods to be used during partial closures and final closure, including, but not limited to, methods for removing, transporting, treating, storing, or disposing of all hazardous wastes, and identification of the type(s) of the off-site hazardous


	183. 
	183. 
	183. 
	On and prior to May 6, 2015, and May 12, 2015 Defendants failed to provide in the Closure Plan an accurate estimate of the total inventory of hazardous waste ever onsite over the active life of the Facility and failed to fully and accurately detail the methods to be used during partial and final closure of the Facility, in violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	On and prior to May 6, 2015, and May 12, 2015 Defendants failed to provide in the Closure Plan an accurate estimate of the total inventory of hazardous waste ever onsite over the active life of the Facility and failed to fully and accurately detail the methods to be used during partial and final closure of the Facility, in violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.112,
	subdivision (b)(3). 



	184. 
	184. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.112,
	subdivision (b)(3) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	 subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b) of the Health and Safety Code. 


	185. 
	185. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Seventeenth Cause of Action
	SEVENTEENTH CAUSE OF  ACTION  
	(Failure to Properly Manage Containers in Violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, 
	sections 66264.171 and 66264.173 subdivision
	(b) Against Defendants) 
	186. 
	186. 
	186. 
	186. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	187. 
	187. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66264.171 and 66264.173
	subdivision (b) provide that containers holding hazardous waste cannot be stored in a manner that may rupture or that causes it to leak and if containers holding hazardous waste begin to leak, the owner and/or operator shall transfer the hazardous waste to a container in good condition.   


	188. 
	188. 
	On and prior to May 11, 2016, the Department discovered that Defendants stored hazardous waste in three significantly dented or deformed 5-gallon plastic containers in Area B and the Loading and Unloading Area. 

	189. 
	189. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66264.171 and 66264.173
	subdivision (b) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at  
	trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b). 


	190. 
	190. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to and prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to and prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	 subdivision (a). 




	Eighteenth Cause of Action
	EIGHTEENTH CAUSE OF  ACTION  
	(Failure to Properly Close Containers in Violation of 
	California
	Code 
	Regulations, title 22, section 66264.173, subdivision
	 (a) Against Defendants) 
	191. 
	191. 
	191. 
	191. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	192. 
	192. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.173,
	subdivision (a) provides that containers holding hazardous waste shall always be closed during transfer and storage, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste. 


	193. 
	193. 
	On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants failed to ensure that roll-off bins and containers of hazardous waste in Area D were closed. 

	194. 
	194. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.173,
	subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	 subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code 
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b). 


	195. 
	195. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Ninteenth Cause of Action
	NINETEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Provide Acceptance Dates on Containers of Hazardous Waste in Violation of Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision
	 (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision
	(a) Against Defendants)  
	196. 
	196. 
	196. 
	196. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	197. 
	197. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit. (Health
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	198. 
	198. 
	Section VI(B)(6) and VIII(D(1)(d)(1)(g) of the Permit Part B requires Defendants to provide a tracking label with a date of acceptance within 24 hours of receiving the hazardous waste. 

	199. 
	199. 
	On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants failed to provide a tracking label with a date of acceptance within 24 hours of receipt for approximately twenty drums in Area A and Area C.   
	On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants failed to provide a tracking label with a date of acceptance within 24 hours of receipt for approximately twenty drums in Area A and Area C.   


	200. 
	200. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) subjects each 
	Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	201. 
	201. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181
	subdivision (a). 




	Twentieth Cause of Action
	TWENTIETH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Accepting Hazardous Waste Destined for Other Facilities in Violation 
	of Health and Safety Code, sections 25200.19, subdivision (a) and 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision
	(a) Against Defendants)  
	202. 
	202. 
	202. 
	202. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	203. 
	203. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit. (Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	204. 
	204. 
	Health and Safety Code section
	Health and Safety Code section
	25200.19,
	subdivision (a) provides in relevant part 
	that a facility is subject to conditions and limitations in the permit concerning the receipt and unloading of hazardous wastes from offsite locations. 


	205. 
	205. 
	Section VI(C) and/or VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B only allows storage of containers at the Facility if they are destined for the Facility or being prepared for outgoing shipment.   

	206. 
	206. 
	On and prior to May 10-11, 2016, Defendants accepted and stored drums at the Facility that were destined for other facilities. 

	207. 
	207. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code sections
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code sections
	25200.19,
	subdivision (a) and 
	25202
	 subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	 subdivision 
	(a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189
	 subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b). 


	208. 
	208. 
	208. 

	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181
	subdivision (a). 




	Twenty First Cause of Action
	TWENTY-FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Use Protective Equipment in Violation of Health
	and Safety Code, section 25202,
	subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision
	 (a) Against Defendants)  
	209. 
	209. 
	209. 
	209. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	210. 
	210. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit. (Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	211. 
	211. 
	Section VIII(B)(1) of the Permit Part B provides that employees handling hazardous waste must wear personal protective equipment.  

	212. 
	212. 
	On and prior to June 27, 2017, Defendants’ employees failed to wear personal protective equipment (hard hats).  

	213. 
	213. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.30,
	 subdivision (a) subjects each 
	Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	214. 
	214. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Twenty Second Cause of Action
	TWENTY-SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Provide Training on Management of Universal Waste in Violation of 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66273.36
	Against Defendant GEM) 
	215. 
	215. 
	215. 
	215. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	216. 
	216. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66273.36
	requires that all personnel 
	who manage or who supervise those who manage universal waste be provided initial training and annual training and that a written record be maintained.   


	217. 
	217. 
	On and prior to March 25, 2013, Defendant GEM failed to provide and document adequate universal waste training to its employees. 

	218. 
	218. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66273.36
	subjects 
	Defendant GEM to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	219. 
	219. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Twenty Third Cause of Action
	TWENTY-THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Label or Mark Containers of Universal Waste in Violation of Health 
	and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) and 66273.34, subdivision
	(a) Against Defendants)  
	220. 
	220. 
	220. 
	220. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	221. 
	221. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facility permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facility permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit. (Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	222. 
	222. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66273.34,
	subdivision (a) requires 
	universal waste handlers to label or mark universal waste to identify the type of universal waste and to use the appropriate identifiers. 


	223. 
	223. 
	Section VIII(I)(2)(b)(7) of Permit Part B requires Defendants to inspect containers of universal waste to ensure they are properly labeled. 

	224. 
	224. 
	On or before May 6, 2015, Defendants failed to inspect containers to ensure they were properly labeled. 

	225. 
	225. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section
	25202,
	subdivision(a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66270.30,
	subdivision (a) and 
	66273.34
	subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivisions (a) and (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	subdivisions (a) and (b). 


	226. 
	226. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Twenty Fourth Cause of Action
	TWENTY-FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Provide for the Management of Recovered Fire Materials in 
	Violation of 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.56, subdivision
	 (g) Against Defendants)  
	227. 
	227. 
	227. 
	227. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	228. 
	228. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.56, 
	subdivision (g), requires 
	the emergency coordinator of a hazardous waste facility to provide for treating, storing, or disposing of recovered waste or any other material that results from a fire at the facility. 


	229. 
	229. 
	On August 7, 2017, the emergency coordinator of the Facility did not provide for the treating, storing, or disposing of any material caused by the fire.  Defendants could not account for the disposition of the materials caused by the fire. 

	230. 
	230. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.56, 
	subdivision (g) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b).  


	231. 
	231. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to and prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to and prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	 subdivision (a). 




	Twenty Fifth Cause of Action
	TWENTY-FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Make Hazardous Waste Determination in Violation of 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.11, subdivision
	 (a) Against Defendants)  
	232. 
	232. 
	232. 
	232. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	233. 
	233. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66262.11, 
	subdivision (a), requires 
	the generator of a waste to determine if that waste is hazardous. 


	234. 
	234. 
	On August 7, 2017, a fire occurred at the facility when hazardous waste, identified on the hazardous waste manifest as naphthalene, was poured onto paper and the paper and hazardous waste was deliberately ignited by the Defendants. The fire was controlled, in part, by use of an absorbent.  Defendants failed to make a hazardous waste determination for the materials set on fire or those used in the cleanup in the fire. 

	235. 
	235. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66262.11, 
	subdivision (a) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b).  


	236. 
	236. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Twenty Sixth Cause of Action
	TWENTY-SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Follow Permit Contingency Plan in Violation of Health
	and Safety Code, secton 25202
	subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision
	 (a) Against Defendants)  
	237. 
	237. 
	237. 
	237. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	238. 
	238. 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste 
	permit. (Health 
	and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a).)


	239. 
	239. 
	Section X(I)(3)(a)(3), (4), and (8) and Attachment X-2 of the Permit Part B (Emergency Action and Contingency Plan) requires the Facility to take the following actions in the event of a fire: 
	Section X(I)(3)(a)(3), (4), and (8) and Attachment X-2 of the Permit Part B (Emergency Action and Contingency Plan) requires the Facility to take the following actions in the event of a fire: 

	(1)
	(1)
	(1)
	(1)

	 evacuation,
	 evacuation,


	 (2)  
	 (2)  
	 (2)  

	employee notification to his or her supervisor,
	employee notification to his or her supervisor,


	 (3)  
	 (3)  
	 (3)  

	notification to the Emergency Coordinator and General Manager by the supervisor(s), 
	notification to the Emergency Coordinator and General Manager by the supervisor(s), 


	(4)  
	(4)  
	(4)  

	placement of the debris and materials used in the clean-up of the fire, which are presumed to be hazardous waste, in proper containers, labeled, and managed, appropriately, and 
	placement of the debris and materials used in the clean-up of the fire, which are presumed to be hazardous waste, in proper containers, labeled, and managed, appropriately, and 


	(5) 
	(5) 
	(5) 

	verbal notification to the Department within 24 hours. 
	verbal notification to the Department within 24 hours. 




	240. 
	240. 
	On and after August 7, 2017, Defendants violated sections X(I)(3)(a)(3), (4), and (8) and Attachment X-2 of the Permit Part B by only performing some of its requirements. 

	241. 
	241. 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 
	25202,
	 subdivision (a) and 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66272.30,
	 subdivision (a) subjects each 
	Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b).  


	242. 
	242. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Twenty Seventh Cause of Action
	TWENTY-SEVENTH CAUSE  OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Keep Contingency Plan Up to Date in Violation of 
	California
	Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.52, subdivision
	 (d)  Against Defendants)  
	243. 
	243. 
	243. 
	243. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	244. 
	244. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.52,
	subdivision (d) requires 
	that the list of names, addresses, and phone numbers of all persons qualified to act as emergency coordinator be kept up to date. 


	245. 
	245. 
	On an prior to August 7, 2017, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	On an prior to August 7, 2017, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.52,
	subdivision (d) by failing to keep its Contingency Plan up to date.  
	Steven Patrick is identified in the Facility’s Contingency Plan as the Facility Manager and the primary Emergency Coordinator.  Greg Harris is identified in the Facility’s Contingency Plan as 
	the Area General Manager and an Emergency Coordinate alternate.   Neither were employed at the Facility on the date of the August 7, 2017 fire. 


	246. 
	246. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, 
	66264.52,
	subdivision (d) 
	subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	 subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b).  


	247. 
	247. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25181
	subdivision (a). 




	Twenty Eighth Cuase of Action
	TWENTY-EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Amend Contingency Plan in Violation of
	California
	Code 
	of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.54, subdivision
	(d) Against Defendants)  
	248. 
	248. 
	248. 
	248. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	249. 
	249. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.54
	subdivision (d), requires 
	the contingency plan be immediately amended, if necessary, whenever the list of emergency coordinators change.  


	250. 
	250. 
	On and prior to August 7, 2017, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	On and prior to August 7, 2017, Defendants violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66264.54
	 subdivision (d) by failing to amend its Contingency Plan.  
	Steven Patrick is identified in the Facility’s Contingency Plan as the Facility Manager and the primary Emergency Coordinator. Greg Harris is identified in the Facility’s Contingency Plan as the Area General Manager and an Emergency Coordinate alternate.  Neither were employed at the Facility on the date of the August 7, 2017 fire, and no amendment to the Contingency Plan Emergency Coordinator list had been made reflecting the departures of Steven Patrick and Greg Harris. 


	251. 
	251. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	66264.54
	subdivision (d) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	 subdivision (b).  


	252. 
	252. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Twenty Ninth Cause of Action
	TWENTY-NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
	(Failure to Follow Permit Transfer and Ownership Change 
	Requirements in Violation of 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.40,
	subdivisions (a) and (b)(2) and 66270.42.5, subdivision
	(c)(1)  Against Defendants)  
	253. 
	253. 
	253. 
	253. 

	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
	Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 


	254. 
	254. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.40,
	subdivision (a) provides 
	that a permit may be transferred to a new owner or operator only if the permit has been modified or revoked and reissued. 


	255. 
	255. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.42.5,
	subdivision (c)(1), requires the Department’s prior written approval and compliance with
	Class 1
	permit modification procedures before a change in ownership or operational control of a hazardous waste facility can occur. 


	256. 
	256. 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 
	66270.40,
	subdivision (b)(2) requires 
	the new owner or operator of a permitted hazardous waste facility to submit a revised permit application no later than 90 days prior to the change.  It also requires a written agreement between the current and new permittees with a specific date for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage, and liability between the current and new permittees, to be submitted to the Department. It further requires that there be no gap in the financial requirements of article 8 of chapter 14 of division 4.5 of the Califor


	257. 
	257. 
	Based on information and belief, Defendants Stericycle acquired ownership and/ or operational control of the Facility from Defendant GEM in or around April 2014.  

	258. 
	258. 
	Defendants Stericycle acquired ownership and/or operational control of the facility from Defendant GEM without complying with the procedures of a Class 
	Defendants Stericycle acquired ownership and/or operational control of the facility from Defendant GEM without complying with the procedures of a Class 
	1
	permit modification and without prior written approval from the Department. 


	259. 
	259. 
	The Department received no revised permit application and no written agreement was entered into and submitted to the Department containing a specific date for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage, and liability between Defendant GEM and Defendants Stericycle. Defendants did not demonstrate compliance with the financial requirements during and after the ownership and/or operational change. 

	260. 
	260. 
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66270.40,
	subdivisions (a) and (b)(2) and
	66270.42.5,
	subdivision (c)(1) subjects each Defendant to a separate penalty, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25189,
	subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
	25189.2,
	subdivision (b). 


	261. 
	261. 
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future violations of the HWCL and its implementing regulations pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
	25181,
	subdivision (a). 




	Request for Relief
	REQUEST FOR RELIEF 
	The Department requests that the Court grant the relief that follows: 
	I. U 
	I. U 
	I. U 
	1.

	Enter judgment that Defendants have violated the HWCL and its implementing regulations as set forth in the First through Twenty Ninth Causes of Action; 
	Enter judgment that Defendants have violated the HWCL and its implementing regulations as set forth in the First through Twenty Ninth Causes of Action; 


	2. 
	2. 
	2. 

	Enter judgment that Defendants are liable for civil penalties for the violations set
	Enter judgment that Defendants are liable for civil penalties for the violations set
	forth in the First through Twenty Ninth Causes of Action as authorized by Health and Safety Code sections 
	25189 and 25189.2
	in an amount according to proof; 


	3. U 
	3. U 
	3.

	Enter permanent injunctions, or other orders enjoining Defendants from illegally managing hazardous waste in California and requiring Defendants to otherwise comply with the HWCL and the regulations adopted thereunder; 
	Enter permanent injunctions, or other orders enjoining Defendants from illegally managing hazardous waste in California and requiring Defendants to otherwise comply with the HWCL and the regulations adopted thereunder; 


	4. 
	4. 
	4. 

	Grant the Department its costs of 
	Grant the Department its costs of 
	suit
	 herein; and 


	5. 
	5. 
	Grant such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper. 


	Dated: October 26, 2017
	Respectfully Submitted, 
	XAVIER BECERRA 
	Attorney General of California 
	Susan Fiering
	Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
	Original signed by Rose B. Fua 
	ROSE B. FUA 
	Deputy Attorney General 
	Attorneys
	for
	Plaintiff People
	of the
	State 
	of California
	, ex rel. Department
	of Toxic
	Substances Control 


	Exhibit C - 2018 Final Judgment on Consent and Permanent Injunction
	Exhibit C
	Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief 
	People v. GEM and Stericycle 
	Final Judgment on Consent and Permanent Injunction
	Superior Court of the State of California County of Sacramento
	Case No. 34-2017-00221348
	.GOWTY-gF'. $AJ'.llAMENTO 
	Final Judgment on Consent and Permanent Injunction

	People of the State of California, ex rel.  Barbara A. Lee, Director, California Department of Toxic Substances Control Plaintiff, versus General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova LLC, DBA PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC, Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. Stericycle Inc., and does 1 through 10 inclusive Defendents
	Having reviewed the Stipulation for Entry of Order and Final Judgment on Consent (The Stipulation” executed by Plaintiff, the People of the State of California ex rel. Barbara A. Lee, 
	Director of the California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) and Defendants
	General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova LLC, DBA PSC Environmental Services 
	of Rancho Cordova, LLC, Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. Stericycle Inc., and 
	good cause appearing herein, the Court finds that the settlement between the Plaintiff and the Defendants as set forth in the Stipulation is fair and in the public interest.  Accordingly, the Court approves the Stipulation, a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit A, and enters the Final Judgment on Consent and Permanent Injunction as set forth in the Stipulation.  It is so ordered.
	Dated October 19, 2018  Original signed by Alan G. Perkins Honorable Judge of the Superior Court

	Exhibit A
	Exhibit A to [Proposed] Final Judgment on Consent and Permanent Injunction Case Number 34-2017-00221348
	Case No. 34-2017-00221348
	Stipulation for Entry of Order and Final Judgment on Consent
	People of the State of California, ex rel.  Barbara A. Lee, Director, California Department of Toxic Substances Control Plaintiff
	V
	General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova LLC, DBA PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC, Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. Stericycle Inc., and does 1 through 10 inclusive Defendents
	Plaintiff, the people of the State of California, ex rel.  Barbara A. Lee, Director, California Department of Toxic Substances Control Plaintiff, versus General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova LLC, DBA PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC, Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. and 
	collectively Gem and Stericycle enter into this Stipulation for Entry of Order and Final Judgment "Stipulation" and stipulate as follows:

	1. The Complaint
	1. The Complaint
	DTSC filed this enforcement action on October 26, 2017 against GEM and Stericycle for Permanent Injunction and Civil Penalties “Complaint” under the California Hazardous Waste Control Law (HWCL) Health and Safety Code section 25100 et seq. and its implementing regulations California Code of Regulations, title 22, division 4.5, section 6 6 2 6 0 .1 et seq. Title 22 in connection with GEM and Stericycles hazardous waste treatment and storage facility located at 1 1 8 5 5 white rock road rancho cordova California referred to as the facility.  As set out more fully in the complaint, dtsc alleges that in operating the facility, GEM and or stericycle violated the HWCL and title 22 numberous times from 2011 to 2017 as described in the complaint.

	2. Agreement to Settle Dispute
	2. Agreement to Settle Dispute
	DTSC and gem and stericycle collectively “the parties” enter into this stipulation pursuant to a compromise and settlement and mutually consent to entry by this court of the agreed upon order and final judgement on consent “final judgment”, which is the form attached to this stipulation as exhibit 1.  The parties are each represented by counsel.  This stipulation and the final judgment were negotiated in good faith and at arm’s length by the parties to avoid expensive and protracted litigation regarding the alleged violations of the HWCL and Title 22.  Except as set forth in paragraph 13 below.  The parties agree that nothing in this stipulation and final judgment constitutes an adjudication of any fact or issue of law and gem and stericycle do not admit any fact, liability, or violation of the law.

	3. Definitions
	3. Definitions
	Except where otherwise expressly defined in this Stipulation all terms shall be interpreted as set forth in and consistent with the HWCL and Title 22.  The following terms used in this Stipulation and the Final Judgment shall have the meaning(s) set forth below:
	3.J 
	3.J 
	3.J 
	3.1

	"BULiqr,.IG,~' "BULK/' ~i:J.d'".BLJLKED'·'·.shall h~:ve,th.e,,ame definition.as provided for in $,e'_PERM'.IT Part B.,. s~ctiori·V.(dj(l), Wast~.A;n~ly$is Plan., 
	“Bulking”, “bulk”, and “bulked” shall have the same definition as provided for in the permit part b section V G 1, Waste Analysis Plan.


	3:2 
	3:2 
	3.2

	°C0NS0LJDATIN,O," C<GQ~S.QLIP41:E,'!and ·~CON~OLIDATION11 'sh11U hav.e ,the'. san,e de,~u,i.ti\:m as pro'viped':for in,the.fER:fyll'.f'P.arl."a~ ~ectfon.¥(G)(i); Was:ti:tAnnlysis Plan;. 
	“Consolidating”, “Consolidate,” and Consolidation” shall have the same definition as provided for in the permit part b section V G 1, Waste Analysis Plan.


	3:3 
	3:3 
	3.3

	"El;'FEt::;Trv$·1fATE'' ~~,,the dafe the·Pinal Juclgmentintliis matter.is entered by the Cptitf.· 
	"Effective date" is the date the final judgment in this matter is entered by the court.


	3..4 
	3..4 
	3.4

	'$ACIL1TY'; ' • 0 -' '• ' q' as-:used·heteinrefers '< '~ ~ I ~ • •' • o '>• ,.•I.' '• • < ; .• '• to.theHAZA:ROOUS'WASTE·TREATMEN1' • ' " 0 -• •, < ' '• < and STORAGE FACILifYJ6cated at .11:855,Whl,te R~.c~·toai:l,'~npho;Cprdov~ Cp.liforoia. The ,FA9,LITYi~-a '.'H:At~qµs·w,~'.ftfAt~qt:'.' as dt:fin%1'.:i:~(H~alth_f3,Ud'.Sa.(~ty Code I 
	"Facility" as used herein refers to the hazardous waste treatment and storage facility located at 1 1 8 5 5 white rock road, rancho cordova California.  The facility is a "hazardous waste facility" as defined in health and safety code section 2 5 1 1 7.1


	J..s 
	J..s 
	3.5

	-"FACIT.:;rrY ~AO~~{'.i~J~~ -p~9ftj}at w~;mtajJpperfonn.and.. perfonns the: J .'ob: n:;q. ... uirements ... . .. .. esseotial'filrictibns: . , .. ,, ........ , ...... , @.l_ .,., d . rind. ' .P.-. ,, .. P. fil·activfties _.... . . ..., ofthe·IPA'CILITTMANAGER''.. . ., . . . . . . ,rutd/or' ,,,,,I ''LOCATION •,. •I·•',.,,,.,••,,•/ MANAGER" I,·..•~•·•")~""'.,'••,••!•• :at the:FACII'.JTY .. ,,.•• ,f.,..,-.~·••'"'"~"'''''''• as. described-:i1dhe '~•, PER.MIT ':ea.rt .B :J• sectiott1 IX. , TrainiI>" ' ..... 8 ..
	Facility manager is the person that was hired to perform and performs the job requirements, essential functions, and principal activities of the facility manager, and or location manager at the facility as described in the permit part b section IX, Training Plan.


	3:~; 
	3:~; 
	3.6

	"P~.~.'~1J~RI¢¥.Q:.kE_Efyift'!.:?~.s:~ maans·b9tp: ~er:µian~nf-:and·temporary·: en{ ki ~es··:who ,eno. HAZAIIDO.US·WASTE'MANAGEMENT c· · · 'e , ··: ··. · F : .. ·. . ,·· . .. .JL)'. ....:-,.,... P...Jffi· ...... \ ........... , .., ............... , .................... , .... -,a (iV,Jti,s ~t.the. .ACILTIW .;4.i;c~µ,dY.1&1~PJ'g.~t;,lipµJ¥ Jq,: fueJ)~.Q@Y ~~GJ.!R, s.mntRV;JSQRILEADM:AN;' ilnd • 'LEAD • •••. CHEMIST/CliaMIST..,.. . '... . • ., •• , .. l 
	"GEM and Stericycle employees” means both permanent and temporary employees who perform hazardous waste management activities at the facility including but not limited to the facility manager, supervisor/Leadman, and Lead chemist/chemist.


	).J 
	).J 
	3.7

	~.·qE,NE.,~:.MANi.\Q~~1 1:i,1}ie;:ppi:s~tdhatw.a,s·,hired)o:;pertC:1nn-•arufperl"ormsJhe .. ,' ' followwg.~~:ti;riii.~.,qf:$.~-'-~.GE~E~ ~l\:OERr ijt th~. F.;ACILW:as:desctilled,.fu ihe­::'P.E,~ P~:B,,S!:l~ti9n..:~ ~i:nergen~y,)\~O{J: ana:tontin~e~c{Pfan:
	"General Manager" is the person that was hired to perform and performs the following activities of the "general manager" at the facility as described in the permit part B, section X, emergency action and contingency plan.

	 (~). 
	 (~). 
	(1)
	Places and answers phone calls and communications to and from the fire department, police department, contractor personnel, and corporate management

	t2fi'S ' 
	(2)
	Is responsible for health and safety aspects of emergency management, including determining appropriate personal protective equipment (P P E), monitoring, and decontamination requirements, and

	 Jl)J... 
	(3)
	Is responsible for responding to the press and public inquiries as well as writing and/or delivering press releases regarding and ongoing incident.



	'3,8· .. 
	'3,8· .. 
	3.8

	"HANDLE;; UHANDLING "and ..HANDLED" means ,, ' , .. . ' . ' "' . ' ' . . •!fy!ANA.GE"'asdefinecl.in.· .. ·Paragraph liW'. 
	“Handle”, "Handling", and "Handled"means "Manage" as defined in paragraph 3.10


	J .9 
	J .9 
	3.9

	•11AZ/'!-ItR.OlJ~ WAS'f.W'-~ball.have Jhe .definition as pro~ided tot in Healti.l'aiid  Safety Code sectjon 25.1.17 :and;th~ ,same.m~\lning._as\ .the_tenn ,is used in Californla Code of . . ' • . . . . -.. ; ·1 . 'Regulations, ti,tle'.22, se~ti~>n 6.~~61, .3. and ~e~tions 66261.2.0 through .66261.24". 
	"Hazardous Waste" shall have the definition as provided for in Health and Safety Code Section 2 5 1 1 7 and the same meaning as the term is used in California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 1.3 and sections 6 6 2 6 1 .20 through 6 6 2 6 1.24


	3_.f9 '
	3_.f9 '
	3.10

	·"llAZilRD~U~ WASTE'.M:ANAGpMEN)'.," hMA:NAGEi~··and'.ilMANAGEME:l' -• : ·shalthave . ~e 'denfil.. . ' ;ii:m. • ~~:11et.Jo.rth • ' tr;1H~aJth • ,,. i_ .,and$~fCo'de. ' section •' • • ety 251 l:-7 .-2. 
	Hazardous Waste Management, Manage, and Management shall have the definition as set forth in health and safety code section 2 5 1 1 7.2


	'.3..l l' ·0
	'.3..l l' ·0
	3.11

	 INC<?~AT~L~ W:{\·SJ'E·" as. defin~dJnCaliforrua,Code ofReg:ulations; title·22; ~ ' . ' 
	“Incompatible Waste” as defined in California code of regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 0.10 means hazardous waste which is unsuitable for

	' . ~ 
	' . ~ 
	' . ~ 
	(a)

	particula(tl~9e 9:~ fat?ili_ty. b~4:)~Ji~~:itmf:!Y ,C\lll;SC ·c_o~~~o~ .o,:;g~ay ofcontairunentrriatef.fa~. (e,g:,.cori~~~-~~~e~:~r,t~.~"".J~s);
	Placement in a particular device or facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g., container inner liners or tank walls); or


	 ~),(1:l) c
	 ~),(1:l) c
	(b)

	oroinglin~·with another WAStE·or..tnatriri~ · ·undef'.un_cgn:~Wrd:'.~P.Pi~pp~:H:#fo~~,~~.~n:ungiiqg. . . -. ~ght -prqd~Q
	Comingling with another waste or material under uncontrolled conditions because the comingling might produce

	~-(U' he
	~-(U' he
	~-(U' he
	(1)

	atot .. pressure
	heat or pressure


	, . :f
	, . :f
	(2)

	.<~) jre.­-or·ex,pkiijti~
	fire or explosion


	,:(~1:y1
	,:(~1:y1
	(3)

	~~~~,~~Jcti,6
	violent reaction


	~.fl):J&
	~.fl):J&
	(4)

	~i~ ~r,s_ts, ~~ts, fwnes; or.. ~est o
	toxic dusts, mists, fumes, or gases


	r-(~ffle
	r-(~ffle
	(5)

	mmable ·~es; -~t :gaji~(' ~pp~djx:y,9:f.iQi:apt'~~ l'tf,:~~l~. i-9 pf:T#Ie.'72; . prov,jd,es<ex~ples.of;P,oteiltiaJlf.. 
	flammable fumes or gases.
	Appendix V of Chapter 14, Article 19 of Title 22 provides examples of potentially incompatible wastes, waste components and materials






	-'3: l :z: :
	-'3: l :z: :
	3.12

	'~D~~~JfflM'JST/.QijJ.lfyflSr?-Js_:$.e,;_~~l;l)l~~bN.D$,hir~bmpeffonn, tlie;j~R·. { -r.~~~i'~i;iietii~fr ~~~¢9tj?,1 (\\~eti9.Q~,;an91pripcipal acti-itties:oflhej.tEAD .CHEMIST" ~cJ!f4..i . .. ,., ."Qij~~r··:atthi-~ic~tnra~:ges~b~d ~n~.th~'~ERMIT Part'-li°,ili'ectfott~.TI1',~g flan;
	"Lead chemist/chemist" is the person that was hired to perform the job requirements, essential functions, and principal activities of the "lead chemist" and/or "chemist" at the facility as described in the permit part b, section IX, Training Plan.


	3 1 "l _ -1.,,':I ~
	3 1 "l _ -1.,,':I ~
	3.13

	EtH,'K-JT-!.'·, ..• ,-l;"Ml,¥.~; ~~-aa ·used:l1er~lri .......... ...... .~feQ;,.to-the··eurrent::liAZARbOUS'',W:ASTE"FACILIT.Y·: ' ' ~ •,,,~, .. ~,~"i','· .i . '._;E5JlMJT,,¥/hich 'ip,ajipot,i;t¢s_.by:r~f~~C!:lJhe f!.art:A. anff;'P,art'B:.(iertilit,applicati(m,:is'~~ ~y. .. ... .P.'.ro9Jo)l':i¢.:F·/\:qH;.ft¥..en .A.~rj.l~-5> 2.007 ·ond, allisubse,qµenf modlM~ations'th~t'.~~ye)~~-jfip~d¢, 'OP may'p~·\suli,.5.eq~enJ~y.1~~J.,lr9Ved··by,.,tYTIS'.C:.· 
	"Permit" as used herein refers to the current hazardous waste facility permit, which incorporates by reference the part a and part b permit application, issued by DTSC to the facility on April 25, 2007 and all subsequent modifications that have been made or may be subsequently approved by DTSC.


	;3.14 
	;3.14 
	3.14

	·"STQRAGE~1r~~sroREt·-tS1orum/' • t • •• • • ' and-''.STORING'.'.meanirth~·:' holding.of• • • :..~pqs'W,A;S'.tE.of.ora ~empo.r.q ~Qdi:  . ... .. .... nt-.the·wid··ofwhich th"e:HA:Z~OUS W:~S:TE .. •, . :.i.~:]J.IBf;.)'Efl,.~~·s?ose~;ofior ST.QREifelsewliete' 8S\Se't''fortl'i in. eaHfomii.(?e~e o.r Rem,lations. . )it,etz,..s~tti.o.n. Q6i~o..'.i(t. 
	"Storage," "store," "stored," and "storing" means the holding of hazardous waste for a temporary period at the end of which the hazardous waste is treated, disposed of or stored elsewhere as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 0.10.


	. "o:1'"'.L-f., 
	. "o:1'"'.L-f., 
	3.15

	l I I I : ,­1 I 
	"Supervisor/Leadman" is the person identified in the permit part b, section IX, Training Plan.


	:3.1'6 ·
	:3.1'6 ·
	3.16

	·''TRE,:\T~Efff," "Tlµ;:'!\'t" imd,"TREArmO".me;m.s·anymethod;.technique,,pr·· proce·ss .v.:hi~!;i chaqges '9r'is ·design·e~ 1~·cp.ange tJ:te.:,phys}~l, .che01i.c.al? ~r biolp~cah.:haractei'qi ,coriipo~itio'J:i: pfijny HAZARDOUS ,WASTE.qr.any mat~rial cont,ainea.therein, br removes•dt t~4pi;:es·i~fh~~I pr9pf#i~s oq:ijaia£letjstj~ fqr-a.py purp,_ost; incluping, but not ,Hniited to; enetgy·refo\.iery', fuatei:fal)'ecoveiy ori~~d\\Ctio.n ~v6l'pme.as'5et for.ili:in California·:C·ode of· '.l:.:t'.q~·gu1:.:· ·=at
	Treatment, treat, and treating means any method, technique, or process which changes or is designed to change the physical, chemical, or biological character or composition of any hazardous waste or any material contained, therein, or removes or reduces its harmful properties or characteristics for any purposed including but not limited to energy recovery, material recovery or reduction in volume as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 0.10


	'3'.l?, '
	'3'.l?, '
	3.17

	•°WJ\STE.'' ·n,pg· "WA,S'J'.p~t~liaH h~v.~Jti~.:d~finrnor;t ~sit:f6rthinHealth ancLSiif~tycode:sectfon:251;2~:. 
	Waste and wastes shall have the definition as set forth in Health and Safety Code section 2 5 1 2 4




	4. Jurisdiction
	-~., :J.URISD10fIQN .. .. --: ,, ~· •' " , AND •• ' ' VENUE­< ' ~ .. 
	4. Jurisdiction and Venue

	The parties agree and hereby stipulate that, for purposes of this Stipulation, this Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the matters alleged in the Complaint and personal jurisdiction over GEM and Stericycle and that venue in this Court is proper under health and safety code sections 2 5 1 8 1 and 2 5 1 8 3

	5. Waiver of Hearing and Trial and Entry of Judgment
	1;:1¥\sis#i#.g ap~ ¢ii~~g~inf§;Uaj, ~µp~lati,~~1t.1$M\1;11'41$t~~t~rwwveilie!i1ri&ht1b 11:, . 
	5. Waiver of Hearing and Trial and Entry of Judgment

	By signing and entering into this Stipulation, GEM and Stericycle waive their right to a hearing and a trial on the matters alleged in the Complaint and waive their right to appeal.

	6. Application of This Stipulation and the Final Judgment
	.6.t. .AJW~~QA,JJQN OJf(II.IS~~JIPPL~tIQN..ANi>·'ltHt.FINAL ,.rfibGME&. 
	6. Application of This Stipulation and the Final Judgment

	This stipulation and the Final Judgment shall apply to and be binding on
	i·?.i\:irr~O·;ijp.Q~ ",;I,, ' • 
	i·?.i\:irr~O·;ijp.Q~ ",;I,, ' • 
	i·?.i\:irr~O·;ijp.Q~ ",;I,, ' • 
	1.

	• I• • ", 
	DTSC and any successor agency and


	: ,AND STER:ICYCLE:r;;MP,I:OYEES , ' ......... , < ,..... ,: ·""' ..~. . . '.',. , .... ,'" }8 g_,.. 
	: ,AND STER:ICYCLE:r;;MP,I:OYEES , ' ......... , < ,..... ,: ·""' ..~. . . '.',. , .... ,'" }8 g_,.. 
	2.

	ents• . • ' C· tr (!IL ac.or,;.,tepresenta l . .'. u···· ves
	GEM and Stericycle, and their officers, directors, managers, GEM and Stericycle employees, agents, contractors, representatives, and any successors and assigns in their official capacity. 




	7. Matters Covered
	· 7 .J 
	7. Matters Covered

	:PM~PJ a§A>Jh~i~.~provi{lecLm this:. S:{iputaHon,Jhi's'.Stfpufation/arid·1!.. .. ;;, ,.,. WeJ;iRal'; I H 
	:PM~PJ a§A>Jh~i~.~provi{lecLm this:. S:{iputaHon,Jhi's'.Stfpufation/arid·1!.. .. ;;, ,.,. WeJ;iRal'; I H 
	:PM~PJ a§A>Jh~i~.~provi{lecLm this:. S:{iputaHon,Jhi's'.Stfpufation/arid·1!.. .. ;;, ,.,. WeJ;iRal'; I H 
	7.1

	J~4im.;i..tij~l.?.1'~:!-1™1l1t~~J~~dit)g; .. t~~Q.l~(i'.P.rr. and:settlepi~ntof:the:HW'CL,liri:d~iij~s~~1\fi.gJ~tt-~rt§~·:~pe~.iP~-~~Iy:!llleg¢4.,py;,DT.S.'i:1' GEM, . .,. agaiilsi. ana 'sforlc~fe:fu~flieilomplaibt·..·"'. rtift.ij~f~#.,d SC ib d-li:h.,th it•~•. ll.Jt. ' .. ~previous;senienc .. ,..... ... . ... e;.are; . ' ,"!'Qjyere<fMliittS~'i . . ,An .Y. ·:.:~iiuhi ,.•vi'oiatio,Y-io'r''c;aiise·of.,,...•._.......... f'. ·""'·'., ; ·~C,t\"Qfl~JhaJ;is 1-10.~ a•.Gq:v.e:recf.:taatt~riis;.n{~jteser.v.cil: Claim
	Except as otherwise provided in this Stipulation, this Stipulation and the Final Judgment are a final and binding resolution and settlement of the HWCL and Title 22 violations specifically alleged by DTSC against GEM and Stericycle in the Complaint.  The matters described in the previous sentence are “Covered Matters”.  Any claim, violation, or cause of action that is not a covered matter is a "Reserved Claim."  DTSC reserves its authority to pursue reserved claims as set forth in paragraph 12 herein.


	7.2 
	7.2 
	7.2

	Nothing in thisStipul atio·n or tµe, Fiµal.'J.~ctw~~t ~,h,al.1 IA-nit th~ rights:o(DTSC against-.QEM/Stericycle under the Coriiprehe~ive ~f.lY~b.om,ent~l, Respoll;S~I Cpm~ensatior1~ and . Liability Act,( 42 U.s.c;~ § 9601 et s·eq;),.:the C!l,lifqmi!! Haz~ol.lS Subst~ce Account. Act Health.-& Sat Code, ,;:2S300 efseq:)i. o~ s~rrecP:ve·.e;cµ,9.1). u1.1~er J{~a1.than~· S.a(efy Cod·e section' . • ! • ' 2s1 s1. sul:i,l (b) corit:eming-e. release 9fl{AZARPQUS. WASTE .or a HAZARDOUS constituent into the,envifunmen
	Nothing in this Stipulation or the Final Judgment shall limit the rights of DTSC against GEM/Stericycle under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 U S C section 9 6 0 1 et seq.), the California Hazardous Substance Account Act (Health and Safety Code, Section 2 5 3 0 0 et seq.) or corrective action under health and safety code section 2 5 1 8 7 subdivision (b) concerning a release of hazardous waste or hazardous constituent into the environment or for violations of the HWCL not included under covered matters in paragraph 7.1


	7;3 
	7;3 
	7.3

	DTSC furth~r reserves ,an -:rightft~ ~wC?r~~.t:tr~ 'inj'i;mcl_i:ve terms ofthis 'stipulation~ i 
	DTSC further reserves all rights to enforce the injunctive terms of this Stipulation. 




	8. General Injuctive Provisions
	·s. :.GENERAL II~JUN.L.'TlVE P:ROVISIONS­!' 
	8. General Injuctive Provisions

	GEM and Stericycle shall be and are permanently enjoined as follows:  Pursuant to the provisions of Health and Safety Code sections 2 5 1 8 1 and 2 5 1 8 4, Gem and Stericycle shall comply with the HWCL and Title 22 at and in connection with the operations of the facility.  In addition, GEM and Stericycle will comply with the permit, this stipulation and the final judgement.  To the extent this stipulation requires more of GEM and Stericycle than the HWCL and or the permit, GEM and Stericycle agree to comply with this Stipulation and the Final judgment.  GEM and Stericycle also agree not to assert the permit as a defense against any violation of this Stipulation and the final judgment or violation of the HWCL.  GEM and Stericycle also agree not to assert the HWCL as a defense against any violation of this Stipulation and the final judgment.  DTSC may enforce this stipulation and final judgment as stated in paragraph 12, including any injunctive relief by any means authorized under law including but not limited to suspension or revocation of the permit or seeking contempt of court.

	9. Specific Injunctive Provisions
	9. Specific Injunctive Provisions
	9. Specific Injunctive Provisions

	:9.l .H:AZAR®·ous WASTE'.'I>etenni'nation. • I 
	:9.l .H:AZAR®·ous WASTE'.'I>etenni'nation. • I 
	:9.l .H:AZAR®·ous WASTE'.'I>etenni'nation. • I 
	9.1 Hazardous Waste Determination

	}JijM_;µld/Stc#ic..ycle-sbnllmoke.'a ' ... ~• • HA:ZARD~U& W~$T& de!eqaj~~Ho~,f~r all'WA$XE ~e~e.m~ed ·, .at-ilie· FA.CILITT~as;.r¢'q9.itv.4.. . . 
	GEM and Stericycle shall make a hazardous waste determination for all waste generated at the facility as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 2 .11 subdivision (a)


	:?:2 .Bg:.. to~bafe:"1?iner&!?nc¥; Coorafoator.Contnct1.infonnati.on< ;I , • • • ,( , • > ' <., 
	:?:2 .Bg:.. to~bafe:"1?iner&!?nc¥; Coorafoator.Contnct1.infonnati.on< ;I , • • • ,( , • > ' <., 
	9.2 Up to Date Emergency Coordinator Contact Information

	QEMran1d; .\ • s:~er:i'~i.1;*:}~B,11.. , •• I keep,tlwli~( pfname~1 add~sses~ ·_and phone· numbers· ofJ~erseri~rquiillfied: .... Alt . . ttfiict -. !;'S'.the. .. 
	GEM and Stericycle shall keep the list of names, addresses, and phone numbers of all persons qualified to act as the
	Facility's emergency Coordinator up to date as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.52, subdivision (d).


	Q.:3 · PERMIT Modification-When List • ofEtttergencx • .Cooraioatot Ghan·ges,. > OEM • tmd' ••• 
	Q.:3 · PERMIT Modification-When List • ofEtttergencx • .Cooraioatot Ghan·ges,. > OEM • tmd' ••• 
	9.3 Permit Modification When List of Emergency Coordinator Changes

	Stericycl~:shalJ.i~~di#tely amend .fhe J .FACILITY)s Contingency •• Pian arid sybµiffn • PERlvfTT • m~dificaWon·to'D,'fSC:whenever.the list .of-emergency coordinators changes as r¢qui~e~ by(!alifQrilj!] tbde ofRe 1a'ti ns :titfo .i:i' 'Section -662M:54 su6t1ivfofo'n ··a .
	GEM and Stericycle shall immediately amend the facility’s Contingency Plan and submit a permit modification to DTSC whenever the list of emergency coordinator changes as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 .54 subdivision d


	9.,A: M,inimizd~.eleases.
	9.,A: M,inimizd~.eleases.
	9.4 Minimize Releases

	.GEM and. 'stericycle slian: tnaintafo:and'.~perate q:te_FACil:,I1'¥. to minii:nize the.ppss(bifity o[;rfire, .explQsion~ Ur unplanned Telease\Of. . · ~ .sudden l:>roon~sudden ·; l ' "; 
	GEM and Stericycle shall maintain and operate the facility to minimize the possibility of a fire, explosion, or unplanned sudden, or non-sudden release of
	hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents to air, soil or surface water as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22 section 6 6 2 6 4 .31 including but not limited to: separating incompatible waste, not releasing hazardous waste at or outside the facility and removing liquids and spills from secondary containment and spilled hazardous waste at the facility as soon as the liquids and spills are observed by Gem and Stericycle employees.


	·...f.\l'.fQ S,TE,~tY.G.:bJJ:.E.M?.toi:'E:ES.. 1 
	·...f.\l'.fQ S,TE,~tY.G.:bJJ:.E.M?.toi:'E:ES.. 1 
	9.5 Treating, Storing, or Disposing of Recovered Waste or Material

	p~~ST.QJ(iNGi ,or:4i&P9Sing,9j,.r.ecoy~d\v'ASi$,•'M •.,: , .Or: any-other material' tliat'·testilbi• '• • :·:ffuaj'• < ( ,a•.,_ 'rel¢.(S.~,•• ~ • ur:~.-;9,r,:~p,fQS.~on:'i;Jt,l.h~J?-A.¢lCttY 1: ' 'Ctilifomi·~' . asi.reqµired _. .. ; bt•;,,I .Cti'd6·ofiRegµlaij,Q$.~ ~ ~ .. "' •• jJ~.e'' .... l4,. • sec.ti9n_li.62o~.5~;:.$ti~diy{mort{gj. .
	GEM and Stericycle shall ensure that the facility’s emergency coordinator provides for treating, storing, or disposing of recovered waste or any other material that results from a release, fire, or explosion at the facility is required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 .56, subdivision (g).


	916· :Use • « ana,MANA'GEMENT:olGontamer§. •' I • • •• :
	916· :Use • « ana,MANA'GEMENT:olGontamer§. •' I • • •• :
	9.6 Use and Management of Containers

	@EM ·ar1a,Sta:i~Y.¢re::s~IJJ~se1imo .I I• ~ •'• • , MANAG~H.Az:A:RbdlliS,vi.ASJJE,tontafaers;asYr~uir&fby'Cjj~fifQnu~:c.ode':1:t.fRe"'·1o, • • '"' • '• O • O .• --:,... ' a .. j •, ,i ' .. I • .:-'lr., • ·~ '• > O,~ ations T • • .•• I.,, title i'ir·sei;tions.66~fo~. (vJ.ilirq~.wds·13,2 6·it;J49. 
	GEM and Stericycle shall use and manage hazardous waste containers as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 6 6 2 6 4 .171 through 6 6 2 6 4 . 179

	[a. ·Prohi~ifion on· Using f ,, Damaaed 1 ~ Coritai'ners. •• l ' ·:
	[a. ·Prohi~ifion on· Using f ,, Damaaed 1 ~ Coritai'ners. •• l ' ·:
	[a. ·Prohi~ifion on· Using f ,, Damaaed 1 ~ Coritai'ners. •• l ' ·:
	a. Prohibition on Using Damaged Containers

	GEM and ,, Sferft.ycle.s.hwtnoNffQRE• I I '• '' • -:'• • I .o ' • • H~OUSWA:S.JE\m:corttailieritthat:are nofittg&dd condition· .. . . . . ~~·r~ui(~.<! -, ., py C~_liforni.a...· .. Co'de of:R!'~laHon~;•. ..iiili2:~, secti'omt:·6626·4.ln. ... , 
	GEM and Stericycle shall not store hazardous waste in containers that are not in good condition as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 .171


	~b,·. :d(i1slhlt·1C~nt~nii . ·' -·.
	~b,·. :d(i1slhlt·1C~nt~nii . ·' -·.
	b. Closing Containers

	 ,:c§ENh:nd'.Stmc '.•, ,.";/,..,, ···chrsHh'.11 ...... cr·t ... 9.}} ·ooni~i· ," .. ,",!!ii,µ,,., ·e~s .. boldin ....... s .. ' mnove· WNHJi af~e_q·uh:~40¥:C~.Jifor.,aja:G\'.>.d.~.~f.~f;gul,~ti.oqs, ~itle)2, section:.66264:1':7\ 
	Gem and Stericycle shall close containers holding hazardous waste during transfer and storage except when it is necessary to add or remove waste as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 .173 subdivision (a).  A container holding hazardous waste shall not be opened, handled, transferred or stored in a manner which may rupture the container or cause it to leak as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 .173
	subdivision (a).  A container holding hazardous waste shall not be opened, handled
	transferred or stored in a manner which may rupture the container or cause it to leak as
	subdivision (a). A container holding hazardous waste shall not be opened, handled, transferred ot stored in a manner which may rupture the conatinCalifornia Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4.173, subdivision (b).


	y. ~eQatation oH'NCOMPATIBLE V[AS!fE: ·
	y. ~eQatation oH'NCOMPATIBLE V[AS!fE: ·
	c. Separation of Incompatible Waste

	GEM and Steri~ycie shaii separate 1.a 
	GEM and Stericycle shall separate a
	GEM and Sa container holding a hazardous waste that is incompatible with any waste or other materials transferred or stored nearby in other containers by means of a dike, berm, wall, or other device as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 .177 subdivision c.


	. ~1~• .. · ~-;!ttQbibjtionti>u;Placibg-IN€OMJ>tfIBLE W:AStE ip Same .Contat-nm;,. O'. • • ~ \ 
	. ~1~• .. · ~-;!ttQbibjtionti>u;Placibg-IN€OMJ>tfIBLE W:AStE ip Same .Contat-nm;,. O'. • • ~ \ 
	d. Prohibition on Placing Incompatible Waste in Same Container

	EM:li:n:d· 
	GEM and
	Stericycle shall not place incompatible wsate or incompatible wastes and other materials in the same container except for the purpose of conducting commingled compatibility testing as described in the permit part B, section V Waste Analysis Plan, Attachment V-2, Standard Operating Procedure, Area C, Standard Operating Procedure, Area D, and GEM Laboratory Standard Operating Procedures.


	.-i~ 1Unv.iasbe'il'Go'n'~ihers. 
	.-i~ 1Unv.iasbe'il'Go'n'~ihers. 
	e. Unwashed Containers

	:G~ty! .EJD.~i$.t~ty.#fo:shlillinotpIM.e·~aus WAS:fE·<' 
	GEM and Stericycle shall not place hazardous waste
	 in an unwashed container that previously held an incompatible waste or material as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 .1 7 7, subdivision (b).


	.·f:. :companbUity,arHAZ~Rnd.tlsWAsta,with Contafuets.,. .,; . j ': ,, ',>. 
	.·f:. :companbUity,arHAZ~Rnd.tlsWAsta,with Contafuets.,. .,; . j ': ,, ',>. 
	f. Compatibility of hazardous Waste with Containers

	a:EM:sna.;stencycl'~)"1na'll
	GEM and Stericycle shall
	use a container made of or lined with materials which will not react with, and are otherwise compatible with, the hazardous waste to be transferred or stored, so that the ability of the container to contain the hazardous waste is not impaired, as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 . 1 7 2


	-~ Markin~ Confainers. 
	-~ Markin~ Confainers. 
	g. Marking Containers

	.GE;M, and ·stencycle);hall·mark:ca~h cont~~~-o.f: tiA~;()QS wA..~tE.cr{;a,dr ·w:H:h thctd·nte ofHC'st?pt'ance· wiililn /24Jiours ·of,~~~~vitig-:_tg~ W.AS;rE,;rui·:reguireaby PERMITi:Part';B,, section.VI(B).{6). • < '"•, I•, ~,, ' ,., 
	GEM and Stericycle shall mark each container of hazardous waste clearly with the date of acceptance within 24 hours of receiving the waste, as required by permit part b, section VI B 6


	~h, . Markm .ff. Emut£.,Qontafn~. .. . . 
	~h, . Markm .ff. Emut£.,Qontafn~. .. . . 
	h. Marking Empty Containers

	OEM'lllitf.S1eti'~. cl~~s1iaff.m~J~n~11mfuk:emi1. ·'·:·containers,as}'empty,.1·with:the.:i.:l'nte tfie:oontaiher.s: wei'e;.enipt_iM1 as·'r.~~.if¢.d·1~y.:qW!f.QmiaiCodl,';,.. ,., ' .'-. . . of Regulations, title:2·2,:s-ectio11 t56'.26L7, subdivi'si9p_ (f): • .. ,. I I ... 
	GEM and Stericycle shall also label/mark empty containers as "empty" with the date the containers were emptied, as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 1 .7 subdivision f




	9:7 Btecaiition's, 
	9:7 Btecaiition's, 
	9.7 Precautions

	GE~ and Slwi¢ycle ~haU ia¥-e_precautions to·prevent accidental ignitiQ
	GEM and Stericycle shall take precautions to prevent accidental ignition
	 or reaction of ignitable or reactive waste, as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 .17 subdivision a


	9.:8. Identifyfug'INEOMPATIBLiE WASTE. 
	9.:8. Identifyfug'INEOMPATIBLiE WASTE. 
	9.8 Identifying Incompatible Waste

	0Irr~,1 and S.tericycle sh!i.lLiiieiiti.fy
	GEM and Stericycle shall identify
	incompatible waste and shall use California Code of Regulations, title 22, chapter 14, articvle 19, appendix V, to help identify incompatible waste.  Appendix V only provides examples of potentially incompatible waste and is not intended to be exhaustive.


	9.9' Ewhibitioi#Reg_a.rding 1NCoMPritrnl.£>W.AST~~ 
	9.9' Ewhibitioi#Reg_a.rding 1NCoMPritrnl.£>W.AST~~ 
	9.9 Prohibitions Regarding Incompatible Waste

	GEM and.Sterlc1cre sbal~ 1:m_t 
	GEM and Stericycle shall not
	store, manage, treat, bulk, or consolidate incompatible waste in area C or area D, or within the same storage cell in area B, as required by permit part b, section VI (E) (8), VI (G) (7), VI (I) (2), and VIII (H) (I) (h).


	·9..1'0 'BJIDK;INB;Wid CONSOLIDATION'.: 
	·9..1'0 'BJIDK;INB;Wid CONSOLIDATION'.: 
	9.10 Bulking and Consolidation

	~<i:itNit mid .$ten~.?,1Ckshall .n~tBU.LK: 
	GEM and Stericycle shall not bulk
	hazardous waste in areas A and B.  GEM and Stericycle shall comply with the DTSC approved permit part B Standard Operating Procedures developed for areas C and D to ensure incompatible waste is not bulked or consolidated from loose packs, lab packs, or other containers into drums or other containers in area C and or roll off bins or other containers in area D as required by permit part B, sections V (C) (10), V (D) (1), and V (G) (1).


	LI
	P.E• • RMIT.1......... •': Bail!B····section .c_ •••• , ,, •.. ,.,..,~.,•.. , .• V.: ; .t,.l ·,A~bm?DfV~s.·-('q·• .. ~i, uallfieattons·· . ' · . ITl~H;..\... . • •.. . / -":". _. •• ·\ · · .'0 f:ih:s"ith . t·C O e lpJ.·--~:.:.:---..g1.·1.Q~1~~&~:~.'-iJ'.~6J .•• tie•.fofe;:ButlQJNG  • \,.•',•• " /'"'•' ,• • ''•I,,RAZ:ARD:OUS'W~TE-'an•LsMJ.tmaintaitFim;:,doctiro:eats·rel'atedJo •• I t•' " I •, '' I " • • f, •.,•, ', o• •", l,~ •: tne. • •·l3ll~<19f;:H~~QQ$.'W.A$f~ ~piih Qf<the , F:&c1Ut¥is·operatiii3-~ord, f.
	GEM and Stericycle shall obtain written authorization from the lead chemist / chemist or qualified personnel as defined in the permit part b, section V, attachment V-5 Qualifications of Personnel Performing Testing before bulking hazardous waste as part of the facility’s operating record for a minimum of 5 years as required by permit part b, section V G 1 and the Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination and Enforcement Order issued to GEM by DTSC on April 3, 2013.


	9,1,2 ~P.rolub'itfoM ReW!J:dirij keacitve WASTE.. :dE
	9,1,2 ~P.rolub'itfoM ReW!J:dirij keacitve WASTE.. :dE
	9.12 Prohibitions Regarding Reactive Waste

	M; ~~~--~\te~~~~~'.~~t\ti: ntj! SJO~~ AJ}6~ •.,, JREAiI\ • ·B:tJtK -ej or to:Ns@LlbATE,reatti:ve • w~s~, • '• • ,,·., as d~flniw. •• i~. •• • dal{(Ql'Ill:n, • Cod• Regula.Hans; iitte:M; section ·66261.:Z}i ar.the F~©ILIT.Y, 
	GEM and Stericycle shall not store, manage, treat, bulk, or consolidate reactive waste as defined in California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 1 .23 at the facility


	9._l:~:: embibition R,e.gardf~ Dimosal 12fHA;ZAB,DOD_S ~e.,
	9._l:~:: embibition R,e.gardf~ Dimosal 12fHA;ZAB,DOD_S ~e.,
	9.13 Prohibition Regarding Disposal of Hazardous Waste

	 GEM and _Stericy9le 
	GEM and Stericycle
	shall not dispose of hazardous waste except at an authorized point as required by Health and Safety Code Sections 2 5 2 0 1, 2 5 2 0 3, 2 5 1 8 9 .5 subdivision a


	9A:'4, ·AisJe'.Sg.aec; 
	9A:'4, ·AisJe'.Sg.aec; 
	9.14 Aisle Space

	pEM !:llld St~cycle shall maintain aislt, spa€e adequate· to tUqw .t~e 
	GEM and Stericycle shall maintain aisle space adequate to allow the
	unobstructed movement of personnel, fire protection equipment, spill control equipment, and decontamination equipment as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
	6 6 2 6 4 .35 GEM and Stericycle shall ensure that the labels on each container are facing the walkway of the aisle and are easily visible for inspection by DTSC and GEM and Stericycle employees walking down the aisles.


	· ~;l5. NotiW;i&JPTS(Z;ofMaintenance_, '
	· ~;l5. NotiW;i&JPTS(Z;ofMaintenance_, '
	9.15 Notifying DTSC of Maintenance

	.GEM:. ~Qd I::tericya·e.sh:all notify,DTSC at re~.(48
	GEM and Stericycle shall notify DTSC at least 48
	business hours before performing maintenance in either Area A or Area B, which requires GEM and Stericycle to construct temporary storage cells using polyethylene plastic sheeting such as visqueen and sandbags around containers containing ignitable, corrosive, or toxic waste in the loading and unloading area.


	~:9 ;'.(~ ,Mitint!\ninenmEi:R;epainn~·Crack~, ; 
	~:9 ;'.(~ ,Mitint!\ninenmEi:R;epainn~·Crack~, ; 
	9.16 Maintaining and Repairing Cracks

	.OEM\and; ten~Y,de:si:u,ifantiliititjn~~~t~~..  ·qa,~ks J)l~9P.9:~t~rfl~11.~rs.~~p~\l.afY.!;C9n~aitunetit~str.uctutes·&Ulie'. -FAC-1Lfr¥.)iifr~tij,f.ed :by . ~ : . . .~-. G,lij).fozjµ_~ tfoa¥~(R~guJa.)i.QDS,, titlei2-2, 06i'6,4;,i}1S~,:SUbdivision-(b)fl°)j; . . ' ,sec~bD!1.. -~ '
	GEM and Stericycle shall maintain and repair cracks in concrete floors or secondary containment structures at the facility as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 . 1 7 5 subdivision b 1


	Htf7: ;,~arid'P.~IT'Pari'i3, ~ef)tifrem~!§. . 
	Htf7: ;,~arid'P.~IT'Pari'i3, ~ef)tifrem~!§. . 
	9.17 Permit and Permit Part B Requirements

	·GEM.fuld:,Steri~y~~~-~~~:.~mply.,wiUi· ·. : the,~gri~tiQt;1.S.,(tti:thf' ' ' -P.,~R&litas-,req~irect;bf;Heiittb~nnd.safety:C6tli:i' ' • .,., •• d ·se~tjon, ~ • 2520?J • • .. ~tip9'JV;i;s'ion• ' • ,, 1 (~);an4. (;,~UJ.-;,~d~oct,.;1Q.f·:&~&°1ation5; :tltle22,.;seetfoni66210:3~! srtb4i~~ipn ,<~)~ ..@.#. :.S1i'p~t11ti0,n, ,,,: apd th.~ Flo.al ludgment~'mcfodingbutnotlim.ited to: .. . '• ',, 
	GEM and Stericycle shall comply with the conditions of the permit as required by Health and Safety Code section 2 5 2 0 2 subdivision a and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 7 0 .30 subdivision a, this Stipulation and the Final Judgment, including but not limited to:

	:·a;. '
	:·a;. '
	a.
	Maintaining the resin coatings applied to surfaces in Areas A, B, and C as required by permit Part B, Sections VI D 1, VI E 1, and VI G 1, and installing and maintaining a resin coating applied to the surfaces in Area D as required by this Stipulation.

	:b,: 
	b.
	Storing hazardous waste for no more than 10 days in Area A of the facility from the day it first arrived at the facility is required by the permit, Part IV and Permit Part B section VI D.  Area A is a temporary storage area for receiving, inspecting, repackaging, and preparation of containerized waste for shipping.

	c, 
	c.
	Moving iiAtt..RDOUS ·WASTE directly_ between the fuiiisjiort vehicle)ri the 
	Moving hazardous waste directly between the transport vehicle in the 
	loading and unloading area and areas A, B, C, and D (“authorized units”) as required by Health and Safety Code section 2 5 2 0 0 .19 c 1 and permit part b, section VI c.  GEM and Stericycle shall not hold hazardous waste for any time off the transport vehicle and outside of the authorized units, except for that incidental period of time that is necessary to safely and effectively move the waste from the transport vehicle to the authorized units or from the authorized units to the transport vehicle.  The “incidental period of time” shall mean a period of time that shall not exceed 12 hours.  


	•iln 
	d.
	Keeping inbound and outbound hazardous waste that is being received or shipped by the facility in a transport vehicle in the loading and unloading area for no more than 10 days as required by Health and Safety Code section 2 5 2 0 0 .19 c 1 and permit part b section VI C

	-~' . ·
	e.
	Not accepting and/or storing at the facility any hazardous waste destined for other facilities other than outbound waste generated by GEM and Stericycle as required by Permit Part B, section VI C.

	·:r; ..-
	f.
	Requiring GEM and Stericycle employees handling hazardous waste to wear personal protective equipment, including, but not limited to, hard hats as required by Permit, Part B, section VIII B 1

	tQ, me&:imd expfosionsi
	g.
	nvolvin~_iHAzi.\RJ)@UStW.A&_TE:wi!J\ili_t)le·-F.AC.r.PITY·asJ:i;qµli:eii,hy :::r,ElUYltJ\~.AAti.onV.t 
	Notifying DTSC within 24 hours of discovery a release, including, but not limited to, fires, and explosions involving hazardous waste within the facility as required by Permit, Section VI.


	:ihch1d1~g;.hut noi:Iiiriiied,
	h.
	:ihch1d1~g;.hut noi:Iiiriiied,

	Following the facility's Contingency Plan after a fire occurs at the facility including, but not limited to evacuating the facility; notifying supervisors, the emergency coordinator, and the general manager; and placing debris and materials used in the cleanup of the fire, which are presumed to be hazardous waste in proper containers, labeled, and managed, appropriately as required by Permit Part B, section X I 3 a and attachment X-2.
	to evacuating.the FA€µJTY; -q_otif'}ingt¥\lil~sors, the (lllle'.gency coof!lilllifor;.aod ihe'GBNEillMANA.GER;:~q·p)~c4tg c}ep#sJ1,1,4.,niaHiij~ls:-:U9~.ci: fo ihe,cieanc.  ,up, ofathe firet~hich ate. presumed to.lie HAZ~OUS WA~IE,: in proper:~oJihiiners, l_abelec!. .art!i'. MANAGEQi :~ppn'.l~t'i:litely,a.1,, ri:quk~~ by_PEJ.(M\'.).' ,Piut:B\set:_lfon X:(1)(3f~a) Qnd ,Attachme11t1k;2. 




	9,.JB Change in Titles, 
	9,.JB Change in Titles, 
	9.18 Change in Titles

	GEM. 3/14 St¢ricy.clemusi notlf'y'DTSCA8 hdilrs·p\-fot to ch~ngi/'l,g
	GEM and Stericycle must notify DTSC 48 hours prior to changing
	the title of the facility representative responsible for compliance with training identified in paragraph 9.27 or the "general manager", "lead chemist/chemist" or "supervisor/leadman" as those terms are defined in paragraph 3 of this stipulation.


	9:19' 'change in bwrtershin or OJl.eratjonaJ..Gontro) .... 
	9:19' 'change in bwrtershin or OJl.eratjonaJ..Gontro) .... 
	9.19 Change in Ownership or Operational Control

	.GEM.and Stelicyde shall . .obtain.. . •, 
	GEM and Stericycle shall obtain
	DTSC’s prior written approval and comply with DTSC’s permit modification procedures before a change in ownership or operational control of the facility occurs as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 6 6 2 7 0 .40 subdivisions a and b 2 and 6 6 2 7 0 .42 .5 subdivision c 1.  No later than 90 days prior to the change of ownership or operational control of the facility, GEM and Stericycle shall submit to DTSC a revised Permit application and a copy of the written agreement between the current and prospective new permittees that includes a specific date for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage, and liability between the current and prospective new permittees.


	9i~.!>· Closure,Ejan. :
	9i~.!>· Closure,Ejan. :
	9.20 Closure Plan

	qEii/l; AA~(S!et1!.'Y,Cle,sii.ai1.bave:a.'.. 1. 'Giosure,P.1mi'''lim'!i'iived;bi-OTSC':' ,' , .., . .' ...... actiYe]ffe-of'lhe.FAGIDITY'and;a,di , ...... ,, .........., .......... , .. e~led ...... ilescri' ; . .;f! ti®ofthe,meilioifs .•. to'be,used'iliii'iil .......... g,P..BJ\i.· · · · · ·.. al·. ·--clQsµ,i:esJ.a!itl/fi11,al,cJosw:e,;i~~!u(ling,~bJit· ,:. notlinuted\to,,metlio\is. ' fdt,rem'ovirlg,J~ll\lsw.rtiriil,..... . ·' iJlEAt~.Gi ··" '" .. ' s:roRJNG,:1,'.!r •• ' ' ........ di~osii:ig,ol-:iilI:HAZk
	GEM and Stericycle shall have a Closure Plan approved by DTSC that includes an estimate of the maximum inventory of hazardous waste on-sites over the active life of the facility and a detailed description of the methods to be used during partial closures and final closure, including, but not limited to, methods for removing, transporting, treating, storing, or disposing of all hazardous wastes, and identification of the types of the offsite hazardous waste management units to be used in applicable as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 6 6 2 6 4 .112 subdivision b 3.


	'~.~.1 ,RinandatAasuranc~.. 
	'~.~.1 ,RinandatAasuranc~.. 
	9.21 Financial Assurance

	'.OEM,!ll'ld.sieti~olo"o§baii'liiiil1ttiilii\"~~~~e]i,"ijim.~~ . !15~1!.r!UJ<;~ (or P!<i FAPl'i.li'Y:,'as:i:eqµir¢dcb{Cilii'fhrnia.eode:ef: R¢gula\i!)qs;fitle:2i,, sectjons'• • • ' •• • • ,.,.., •••' • ' "I '6(i264;.j40.et· seq: 
	GEM and Stericycle shall maintain adequate financial assurance for the facility, as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 6 6 2 6 4 .140 et seq.


	:9..~2' :Palty;;iruw.ealiol'!f9£the::FAaititf.1, 
	:9..~2' :Palty;;iruw.ealiol'!f9£the::FAaititf.1, 
	9.22 Daily Inspections of the Facility

	GEMianifst~c}'Ql~·-~1:~b.ft~~i%~.al1y ·jnsp~ciiQI1s-.ofaliareas·ofthe.'iiA0fi.l:'rY·wb:ere;HAZA!ID0(;!s;.WA;STEis,~¢i,:iiµ]µlateil,... . ' .... .  TREAT:Eq~ol\ St6RED; !ind tecotdtliC:Th&'Pettfon:fu~i_'.iigs !!:ri.~Jii,Y (estJ:t?l!~es;~,y-,9EM;111:ui: iStencychdn }vri~en·ln:s.recti:onlq~it :~~·,µi:sp~ctrqi;i;l9~}1i,~)I)l/fi!.l~lP!ai~e~!l!i!~'l':F.ACitiJY and riiaoo· avallable upon request· to.OT,SCrand tjiirS;i1.ctaiiiento. CQµl)ty Environmental 
	GEM  and Stericycle shall conduct daily inspections of all areas of the facility where hazardous waste is accumulated, treated, or stored, and record the inspection findings and any responses by GEM and Stericycle in written inspection logs.  The inspection logs shall be maintained at the facility and made available upon request to DTSC and the Sacramento County Environmental
	Management Department.  The inspection logs shall be reviewed and signed by the facility manager or designee daily and she or he will be responsible for ensuring that any deficiencies noted during a daily inspection have been corrected as required by the HWCL, the Permit, this Stipulation and or the Final Judgment.  Within 2 calendar days of the completion of the correction of any deficiencies noted during a daily inspection, the resolution or remedy for those deficiencies shall be noted in the log.

	~, · 
	~, · 
	a.  
	The daily inspection shall ensure that hazardous waste at the facility is managed in accordance with the HWCL, including, but not limited to California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 6 6 2 6 1 .7, 6 6 2 6 4 .17, 6 6 2 6 4 .31, 6 6 2 6 4 .35, 6 6 2 6 4 .73, 6 6 2 6 4 .171, 6 6 2 6 4 .172, 6 6 2 6 4 .173, 6 6 2 6 4 .174, 6 6 2 6 4 .175, 6 6 2 6 4 .176, 6 6 2 6 4 .177, 6 6 2 6 6 .81, 6 6 2 7 0 . 30, 6 6 2 7 3 .31-39, and chapter 14, article 19, appendix V, and Health and Safety Code Section 2 5 2 0 0 .19.

	· '!~, · 
	· '!~, · 
	b. Review of Waste Typres

	~ev,1e'l'{bfWA-STE 'fyp:ii:;; J')J.e..4aHy)~ection sha)Unc"lude a,~e.view,of WASTE. · ty,pes SJ9B.@.•a.t,the·FA9JpJJ'Y/toc<le\enii,i!le.if !NCOM!'ATIBLE WAST-ifisuril.awfully ·SJ"@.~P·tggetlief. ·1r :i;N;G9!'4!IAfWLEW;/i:S.1'E'is;.f6undto :Oil urilrtWfulli:Storulb,together,··the .................. wnfteii'ms ,, p eotion:t,.i' ..... g... .Shall desciib.e ..,.......... how the..HAZ.A:R.bO'U'S ' ·' .. . . . .. W;,i;:s'tE ' ' was se .gr · e_&!l .. ·too ·.., ii'i... .. f)tli<if.wiii!r !Mm)LEJ:? to pf¢yc:;n(jn~gm
	The daily inspection shall include a review of waste types stored at the facility to determine if incompatible waste is unlawfully stored together.  If incompatible waste is found to be unlawfully stored together, the written inspection log shall describe how the hazardous waste was segregated or otherwise handled to prevent incompatibility


	.c. 
	.c. 
	c. Review of Spills and/or Releases.

	ll~vi~~ 9f&pill~.@<!f-0r~!lle~.es. 'lf)'.i~.OU:SIW:ASi'E spills•mdii:ir.refe?#!,ei:,#fl&iJi;liyigli!l,'~(~ifA9Wn.'Y; QJ:!,Mt@ll~ Sillll.crol'e shall.reSP,iiD'd.lil?JlrDp/ihte~ l!;l.l'~· coi.il;N(~i;li'. witJi;\!)e:;lf:1¥QI;;,,a)id ~,:i,~nu¢ hlfi;tli!l PER&ih\ this,Stiiiiiialiidil;,a~g :!fi;e:Fm.~· . 'Jud ,., gi:t), · ent....... 
	If hazardous waste spills and/or releases are discovered at the facility, GEM and Stericycle shall respond appropriately and consistently with the HWCL, and as required by the permit, this Stipulation, and the Final Judgment




	.~-2~; .'Daily Inspections of:the,L-Oadin&; and'.Unl011ding Aren, 
	.~-2~; .'Daily Inspections of:the,L-Oadin&; and'.Unl011ding Aren, 
	9.23 Daily Inspections of the Loading and Unloading Area

	·oBM aiid'.S!~~ycl~ ~.liii!l  conaµ~t4,aiJy inspei;Jio~.of,tbe. Loadin~ and 'Onload1~_itAreaJor cracks arid' SllO,R,4~~.Pf" . INCQMJi'.AtIBDE' . ............... '.. W:AS1'.E.' .•. .
	GEM and Stericycle shall conduct daily inspections of the loading and unloading area for cracks and storage of incompatible waste.


	,?:24 Locations ut'\ildeo:cameras:-. 
	,?:24 Locations ut'\ildeo:cameras:-. 
	9.24 Locations of Video Cameras

	Williin)O· cays ofilie-erttfy ' of.th~ llin}i)J@griient;. .. ... ' .·9EM,11Jld, St~rlcy.cle,shallprovlile b'rSC ~iii aFAC!tlTY map:tdenticyjnii.ilieJ~9.iitlqns,if:.I .' ' • " ., video i:.~ei,as in Areas 'A1~. c, and J:i'Md the'Load:lirg• and lJiiloli~f~g At#. &.)q);,9 G.™11er;i FACI11TY.Map}. ri:',oENfand'Steticycle i:i:rnke any?cliitli~es fo th~·lggiiion,.?f:an¥ ".i.deo .camera
	Within 30 days of the entry of the Final Judgment, GEM and Stericycle shall provide DTSC with a facility map identifying the locations of video cameras in areas A, B, C, and D and the loading and unloading area (Video Camera Facility Map).  If GEM and Stericycle make any changes to the location of any video camera
	in Areas A, B, C, or D or the loading and unloading area, GEM and Stericycle must submit a revised Video Camera Facility Map within 7 days after a change has been made.


	9:25 13,etention ofAudio and Video Footage: 
	9:25 13,etention ofAudio and Video Footage: 
	9.25 Retention of Audio and Video Footage

	OEM and S_tetj~yi:le sb!l}.bnaintain all audio. and videoJootage used by the FACILITY t6 moriitorAreal! .,1>,, . ; . ' B, C,. and:D . .and the Loading imd .. " . . Unloa:dirig·Area foi".a minimum of on:e··(t) y~lit 'and :shall m~e·the•al!dio_and viaeo '.footage availabie·to DTSC, upon request. 
	GEM and Stericycle shall maintain all audio and video footage used by the facility to monitor areas A, B, C, and D and the loading and unloading area for a minimum of 1 year and shall make the audio and video footage available to DTSC, upon request.


	EMPLOYEES 
	EMPLOYEES 
	9.26 Training

	who started their empfoyrt_ient'at thfF/tCILIT.Y. before the, ~FFE0TIVE _DATE to 
	GEM and Stericycle shall not allow GEM and Stericycle employees who started their employment at the facility before the effective date to 
	store, manage, treat, bulk, or consolidate hazardous waste until he/she
	completes all the training attached as exhibit 2 to this stipulation except for the five trainings and
	testing identified in paragraph 9.26b of this stipulation.  GEM and Stericycle
	employees will have 30 days from the date of entry of the final judgment to complete the
	five trainings and testing in paragraph 9.26b.  GEM and Stericycle shall not allow GEM and
	Stericycle employees who commence their employment at the facility on or after the
	effective date to store, manage, treat, bulk, or consolidate
	hazardous waste until he/she completes all the training attached as Exhibit 2 to this
	Stipulation and the testing identified in Paragraph 9.26(b)(3) except for the training identified in
	section 9.26(b)(1) California Compliance School.  GEM and Stericycle employees
	will have up to six months from the date of commencement of their employment to complete the
	California Compliance School training.

	a,. 
	a,. 
	a,. 
	a.
	Program of Classroom Instruction

	0.l'lM,;ilq,d·Stajcy.el~ §\:1~);.@sw.~.iliofo.U GEM 
	GEM and Stericycle shall ensure that all GEM
	and Stericycle employees successfully complete a program of classroom instruction
	that teaches them to perform their duties at the facility in connection with the
	management of hazardous waste in a way that ensures compliance with the
	requirements of the permit, the HWCL, California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
	66264.16 and 66273.36, and the additional requirements in this Stipulation and the Final
	Judgment.  This program of classroom instruction shall be supervised by a person trained in
	hazardous waste management procedures, including, but not limited to the HWCL,
	and shall include instruction that teaches GEM and Stericycle employees
	hazardous waste management procedures that are relevant to the positions in which
	they are employed at the facility.


	b; 
	b
	GEM and Steii~ycre ·slfait wit],µ~ 3.0'i:layi;'of~ntcy of ille'fmal Judgmep.t provide ihe, 
	GEM and Stericycle shall within 30 days of entry of the Final Judgment provide the
	following five trainings and testing identified in this section and provide documentation that the
	training was conducted in a timely manner within 45 days of entry of the Final Judgment:


	Modules 
	Modules 
	1. California Compliance School
	i through 5
	GEM and Stericycle shall provide training in
	modules 1 through 5 from the California Compliance School for all GEM and Stericycle
	employees who handle hazardous waste at the facility.  Employees who are
	hired after the California Compliance School training is initially provided must take the
	California Compliance School training before they store, manage, treat, bulk or
	consolidate hazardous waste at the facility or within 6 months of hire
	whichever occurs first.


	2, 
	2, 
	2.
	8 Hours of Incompatibility Training

	~~Nf'.llnd $t~tjqy,~I.e.!ib,~.tp.ro:0dE;flt lea!;)' eight· 
	GEM and Stericycle shall provide at least 8
	hours of training every six months to GEM and Stericycle employees on
	identifying, storing, and separating incompatible waste, and explaining the dangers of 
	storing incompatibles together.  At a minimum, this training shall include the following
	elements:

	·-.,.'-1.1'.>.,.· \'V 
	·-.,.'-1.1'.>.,.· \'V 
	·-.,.'-1.1'.>.,.· \'V 
	i

	bas.le cl:ie"''sfm.'_alid.·:fde"tifi~'li'tioii of,JN.nq.:;n:r..:,rro·,r,:n'.W·' S.""'ic'h. ",c_;,.,,·. ·"1 ,..,__.. ·,
	basic chemistry and identification of incompatible waste chemicals including
	the types of chemical reactions associated with incompatible waste/chemicals


	·, (1!}: 
	·, (1!}: 
	ii

	Depiirtmeiitof'I'taiisi!ott.ii.~,;'iri.'('P,01'):±~qtii!:errietits:inobi~ing
	Department of Transportation (DOT) requirements including site specific procedures
	for loading and unloading trucks.


	(iii} 
	(iii} 
	(iii)

	(?iilif.oit)i}f(i,hd~ ofl~eg\ll~\Ji;iiis; !'E~j~R,!,lii:i;meni~,.and.site,spl:lCificipfoceduriiS;. 
	California Code of Regulations, permit requirements and site specific procedures
	used for handling and managing incompatible waste in Areas A, B, C, D, and the
	Loading and Unloading Area, including testing procedures to identify potential
	incompatible waste in Area C.


	:(iy.) 
	:(iy.) 
	iv

	{l:~M.'a,11,ct:steP!,JY,Cl~ sbai\'PtQ:vi~Mrainl~&in: utilizing the.United States 
	GEM and Stericycle shall provide training in utilizing the United States
	Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA) Chemical Compatibility Chart (EPA 600/2-80-076
	April 1980, or any subsequent revisions; California Code of Regulation, title 22, chapter 14
	article 19, Appendix V, Examples of Potentially incompatible waste table, and Code of 
	Federal Regulations, title 49, part 177, subparts A (Carriage by Public Highway) including, but
	not limited to, section 177.848, i.e., DOT Segregation of Hazardous Materials table.  The US EPA
	Chemical Compatibility Chart; California Code of Regulations, title 22, chapter 14, Appendix V, Examples of Potentially incompatible waste table, and DOT Segregation of Hazardous
	materials table shall be posted in Areas A, B, C, and D, so that GEM and Stericycle
	employees working in these permitted areas of the facility can refer to them when
	handling hazardous waste.


	Cf) 
	Cf) 
	(v)

	the. itls'fory.ofviolaiiorui~cident~ at·FACILITY iliv~iviii~ )NCQMPA}JIILE. .WAS:TE. .
	the history of violations/incidents at facility involving incompatible waste.


	fv.l~ ,. ' 
	fv.l~ ,. ' 
	(vi)

	:al'lpiiciible)pottions oftlie EmetgencyGontingency:Plmi/liiiil sitr.spi:tjtic.s~efy.
	applicable portions of the Emergency Contingency Plan and site-specific safety
	procedures including personal protective equipment and other safety equipment utilized in the
	event of an incompatible waste incident at the facility.




	testing·e.fler ·, ' . ihe.SJiuuts:oflticompati~iH.fy . ' . Ttaimrig.is,P)'cmil:ed \Q .. .. } ·4!lP)o'nstrate'.thiift:ra\iiingc' . . 
	testing·e.fler ·, ' . ihe.SJiuuts:oflticompati~iH.fy . ' . Ttaimrig.is,P)'cmil:ed \Q .. .. } ·4!lP)o'nstrate'.thiift:ra\iiingc' . . 
	3. Testing After 8 Hours of Incompatibility Training

	partlofp1U1ts;are,abie•to·~AGE;INC()MPATIBLEcWAS~~:co)\si~)~)it 
	GEM and Stericycle shall conduct testing after 8 Hours of Incompatibility Training is provided to demonstrate that training
	participants are able to manage incompatible wastes consistent with the requirements
	of the HWCL.  A GEM and Stericycle employee who receives a score of 90% on a test will
	have passed the test.  A GEM and Stericycle employee who receives a score between 70 and 90%
	must retake the test until a minimum score of 90% is obtained.  A GEM Stericycle
	employee
	who receives a score below 70% must retake the training and the test.  The
	testing results will be provided to DTSC after each training.


	,4. 4Hour.s'Ulu>'l\r.ilit·WAS1'E'Triiioing, GEM: 
	,4. 4Hour.s'Ulu>'l\r.ilit·WAS1'E'Triiioing, GEM: 
	4. 4 Hours Universal Waste Training

	;liid_ Steij,;;ycl~,shil!.\ prgyjd1;,n,tleast .four (4)·hout!f!'.i(ttaii:ii:fig:~efy.-s~ m&,\~s,i\rr.thi::l%N'PWNG.aitf?vl)X.1'.'!AGEMEJ;(f-ol1Jni,versar
	GEM and Stericycle shall provide at least 4 hours of training every 6 months on the handling and management of universal
	waste to GEM and Stericycle employees.


	,~: .:A'reii'Q: aiid,·AieaD'Sfahdard·Qil:eratiijiProoedures.(SbP1·Training;· 
	,~: .:A'reii'Q: aiid,·AieaD'Sfahdard·Qil:eratiijiProoedures.(SbP1·Training;· 
	5. Area C and Area D Staandard Operating Procedures (SOP) Training

	GEM and'. 
	GEM and
	Stericycle shall provide Area C and Area D SOP Training,specifically compatibility training for
	bulking and consolidation of lab packs, loose packs, and solid waste in roll-off bins.
	Thereafter, GEM and Stericycle will provide the Area C and Area D SOP Training every 6
	months after entry of the Final Judgment.  That training shall include, but not be limited to, the
	following according to each SOP.

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i)

	ilie \<icop~ and,applicniion ofthe procedure.
	the scope and application of the procedure


	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	(ii) 

	si~ficnnce ofthe procedure. 
	significance of the procedure


	iii 
	iii 
	(iii)

	the a atus:Used. 
	the apparatus used


	(iv) 
	(iv) 
	(iv) 

	reagents and materials.
	reagents and materials.


	 (v)
	 (v)
	 (v)

	sample'collection, preservation nnd HANDLING procedut'e. .
	sampling collection, preservation, and handling procedure.


	'(vi) 
	'(vi) 
	(vi)

	BULKil'{~ and CONSOUDATIQN pi:occilures, including chci:kii:i'g ;th~jjH;. ~~qioaciiivi_cy a.nd'physjca.l characteris.t,1qs.Pffue material as,reqlli,ed byTabfe'V:,2 qf the
	bulking and consolidation procedures, including checking the pH, radioactivity and physical characteristics of the material as required by Table V-2 of the
	Waste Analysis Plan.


	(ijj) 
	(ijj) 
	(vii)

	,Qµ,ality, Qgnt~pl l,'ro~!,lres:ibe_physi'clil atttl\\utes ofi.lieWASmE.ai:id ·the prtic,¢1!!'~
	Quality Control Procedures the physical attributes of the waste and the procedures
	taken for consolidation, and test container usage.




	-~-
	-~-
	6.
	Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response (HAZWOPER) 8-hour Supervisor Training

	. .'  f1u1a~Hion·fo,Ihe PERMf.r·rtqlilfed ttafoirt,ki #hicn·t~ffe.j'es Gl':M and 
	In addition to the permit required training which requires GEM and
	Stericycle to provide at least 8 hours of HAZWOPER supervisor training to
	Supervisor/Leadman who have limited handling of hazardous waste, GEM
	and Stericycle shall provide at least 8 hours of HAZWOPER supervisor training annually
	(every 365 days) for Supervisor/Leadman who directly handle hazardous
	waste, including but not limited to handling that does and does not involve
	consolidation and/or bulking of hazardous wastes.



	C. .:Su0S!%9Uellt'Reiti~fons:to'Trliiiiing.Ma\ei:fals.. 
	C. .:Su0S!%9Uellt'Reiti~fons:to'Trliiiiing.Ma\ei:fals.. 
	c. Subsequent Revisions to Training Materials

	OEM·~pd 'Steticycl'e,sb1ill pr9yj'de
	GEM and Stericycle shall provide
	DTSC with all permit and Stipulation and Final Judgment related training materials, including
	any subsequent revisions to training materials, 65 days prior to using them.  DTSC may review
	and comment on the adequacy of the training materials.  If DTSC reviews the training materials
	and determines them to be inadequate, DTSC will identify the deficiencies and request that GEM
	and Stericycle revise the training
	materials
	GEM and Stericycle will remain responsible for the
	adequacy of the training and shall not be relieved of the requirements of the Stipulation and Final
	Judgment.  DTSC's action or inaction with regard to the training materials shall neither impair
	nor waive DTSC's authority to enforce the permit, HWCL or the Stipulation and the Final
	Judgment.




	9.27 ~ FACILITY RepresentiiHve'Respbns\lile for Comllliance·wii:b Training 
	9.27 ~ FACILITY RepresentiiHve'Respbns\lile for Comllliance·wii:b Training 
	9.27 Facility Representative Responsible for Compliance with Training

	Within five 
	Within 5
	days of entry of the Final Judgment, GEM and Stericycle shall provide the name and position
	title of the GEM and Stericycle employee that shall act as the authorized representative of GEM
	and Stericycle and who shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with the training requirements under the HWCL, the permit and this Stipulation and the Final Judgment.


	.9,28 
	.9,28 
	9.28 

	Verification' ofJrainirig; 
	Verification of Training

	Initial
	Initial
	Initial
	a.

	 Vtmifoatien: ••. ••• 
	Initial Verification

	O) ·
	O) ·
	O) ·
	(1)

	GEM and Stedcyc!e sJi~\1:·:~itJiiJ· ~P l;l~is 9f(hi:·~lllrYpf.)h~ Finauud~ent~ provid
	GEM and Stericycle shall, within 30 days of the entry of the Final Judgment, provide
	documentation to DTSC demonstrating that all GEM and Stericycle employees
	employed at the facility on or before the effective date who store, manage
	treat, bulk, consolidate, or otherwise come into contact with hazardous waste
	in the scope of their duties related to the operations of the facility have completed all the
	trainings set forth in the attached Exhibit 2 to this Stipulation except for the 5 trainings and
	testing identified in section 9.26b of this Stipulation.  For the 9.26b trainings and testing,
	GEM and Stericycle shall provide documentation that training and testing was completed within
	45 days of entry of the Final Judgment.


	fl.): .. . 
	fl.): .. . 
	(2)

	·"'... FOF all .. ~rnm .· .......... Ji:N.Tj)'STERIQYCt;I!':Btv@I;(j'.'{EfiS:lifred;after ... . .... ................. .. .. .. . .. .. ... . .... . .. .. •the.EF.ffiG T!V,E .' . .·
	For all GEM and Stericycle employees hired after the effective
	date, before allowing GEM and Stericycle employees to engage in hazardous 
	waste management, GEM and Stericycle must provide documentation to DTSC that all
	the trainings set forth in Exhibit 2 to this Stipulation have been completed.  GEM and Stericycle
	shall provide documentation that California Compliance School training was completed no later
	than 6 months and 15 days after the person was initially hired.


	en; 
	en; 
	(3)

	1Jie,p~r~9.1Jitt.<ld:'.!ti:~l!!11grapit;§;21,wili1certi. 'cif:Pef.1\ity .. .. -. ., .. 
	The person identified in Paragraph 9.27 will certify under penalty of perjury under the
	laws of the State of California that the documentation provided to DTSC regarding the initial
	verification is true and correct.




	.b, Subsequent v erificati¢m: 
	.b, Subsequent v erificati¢m: 
	b. Subsequent Verification

	Every six fuoi\t~s. fr9.ii\' c;nuy•cif:the final)udgin~nt, and 
	Every 6 months from entry of the Final Judgment, and
	continuing for 5 years, GEM and Stericycle shall submit to DTSC a training table that
	includes the names of all GEM and Stericycle employees that supervise, store
	manage, treat, bulk or consolidate hazardous waste, including, but not
	limited to Supervisor/Leadman and those who act as a Supervisor/Leadman.  The
	table must identify all the trainings set forth in Paragraph 9.26 of this Stipulation and in Exhibit 2 to this
	Stipulation.  The table shall include the GEM and Stericycle employees date of 
	hire and date of termination, if applicable.  The table shall also include the GEM and
	Stericycle employees initial training and each subsequent annual/refresher training for
	the previous 3 years.  With each submittal to DTSC, GEM and Stericycle shall provide the
	following:

	(n 
	(n 
	(n 
	(1)

	•supportiijjf'documeritlitioii;itjcl\idiiigiiewncates:a.ricJl'?r II'aip.irjg ~i!m•lJ:,P:,~hee,ts. .
	supporting documentation including certificates and/or training sign-up sheets.


	-·-·.-. (~) •. 
	-·-·.-. (~) •. 
	(2)

	tl\e;sylfabus usetl'for-the.ei(pil {8)hol)l:S'Qfinc,omp~ti1)'1!W TIJl)WI!g, .
	the syllabus used for the 8 hours of Incompatibility Training.


	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 

	cburse·outliries thM'd~~~be
	course outlines that describe:

	 (a) 
	 (a) 
	 (a) 
	 (a) 

	RE:IY',.·~.P~~:Wl\§T,F:"CJen!,Jllfor:Trainih~
	RCRA Hazardous Waste Generator Training


	(~)
	(~)
	b.

	1Foui'((4}Hours:ot:Univershl V,.,:;t\~'fE,Tf!!i~
	4 hours of Universal Waste Training


	 (c)·!
	 (c)·!
	c.

	3D:i!#g~n~yJ~{!!ijiqns~-rro~t)@.ures ancf Conllii eric'-'Piari.'fr•i\il....
	Emergency Response Procedures and Contingency Plan Training


	·(d".,-
	·(d".,-
	d.

	~ERMJT·Tfo"....... --,"~•!2)'.AreaCend·Ar.ea-D Sb"Traim··n..:'.
	Permit Training and Area C and Area D SOP Training








	9.29 'Gertificalioii TI!afAll'.GEM·'AND STERICYC-LEEMPLOYEES Have,-Recefyed, 
	9.29 'Gertificalioii TI!afAll'.GEM·'AND STERICYC-LEEMPLOYEES Have,-Recefyed, 
	9.29 Certification That All GEM and Stericycle Employees Have Received Training

	 .·~Tniliili'iil,  ----~· ·Eye· ""!·'()fili~'F.inal:'Jiidl/;!l,ieflt ,the . .l'Y ,six,m ... ... ,R'dtlis ..-...........after e _9~-.,: ... ,., ........... , ·--···"·' ---~·-· erson·identifi~:fo'Para""'_...... --· p;-~p :_•· h·
	Every 6 months after entry of the Final Judgment, the person identified in Paragraph
	9.27 will certify under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of California to DTSC that all
	GEM and Stericycle employees who store, manage, treat, bulk or
	consolidate hazardous waste have received the training required under the HWCL
	the permit, and this Stipulation and the Final Judgment, within the time periods required.


	," 9,30 Retentio"ii 'ofTi:itinirij(Ree(n:ils, :
	," 9,30 Retentio"ii 'ofTi:itinirij(Ree(n:ils, :
	9.30 Retention of Training Records

	GEM_. nn~ S.t!lricycle:;s\\a!lre'iaittJraining, tecori:is on 
	GEM and Stericycle shall retain training records on
	GEM and Stericycle employees, including all records associated with Paragraph 9.26
	of this Stipulation until closure of the facility is certified by DTSC; training records for
	terminated GEM and Stericycle employees shall be kept for at least 3 years from the date of termination.


	9jr Envjronmentaf,Comp)jance Assurance Contractor:-
	9jr Envjronmentaf,Comp)jance Assurance Contractor:-
	9.31 Environmental Compliance Assurance Contractor

	Within forty-fi:~·e (~5) cal~ndar: days of,ihe entry ·of.the Pin:al Judgment, OEM 'and Sterioycle shall eiiiploy i111d. nulin\ain,Jor a· 
	Within 45 calendar days of the entry of the Final Judgment, GEM and Stericycle shall employ and maintain for a 
	period of 5 years a third-party contractor knowledgeable in the California environmental
	laws that are the subject of this Stipulation and the Final Judgment, as an "Environmental
	Compliance Assurance Contractor".  Prior to selecting the Environmental Compliance Assurance
	Contractor, GEM and Stericycle shall provide the name and curriculum vitae or otherwise present
	the qualifications of the proposed Compliance Assurance Contractor to DTSC. The
	Environmental Compliance Assurance Contractor's responsibility shall be to manage GEM and
	Stericycle's compliance with the injunctive terms in this Stipulation and the Final Judgment
	GEM and Stericycle shall remain responsible for the actions of said contractor and shall not
	otherwise be relieved of any requirements set forth in the permit, this Stipulation, or the Final
	Judgment.  The duties of the Environmental Compliance Assurance Contractor shall include:

	a. ·• 
	a. ·• 
	a. ·• 
	a.

	1U1deri~g good'faiih eft'.llrts .to· assess ,GEM:·l!Ji.ti,Steril)ybie's·toiiipll.imce wifli. 
	undertaking good faith efforts to assess GEM and Stericycle's compliance with
	applicable laws and regulations.


	·ib. 
	·ib. 
	b.

	•attvi~in,~ oEiM;A'.~;sJI:iRid¥:/ru1.. BM.'Ptoms:-on,com.j)li~µ,~;:\Ymi:'lil.t:'~wlii\4li~~' Iaw.s.;iinci,ri:gµTatfon:s: an.cl tt1 ·corr!:ict.anr,noted,tilificiendiis oiJvi\>latioii~,'aj'fd
	advising GEM and Stericycle employees on compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and to correct any noted deficiencies or violations, and


	c.·· ..
	c.·· ..
	c

	 ·co1ieciin&iand:,rnaintainingfco'pits·o'f Mi'writtt1ir,(ci:Vis~~;o.fvi§l!!ti\lii,,iliclu<l!!l&a 
	collecting and maintaining copies of all written advisements of violation, including a 
	Notice of Summary of Violations NOV's and SOV's and inspection reports, issued or performed by any local, state, or federal agency that identifies any violation of any environmental
	protection law, relating to the facility for a period of 5 years.




	'!);32i ,Annu~i'.Reports; 
	'!);32i ,Annu~i'.Reports; 
	9.32 Annual Reports

	,i3e~gone year,ijft~ !)le e!Jtfy;ofJ)i&.Fi)W:i~jid~~~ti and 
	Beginning one year after the entry of the Final Judgment, and
	continuing for 5 years from the entry of the Final Judgment, GEM and Stericycle's
	Environmental Compliance Assurance Contractor shall submit to DTSC, an annual status report,
	describing.

	: ii, 
	: ii, 
	: ii, 
	a

	·~be·effl'.i'(is'.bf GEM:arid-·~tm~~le 19;&,,Q.iply ;wi..!Jl::.m¢;i'ecm~ ~f.lhi~:,Stiplllation and: .
	the efforts by GEM and Stericycle to comply with the terms of this Stipulation and the Final Judgment.


	27 }? 
	27 }? 
	b.

	.Saf'<ti Cq~e sectiiln 255.Q.8.J; N,QVs 9r s·ovs: iss!\ed ~GEl\i,i: /l?d.St!ldcycl~ fcir th(FAClLITY.;­
	the occurence of a reportable event or reportable event as defined in Health and Safety Code section 25508.1, NOVs or SOVs issued to GEM and Stericycle for the facility,


	c.. 
	c.. 
	c

	,any actions taken by,\he·FACJLITY in response to a'rtj>ortable evetit and NbVslSQVs,.and 
	any actions taken by the facility in response to a reportable event and NOVs and SOVs and


	d. 
	d. 
	d. 

	any P.enalties·paid liy 'GEM and,StericycleMith tespecrtil,such NOVs/S9Vs.
	any penalties paid by GEM and Stericycle with respect to such NOVs / SOVs
	Each annual report shall be signed by GEM and Stericycle's Environmental Compliance
	Assurance Contractor, one corporate officer from GEM, one corporate officer from Stericycle
	Environmental Solutions, Inc., and one corporate officer from Stericycle, Inc., under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California.




	9,33. -Environmental Audiis:, " 
	9,33. -Environmental Audiis:, " 
	9.33 Environmental Audits

	Within forty~fi~e (45) calcnciar:cias,s'Ofthe·ent,y·of the F:.iQa1
	Within 45 calendar days of the entry of the Final
	Judgment, GEM and Stericycle shall select and retain the services of an independent third-party
	auditor who is qualified to conduct hazardous waste audits to determine compliance with
	the HWCL, the permit, this Stipulation, and the Final Judgment and shall be either a Registered
	Environmental Assessor or Professional Engineer licensed in California, and knowledgeable and
	experienced in environmental regulations, including HWCL (Auditor). Prior to selecting
	the auditor, GEM and Stericyclce shall provide the name and curriculum vitae or otherwise present
	the qualifications of the proposed Auditor to DTSC.

	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	a

	.:r'he..:Aµ.ditor,wiJl·use\the~·jl"azani,ous'"Waste Geliliratorilftajiecti'oil;~Jip~jtt:a~ta,cl:\~; 
	The auditor will use the "Hazardous Waste Generator Inspection Report", attached
	hereto as Exhibit 3, as guidance for a hazardous waste audit protocol that will be used by
	the Auditor to determine whether GEM and Stericycle are meeting the requirements of the
	HWCL, permit, this Stipulation, and the Final Judgment.  In addition, to any other audit
	objectives deemed appropriate by GEM and Stericycle, the environmental compliance audits shall
	evaluate GEM and Stericycle's compliance with HWCL, permit, and the requirements of
	this Stipulation and the Final Judgment.  The hazardous waste compliance audits shall
	also evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of GEM and Stericycle's hazardous
	waste compliance program intended to maintain compliance with the HWCL, permit, and
	this Stipulation and the Final Judgment.


	27 '.
	27 '.
	b

	FAGH:iITY!tjl~!i-'~ 1Jl-\#.!~i!!'1:-w.te~; The /i.\jfi,fi.U'1i,1._c.o,(!4Ji~i~;:1,~··1)1?,Iilh~;~:fte.r-entrto:f'.Hie: 
	The Auditor shall conduct 3 hazardous waste compliance audits of the facility, each at 18 month intervals.  The first will be conducted 18 months after entry of the 
	Final Judgment, the second will be 36 months after entry of the Final Judgment, and the third will
	be 54 months after entry of the Final Judgment.




	~;~4 .Narrative Audit Re,poris; 
	~;~4 .Narrative Audit Re,poris; 
	9.34 Narrative Audit Reports

	f'.or .each audit,:.the Auditor shill! also prepare and S\!b~i~ a; 
	For each audit, the Auditor shall also prepare and submit a
	narrative hazardous waste audit report to GEM and Stericycle, with a copy to DTSC, due
	within 60 calendar days after each of the 3 audit deadlines stated in Paragraph 9.33b.  The
	hazardous waste audit reports referenced above shall include, but not be limited to a 
	complete description and discussion of all audit objectives, scope, and criteria, audit activities
	audit findings, and audit conclusions, recommendations and shall identify and discuss all audit
	evidence considered or relied upon to support the audit conclusions.  The hazardous
	waste audit reports shall also contain a brief description of any written advisements or
	violation including formal NOV's or SOV's and inspection reports directed to GEM and Stericycle
	by any local, state, or federal agency that identifies any violation of any environmental protection
	law relating to the management of any hazardous materials or hazardous waste.  Such
	reports shall also include, but not be limited to, a brief description of the disposition of any such
	noted violations, including whether GEM and Stericycle paid any fines, costs or other payments
	and what corrective measures taken by GEM and Stericycle to correct any deficiencies raised in
	the hazardous waste audit reports, if any, were taken by GEM and Stericycle.  This
	requirement is not intended to be and shall not be construed as a "cure period" and does not relieve GEM and Stericycle of their obligation to promptly correct any deficiency or violation as
	required by the HWCL, the permit, or this Stipulation and Judgment.


	,9}3%' Cpm~liance:Audfts-, 11re,Nol'Bfuaing-oo'.DTSC: . ... } . ~ 
	,9}3%' Cpm~liance:Audfts-, 11re,Nol'Bfuaing-oo'.DTSC: . ... } . ~ 
	9.35 Compliance Audits are not Binding on DTSC

	:T:ii:e)Pw:tl'es,lig_tee . !l)a,t~tb~:.
	The Parties agree that the
	hazardous waste compliance audits and corresponding audit reports are not binding on
	DTSC.  DTSC in no way delegates or waives its enforcement authority.  Furthermore, DTSC's
	action or inaction with respect to the audits shall neither impair nor waive DTSC's authority to
	enforce the HWCL, the permit, or this Stipulation and the Final Judgment.




	10. Civil Penalties
	:10, CIVIL PENALTIES 
	10. Civil Penalties

	10.L 
	10.L 
	10.L 
	10.1 

	SETTLEMENT PA~ENT 
	Settlement Payment

	a.. 
	a.. 
	a.. 
	a.

	GEM and Stericycle shaHpay DTSC a,totatof$i,41·2,AOO in civ:ilpenalties within !)rirty (3~) days ofth~ 13;.FFECJIVE bATE. 
	GEM and Stericycle shall pay DTSC a total of $1,412,400 in civil penalties within 30 days of the effective date.


	b. 
	b. 
	b. 

	this payment sh,11lbe made by cashiet's check, par,able'!o the ''Department o{Toxic Substanc~~ Control!' an.d b.earin the. notation "GEM and.Steric 'Cle, in:c. and Cose No; '34r201'7., 002213{8;" and mailed-to: 
	This payment shall be made by cashier's check, payable to the "Department of Toxic Substances Control" and bering the notation " GEm and Stericycle, INc., and Case No. 34-2017-00221348" and mailed to:
	Cashier  Accounting Office, MS-21A  Department of Toxic Substances Control PO Box 806 Sacramento California 95812-0806


	~: 
	~: 
	c

	.tm, electrol)Jc (~;g,, A.§obe ~Dll) ciip)I q(papetpllofohopy pfJ!j'e pay\l)enj.shalf'be . sent; iifthe siim'e time; tQ,ll'iose ersoiis iden•tied·.i~ Para h n . . • .. . •. '•' ..·.. ' p .. .... " ll!'flP ..• 
	An electronic (e.g., Adobe PDF) copy or paper photocopy of the payment shall be sent, at the same time, to those persons identified in Paragraph 11.




	10,2 .LATE; PA~J' 
	10,2 .LATE; PA~J' 
	10.2 Late Payment

	PEM·IUl\1 ~tajcy:cle)hiQLpay aJat'e p~)'jn~ht•ofHQ,00:0 ~ij!J.y{or,e~clic d~y;the P,aymeni 
	GEM and Stericycle shall pay a late payment of $10,000 per day for each day the payment
	is late.  In addition, GEM and Stericycle shall pay DTSC post-judgment interest as provided in
	Code of Civil Procedures section 685.010 (10%) from the date of default.  Further, GEM and
	Stericycle is obligated to pay costs incurred by DTSC in enforcing the money judgment against
	GEM and Stericycle, in this matter, including, but not limited to reasonable attorney's fees.




	11. Notices
	11.0 Notices
	Hsi 
	Hsi 
	Hsi 
	11.1

	AlJ·no#~ .wider Ws,S~pwition,im,d!\:he,f:ipal)u9gi;1t~l,sfoill b~,fo:1~fui~ani1'shlill ,be s~n\:.to: 
	All notices under this Stipulation and the Final Judgment shall be in writing and shall be sent to:
	Denise Tsuji, Branch Chief, Department of Toxic Substances Control, Enforcement and Emergency Response Division, 8800 Cal Center Drive, Sacramento, California, 95826-3200, email: Denise.tsuji@dtsc.ca.gov
	Brook O'Hanley Selzer
	Senior Attorney, Office of Legal Counsel, Department of Toxic Substances Control, 700 Heinz Avenue
	Berkeley, CA 94710, Email: brooke.selze@dtsc.ca.gov
	Rose B. Fua
	Deputy Attorney General, 1515 Clay Street, Suite 2000
	PO Box 70550
	Oakland, CA 94612-0550 Email: rose.fua@doj.ca.gov
	Legal Department GEM/Stericycle, Inc.
	28161 N. Keith Drive, Lake Forest, IL, 60045
	Matt Marra
	SVP, Safety, Health, and Compliance, 28161 N. Keith Drive, Lake Forest, IL, 60045 Email: Matt.marra@stericycle.com
	James D. Treloar
	Vice President, TSDF Operations 28161 N. Keith Drive
	Lake Forest, IL 60045
	Email: James.Treloar@stericycle.com


	:.1·~·::Z '
	:.1·~·::Z '
	11.2

	$M1i :flilty:ifu.ily·9~ii,6.g¢;i,t$,t!,i.sJi~.tjtiy!l:,1.~1~rmtli?.\Y.~(~),filrputposes·J.itfoo:tlbe:.b:)l: 
	Each party may change its respectative representative(s) for purpose of notice by
	providing the name and address of the new representative, in writing to those persons identified
	in Paragraph 11.1.  All notices or other communications required or permitted under the Final
	Judgment that are addressed as provided in this Paragraph are effective upon delivery if delivered
	personally or by overnight mail, or, if delivered by certified mail, are effective 5 calendar
	days following deposit with the United States mail, postage prepaid, if delivered by mail, or are
	effective the next court day that electronic mail is sent before 5 PM (PST) to the electronic mail
	addresses of the designated recipient for notice concurrent with sending the notice by United States Mail.


	11 ;J 
	11 ;J 
	11.3

	Ail notices,. approvals,, ani!'decisiqris 9fPTSC tinder the .terms of.tli,j_s Stipul11tion _.91; 
	All notices, approvals, and decisions of DTSC under the terms of this Stipulation or
	the Final Judgment shall be communicated to GEM and Stericycle in writing.  No oral advice,
	guidance, suggestions, or comments by employees or officials of DTSC or people or entities
	acting on behalf of GEM and Stericycle, regarding matters covered in this Stipulation or the Final
	Judgment, shall be construed to relieve GEM and Stericycle of its obligations under this Stipulation or the Final Judgment.


	1hft., 
	1hft., 
	11.4

	N:othing in tli.i!;_'Stipulatioii or the·Fii\iil}ililiµn~~t shall be i!iterpJ"e!~'!!~ ~PP.li~4Jo 
	Nothing in this Stipulation or the Final Judgment shall be interpreted or applied to
	relieve GEM and Stericycle of its existing obligations to provide copies of documentation to a 
	local agency or Certified Unified Program Agency (CUPA) as required by Statute, regulation, or
	requirement.




	12. Reservation of Authority
	12 Reservation of Authority
	·12.1 
	·12.1 
	·12.1 
	12.1

	:01her tlii111 '©'.l'vered Ml!tted'.as de~~-.rn; pef!agrap1,)~~.Jiothirig,h¢f:'#/i..ii~i.n.te!\:~
	Other than "Covered Matters" as defined in paragraph 7.1, nothing herin is intended
	nor shall it be construed, to preclude DTSC, or any state, county, or local agency, department,
	board, or entity from exercising its authority under any law, statute, or regulation.


	12,Z ,.. .. 
	12,Z ,.. .. 
	12.2

	Nothiiigjiftl!iii S.ti. illatioii'.at-the FfrialJiid ' 'eii.Hn'aii"'.Wil. Waives.!iiJi. ·ts,an • 
	Nothing in this Stipulation or the Final Judgment in any way waives or limits any
	authority DTSC has under the HWCL to

	:.1 ):t
	:.1 ):t
	:.1 ):t
	1)

	fu_forceit'l);eJI.O:aJ Jii~gi'nijii,V
	enforce the final judgment


	2) 
	2) 
	2) 

	~ij·:i!i:e.¥iijlattpns
	use the violations in
	the Complaint to seek enhanced penalties in any subsequent administrative or civil action to show
	a pattern or course of conduct or a history of non-compliance


	l'....3)'u,..
	l'....3)'u,..
	3)

	....se. . th,::-vibl. .. . . ~/;\eJl~ '· .·.in ..... the:... 
	use the violations in the
	Complaint in a permitting proceeding decision, and/or process.




	·12,;3 ~•..
	·12,;3 ~•..
	12.3

	'othin' ' ti .. g_L ."iNircHore ......8.goin ............... il(i:riteridei! to. or.\shall-be ,.. ,.......i:<i"° ~·trued,iis ........... limioo $ .<Jr .P1'.C: e luiflt;.. , 81 .· 
	Nothing in the foregoing is intended to or shall be construed as limiting or precluding
	DTSC from pursuing all of its remedies to enforce this Stipulation and the Final Judgment or
	from initiating an enforcement action against GEM and/or Stericycle seeking injunctive relief or
	penalties for the period of time GEM and/or Stericycle violated the terms of this Stipulation or the
	Final Judgment or from initiating  an enforcement action against GEM and/or Stericycle for any
	violations of the HWCL or Title 22, except as provided by section 7 Matters Covered.


	,12';~. ,
	,12';~. ,
	12.4

	A,~ec_isioµ' bit;iT:'Sp. pq_ttq, enfor~e .!!I\Y p,w~lii.Q\1Q.fth.l~i$1ip.rii/.ll:io!l;,Q,/the'Firtal 
	A decision by DTSC not to enforce any provision of this Stipulation or the Final
	Judgment shall neither be deemed a waiver of the provision, nor in any way affect the validity of
	this Stipulation, the Final Judgment, or DTSC's enforcement authority.  A decision by DTSC not
	to enforce any provision of this Stipulation or the Final Judgment shall not preclude DTSC from exercising its statutory authority to enforce the same or other provisions.


	12.5 
	12.5 
	12.5

	GEM.and:Stericycle covenant not'to.pursue an)' civii or administrative claims ag~iiist OTSC ,Or agai.nst any .gov~entahinit.of the ,Slllie. of,
	GEM and Stericycle covenant not to pursue any civil or administrative claims against DTSC or against any governmental unit of the State of California, any counties or municipalities
	California,
	any counties or municipalities
	in the State of California, or against their officers, employees, representatives, agents, or attorneys
	for actions taken against GEM and Stericycle arising out of or related to Covered Matters.




	13. Violations Deemed Proven
	 ·10 Co.veroo.Matters. 
	13. Violations Deemed Proven

	GEM and Stericycle agree that, soley for purposed of subsection (a) and (b) below
	hereinafter "Defined Situations"):
	.. Siiuations''): 
	.. Siiuations''): 
	.. Siiuations''): 
	(a)

	¢oveyed).atft,he'F,A,OI1"ITY; and/or 
	a future DTSC enforcement action for new violations (i.e., not within Matters Covered) at the facility; and/or


	(bJ 
	(bJ 
	(b)

	~pemi\\lA1Jg,prnceaj1ng;.~eclsio~•. ™1il!.i>r.process:r~~d'iii_~·.GEM;and/ot·Stmicyclii·as, . · .~ BP,Rll~JQr·pi;:hP14~ ofa ~AIP>:OtJ~ WA,$tE facili(ies;P.ER:Mrt and/or'.i!Azmous 
	a permitting proceeding; decision, and/or process regarding GEM and/or Stericycle as an applicant for or holder of a hazardous waste facilities permit and/or hazardous
	waste transporter registration, including, but not limited to, any decision made pursuant to
	Health and Safety Code section 25186 and/or process arising from Health and Safety Code section 25200.21.
	the violations alleged in
	the Complaint will be deemed proven
	without any need for
	testimony or other evidence.  GEM and Stericycle each agree that the violations alleged in the
	Complaint may be used by DTSC in the Defined Situations, interalia, as a basis for enhanced penalties or permitting proceedings, decisions, and/or processes.  Further, GEm and
	Stericycle agree that, in any of the Defined Situations, neither GEM nor Stericycle will dispute
	the facts underlying the violations alleged in the Complaint or DTSC's use of the violations
	alleged in the Complaint as a basis for enhanced penalties or for permitting proceeding(s) and/or
	decision(s) and/or process(es).  If DTSC seeks to use the violations alleged in the Complaint.
	GEM and Stericycle each also agree that, in any of the Defined Situations, they will not assert any
	defenses based on the passage of time, including, but not limited to, laches, estoppel, and statute
	of limitations.




	14. No Liability of DTSC
	14. No Liability of DTSC
	DTSC shall not be liable for any injury or damage to persons or property resulting from acts
	or omissions by GEM and/or Stericycle or its agents, servants, employees, representatives, or
	other persons acting in concert or participating with GEM and Stericycle, in carrying out
	activities pursuant to this Stipulation or the Final Judgment in this matter, nor shall DTSC be held
	as a party to or guarantor of any contract entered into by GEM and Stericycle or its agents
	servants, employees, representatives, or other persons acting in concert or participating with GEM
	and Stericycle, in carrying out the requirements of this Stipulation or the Final Judgment in this
	matter.

	15. Future Regulatory Changes
	15. Future Regulatory Changes
	Nothing in this Stipulation or the Final Judgment shall excuse GEM and/or Stericycle from
	meeting any more stringent requirements that may be imposed by applicable law or by changes in
	the applicable law.

	16. Future Permit Changes
	16. Future Permit Changes
	Nothing in this Stipulation or the
	Final Judgment entered by the Court in this matter shall
	preclude DTSC from requiring more stringent requirements in GEM/Stericycles permit for
	this facility.

	17. Integration
	17. Integration
	This Stipulation constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the
	Covered Matters and may not be amended or supplemented except as provided for in this
	Stipulation or the Final Judgment.  No oral representationshave been made or relied on other than
	as expressly set forth herein.

	18. Interpretation of this Stipulation and the Final Judgment
	18. Interpretation of this Stipulation and the Final Judgment
	This Stipulation and the Final Judgment shall be deemed to have been drafted equally by
	the Parties hereto.  The Parties agree that the rule of construction holding that ambiguity its
	construed against the drafting party shall not apply to the interpretation of this Stipulation and the
	Final Judgment.

	19. Continuing Jurisdiction
	19. Continuing Jurisdiction
	The Parties agree that this Court has continuing jurisdiction to interpret and enforce the
	provisions of this Stipulation and the Final Judgment and to address any other matters arising out of or regarding this Stipulation and the Final Judgment.

	20. Amendments to this Stipulation and the Final Judgment
	20. Amendments to this Stipulation and the Final Judgment
	This Stipulation and the Final Judgment may be amended or supplemented only pursuant to a written agreement signed by the Parties, followed by written approval by the Court, or by order of the Court following the filing of a duly noticed motion.

	21. Costs and Attorney's Fees
	21. Costs and Attorney's Fees
	Except as otherwise provided in this Stipulation, each Party to this Stipulation and the Final Judgment shall bear its own costs and attorney's fees.

	22. Authority to Enter this Stipulation
	22. Authority to Enter this Stipulation
	Each signatory to thiss Stipulation certifies that he or she is fully authorized by the Party he or she represents to enter into this Stipulation, to execute it on behalf of the Party represented, and to legally bind that Party.

	23. Counterparts
	23. Counterparts
	This Stipulation may be executed in several counterpart originals, each of which taken
	together shall constitute an integrated document.

	24. Entry of the Final Judgment Pursuant to Stipulation
	24. Entry of the Final Judgment Pursuant to Stipulation
	Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 664.6, the Parties further stipulate that, upon approval of this Stipulation by the Court, the Court may enter, the Final Judgment in this matter in
	the form set forth in the attached Exhibit 1.  If the Court does not approve this Stipulation and the
	agreed upon Final Judgment in the form and substance proposed in Exhibit 1 hereto, each Party
	reserves the right to withdraw both this Stipulation and the proposed Final Judgment, upon written notice to all Parties and the Courts.
	It is So Stipulated.  
	Dated October 15, 2018
	For the California Department of Toxic Substances Control  Original signed by Keith Kihara
	Chief
	Enforcement and Emergency Response Division
	Hazardous Waste Management Program
	Dated October 15, 2018
	For General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC dba PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC; Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc.; Stericycle, Inc.
	Original signed by Charles A. Alutto
	Charles A. Alutto
	 Chief Executive Officer
	Approved as to Form:  Dated October 17, 2018  Xavier Bacera Attorney General of California  Original signed by Margarita Padilla, Supervising Deputy Attorney General  Rose B. Fua Deputy Attorney General Attorney's for Plaintiff, People of the State of California, ex rel Barbara A. Lee, Director California Department of Toxic Substances Control
	Dated October 12, 2018
	Original signed by Daniel P. Burton Latham & Watkins, LLP, Attorney for Defendants for General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC dba PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC; Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc.; Stericycle, Inc.

	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 1
	to
	Stipulation for Entry of Order and Final Judgment on Consent Case No. 34-2017-00221348
	Superior Court of the State of California
	County of Sacramento
	People of the State of California, Ex Rel. Barbara A. Lee, Director
	California Department of Toxic Substances Control
	Plaintiff versus General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova LLC, DBA PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC, Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. Stericycle Inc., and does 1 through 10 inclusive Defendants
	Defendants
	Case No. 34-2017-00221348
	Proposed Final Judgment on Consent and Permanent Injunction
	Having reviewed the Stipulation for Entry of Order and Final Judgment on Consent (the
	Stipulation) executed by Plaintiff, the People of the State of California, Ex Rel. Barbara A. Lee
	Director
	of the California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) and Defendants General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova LLC, DBA PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC, Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. Stericycle Inc., and 
	good cause appearing herein, the Court finds that the settlement between the Plaintiff and the
	Defendants as set forth in the Stipulation is fair and in the public interest.  Accordingly, the Court
	Approves the Stipulation a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit A, and enteres the
	Final Judgment on Consent and Permanent Injunctions set forth in the Stipulation.
	It is so Ordered
	Dated:  Hon. Judge of the Superior Court

	Exhibit 2
	Exhibit 2
	to
	Stipulation for Entry of Order and Final Judgment on Consent
	Case No. 34-2017-00221348
	Injunctive Relief Requirements by Job Category

	Exhibit 3
	Exhibit 3 to
	Stipulation for Entry of Order and Final Judgment on Consent Case #34-2017-00221348
	First Page of the CUPA's Hazardous Waste Generator Inspection Report 
	Second Page of the CUPA's Hazardous Waste Generator Inspection Report 
	Third Page of the CUPA's Hazardous Waste Generator Inspection Report 
	Fourth Page of the CUPA's Hazardous Waste Generator Inspection Report 
	Fifth Page of the CUPA's Hazardous Waste Generator Inspection Report 


	Exhibit D - 2013 Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination and Enforcement Order
	Exhibit D
	Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief 
	People v. GEM and Stericycle 
	Introduction
	In the Matter of 
	General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba PSC Environmental Services, LLC 11855 White Rock Road Rancho Cordova, California 95742 
	ID Number: CAD980884183 
	Respondent 
	Docket HWCA 20125570 
	IMMINENT AND SUBSTANTIAL ENDANGERMENT DETERMINATION AND ENFORCEMENT ORDER 
	INTRODUCTION 
	1.1. Parties. 
	1.1. Parties. 
	1.1. Parties. 
	1.1. Parties. 

	The California Department of Toxic Substances Control (Department) issues this Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination and Enforcement Order (Order) to General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba PSC Environmental Services, LLC (hereafter referred to as "Respondent"). 
	The California Department of Toxic Substances Control (Department) issues this Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination and Enforcement Order (Order) to General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba PSC Environmental Services, LLC (hereafter referred to as "Respondent"). 


	1.2. Site. 
	1.2. Site. 
	1.2. Site. 

	Respondent operates a hazardous waste storage and treatment facility, located at 11855 White Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, California, EPA ID Number: CAD 980884183 (Site). The storage and treatment facility includes, but is not limited to, an administrative building, a lab, truck parking, and 
	Respondent operates a hazardous waste storage and treatment facility, located at 11855 White Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, California, EPA ID Number: CAD 980884183 (Site). The storage and treatment facility includes, but is not limited to, an administrative building, a lab, truck parking, and 
	five (5) 
	waste management units. The facility is situated on a 4.5 acre parcel identified by Sacramento County Assessor Parcel map number 072-0530-001 . The Site is located in an area that is primarily industrial or open space and adjacent to White Rock Road, a public street. The Department estimates the closest residence to be about a mile from the Site. A map of the Site is attached as Exhibit A. 


	1.3. Permit/Interim Status. 
	1.3. Permit/Interim Status. 
	1.3. Permit/Interim Status. 

	Respondent operates an active permitted hazardous waste storage and treatment facility that is authorized to engage in sampling, storage, packaging, re-packaging, bulking and consolidation in containers of RCRA, non-RCRA, and Toxic Substance Control Act (TSCA) waste, container crushing and equipment flushing. The Site has a permitted capacity of approximately 82,320 gallons of hazardous waste. The permitted activity is conducted within
	Respondent operates an active permitted hazardous waste storage and treatment facility that is authorized to engage in sampling, storage, packaging, re-packaging, bulking and consolidation in containers of RCRA, non-RCRA, and Toxic Substance Control Act (TSCA) waste, container crushing and equipment flushing. The Site has a permitted capacity of approximately 82,320 gallons of hazardous waste. The permitted activity is conducted within
	five
	waste management units known as areas A, B, C and D and a drum crusher unit. After storage, bulk liquid and containerized hazardous wastes are transferred off-site to an end user (recycler) or an off-site permitted disposal facility. 


	1.4. Jurisdiction.
	1.4. Jurisdiction.
	1.4. Jurisdiction.

	Health and Safety Code section 25187, subdivision 
	Health and Safety Code section 25187, subdivision 
	(a)(1 ), authorizes the Department to order an action necessary to correct violations and assess a penalty whenever the Department determines that any person has violated 
	specified provisions of the Health and Safety Code or any permit, rule, regulation, standard, or requirement issued or adopted pursuant thereto. Health and Safety Code 
	section 25187, subdivision (h), authorizes the Department to issue an Order that takes effect upon issuance if the Department finds that the violations identified in the Order 
	may pose an imminent and substantial endangerment to the public health or safety or the environment. 




	Findings of Fact
	FINDINGS OF FACT 
	2.1. 
	2.1. 
	2.1. 
	Repackaging and bulking operations are forms of consolidation. 
	Repackaging and bulking operations are forms of consolidation. 


	2.2. 
	2.2. 
	Area C is a building that is permitted for sampling and consolidation of hazardous waste, as specified in the permit. 

	2.3. 
	2.3. 
	Area D is located outdoors and is permitted for sampling and consolidation of hazardous waste, as specified in the permit. 

	2.4. 
	2.4. 
	Respondent handles, stores, consolidates and otherwise manages a wide variety of hazardous waste at the Site, as identified in Part A of Respondent's Permit application, including incompatible wastes types identified in California Code of Regulations title 22, section 66264.801, appendix V. 

	2.5. 
	2.5. 
	The accidental mixing of incompatible hazardous wastes or materials during consolidation at the Site may cause a fire, explosion or other violent reaction that releases uncontrolled toxic materials in sufficient quantities to threaten human health or the environment. In addition to causing fires, explosions and other violent reactions, mixing incompatible hazardous wastes together during consolidation operations at the Site can also create toxic vapors or gases, or cause container failures, which could resu

	2.6. 
	2.6. 
	On March 8, 2011, Respondent performed a consolidation operation in Area C involving a 55-gallon drum containing approximately 25 gallons nitric acid. This operation resulted in a violent and uncontrolled reaction. The reaction caused an explosion that ruptured the drum and launched it approximately 15 feet in the air, releasing vapors and hazardous waste to the surrounding environment. Respondent's March 16, 2011, letter to the Department reported that the reaction was likely caused by the mixing of incomp

	2.7. 
	2.7. 
	On August 2, 2011, Respondent performed a consolidation operation in Area C. The operation caused a fire that burned and destroyed four, 55 gallon drums of hazardous waste, which released toxic smoke to the surrounding environment. As a result of the fire, two firefighters from the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District were sent to the local hospital for observation. Respondent mailed a report which described the fire event to the Department on August 15, 2011. According to Respondent's report, at approxima

	2.8. 
	2.8. 
	On February 28, 2013, Respondent consolidated hazardous waste solids from twenty-five, 55 gallon drums and 2,893 pounds of trash into a roll-off bin in Area D, which is located outdoors. On March 2, 2013, Respondent consolidated ten more 55 gallon drums of hazardous waste solids into the roll-off bin. On March 3, 2013, at approximately 6 AM a passerby reported observing flames coming from the site and called the local fire department. The fire department responded to the Site and then extinguished the fire 



	Determination of Violations and Imminent and Substantial Endangerment
	DETERMINATION OF VIOLA TIO NS AND IMMINENT AND SUBSTANTIAL ENDANGERMENT 
	The Department has determined that: 
	3.1. 
	3.1. 
	3.1. 
	Respondent violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.31 and section 66264.177, subsection (a), on or about March 8, 2011, in that Respondent failed to operate and maintain the facility in a manner to prevent the possibility of explosion or unplanned release of hazardous waste by placing incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials in the same container, without taking sufficient precautions to prevent accidental ignition or reaction. 

	3.2.
	3.2.
	 Respondent violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.31 and section 66264.177, subsection (a), on or about August 2, 2011, in that Respondent failed to operate and maintain the facility in a manner to prevent the possibility of a fire or unplanned release of hazardous waste by placing incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials in the same container, without taking sufficient precautions to prevent accidental ignition or reaction. 

	3.3. 
	3.3. 
	Respondent violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.31 and section 66264.177, subsection (a), on or about March 3, 2013, in that Respondent failed to operate and maintain the facility in a manner to prevent the possibility of a fire, explosion or unplanned release of hazardous waste by placing incompatible wastes, or incompatible wastes and materials, in the same container, without taking sufficient precautions to prevent accidental ignition or reaction .. 

	3.4. 
	3.4. 
	The hazardous wastes at the Site pose a public health risk if released, should human contact with the hazardous constituents or surrounding contaminated area occur. The continuing inability of Respondent to take precautions sufficient to prevent fires, explosions, or other violent or non-violent reactions that could potentially release hazardous wastes to the environment during consolidation operations in Area C or Area D, as required by California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.31 and section



	Schedule for Compliance
	SCHEDULE FOR COMPLIANCE 
	4. 
	4. 
	4. 
	Based on the foregoing Determination of Violations and Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

	4.1. 
	4.1. 
	Immediately upon issuance of this Order, Respondent shall cease all hazardous waste consolidation operations, i.e., repackaging, bulking and other consolidation activities, conducted at the Site until the Department authorizes Respondent in writing to resume them pursuant to paragraph 4.3. 

	4.2. 
	4.2. 
	Within 60 days from the date of issuance of this Order, Respondent shall submit to the Department for its review and approval: 
	4.2.1.
	4.2.1.
	4.2.1.
	 A work plan that describes in detail the changes and additions that Respondent shall make to the existing Standard Operating Procedures to implement additional precautions to prevent fires, explosions, or other violent or non-violent reactions that could potentially release hazardous waste to the environment during consolidation operations at the facility. At a minimum, the work plan shall address the following: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	procedures to identify incompatible waste, including but not limited to, review and documentation of records, manifests, waste profiles, and work orders pertaining to consolidation, 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	test methods, used to identify incompatible waste for both RCRA wastes and non-RCRA wastes

	 (3) 
	 (3) 
	quality control practices and procedures used to ensure that adequate levels of precision and accuracy are maintained to prevent consolidation of incompatible wastes at all levels of operation, 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	protocols for separating and otherwise managing incompatible waste to prevent mixing of them during consolidation operations, 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	oversight procedures at the facility to ensure incompatible wastes are not mixed together, and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	the proposed schedule for implementing the identified changes and additions to the Standard Operating Procedures and subsequently incorporating the revised Standard Operating Procedures into the facility permit pursuant to the Department's permit modification regulations. 




	4.2.2. 
	4.2.2. 
	A detailed training plan on the management of incompatible wastes and other related hazardous waste management practices including, but not limited to, requirements for handling reactive and/or ignitable waste, and QA/QC practices for identifying incompatible wastes. The training plan shall describe: 
	(1)
	(1)
	(1)
	 the level of training for each person that holds a position that is responsible for hazardous waste management,

	 (2) 
	 (2) 
	how often the training will be given, 

	(3)
	(3)
	 who will provide each level of training, 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	each position for which the training is required,

	 (5) 
	 (5) 
	records (e.g. a certification of completion) for each person that he or she has successfully completed the training and has demonstrated the necessary understanding and skills required to be competent in the course areas covered by the training, and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	the proposed schedule for implementing the training plan and subsequently incorporating the revised Standard Operating Procedures into the facility permit pursuant to the Department's permit modification regulations. The training plan shall include a syllabus for each training course identified in the plan which describes the training elements covered by each course. 




	4.2.3. 
	4.2.3. 
	The name of the responsible corporate officer at the Site who shall ensure the work plan is implemented and that persons/positions detailed in the training plan have been properly trained. 



	4.3. 
	4.3. 
	After the Department has approved the work plan and training plan, Respondent shall implement the plans pursuant to the schedules therein. Respondent may resume consolidation operations as specified in the Department's approval letter



	Other Provisions
	OTHER PROVISIONS 
	5.1.
	5.1.
	5.1.
	5.1.

	 Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 25187.2 Respondent shall reimburse the Department for the Department's cost incurred in overseeing the work required by this Order. 
	 Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 25187.2 Respondent shall reimburse the Department for the Department's cost incurred in overseeing the work required by this Order. 


	5.2. Submittals. 
	5.2. Submittals. 
	5.2. Submittals. 

	All submittals from Respondent pursuant to this Order shall be sent to: 
	All submittals from Respondent pursuant to this Order shall be sent to: 
	Mr. Paul Kewin, Division Chief Enforcement and Emergency Response Division Department of Toxic Substances Control 8800 Cal Center Drive Sacramento, California 95826-3200 


	5.3. Communications. 
	5.3. Communications. 
	5.3. Communications. 

	All approvals and decisions of the Department made regarding submittals and notifications will be communicated to Respondent in writing by the Enforcement and Emergency Response Program, State Oversight and Enforcement Branch Chief or his/her designee. No informal advice, guidance, suggestions, or comments by the Department regarding reports, plans, specifications, schedules, or any other writings by Respondent shall be construed to relieve Respondent of the obligation to obtain such formal approvals as may
	All approvals and decisions of the Department made regarding submittals and notifications will be communicated to Respondent in writing by the Enforcement and Emergency Response Program, State Oversight and Enforcement Branch Chief or his/her designee. No informal advice, guidance, suggestions, or comments by the Department regarding reports, plans, specifications, schedules, or any other writings by Respondent shall be construed to relieve Respondent of the obligation to obtain such formal approvals as may


	5.4. Department Review and Approval. 
	5.4. Department Review and Approval. 
	5.4. Department Review and Approval. 

	If the Department determines that any report, plan, schedule, or other document submitted for approval pursuant to this Order fails to comply with the Order or fails to protect public health or safety or the environment, the Department may: 
	If the Department determines that any report, plan, schedule, or other document submitted for approval pursuant to this Order fails to comply with the Order or fails to protect public health or safety or the environment, the Department may: 

	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Modify the document as it deems necessary and approve the document as modified, or 

	b. 
	b. 
	Return the document to Respondent with recommended changes and a date by which Respondent must submit to the Department a revised document incorporating the recommended changes. 



	5.5. Compliance with Applicable Laws: 
	5.5. Compliance with Applicable Laws: 
	5.5. Compliance with Applicable Laws: 

	Respondent shall carry out this Order in compliance with all local, State, and federal requirements, including but not limited to requirements to obtain permits and to assure worker safety. 
	Respondent shall carry out this Order in compliance with all local, State, and federal requirements, including but not limited to requirements to obtain permits and to assure worker safety. 


	5.6. Endangerment during Implementation: 
	5.6. Endangerment during Implementation: 
	5.6. Endangerment during Implementation: 

	In the event that the Department determines that any circumstances or activity (whether or not pursued in compliance with this Order) are creating a further imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of people on the site or in the surrounding area or to the environment, the Department may order Respondent to stop further implementation of this Order for such period of time as needed to abate the endangerment. Any deadline in this Order directly affected by a Stop Work Order under this pa
	In the event that the Department determines that any circumstances or activity (whether or not pursued in compliance with this Order) are creating a further imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of people on the site or in the surrounding area or to the environment, the Department may order Respondent to stop further implementation of this Order for such period of time as needed to abate the endangerment. Any deadline in this Order directly affected by a Stop Work Order under this pa


	5.7. Liability: 
	5.7. Liability: 
	5.7. Liability: 

	Nothing in this Order shall constitute or be construed as a satisfaction or release from liability for any conditions or claims arising as a result of past, current, or future operations of Respondent. Notwithstanding compliance with the terms of this Order, Respondent may be required to take further actions as are necessary to protect public health or welfare or the environment. 
	Nothing in this Order shall constitute or be construed as a satisfaction or release from liability for any conditions or claims arising as a result of past, current, or future operations of Respondent. Notwithstanding compliance with the terms of this Order, Respondent may be required to take further actions as are necessary to protect public health or welfare or the environment. 


	5.8. Site Access: 
	5.8. Site Access: 
	5.8. Site Access: 

	Access to the Site shall be provided at all reasonable times to employees, contractors, and consultants of the Department, and any agency having jurisdiction. Nothing in this Order is intended to limit in any way the right of entry or inspection that any agency may otherwise have by operation of any law. The 
	Access to the Site shall be provided at all reasonable times to employees, contractors, and consultants of the Department, and any agency having jurisdiction. Nothing in this Order is intended to limit in any way the right of entry or inspection that any agency may otherwise have by operation of any law. The 
	Department and its authorized representatives shall have the authority to enter and move freely about all property at the Site at all reasonable times for purposes including but not limited to: inspecting records, operating logs, and contracts relating to the Site; reviewing the progress of Respondent in carrying out the terms of this Order; and conducting such tests as the Department may deem necessary. Respondent shall permit such persons to inspect and copy all records, documents, and other writings, inc


	5.9. Data and Document Availability. 
	5.9. Data and Document Availability. 
	5.9. Data and Document Availability. 

	Respondent shall permit the Department and its authorized representatives to inspect and copy all sampling, testing, monitoring, and other data generated by Respondent or on Respondent's behalf in any way pertaining to work undertaken pursuant to this Order. Respondent shall allow the Department and its authorized representatives to take duplicates of any samples collected by Respondent pursuant to this Order. Respondent shall maintain a central depository of the data, reports, and other documents prepared 
	Respondent shall permit the Department and its authorized representatives to inspect and copy all sampling, testing, monitoring, and other data generated by Respondent or on Respondent's behalf in any way pertaining to work undertaken pursuant to this Order. Respondent shall allow the Department and its authorized representatives to take duplicates of any samples collected by Respondent pursuant to this Order. Respondent shall maintain a central depository of the data, reports, and other documents prepared 


	5.10. Government Liabilities: 
	5.10. Government Liabilities: 
	5.10. Government Liabilities: 

	The State of California shall not be liable for injuries or damages to persons or property resulting from acts or omissions by Respondent or related parties in carrying out activities pursuant to this Order, nor shall the State of California be held as a party to any contract entered into by Respondent or its agents in carrying out activities pursuant to the Order. 
	The State of California shall not be liable for injuries or damages to persons or property resulting from acts or omissions by Respondent or related parties in carrying out activities pursuant to this Order, nor shall the State of California be held as a party to any contract entered into by Respondent or its agents in carrying out activities pursuant to the Order. 


	5.11. Incorporation of Plans and Reports. 
	5.11. Incorporation of Plans and Reports. 
	5.11. Incorporation of Plans and Reports. 

	All plans, schedules, and reports that require Department approval and are submitted by Respondent pursuant to 
	All plans, schedules, and reports that require Department approval and are submitted by Respondent pursuant to 
	this Order are incorporated in this Order upon approval by the Department. 


	5.12. Extension Request: 
	5.12. Extension Request: 
	5.12. Extension Request: 

	If Respondent is unable to perform any activity or submit any document within the time required under this Order, Respondent may, prior to expiration of the time, request an extension of time in writing. The extension request shall include a justification for the delay. 
	If Respondent is unable to perform any activity or submit any document within the time required under this Order, Respondent may, prior to expiration of the time, request an extension of time in writing. The extension request shall include a justification for the delay. 


	5.13. Extension Approvals: 
	5.13. Extension Approvals: 
	5.13. Extension Approvals: 

	If the Department determines that good cause exists for an extension, it will grant the request and specify in writing a new compliance schedule. 
	If the Department determines that good cause exists for an extension, it will grant the request and specify in writing a new compliance schedule. 


	5.14. Additional Enforcement Actions: 
	5.14. Additional Enforcement Actions: 
	5.14. Additional Enforcement Actions: 

	By issuance of this Order, the Department does not waive the right to take further enforcement actions. 
	By issuance of this Order, the Department does not waive the right to take further enforcement actions. 


	5.15. Penalties for Noncompliance: 
	5.15. Penalties for Noncompliance: 
	5.15. Penalties for Noncompliance: 

	Failure to comply with the terms of this Order may also subject Respondent to costs, penalties, and/or punitive damages for any costs incurred by the Department or other gc;>vernment agencies as a result of such failure, as provided by Health and Safety Code section 25188, and other applicable provisions of law. 
	Failure to comply with the terms of this Order may also subject Respondent to costs, penalties, and/or punitive damages for any costs incurred by the Department or other gc;>vernment agencies as a result of such failure, as provided by Health and Safety Code section 25188, and other applicable provisions of law. 


	5.16. Parties Bound: 
	5.16. Parties Bound: 
	5.16. Parties Bound: 

	This Order shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent, and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, and subsidiary and parent corporations. 
	This Order shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent, and its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, trustees, successors, and assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, and subsidiary and parent corporations. 


	5.17. 
	5.17. 
	5.17. 

	Time Periods: 
	Time Periods: 

	5.17.1. 
	5.17.1. 
	5.17.1. 
	"Days" for purposes of this Order means calendar days. 

	5.17.2. 
	5.17.2. 
	All times for performance for compliance schedules described in paragraphs nos. 4.1 and 4.2 shall be calculated from the date of Respondent's receipt of this Order 

	5.17.3.
	5.17.3.
	 All times for performance for compliance schedules described in paragraph no. 4.3 shall be calculated from the date of Respondent's receipt of the Department's approval, unless otherwise specified therein. 





	Right to a Hearing
	RIGHT TO A HEARING 
	6. 
	6. 
	6. 
	6. 

	Any Respondent may request a hearing to challenge the Order. 
	Any Respondent may request a hearing to challenge the Order. 
	Appeal procedures are described in the attached Statement to Respondent. Under Health and Safety Code section 25187, a request for a hearing shall not stay the effect of this Order. 




	Effective Date
	EFFECTIVE DATE 
	7. 
	7. 
	7. 
	7. 

	Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25187, subdivision (h), this Order is effective immediately upon date of issuance indicated below. 
	Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25187, subdivision (h), this Order is effective immediately upon date of issuance indicated below. 



	Date of Issuance: 
	April 3, 2013
	Original signed by Brian Johnson 
	Brian Johnson
	Deputy Director
	Enforcement and Emergency Response Division 

	Exhibit A

	Exhibit E - Container Process Form
	EXHIBI'f E 
	Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief 
	People v. GEM and Stericycle 
	GEM Rancho Cordova LLC Container Process Form -Permit Specific 
	~ l Original Container Analysis and Compatibility ~ I ~ Ig ~ :1l a'• ro ~ ic: e ft " E "'u f ~ 8e ~ 8 ~ %of source t e .;; ~ £ □Bl " ~-moved to 'tl ~ "' . .~~ w Unique il C u E ti "' destination -~ " ~~ E -.,, ,_ => } ~ E • ~ ~Container# container: : "' ~~ 8i 6 ~ ~ ~ Container tJ _{Process form U+ sequencial number, starting at 001) Destination Container Container Type Waste Drum to be and Size Category stored in: 
	Chemist's Signature to Proceed (REQUIRED): 

	Exhibit F - Response to Summary of Violations
	Exhibit F
	Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctive Relief 
	People v. GEM and Stericycle 
	July 28, 2017 
	Mail certification #9590940224026249434770 
	Mr. Dan Pineschi Department of Toxic Substances Control 8800 Cal Center Drive Sacramento, California  95826 
	Re: Response to Summary of Violations General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC 11855 White Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, California 95742 EPA ID No. CAD980884183 
	Dear Mr. Pineschi: 
	General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, (“GEM”) respectfully submits this response to the Department’s Summary of Violations (SOV) dated June 27, 2017. This submittal includes a description of actions taken in response to Department observations. Actions taken do not constitute admission by GEM of alleged violations, and GEM reserves the right to further discuss allegations and provide additional information. (Please note that italicized passages are excerpts from Department’s Summary of Vi
	SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS NON-MINOR VIOLATIONS, page 2 
	On or about June 27, 2017 GEM violated California Health and Safety Code 25202(a)and California Code of Regulation, Title 22, section 66270.30(a) in that GEM failed to comply with Section VIII-B(1) of the permit part B. DTSC Staff observed employees not wearing protective equipment (e.g. hard hats) as direct by GEM LLC Facility Mgmt. 
	Corrective Action: GEM operation staff must be provided with and use the proper protective equipment during waste receiving, inspecting, sampling, analyzing, processing and shipping as directed by the GEM facility management. 

	GEM Response 
	GEM respectfully requests that the Department withdraw this violation allegation or document as an Issue/Concern. The department inspection team received the visitor safety instructions prior to the inspection  which included the fact that “hard hats”  were no longer required in the active area. As the physical inspection began, Mr. Pineschi noticed and pointed out that a sign in Area A indicated hard hats are required in the area. The sign was inadvertently left in place when Facility Management decreed th
	Department staff alleges that GEM violated subdivision VIII.B.(1) of its Operation Plan, which, in summary, indicates that facility management will provide direction to operation staff regarding the proper protective equipment to be used while conducting TSDF operations. The Department’s interpretation of the posted sign as a direction from facility management is understandable, but 
	mistaken. GEM facility management made the determination in October, 2016, that hard hats were not required personal protective equipment in the facility due to a lack of head injury hazards. This change in facility PPE requirements was communicated to all employees, and also is reflected in visitor safety communications, which Department staff completed prior to this inspection. 
	Corrective Action: 
	GEM, LLC respectfully contends that no violation regarding “hard hat” use occurred. GEM had previously changed visitor card safety requirements and per Mr. Pineschi’s request, signage reflecting the use of PPE in Area A was revised as shown in the photograph below. 
	Figure
	SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS NON-MINOR VIOLATIONS, page 3 
	On or about June 27, 2017 GEM violated California Health and Safety Code section 25202(a), and Code of Regulation title 22 section 66270.30(a) in that GEM failed to operate Area C according to conditions of the Permit Part B sections V-C(10) in that facility management or the facility chemist failed to approve of the intent to bulk waste using the appropriate process form.  

	GEM Response 
	GEM respectfully contends that no violation of the referenced regulatory or permit sections has occurred. The permit does not expressly stipulate use of the permit enclosed form example. Section V.A, page 2 of the Operation Plan includes the following paragraph: 
	“The forms referenced within this Waste Analysis Plan are typical forms developed for use by the facility. These forms may change to equivalent or alternate forms as regulations, customer needs, operations, or company policy dictate.”  

	This excerpt from the permit is clear that internal forms can be changed as necessary. There are no permit conditions that indicate otherwise. GEM did not change the form’s specific information, and in this case the difference is a signature on the form itself. As it stands, the permit discusses the form example and approval for processing separately. Further, the form is only one portion of the approval process. GEM contends that approval may also be managed and approved through other steps in our procedur
	GEM requests the alleged violation be changed to minor issues/concerns. 
	Corrective Action: 
	GEM has reinstalled the permit sample form that includes signatures as a gesture of cooperation. GEM is planning to re-work the associated approval methods and documentation to preclude future misunderstandings. 
	SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS NON-MINOR VIOLATIONS, page 4 
	On or about June 27, 2017 GEM violated California Health and Safety Code, section 25202(a) and 
	California Code of Regulation title 22 section 66264.3(a) in that GEM failed to comply with section 
	VIII-E-2 of the Permit Part B. DTSC observed approximately 200 Drums located behind the Facility 
	that were not labeled with an empty date. 
	GEM Response 
	GEM notes that the Department’s documented observation occurred “behind” the Facility. The Facility operator is GEM, LLC. GEM is the property owner however it is GEM’s contention that the permitted area is not the complete property address. The active permitted TSDF area is surrounded and separated from all other property address activity by a secured chain link fence. The transporter operating outside the active TSDF area is responsible for that outer area. The empty drum loads are delivered to and managed
	Corrective Action: 
	Stericycle Specialty Waste Solutions, Inc. is glad to discuss with the department and has informed GEM that the drums were labeled immediately, on June 27, 2017. The empty drums were shipped off site the following week. (Photographs included) 
	GEM has taken no corrective action. Please note that all empty drums managed in the permitted area were labeled appropriately at the time of inspection. 
	Figure
	SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS NON-MINOR VIOLATIONS, page 5: 
	On or about June 27, 2017 GEM violated California Health and Safety Code, section 25202(a) and California Code of Regulation Title 22 Section 66270.30(a) in that GEM failed to comply with section VI-D-2 of the permit Part B. DTSC observed three containers of corrosive waste marked with acceptance dates of 6/13/17, 6/16/17, and 3/28/17. The containers were stored longer than 10 days in Area A. 

	GEM Response 
	GEM did not store waste in Area A beyond the permitted 10 days. The waste containers noted by the Department personnel were repackaged containers created in Area A. If the created containers are not full, the containers are stored in Area B where waste may be added periodically until full and ready for shipment. Containers are stored in Area B until a shipment plan is developed and implemented. The containers are moved to Area A in preparation for outbound shipment, which is allowed by permit. The container
	Corrective Action: 
	To preclude any future misunderstandings for inspectors, GEM is adding a container movement date to the outbound shipment report that will document when the containers are moved to Area A staging for outbound shipments. GEM is evaluating procedures to include preprinting labels with no dates to ensure TSDF personnel date labels appropriately, as containers are created. 
	SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS NON-MINOR VIOLATIONS, page 6 
	On or about June 27, 2017 GEM violated Health and Safety Code section 25202(a) and California Code of Regulation title 22 section 66270.30(a) in that GEM failed to comply with Section VIII-E(1)(b) of the Permit Part B by ensuring containers located in Area B are marked and labeled as required at all times while they contain hazardous waste. DTSC observed five boxes and one bucket of Class 1.4 Hazardous Waste without accumulation start dates marked on the containers, located in cell 6. 
	GEM Response 
	GEM notes the annotated SOV discusses accumulation dates however the finding discussed in Area B during the inspection noted the containers were missing permit directed "acceptance" dates. All container labels observed contained accumulation dates. Acceptance dates for containers are part of the waste receiving activity following the permit conditions. GEM investigated this issue and finds that during receiving activities, those containers were overlooked and not stamped with t he receiving dates. 
	GEM Corrective Action: 
	GEM reviewed the manifest files and stamped each container with the appropriate acceptance dates. GEM is adding a Quality Control notation to the Waste Receiving documents to further aid Waste Receivers in complying with the permit during receiving activity. The issue has been addressed with the Supervisor and receiving teams. Sample photographs included. (manifest copies/photos attachment B) 
	~-.-= ~........,... "---I 1'mlC HANDLE WITH CAREicoon _ _,, 
	Closing 
	GEM management would also like to thank Mr. Pineschi and Ms. Aung for their assistance and professionalism during the inspection. 
	Please contact Darla M. Adams, Field Compliance Manager, via telephone at (310) 912-0183 or via email at Darla.Adams@stericycle.com if you have any further questions or require additional information. 
	Sincerely, For General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, 
	Original signed by James D. Treloar 
	James D. Treloar Vice President, Compliance Stericycle, Inc. 
	ATTACHMENTS 
	GEM of Rancho Cordova, LLC IStericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. 11855 White Rock Rd IRancho Cordova, CA I 95742 T: 916-951-0980 F: 916-351-1707 W: Iwww.stericycle.com 
	Attachments: Sample Forms Label corrections, Manifest copies/Corresponding photographs 
	cc: Ms. Renee Lane, Southwest Regional Manager Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc./GEM of Rancho Cordova, LLC 11855 White Rock Rd Rancho Cordova, CA  95742 
	Mr. Alex Baillie, Supervisory Environmental Scientist Enforcement and Emergency Response Division Hazardous Waste Program Statewide Emergency Response & Sacramento Enforcement Branch Department of Toxic Substances Control 8800 Cal Center Drive Sacramento, California 95826-3200 
	Ms. Nyein Aung, Environmental Scientist Hazardous Waste Management Program Statewide Emergency Response and Sacramento Enforcement Branch Department of Toxic Substances Control 8800 Cal Center Drive Sacramento, CA  95826 






